FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Success Franchising, LLC

Ny T NEYCY® Cale A Delaware limited liability company
bL CC [abb Cowork 750 NSt Paul-St55473 Blair Rd. Suite 2560100, PMB 30053
Conching Dallas, Texas 752031

Phone: (800) 570-6414

Email: tina-gantzted.laatz@success.com
Website: www.successfranchise.com

Success Franchising, LLC offers franchises for the operation of a shared workspace facility that offers
entrepreneurs and corporate workers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional business
coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service café and various other amenities, all under the
SUCCESS Space trademark.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a SUCCESS Space franchise ranges from $468,650 to
$1,424,150. This includes $74,150 to $76,650 that must be paid to us and our affiliates.

Area developers must commit to open a minimum of 3 SUCCESS Space facilities. If you purchase area
development rights, the total investment necessary to begin operation of a SUCCESS Space franchise ranges
from $477,650 to $1,442,150. This includes $83,150 to $94,650 that must be paid to us and our affiliates.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement, area development
agreement and other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying
agreements carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this
document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact the franchisor at 750-N—St—Paul-St;5473
Blair Rd. Suite 256100, PMB 30053, Dallas, Texas 752831 or by phone at (800) 570-6414.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure Document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this Disclosure
Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you make
up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A4 Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which
can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission
(the “FTC”). You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.fic.gov for additional
information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 19, 2023 (amended-Oectober4;2023)2024
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How to Use this Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more

information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or EXHIBIT "F".

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my
business?

Item 21 or EXHIBIT "H" includes financial
statements. Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing,
or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number
of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only SUCCESS
Space facility in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation
or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a SUCCESS Space
franchisee?

Item 20 or EXHIBIT "F" lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if
you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples
may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you
market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or
other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before
offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends
the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a
registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in EXHIBIT "A".

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your

franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

l.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and area development
agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration
and/or litigation only in Texas. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force
you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate,
arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Texas than in your own state.

Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable for
all financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your spouse has no
ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both your and your spouse’s
marital and personal assets, perhaps including your house, at risk if your franchise fails.

Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of development and has a
limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier investment than a
franchise in a system with a longer operating history.

Financial Condition. The franchisor’s financial condition, as reflected in its financial
statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial ability to provide
services and support to you.

Mandatory Minimum _Payments. You must make mandatory minimum royalty
payments regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make these investments may
result in termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Supplier Control. You must purchase all or nearly all of the inventory & supplies
necessary to operate your business from Franchisor, its affiliates, or from suppliers that
Franchisor designates at prices that the Franchisor or they set. These prices may be higher
than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the same or similar goods. This may reduce
the anticipated profit of your franchised business.

Unopened Franchises. The franchisor has signed a significant number of franchise
agreements with franchisees who have not yet opened their outlets. If other franchisees
are experiencing delays in opening their outlets, you also may experience delays in
opening your own outlet.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda” (if
any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any document relating to a franchise:

(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

€]

(h)

A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for
good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of
the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no
value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required
in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i)
The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other
agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service
mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of
franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal
provision.

A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude
the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location
outside this state.

A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for
good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to
purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable qualifications or
standards.

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.
(iii)) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure
any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with
the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the
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franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if
the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the
breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing
the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than $100,000.00,
the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by
the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements, equipment,
inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor,
a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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ITEM 1 FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

G 2

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “we,” “us” and “the Company” mean Success
Franchising, LLC - the franchisor. “You” means the person who buys a SUCCESS Space franchise - the
franchisee, and includes your partners if you are a partnership, your shareholders if you are a corporation, and
your members if you are a limited liability company.

A “SUCCESS Space Facility” or “Facility” refers to the franchised business offered under this Disclosure
Document, and includes any SUCCESS Space Facility operated by us, our affiliate, you or another franchisee.

Corporate Information

Success Franchising, LLC is a Delaware limited liability company that was organized on January 12, 2021. Our
principal business address is located at 750-N—St—Paul-St;5473 Blair Rd. Suite 256100, PMB 30053, Dallas,
Texas 752031 and our telephone number is (800) 570-6414. Our agent for service of process is disclosed in
EXHIBIT "B" to this Disclosure Document. We do not do business under any names other than “Success
Franchising, LLC” and our trade name “Success Space”.

Business History

We began offering franchises for SUCCESS Space Facilities in 2021. We began offering franchises for an area
representative business (an “Area Representative Business”) in 2023. We are not engaged in any business other
than offering franchises for SUCCESS Space Facilities and Area Representative Businesses and administering
the franchise system. We have never offered franchises in any other line of business. We have never owned and
operated a SUCCESS Space Facility or Area Representative Business.

We offer franchises for an Area Representative Business under a separate Disclosure Document. As of
December 31, 20223 we had-nethave sold anyl area representative franchises. A franchisee that operates an
Area Representative Business is referred to as an “Area Representative”. Area Representatives provide a variety
of services, including:

e soliciting, screening and recruiting prospective franchisees

e developing, training, servicing and supporting franchisees with the development and operation of
SUCCESS Space Facilities

e inspecting and monitoring SUCCESS Space Facilities to ensure compliance with our standards and
requirements

Area Representatives provide these services within a defined development territory. In exchange for these
services, we pay each Area Representative commissions based on fees we collect from franchisees located in
their development territory. Area Representatives are also required to establish and operate at least 1 SUCCESS
Space Facility. Area Representatives operate under the same trademarks licensed to SUCCESS Space Facilities.
If you purchase a franchise within an Area Representative’s development territory, the Area Representative may
provide you with certain initial and ongoing training, support and other assistance. Our current Area
Representatives are listed in EXHIBIT "G".

Predecessors, Parents and Affiliates

We do not have any predecessors. We have the following direct and indirect parent companies:

PARENT COMPANIES

Name Principal Business Address Direct or Indirect Parent?

T50-N—St—Paul-St;5473 Blair Rd.

Success World Holdings, LLC Suite 230 Direct

100, PMB 30053, Dallas, Texas
752031
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2219 Rimland Drive, Suite 301

eXp World Holdings, Inc. Bellingham, Washington 98226

Indirect

We do not have any affiliates that: (a) offer (or have ever offered) franchises in this or any other line of
business; or (b) provide goods or services to our franchisees.

Our affiliate, Success Space Limited, LLC, has developed and operates a complimentary business model for a
limited-scope membership-based shared workspace facility that: (a) operates under the SUCCESS Space
trademarks; (b) operates in conjunction with a SUCCESS Space Facility; (c) provides members with access to
temporary workspace; (d) does not include a café or provide members with access to certain amenities that are
only available at a full-service SUCCESS Space Facility; and (e) may not require onsite management or
supervision by an employee, manager or representative (a “Limited Services Facility”). Neither we nor any of
our affiliates currently offer franchises or licenses for Limited Services Facilities. Limited Services Facilities
discussed in more detail below in Item 1 and in Item 12 of this Disclosure Document.

Description of Franchised Business

SUCCESS Space is a membership-based shared workspace facility designed for entrepreneurs, small business
owners and other individuals seeking a convenient and flexible co-workspace solution. Our Facilities offer
members a variety of flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional business coaching,
virtual communication technology (including 2 media rooms with virtual communications technology used to
conduct virtual meetings and podcasts), a limited-service café and various other amenities.

Properties include private and open workspaces as well as meeting rooms for business, social and training
events. Members can rent workspace by the minute (billed in 15-minute segments), hour, day, week, month or
year. Each Facility includes a café, open to the public, that offers and sells fresh brewed and specialty coffees,
pastries, sandwiches, salads, snacks, beer and wine (where allowed by law), and a variety of retail items.
SUCCESS Space Facilities provide members with access to professional development and coaching services
through a SUCCESS® Certified Coach™ that offices onsite. Members also enjoy access to mail reception
services, enhanced Wi-Fi, video capabilities and virtual meeting technology.

SUCCESS Space Facilities operate through a membership model. Individuals must purchase a membership, and
pay the associated monthly membership fee, in order to access any areas or amenities within the Facility other
than the café (which is accessible to the general public). The membership entitles the member to access any
participating SUCCESS Space Facility (not just the Facility from which the member purchases the
membership). The member utilizes a specially assigned bar code to rent private workspace or utilize certain
amenities, such as a conference room or media room. The membership tracking software (which is a component
of our proprietary SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform) tracks the amount of time the private
workspace is rented and integrates with our designated point-of-sale system for purposes of billing the member
and processing payment.

If we sell you a franchise, you will develop and operate a SUCCESS Space Facility from a site that must be
approved by us. This Disclosure Document may refer to the Facility you establish and operate as your
“Business,” your “SUCCESS Space Facility” or your “Facility”. Your Facility will benefit from a variety of
revenue streams, including membership fees, office and event space rental fees, café food and beverage sales,
virtual technology rental fees and income from SUCCESS coaching offerings.

You must sign a franchise agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) and operate your Facility in accordance with
the terms of the Franchise Agreement. The form of Franchise Agreement is attached to this Disclosure
Document as EXHIBIT "C". Under the Franchise Agreement, we grant you a license to use certain logos,
service marks and trademarks, including “SUCCESS,” “SUCCESS Space,” “SUCCESS COACHING” and the
associated logos (collectively, the “Marks”). The “Marks” also include any distinctive trade dress used to
identify a SUCCESS Space Facility, whether now in existence or created in the future.

We have developed a proprietary business format and system for the operation of a SUCCESS Space Facility
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(the “System”). Distinctive characteristics of the System include, among other things:
e SUCCESS Space designs, furniture, fixtures and equipment
e site selection and layout criteria
o distinctive interior and exterior design, décor, signage, color scheme and other trade dress elements
e proprietary and nonproprietary products
e quality, distinctiveness and uniformity of products and services
e standards, specifications, policies and procedures for Facility construction, management and operations
e membership model
e proprietary SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform

e training programs

advertising and promotional programs

The operational aspects of a SUCCESS Space Facility are contained within our confidential Brand Standards
Manual (the “Manual”). You will operate your Facility as an independent business using the Marks, the System
and the support, guidance and other methods and materials that we make available to you.

The Limited Services Facility concept described above was developed to compliment traditional SUCCESS
Space Facilities and maximize market penetration and use by members. Every SUCCESS Space member is
permitted to rent workspace at any Limited Services Facility. Limited Services Facilities do not issue
memberships to members. All memberships are issued by traditional SUCCESS Space Facilities. If any
SUCCESS Space member rents space at a Limited Services Facility that is located within your territory, our
affiliate will pay you a revenue share equal to 10% of the total Usage Revenues that our affiliate collects from
the member. “Usage Revenues” refers to the total amount of revenues our affiliate collects from members based
upon their usage of workspace within any Limited Services Facility that is located within your territory,
excluding: (a) sales tax, use tax and any other tax our affiliate collects from members; and (b) amounts our
affiliate collects but subsequently refunds to members. You must provide members using the Limited Services
Facility with reasonable “virtual” access to your Business Coach (defined in Item 15 of this Disclosure
Document) in accordance with our policies.

Area Development Rights

If you satisfy our criteria for multi-unit developers, we may (but need not) offer you the right to enter into an
Area Development Agreement (an “ADA”). The ADA grants you the right and obligation to establish and
operate multiple SUCCESS Space Facilities within a defined “development territory” according to a
predetermined “development schedule”. You must open and operate all of the Facilities identified in the
development schedule. We only grant area development rights to franchisees that commit to open and operate a
minimum of 3 SUCCESS Space Facilities. A copy of our current form of ADA is attached to this Disclosure
Document as EXHIBIT "D". You will sign a separate franchise agreement for each Facility you establish under
the ADA. Each franchise agreement will be our then-current form of franchise agreement, which may differ
from the current Franchise Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document.

Market and Competition

The target market for the goods and services offered by a SUCCESS Space Facility includes entrepreneurs,
small business owners, flex workers, telecommuters and other individuals seeking a convenient and flexible co-
workspace solution. The target market for the café is the general public. The market for local flexible office
providers, co-working facilities, meeting and training facilities, and flexible office alternatives is developing and
demand for these services is growing. We do not expect sales to be seasonal, although we have not confirmed
this fact because no Facilities have been open a full year as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document.

You will compete primarily with other co-working facilities, meeting and training facilities, executive suites,
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coffee shops and retail businesses that offer services and products comparable to those offered by a SUCCESS
Space Facility. Most competitors are independently owned and operated, but others operate through regional or
national chains (a few operate under a franchise model). Unlike most shared workspace competitors, SUCCESS
Space Facilities will generally be located in suburban retail areas, which allows them to offer members a
convenient and accessible shared workspace solution closer to where they live. We believe the unique blend of
services and amenities offered by SUCCESS Space Facilities also provides a competitive advantage.

Laws and Regulations

You must comply with all federal, state and local laws applicable to your Business, including any required
licensure or other regulatory requirements. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 requires readily
accessible accommodations for disabled people and may affect your building construction, site design, entrance
ramps, doors, seating, bathrooms, drinking facilities, etc. You Facility also must comply with any applicable
local zoning and land use laws. There are a number of industry-specific laws that may apply to your Business,
including laws regulating:

o the collection, use and disbursement of security deposits

the eviction of tenants

the collection, use and sharing of customer data

the preparation, marketing and sale of food and beverage products

the handling of mail

Certain commercial leasing laws may require that you maintain security deposits in a separate account. These
laws may also affect your ability to keep security deposits and require that you follow certain procedures for
returning security deposits. Commercial leasing laws may restrict your ability to evict tenants under certain
circumstances and/or require that you follow certain statutory procedural requirements in order to effectuate a
lawful eviction. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, some state and local municipalities have enacted laws
that restrict a commercial property owner’s right to evict a tenant for nonpayment of rent or to take possession
of and sell a tenant’s property to cover past due rent.

You must comply with federal, state and local health and sanitation laws and licensure requirements applicable
to food establishments, including laws that require food handlers to have certain inoculations and/or food service
permits. Health laws are intended, in part, to reduce food borne illnesses and may cover such issues as: requiring
employees to take a test and obtain a license as a food service worker; having accessible sinks and bathrooms;
inspections for cleanliness and compliance; equipment cleaning; food preparation standards and protocols;
standards for storage and packaging of food items; refrigeration; and similar matters. You must comply with all
laws governing the sale of alcoholic beverages (including liquor licensing laws).

The United States Department of Agriculture and the Food and Drug Administration regulate the manufacture,
labeling and distribution of food products. There may also be state and local ordinances and regulations
governing food storage, preparation and serving. The Food and Drug Administration also regulates menu
labeling for restaurants that are part of a chain of 20 or more restaurants operating under the same name,
regardless of ownership. Some laws impose general requirements or restrictions on advertising containing false
or misleading claims, or health and nutrient claims on menus, such as “low calorie” or “fat free.”

You are responsible for understanding and complying with all state and federal data privacy laws, such as the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, the Fair and
Accurate Credit Transactions Act, the National Automated Clearinghouse Association, General Data Protection
Regulation and all related regulations. You must ensure the form of membership or other service agreement you
use complies with all applicable laws.

SUCCESS Space Facilities offer clients a number of amenities, including mail reception services. There are
federal laws and agency rules promulgated by the U.S. Postal Service governing commercial facilities that
handle or receive mail, including the U.S. Postal Service’s Commercial Mail Receiving Agency rules.
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There may be other local, state and/or federal laws or regulations that apply to your Business. We strongly
suggest that you investigate these laws before buying this franchise.

ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCECHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: GLENN SANFORD

Glenn Sanford has served as our Chief Executive Officer since our inception in January 2021. He founded EXP
Realty, LLC in Bellingham, Washington in July 2008 and has served as its Chairman, CEO, Treasurer,
Secretary and Director since March 2013.

Chief Legal Counsel: James Bramble

James Bramble has served as our Chief Legal Counsel since our inception in January 2021. During the prior 5
years, he has also held the following positions:

Employer Location Title Period of Time

General Counsel and Corporate

eXp World Holdings, Inc. Bellingham, WA Secretary

Mar 2019 to present

USANA Health-Sctences;Ine: Sahlale e e S Eeb 1998 to Eeb 2019

President: Ted Laatz

Ted Laatz has served as our President since our inception January 2021. During the prior 5 years, he has also
held the following positions:

Employer Location Title Period of Time
Success Enterprises, LLC Dallas, TX Chief Operating Officer Mar 2021 to Jan 2022
eXp World Holdings, Inc. Bellingham, WA VP of Affiliated Services Apr 2019 to May 2020
Virbela Bellingham, WA VP of Events & Affiliate Sales Apr 2020 to Dec 2020
eXp Realty, LLC Tampa, FL eXp Broker Jun 2017 to Apr 2019

VP of Franchise Operations: John Hamilton

John Hamilton has served as our VP of Franchise Operations since June 2021. During the prior 5 years, he has
also held the following positions:

Employer Location Title Period of Time
Dunkin Brands Inc. Canon, MA Business Development Manager Oct 2017 to Jun 2021
Head of Franchise Sales: TFina-Gantz- CFEAndrew Johnson

Fina—GantzAndrew Johnson has served as our Head of Franchise Sales since Awgust2023-February 2024.
During the prior 5 years, she has also held the following positions:

Employer Location Title Period of Time
FEranchiseWeH, L CFranchise Stafford;VAParadise | S#Senior Franchise Development Aug-Feb 20242622 to
Well Valley, AZ Consultant present

Fals-Chureh: .

C .. . Mol Apr2022-te-AugMar

DistrietBig Air Franchising MAParadise Valley, . Franchise Development i Mar
= A7 Director 2023 to present
. ' ’ Eounder, CEOFranchise Development prich 2022

EECArea 15 Ventures MAScottsdale, AZ ’ Anchlise LEVEOPIC | 1o Mar 2023
KellerWitliams Realty | Falls Church. Real Estate-SalesPersonBusiness Mar 20169 to Dee
Express National Bank VAScottsdale, AZ Development Consultant 2048Feb 2022
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Franchise Sales Consultant: Shaun Hagopian

Shaun Hagopian has served as our Franchise Sales Consultant since February 2024. During the prior 5 years, he

has also held the following positions:

Employer

Location

Title

Period of Time

Big Air Franchising

Ladera Ranch, CA

Franchise Director

Sep 2021 to present

Franchise Well

Stafford, VA

Franchise Development Consultant

Feb 2024 to present

Area 15 Ventures

Denver, CO

Franchise Development Manager

May 2022 to Feb 2023

The Tutoring Center

Long Beach, CA

Franchise Director

Apr 2020 to Apr 2022

Generation Next Franchise
Brands

San Diego, CA

Franchise Development Manager

Jul 2010 to Nov 2019

Franchise Advisor: Dr. Ben Litalien, Certified Franchise Executive

Dr. Litalien has served as our Franchise Advisor since our inception in January, 2021. During the prior 5 years,
he has also held the following positions:

Employer

Location

Title

Period of Time

Franchise Well, LLC

Stafford, VA

Founder & Principal

Oct 2008 to present

Adjunct Instructor

Franchising, LLC

Georgetown University Washington, DC (developed and taught franchise Sep 2008 to present
management certificate program)

University of Maryland Global Adelphi, MD Adjunct Associate Professor Oct 2010 to present

Campus

Daddy’s Chicken Shack Stafford, VA Chief Development Officer Feb 2021 to present

Executives

POS Franchising, LLC Stafford, VA Chief Development Officer Nov 2022 to present
BidExecs Franchising, LLC Stafford, VA Chief Development Officer Sep 2019 to Dec 2021

isi Chief Development Officer Sep 2012 to Aug 2017
Zerorez Franchising System, Stafford, VA : P P g
Inc. Director Sep 2017 to Dec 2021
Brain Balance Holdings, Inc. Stafford, VA Director Jun 2016 to present
JIBU Holdings, LLC Stafford, VA Director Jan 2014 to present
Pevelopment Company, EEC ’ i

5 ChiefDevelopmentOffieer Jan20-4te Nov2018
e .
LLC ; B el e T 00
Staltord- VA

Institute of Certified Franchise | g, ¢ g va Board Member Nov 2015 to Sep 2019

Area Representatives

The employment history of our Area Representatives is disclosed in EXHIBIT "G".

ITEM 3

LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Any litigation required to be disclosed about an Area Representative is disclosed in EXHIBIT "G".

ITEM 4

BANKRUPTCY

Page 6
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No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.
Any bankruptcy required to be disclosed about an Area Representative is disclosed in EXHIBIT "G".
ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

You pay us a nonrefundable $45 000 initial franchise fee at the time you sign the Franchlse Agreement 1-9—292—2

%&%%%M—ﬁmehfs%ptmekr&sed—byeaﬂe&lekﬁaﬁemse%The 1n1t1al franchlse fee is umformly 1mposed—exeep%
semablosed nlos

Initial Training Fee

You pay us a nonrefundable initial training fee of $12,500 in consideration of the pre-opening initial training
program we conduct for your Managing Owner, Designated Manager and Business Coach (each defined in Item
15 of this Disclosure Document). FhisfeeOf the $12.,500 initial training fee, $7.500 covers the SUCCESS Space
Coaching Certification Program for the Managing Owner and 1 Business Coach. You must pay us an additional
$2,500 training fee for each additional person that attends our SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program
prior to opening. We anticipate most franchisees will only send 1 Business Coach to our SUCCESS Space
Coaching Certification Program before opening. The initial training fee is due prior to commencement of

training. In2022-we-waived-the-initial-training fee forcertainfranchisees—The initial training fee is uniformly
imposed-exeeptas-diselosed-abeove.

Technology Fee

We currently charge a nonrefundable technology fee of $1,650 per month, which includes:

e access to our proprietary SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform (includes integration with
point-of-sale software, QuickBooks Online, payment processing software and SUCCESS Coaching App)

e access to our Learning Management System called “SUCCESS Spaceware Academy”
e access to our cowork / membership platform

e email accounts for you and your staff

e participation in our call center program with digital phone line

¢ hosting of any website we choose to establish for your Business

We begln charglng the fee 1 month pI'lOI‘ to opemng (so you pay us $1,650 i in technology fees prior to opening).
e o : A hisee—Technology fees are uniformly

1mposedexeept—as—étselesed—abe¥e

Pre-Opening Marketing Fee

Approximately 60 days prior to your opening date, you must pay us a $15,000 pre-opening marketing fee, which
we will use to implement your grand opening marketing campaign. Your grand opening marketing campaign
covers pre-opening marketing and grand opening marketing (which may last for 60 days after opening). We will
not retain any portion of this fee. Any unapplied portion of the pre-opening marketing fee will be refunded to
you (the fee is otherwise nonrefundable). Some franchisees may choose to spend more than $15,000 on their
grand opening marketing campaign. The pre-opening marketing fee is uniformly imposed. However, we agreed
to reimburse the $15,000 pre-opening marketing fee for the initial group of franchisees that signed franchise
agreements and qualified under our Founder’s Club program, which is no longer being offered.

Development Fee

If you sign an ADA, you pay us a $45,000 initial franchise fee for each Facility you commit to develop under
the ADA. At the time you sign the ADA, you will pay us the full $45,000 initial franchise fee for your first
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Facility and a nonrefundable development fee equal to 10% of the total initial franchise fee (i.e., $4,500) for
each additional Facility you commit to develop under the ADA. For example, if you purchase the right to
develop 5 Facilities, you pay us the full $45,000 initial franchise for your first Facility plus a development fee
equal to $18,000 ($4,500 X 4) for the right to develop the 4 additional Facilities under the ADA. We anticipate
most area developers will purchase the right to develop between 3 and 5 Facilities, which results in development
fees ranging from $9,000 to $18,000.

You must pay us the remaining balance of the initial franchise fee (i.e., $40,500) for each additional Facility at
the time you sign the Franchise Agreement for that Facility. However, if we terminate your ADA due to your
default, you will not be required to pay the remaining balance of the initial franchise fee for any Facility for
which a Franchise Agreement had not been signed as of the date of termination.

The development fee is uniformly imposed-exeeptas-diselosed-abeve.

ITEM 6 OTHER FEES
TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNFAMOUNT 2 DUE DATE REMARKS
We may independently poll your point-of-sale
Greater of (a)-$1.000 per month 10" day of month system to generate Gross Sales reports. Upon
Royalty Fee or 6% of monthly Gross Sales-?| forprior-meonth’s request, you must also provide us with monthly
e A0 et operations Gross Sales reports, certified by you as to
accuracy and completeness.See Nete3-
Up-to1% of monthly Gross SeeNote—4-You must contribute this amount to
Sales? the Brand Fund we administer. You have no
Brand Fund Fee Current F Same as royalty fee |voting rights pertaining to the administration of
taet/Current Fee] the Brand Fund, the creation or placement of
No fee currently charged) advertising, or the amount of the brand fund fee.
[Maximum Fee]
1% of monthly Gross Sales
Yp-tegreater/Current
Amount] SeeNete—5-This is the minimum amount you
must spend on advertising and marketing in your
Lesser of ¢2)169 ) local market to promote your Facility (the
: Gross Sales > or(b) I
Ié?)frﬂnlzﬁlrggmg er month $10,000 ﬁ%ﬁ “Local Marketing Commitment”). This is in
p . addition to your brand fund fee. We will notify
(e&iifeml—}ﬁlesseﬁeﬁéa}%7/o you 30 days before we change the Local
of monthly Gross Sales-~er-(b) Marketing Commitment.
$10.000-per-month)
[Maximum Amount]
Greater of $10,000 per month
or 10% of monthly Gross Sales
Yp-te-[Current Fee]
Cooperative No feeld4-ofmenthl-Gross
Advertising Fee | Sales® Same as royalty fee | See Note 1.
net currently charged)
[Maximum Fee]
1% of monthly Gross Sales

Page 8

Franchise Disclosure Document (20234)




TYPE OF FEE !

AMOUNEAMOUNT >

DUE DATE

REMARKS

Training Fee

Up to $500 per person per day

(plus expense
retmbursement Travel

Expenses for onsite training)

10 days after invoice

SeeNete-7-Payable for each person who attends
(a) initial training after you open (new
Managing Owner or Designed Manager), (b)
repeat training (after failing a prior attempt), (c)
refresher or supplemental training; (d) remedial
training or (e) additional training you request.
You must also reimburse us for Travel Expenses

we incur for training onsite at your Facility. We
do not charge training fees for pre-recorded
online virtual training programs.

SUCCESS Space
Coaching
Certification Fee

[Within$2:500-perpersen-(for
P~ eted vwithin 12
mMonths of sSigning

Franchise Agreement)-ef

’ : e

completed-more-than12
Smrromasal

$2.,500 per person

Prior to training

See—Note—8—The initial training fee covers
SUCCESS  Space  Coaching  Certification
training for Managing Owner and 1 Business
Coach. We impose the additional fee of $2,500
or $5,000 (depending on when training occurs)
for each additional person who attends
SUCCESS _ Space  Coaching _ Certification
training.

[More Than 12 Months After
Signing Franchise Agreement]

$5,000 per person

SeeNeote-9-We may hold conferences to discuss
matters affecting franchisees. Attendance is
mandatory unless (a) we designate attendance as

Conference UpVaries optional or (b) we waive your obligation to
Revistration Fee | (10!t exceed $1,000 per 10 days after invoice | attend based on showing of good cause. If vou
g attendee per conference) fail to attend a required conference without a
waiver, you still pay the conference registration
fee and we provide you with a copy of any

written materials distributed at the conference.
SeeNeote—10-This fee includes all amounts you
pay us and our affiliates relating to the
Technology Systems, including amounts paid

Varies i i

10% day of month or for proprictary 1terps and. amounts we pollect
Technology Fee (currently $1,650 per month as otherwise from you and remit to third-party suppliers. It
for software and technology specified by us may also include a reasonable administrative fee

described in Item 11)

for managing the technology platform and

negotiating / managing relationships with third-
party licensors. It does not include any amounts

you pay directly to third-party suppliers.

SUCCESS Space
Program Fees

Varies
(not currently charged)

10 days after
invoice or as we

otherwise specify

You must participate in any customer loyalty,
membership or gift card program we establish
and pay all associated program contributions

and fees we require to implement and administer
the program. These amounts are paid to us or a

third party we designate.

Purchase of
Products and
Services

Varies depending on
#temproducts or services
purchased

10 days after invoice

We currently license SUCCESS Spaceware in
exchange for the technology fee. Neither we nor
any affiliate is currently a supplier for any other
items purchased by franchisees, but we may
designate ourselves or our affiliates as suppliers
for other goods and services in the future.
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TYPE OF FEE !

AMOUNFAMOUNT 2

DUE DATE

REMARKS

New Product or
Supplier Testing

Actual costs we incur to test
the product or supplier

10 days after invoice

This covers the costs of testing new products or
inspecting new suppliers you propose.

Relocation Fee

$2,500

At time we approve
request to relocate

Imposed if we approve your request to relocate
your Facility.

Renewal Fee

35% of then-current {non-
discounted) initial franchise
fee

At time you sign
Renewal Agreement

Noene-Imposed
rights by
Agreement.

if you renew your franchise
signing a renewal Franchise

Transfer Fee

[Franchise Agreement]
$25,000

[ADA]

Greater of (a) $5,000 or (b)
our actual costs incurred
relating to the transfer

At time of tTransfer

Payable-when-you-We do not charge a transfer
1 ceonchise. No el i franchi
transferred-to-an-entity-you-contrel-or/ - for

e
existing-owners-Permitted Transfers. You pay

the transfer fee for all other Transfers. If our
broker finds the buyer-is-found-by-a-broker-we
engage, you must also reimburse us for all
commissions we pay te-the broker.

Payablelmposed if we inspect your Facility to

Reimbursement | All Travel Expenses and other determine if you remedied a}- (a) health or
of Reinspection | costs we incur to travel-to-and | 10 days after invoice | safety issue identified by a government agency
Costs inspect your Facility or (b) breach of system standards we bring to
your attention.
Actual cost of audit Payable-onbylmposed if audit (a) reveals you
Audit Fee (including travel-andlodging 10 days after invoice understated Gross Sales by at leaSF 2% or '(b) is
expensesTravel Expenses for necessary because you fail to furnish required
audit team) information or reports to us in a timely manner.
. If we debit your account but there are
i?;;gg; ?Sf;jlot/:r;frrzsrfnim insufficient funds, or a check you issue is
Late Fee (prorated on daily basis) or (b) | 10 days after invoice returned. due tf).msufﬁcwnt funds, then we may
highest rate allowed by charge (1.n gddmon to‘ th'e‘ latc? fee) an NSF fee Qf
apolicable law $50 per incident. In California, default interest is
PP limited to 10% per annum.
Payablelmposed if you fail to comply with a
mandatory standard or operating procedure
(including timely submission of required
Eines reports) and do not cure within the time period
E{;ncompliance Up to $500 per incident Upon demand g;gi%l 1rel.\e§Ve eIESZy 1m§2se }?gu?fdliﬁ)jalﬁ
eemphianeenoncompliance issue remains
uncured after we impose the initial finec. We
will deposit al—finesthese fees into the brand
fund(Brand Fund once established)--.
If you fail to cure a breach of the Franchise
Agreement or our brand standards in the time
period we require, we may take steps to cure on
Default All costs we incur to cure your 10 davs after invoice | YOUr behalf—H—we—do—se; and you must
Reimbursements | default y

reimburse us for our costs (examples include
failure to pay suppliers, maintain required
insurance;—failareto-pay-suppliers-and-failareto
or meet quality ersafety-standards).
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TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNFAMOUNT 2 DUE DATE REMARKS

You must indemnify and reimburse us for anyall
damages, losses or expenses we incur as-arestt
ofdue to the operation of your Facility or your
breach of the Franchise Agreement.

Amount of our damages,

Indemnification .
losses or expenses-we-ineur

10 days after invoice

You must reimburse us for all attorneys’ fees
and ether-costs we incur relating to your breach
of any—termof-the Franchise Agreement or any
otherrelated agreement.

Attorneys’ Fees | Amount of attorneys’ fees we

and Costs incur Upon demand

Payablelmposed if (a)—we terminate the
Franchise-Agreement-due to your default or (b)

Liouidated Ranges from $30,000 to you terminate theFranchise-Agreement-without
1quidate $100,000 15 days after invoice | eause-or-in vielation-of-the-terms-efany manner

(See calculation in Note 1) not permitted by the Franchise Agreement. See
Note 1 for the—formula—used—to—ealeulate

hiquidated-damages—details.

Damages

Notes:

1. Nature and Manner of Payment: All fees are imposed by and payable to us except: (a) we-may-eolleet-you
pay the cooperative advertising fees—and—transter—them—fec directly to the—appheableyour advertising
cooperative; (we may instead require you to pay this fee to us, in which case we will remit the fee to the
cooperative on your behalf); and (b) you spend the Local Marketing Commitment directly with third-party
suppliers. All fees are nonrefundable and uniformly imposed. You must establish a designated banking
account from which we will electronically debit all amounts you owe (other than fees due within 15 days
after signing the Franchise Agreement). You must submit information about your designated banking
account to us through our secure portal. You must deposit all Gross Sales into the bank account and ensure
sufficient funds available for withdrawal before each due date. You must reimburse us for all taxes imposed
on us or that we must collect and pay by reason of the furnishing of products, intangible property (including
trademarks) or services to you.

2. Definitions: As used in this Disclosure Document, the following capitalized terms have the meanings given
to them below:

“Brand Fund’ means the brand and system development fund we intend to administer to promote public
recognition of our brand and improve our System. The Brand Fund has not yet been established. We do not
intend to establish the fund until we have a minimum of 25 SUCCESS Space Facilities open and operating.

“Gross Sales” means the-total ameunt-ef-gross revenues charged, invoiced or collected from all goods and
services sold or otherwise provided at, within, from or through your Facility, including rent, membership
fees, coaching fees, charges for the use of amenities and technology, proceeds from the sale of food,
beverages and merchandise and all other revenues you generate in any way related to your Business
(including—any business interruption insurance proceeds), whether in the form of cash, check, credit card,
debit card, barter, exchange or otherwise, and regardless of collection. Any amounts we collect and pay you
for servicing a National Account (defined in Item 11) client are included in Gross Sales. “Gross Sales” does
not include sales or use taxes or amounts refunded to customers in bona fide refund transactions. We may
establish policies governing the manner in which proceeds from the sale of gift cards are treated for
purposes of calculating Gross Sales. The Manual may also provide details on the calculation of Gross Sales
relating to qualifying purchases and redemptions by members under any customer loyalty program we
establish.

“Permitted Transfer’ means: (a) a Transfer from one owner to another owner who was an approved owner
prior to the Transfer (other than a Transfer that results in the Managing Owner owning less than 20% of the
franchised business); and/or (b) a Transfer to a newly established business entity with respect to which the
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transferring owners collectively own and control 100% of the ownership interests.

“Technology Systems” means all information and communication technology systems that we designate,
including computer systems, point-of-sale systems, webcam systems, telecommunications systems, security
systems, music systems, audio visual systems and similar systems, together with the associated hardware
software (including cloud-based software) and related equipment, software applications, mobile apps and
third-party services relating to the establishment, use, maintenance, monitoring, security or improvement of

these systems.
“Transfer’ means a transfer or assignment of: (a) the Franchise Agreement (or any interest in the Franchise

Agreement); (b) the Facility’s assets (other than the sale of fixtures or equipment in the ordinary course of
business): (¢) any ownership interest in the entity that is the “franchisee”; or (d) the franchised business you
conduct under the Franchise Agreement.

3

‘Travel Expenses” means all travel, meals, lodging, local transportation and other living expenses incurred:
(a) by us and our trainers, field support personnel, auditors or other representatives to visit your Facility; or

(b) by you or vour personnel to attend training programs or conferences.

J—Coooeratlve Advertising Fee:

2.3. We may establish regional advertising cooperatives for purposes of pooling advertising funds to be used in
discrete regions. We may either: (a) collect cooperative advertising fees and remit them to the applicable
cooperative; or (b) require you to pay these fees directly to the cooperative. Cooperative advertising fees are
uniformly imposed on all Facilities in the cooperative, including company-owned Facilities. We may set the
minimum cooperative advertising fee, which may be increased by majority vote of all members of the
cooperative (but will not exceed the maximum amount specified in the table above). Each member is
entitled to ere{13} vote for each open Facility that is owned by the member and located in the cooperative.
We and our affiliates will be members of the cooperative (and have the same voting rights as franchisees)
with respect to company-owned Facilities located in the cooperative. However, if the majority of Facilities
in the cooperative are company-owned Facilities, we will not increase the cooperative advertising fee
witheut-theunless a majority vete-of all franchisee members vote in favor of the increase. All cooperative
advertising fees you pay are credited towards your Local Marketing Commitment. There were no
advertising cooperatives in effect as of December 31, 20223.

4—Before-yowopen;Liquidated Damages: You must pay us liquidated damages if: (a) we will-provide—our
m&ral—tr&mmg—preg%am—m—%eh&&g%fe%é—@@@—eﬁermmate the %%—m&ml—&%&ﬂ&g—fe%\&l%may
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»—ecachperson-wheo-mustretaketraining afterfathingalranchise Agreement prior attempt
o+ —any remedial-training-we require-based-onto its expiration date (except in accordance with the

provisions governing your

he-right to inelude
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el | . : '
3-4.terminate following our uncured breach). Liquidated damages are calculated by—multiplyine—(ajas the
combined average monthly royalty fee and brand fund fee (without regard to any fee waivers or other

reductions) imposed en—you-duringthe-period-oftime-commeneingonirom your opening date and-ending

enthrough the termination effective date eftermination-efthe FEranchise-Agreement-and{b)-the-multiplied
by the lesser of: (ia) 36; or (itb) the total number of full months remaining under the term ef-theFranchise

Agreement-as of the termination effective date-eftermination. However, in all cases the minimum amount
of liquidated damages will be $30,000 (even if $30,000 is greater than the amount calculated by applying
the formula above) and the maximum amount of liquidated damages will be $100,000 (even if $100,000 is
less than the amount calculated by applying the formula above). If you pay us liquidated damages in a
timely manner, we may not pursue a claim against you for lost profits attributable to fees and revenue we
would have received after termination if the Franchise Agreement had not been terminated. However
payment of liquidated damages does not prevent us from seeking other damages we incur due to your
breach.

ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Table A: Estimated initial investment for the purchase of a single Facility.

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

(SINGLE FACILITY)
TYPE OF EXPENDITURE * AMOUNFAMOUNT ! METHOD OF WHEN DUE TO WHOM PAYMENT
- PAYMENT Is To BE MADE
Initial Franchise Fee $45,000 Lump sum At tlm? you sign Us
Franchise Agreement
Initial Training Fee 2 $12,500 to $15,000 Lump sum Prior to training Us
Training E
FHING BADERSES 181,000 to $3,000 Asincurred | During training Hotels, restaurants and
Bil ) airlines
. , Monthly
Iﬁ:liezt Deposit & 3 Months $40,000 to $100,000 | Lump sum (with lease deposit Landlord
paid before opening)
Architectural Services $7,500 to $25,000 As incurred Before opening Architect

Leasehold Improvements & Contractors and

Construction 5 $125,000 to $750,000 | As incurred Before opening suppliers
Construction Management ¢ | $12,500 to $18,000 As incurred As incurred Project Management

Company
Furnishings, Fixtures &
Equi t’
(eillllll):(rlliing Technology $48,000 to $185,000 As incurred Before opening Suppliers
Systems)
Signage & Graphics® $7,500 to $27,500 Lump sum Before opening Suppliers
Technology Systems ° $34,500 to $64,000 As incurred Before opening Suppliers

. Monthly
EEZ;O'E ening Technology $1,650 As incurred (first installment due | Us
prior to opening)

Opening Inventory !! $6,000 to $14,500 Lump sum Before opening Suppliers
Pre-Opening / Grand $15,000 Lump sum 60 days before and 60 Us

Opening Marketing '

days after opening
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
(SINGLE FACILITY)
TYPE OF EXPENDITURE * AMOUNTAMOUNT ! S amiod WHEN DUE TO WHOM PAYMENT
PAYMENT IS To BE MADE
Utility Deposits $2,500 to $4,000 As incurred Before opening Utility companies
Business Licenses & Permits | $2,500 to $4,000 As incurred Before opening Government agencies
Professional Fees ' $7,500 to $20,000 Lump sum Before opening Lawyers, accountants
& business advisors
I . .
nsurance . " $5,000 to $7,500 Lump sum Before opening Insurance companies
e e
Additional Funds 13 ) i
ona TR §95,000 to $125,000 | Asincurred | As incurred Suppliers, employees
(3 months) and us
Total Estlm?ted Initial $468.650 to $1,424,150
Investment

Table B: Estimated initial investment for the purchase of area development rights.

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

(AREA DEVELOPMENT - ASSUMES COMMITMENT OF 3 TO 5 FACILITIES)

TYPE OF EXPENDITURE ' AMOUNT METHOD OF WHEN DUE TO WHOM PAYMENT
PAYMENT IS To BE MADE
Development Fee 7 $9,000 to $18,000 Lump sum At time you sign ADA |Us

Initial Investment to Open
First Facility

$468,650 to $1,424,150

This is the total estimated initial investment in the-tableTable A

above.

Total Estimated Initial

Investment_'

$477,650 to $1,442,150

Notes:

L.

Financing and Refunds: We do not offer direct or indirect financingferany-ofthese-items. We will refund
any portion of the pre-opening marketing fee we do not use to implement your grand opening marketing
campaign (which includes pre-opening marketing and grand opening marketing). No other amounts payable
to us are refundable. We are unaware of any fees payable to third-party suppliers that are refundable,
although some landlords refund security deposits at the end of the lease if the tenant does not default or
damage the property.

[nitial Training Fee: The low estimate assumes you only send your Managing Owner and 1 Business Coach
to the SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program. The high estimate assumes you send your
Managing Owner and 2 Business Coaches to the SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program, which

Initial Training Expenses: This estimates your expenses to send 3 people to our designated training facility

in Flower Mound, Texas for initial training. Your actual training expenses may vary depending on: (a) the
number of people you send to training; (b) the distance they must travel; and (c) the level and quality of

2.

requires a $2,500 additional training fee.
3.

accommodations, travel and dining selected.
34

.Real Estate: This estimate assumes you will lease your premises. Rent varies depending on the size of the

premises, its location, landlord contributions, and the requirements of individual landlords. We anticipate
that most SUCCESS Space Facilities will range in size from 4,500 to 5,500 square feet with monthly rent
ranging from $10,000 to $25,000 per month. However, your actual rent may vary significantly above or
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below this range depending on your area and local market conditions. For example, you may face
significantly higher rent in areas such as New York City, San Francisco or Boston. Landlords typically
require security deposits equal to 1 or 2 months’ rent and may, in addition, require payment in advance of
the first and/or last (or more) month’s rent. Most landlords require a personal guarantee for the lease. The
total-estimated—initial-investmentamount shown in the eharttable above includes 1 month’s security plus 3
months’ rent. Some franchisees may prefer to own the premises for their SUCCESS Space Facility. The cost
to purchase real estate varies so widely that we cannot reasonably estimate the cost.

Leasehold Improvements and Construction: This estimates the cost of constructing/building out the interior

finish of an existing building shell. For construction in a “vanilla shell”, be aware that additional costs for
electrical panels, sprinkler system and HVAC expansion may not be included in the assumed state of the
property. The cost of leasehold improvements and build-out varies widely based on a number of factors,

o the extent and nature of eest—ef—materials—marketconditions—whetherornet-there—are-any existing

o whether the landlord will contribute to the costs of the leasehold improvements—These-costs-ecan-also-be

affected-by-the prevailing-wage rate-in-yvourtocalmarket (a “TI Allowance”) and the amount of any TI

e local demand-forconstruction serviees—costs and prevailing wage rates in your local market

This item estimates leasehold improvement costs in a typical market. The costs may be higher in select
markets such as New York City, San Francisco or Boston. Eer—purpesesSome landlords provide a TI
Allowance but increase monthly rent to recapture the TI Allowance and amortize it over the lease term (or

part of Bfepafmg—thJ:s—estfmaH%SSHmeéthe lease ter m) The estlmates in the table above assume you

Construction Management: You must hire a project management company to oversee the development of

Furnishings, Fixtures & Equipment: This estimate includes the cost for your furnishings, fixtures and
equipment (other than the Technology Systems). It includes all required kitchen equipment for the café,
including specialty coffee makers, coolers, prep tables and storage shelving. It also includes furniture for the
cowork spaces, reception area and dining area, light fixtures and bathroom items. Your total cost will vary
depending on the size of your Facility, vendor pricing, shipping costs, technician costs and similar variables.

Signage & Graphics: You must purchase and install the signage and graphics we specify. However, you

may need to modify our standard signage to conform to local zoning laws, property use restrictions and/or
lease terms. We must approve all such modifications before you sign a lease for the premises.

5.
including-:
e the size and condition of the premises;-leased space
leasehold improvements and
Allowance you are able to negotiate
e cost of materials
e local demolition costs
wnl—ldo not receive any
tenant—tmmo&tem%nﬂl allowance : 4
your initial investment may decrease by the amount of the allowance
4-6.
your Facility.
5:7.
6:8.
79.

Technology Systems: This includes your initial cost to purchase, install and configure your Technology

Systems, including:
e computer and point-of-sale system ($11,000 to $15,000)
e virtual communications rooms technology for 2 rooms ($6,000 to $12,000)

e camera and security system ($3,500 to $15,000)
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o digital wall monitors/system ($14,000 to $22,000)

These ranges include the costs to design, acquire and install these systems (including low voltage cabling
and high-speed Internet access).

8:10. WePre-Opening Technology Fee: We currently charge a $1,650 monthly technology fee for access to
various software and technology we provide. You begin paying us this fee 1 month prior to opening.

9:11. Opening Inventory: Your opening inventory will largely consist of café related items, including a 2-week
supply of food items, small wares, paper goods, retail items and sundry items. Other inventory items include
brochures, marketing materials and other operating materials and supplies. We must approve all food,
beverage, merchandise and other retail items you intend to sell at your Facility.

40:12. Pre-Opening / Grand Opening Marketing: You must pay us a $15,000 pre-opening marketing fee. We will
use these funds to implement your grand opening marketing campaign, which includes pre-opening
marketing and as well as your grand opening. Grand opening marketing campaign expenditures typically
begin 60 days before opening and end 60 days after opening. You have the option, but not the obligation, to
spend more than the $15,000 minimum on your grand opening marketing campaign.

13. ¥ou-should-consider hiringan-attorney—and-accountantProfessional Fees: This includes the estimated fees

for professionals you may choose to hire in order to:

e assist you in reviewing this Disclosure Document—evaluating-thefranchise-oppertunity and negotiating
your Franchise Agreement

e advise vou regarding local laws and dewvelepineregulations applicable to vour Facility

e form a business entity

e setup your books, records and accounts

e develop a business plan_ and budget for the development and operation of your Facility.

These services are optional but highly recommended. You may also want to hire a reputable company to
perform a thorough market analysis of your proposed market.

14. Insurance: This estimate includes 12 months of insurance premium. Item 8 includes a description of the
insurance policies you must purchase and maintain.

+15. Additional Funds: This estimates your expenses during the first 3 months of operation, including payroll
costs (excluding any wages or salary paid to the franchise owners), inventory replenishment, marketing
costs utilities, technology fees and other miscellaneous expenses and required workmg capital. We-havenet

rent is—and 12 months of insurance premium are separately stated in the table above These figures are

estimates based on: (a) our experience and data collected from our consultants—:; and (b) the recent
experience of our franchisees in developing, opening and operating franchised Facilities.

16. SeeBudget and Initial Investment Report: We strongly recommend you hire an accountant, business advisor

or other professional to assist you in developing a budget for the construction, opening and operation of
your Facility. Within 60 days after your opening date, you must send us a report, in the form we designate

listing the expenses you incur to develop and open your Facility. We may use this data to update the initial
investment estimate in future versions of our Franchise Disclosure Document.

+2:17. Development Fee: Item 5 for-a-diseussion—ofthe-ecalenlation—of-discusses how the development fee: is
calculated. This initial investment estimate assumes you purehase—the—rightcommit to develop either 3
Facilities (low estimate) or 5 Facilities (high estimate). If you purchase the right to develop more than 5
Facilities, your development fee will increase by an additional $3,000 for each additional Facility you
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commit to develop in excess of 5. This estimate does not include the cost to open any Facility other than the
first Facility you develop under the ADA.

ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Source--Restricted Purchases and Leases - Generally

You must purchase or lease certain “source—-restricted” goods and services for the development and ongoing
operation of your Business. By “source--restricted”, we mean the good or service must meet our specifications
(or must be a specific brand or model) and/or must be purchased from an approved or designated supplier (in
some cases, an exclusive designated supplier, which may be us or our affiliate). The Manual includes our

specifications and supplier llst—e{;appfeved—&rtd—ée&rgiﬁia%ed—selpph%s— We er—notlfy you wr%hm%@—d-ays—ef

aﬁyof changes to our spemﬁcatlons

amendmem&eﬁmd sunnhu s by cmml updates to the Manual;-bulletins; or other means of commumcatlon

Supplier Criteria

Our criteria for evaluating a supplier include standards for quality, delivery, performance, design, appearance
and price of the product or service as well as the dependability, reputation and financial viability of the supplier.
Upon your request, we will provide you with any objective specifications pertaining to our evaluation of a
supplier, although certain important subjective criteria (e.g., product appearance, taste, design, functionality,
etc.) are important to our evaluation but cannot be described in writing.

If you want to purchase or lease a source--restricted item from a non-approved supplier, you must send us a
written request for approval and submit any additional information we request. We may require that you send us
samples from the supplier for testing. We may also require that we be allowed to inspect the supplier’s
facilitiesy. We will notify you of our appreval-er—disapprevaldecision within 30 days after we receive your
request for approval and all additional information and samples we require. We may periodically re-inspect the
facilities and products of an approved supplier and revoke our approval if the supplier fails to meet any—efour
then-current criteria. You must reimburse us for all costs we incur to review-cvaluate products and suppliers you

propose-and-test-theirproduets.

Current Source--Restricted Items

We estimate that 90%-100% of the total purchases, leases and operating expenses required to establish and
operate your Facility will consist of source--restricted goods and services, as further described below.

Lease

If you lease the premises for your Facility, you must use your best efforts to ensure your landlord signs the
Lease Addendum attached to the Franchise Agreement as ATTACHMENT "C". We may review the terms of
your lease but do not provide you with any lease negotiations support. We strongly recommend you hire an
experienced commercial real estate attorney to help you review your lease and negotiate with your landlord.

Design and Construction Services

We will provide you with our standard construction manual and build-out package, including prototypical plans
and specifications, site criteria and sample site plans. You must hire an architect to prepare initial design plans
and detailed construction plans, each of which must be: (a) consistent with our construction manual and build-
out package materials; and (b) approved by us as meeting our system standards. Once approved, you must
construct and equip your Facility according to the approved plans as well as the specifications contained in the
Manual. Your architect and general contractor must be appropriately licensed and bonded (if required by
applicable law) and must be approved by us.
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Project Management Services

You must hire a company to provide project management services to manage and help coordinate the buildout,
construction and development of your Facility. You may use our recommended supplier for these services or
any other supplier we approve.

Fixtures, Furnishings and Décor

All of your fixtures, furnishings and décor must meet our standards and specifications and be purchased from
suppliers we designate or approve.

Technology Systems

Your Technology Systems (including hardware, software, equipment, software applications, mobile apps and
similar items) must meet our standards and specifications, including your computer and point-of-sale system,
security system, music system and audio-visual system. Substantially all of the components of your Technology
Systems must be purchased from approved or designated suppliers, although certain components may be
purchased or licensed from any supplier of your choosing (for example, off-the-shelf software such as Microsoft
Office). We may also require that you purchase certain services relating to your Technology Systems only from
approved or designated suppliers, including services relating to the establishment, use, maintenance, monitoring,
security or improvement of your Technology Systems. You must use a supplier we designate or approve to
install your audio-visual system and provide music video services. You must license our proprietary SUCCESS
Spaceware business management platform exclusively from us and sign the associated Software License
Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document as EXHIBIT "I"-3.

Operating Equipment (excluding Technology Systems)

All of your operating equipment (including all kitchen equipment) must meet our standards and specifications
and be purchased from suppliers we designate or approve.

Signage & Graphics

All of your interior and exterior signage and graphics must meet our standards and specifications and be
purchased from suppliers we designate or approve.

Operating Supplies

You must purchase certain operating supplies that meet our standards and specifications, such as stationery,
contracts, forms, bags, packaging, etc. Certain operating supplies must be purchased from approved or
designated suppliers (such as branded bags and packaging materials) while other operating supplies may be
purchased from any supplier of your choosing (for example, cleaning supplies).

Small Wares

You must purchase small wares that meet our standards and specifications. You may purchase these items from
any supplier of your choosing.

Inventory

All of your inventory must meet our standards and specifications, including fountain and bottled beverages, food
products and retail items. You must purchase these items only from approved or designated suppliers. You may
not utilize any inventory items we have not approved.

Marketing Materials and Services

All marketing and promotional materials must comply with our standards and requirements. We must approve
all marketing materials prior to use. You must purchase branded marketing materials only from suppliers we
designate or approve. You must use suppliers we designate to implement your grand opening marketing
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campaign and/or provide social media marketing on your behalf. Currently, we require that you pay us a
$15,000 pre-opening marketing fee. We utilizeuse these funds to implement your grand opening marketing
campaign (including by contracting with third-party suppliers of advertising and marketing supplies and
services).

Payment Processing

You must comply with the payment processing procedures we establish from time to time. You must accept
credit cards to facilitate sales and the collection of membership fees and dues. Your Facility must accept Visa,
MasterCard, Discover and American Express.

Insurance Policies

Y ou must obtain all insurance coverage we require (whether in the Franchise Agreement or in the Manual). You
must obtain these insurance policies from insurance carriers that have an A.M. Best Rating of not less than A-
VII and are licensed and admitted in the state in which your Facility is located. The required coverage currently
includes:

Policy Type Minimum Coverage
“All risk” Property Insurance Full Replacement Value (excluding foundation & excavation costs)
Comprehensive General Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate
Professional Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Automobile Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Liquor Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Cyber Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Commercial Umbrella Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Business Interruption Insurance At least 50% of annual sales or 12 months’ actual loss sustained
Employment Practices Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Worker’s Comp & Employer Liability Insurance As required by law (minimum of $1,000,000 per occurrence)
Landlord-Required Insurance As required by lease

The required coverage and policies are subject to change. All insurance policies must be endorsed to: (a) name
us (and our members, officers, directors, and employees) as additional insureds; (b) contain a waiver by the
insurance carrier of all subrogation rights against us; and (c) provide that we receive 10 days’ prior written
notice of the termination, expiration, cancellation or modification of the policy.

Purchase Agreements

We may, but need not, negotiate relatienshipspurchase agreements with suppliers—te—previde, including
favorable pricing terms. for the benefit of our franchisees—with-discountedprieing.. If we succeed, you may

purchase these itemsgoods or services at the discounted prices we negotiate (less any rebates or other
consideration paid to us). As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, we have not negotiated any
purchase agreements (including pricing terms) with suppliers.

We may purchase items in bulk and resell them to you at our cost plus a reasonable markup (your total cost to
purchase the items from us will not exceed your total cost to purchase the items directly from the supplier
w1thout the beneﬁt of our group purchasmg power) As—ef—th&rssu{me&da{%ef—%s—D}sele&m%Deeameﬁt—we

You do not receive any material benefits for using designated or approved suppliers other than having access to
any discounted pricing that we negotiate. Currently there are no purchasing cooperatives, although we may
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establish them in the future.

Franchisor Revenues from Source--Restricted Purchases

We are currently the excluswe demgnated supplier for our proprletary franchlse management software. MNe

4 : : . ~We may designate ourselves
and/or our afﬁhates as approved or des1gnated supphers for other items in the future. We and our affiliates may
generate a profit from these purchases. No person affiliated with us is currently an approved (or the only
approved) supplier. There are currently no approved or designated suppliers in which any of our officers owns
an interest.

We may receive rebates, payments or other material benefits from suppliers based on franchisee purchases and
we have no obligation to pass them on to our franchisees or use them in any particular manner. As of the
issuance date of this Disclosure Document, we do not have any relationships with suppliers that involve rebates,
payments or other material benefits based on franchisee purchase or leases. Our Area Representatives do not
currently receive any rebates, payments or other material benefits from suppliers based on franchisee purchases
or leases.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 20223, neither we nor-any—ef our affiliates received any revenue as a
result of franchisee purchases or leases of goods or services from designated or approved suppliers (including

purchases efgeods-orservices-from us-er-ouratfiliates)-).
ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement (FA), Area Development
Agreement (ADA), Software License Agreement (SLA) and other agreements. It will help you find more
detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and other items in this Disclosure
Document.

OBLIGATION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM
FA:§7.1& 7.2
a.- Site selection and
O ADA: §4.2 Item 7 & Item 11
acquisition/lease
SLA: Not Applicable
FA:§7.3,11.8 & 14.1
b.-Pre-opening purchases/leases ADA: Not Applicable Item 5, Item 7, Item 8 & Item 11
SLA: §5(a) & Attachment A
. FA:§73 & 7.4
c-Site development and other pre- "y 4 "¢y Ttem 6, Item 7 & Ttem 11
opening requirements
SLA: Not Applicable
FA: §5
d.-Initial and ongoing training ADA: Not Applicable Item 6 & Item 11
SLA: Not Applicable
FA:§7.4
e.-Opening ADA: §4.1 Item 11

SLA: Not Applicable

FA: §4.2,5.75.4,5.5,6.2, 6.8, 10.1,10.3¢b);
10410, 11.8, 11.10, 11.12, 11.16, 12, 141,15

f.- Fees &15.18.2 £20.2 Item 5 & Item 6
ADA:§5& 7.2

SLA: §5 & Attachment A
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OBLIGATION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM

g.-Compliance with standards and
policies/Operating Manual

FA:§6.1,7.1,7.3,10.3, 11 & 16.1

ADA: §4.2

Item 11

SLA: §2(b)
FA: §16
h.-Trademarks and proprietary -
information ADA: §2 Item 13 & Item 14
SLA: §6 &7
FA:§11.3
i.- Restrictions on products/ ADA: Not Anplicable Hem 16
services offered : pp
SLA: §2(b)
. . . EA§H-H4FA: §11.14
I Warr.anty and client service ADA: Not Applicable Not Applicable
requirements
SLA: Not Applicable
o FA: Not Applicable
k.-Territorial development and ADA: §4.1 lem 12
sales quotas
SLA: Not Applicable
) . FA: §11.8
1.- Ongoing product/service ADA: Not Applicable Hom 8
purchases
SLA: Not Applicable
) FA:§119 & 11.11
m.-___Maintenance, appearance ADA: Not Applicable Hem 11

and remodeling requirements

SLA: Not Applicable

n.-Insurance

FA: §14.1

ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6 & Item 7 & Item 8

SLA: Not Applicable

o.-Advertising

FA: §10

ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6, Item 7 & Item 11

SLA: Not Applicable

p--Indemnification

FA: §17

ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6

SLA: §9

q. Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

FA: §8

ADA: Not Applicable

Item 11 & Item 15

SLA: Not Applicable

r.- Records/reports

FA: §142 & 14.3

ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6

SLA: Not Applicable

s.- Inspections/audits

FA: §15

ADA: Not Applicable

Item 6 & Item 11

SLA: Not Applicable

t.- Transfer

FA: §18

Item 17
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OBLIGATION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM

ADA: §7
SLA: §12(j)

FA: §4

u.-Renewal ADA: §4.4 Item 17

SLA: Not Applicable

FA: §20

v.-Post termination obligations ADA: Not Applicable Item 17

SLA: §11(c) & 11(d)

W.-

FA: §13
Non-competition covenants | ADA: Not Applicable Item 17
SLA: Not Applicable

FA: §21

x. Dispute resolution ADA: §9 Item 17

SLA: §12(h)

y. Franchise OWl:ler Agreement FA: §9 & ATTACHMENT "D"
(brand protection covenants,

transfer restrictions and ADA: Not Applicable Item 17
financial assurance for owners '
and spouses) SLA: Not Applicable

ITEM 10 FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee any of your notes, leases or obligations.

ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Before you open your Facility, we will:

L.

2.

3.

4.

Provide access to our Manual, which will help you establish and operate your Business—See-Seetion, as
discussed below entitledunder “Manual”fer-additional-information:”. (§6.1)

Provide our standard construction manual and build-out package, including prototypical plans and
specifications, site criteria and sample site plans—See—Seetion. as discussed below entitledunder “Site
Development™for-additionalinformation.”. (§7.3)

Provide our written specifications for the-goods and services you must purchase to develop, equip and

operate your Facility;as-wel-as and a written-list of appreved-and/or-designated-suppliersforpurpeses-of
aequiringthese-goodsandserviees:. (§11.2)

4:5.

Review and approve or disapprove sites you propose for your Facility, as discussed below under “Site
Selection”. (§7.1)

Assist you in formulating your initial orders for equipment, inventory and supplies. However, we do not
deliver or install any items you purchase. (§7.3)

6. AppreveReview and approve or disapprove the leeation,—build-eut—and-design and buildout of your
Facility—See-Seetion, as discussed below entitledunder “Site Development”for-additional-infermation:”.
877373 & 7.4)
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6.7.  Assist you in developing your grand opening marketing plan—See—Seetion. as discussed below
entitledunder “Advertising and Marketing”for-additional-information:”. (§46-3(b310.3(a))

7.8. Implement your grand opening marketing plan utilizing the $15,000 pre-opening marketing fee paid to us-
See-Seetion, as discussed below entitledunder “Advertising and Marketing”fer-additional-information: .
(§10.2) & 10.3(a))

€9. Provide an initial training program—See-Seetion, as discussed below entiledunder “Training Program>fer
selditienainfomnation (§55.1)

During the operation of your Facility, we will:

1. Provide ongoing guidance and recommendations en-ways-to improve the marketing-and-operation of your
Facility. (§6.4)

2. License you the right to utilize SUCCESS Spaceware-, as discussed below under “Computer System”. We

may discontinue use of SUCCESS Spaceware at any time.—See—Seetion—below—entitled—Computer
Systertoraddittonal-information: (§6.2)

3. Provide periodic training programs-—See-Seetion. as discussed below entitledunder “Training Program”fer
additional-information:  (§5.2)

4, Maintain a corporate website to promote the SUCCESS Space brand—We-ean-meodify-or-discontinue-this

website-at-any-time-in-oursole-diseretion—See-Seetion and a local webpage to promote your Facility, as
discussed below entitledunder “Advertising and Marketing”for-additional-information:”. (§6.6 & 10.3(g))

5. Provide our suggested retail pricing. You may deviate from our suggested retail pricing in your discretion.
However, to the extent permitted by applicable law, we reserve the right to: (a) set maximum or minimum
prices on the goods and services you sell; and (b) specify the membership fees you charge. (§11.6)

During the operation of your Facility, we may, but need not:

1. Establish and implement the brand-and-system-development-fund—See-SeetionBrand Fund, as discussed
below entitledunder “Advertising and Marketing”for-additional-information:”. (§10.1)

2. Conduct periodic field visits to provide onsite consultation, assistance and guidance pertaining to the
operation and management of your Facility. (§6.3)

3. Negotiate purchase agreements with suppliers to allow you to purchase certain goods or services at
discounted prices. We may also purchase items in bulk at discounted prices and resell them to you at our
cost plus shipping and a reasonable markup. (§6.8)

4. Negotiate contracts with National Account clients to generate additional business for SUCCESS Space
Facilities—See—Seetion, as discussed below entitledunder ‘“National Accounts”—fer—additional
information.”. (§6.9)

5. Holdst periodic natienal-er—regional-conferences to discuss relevant business and operational issues

affectingfranchisees—inehadingsuch as industry changes; or new services-and/, products, technology or
merchandise;marketing strategies;merchandisingstrategies-and-the like-. (§5.5)

6. Upen—yourrequestprovideProvide additional training or assistance (either-at-ourheadquarters-or-at-your
FEaeilit)—SeeSeetionyou request as discussed below entitledunder “Training Program”—fer—additional

information.”. (§5.2)

We do not provide area developers with any support under their ADA.

Training Program (§5)
————Overview
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[nitial Training Program

We will provide an initial training program for your Managing Owner and Designated Manager. You may send
other owners and employees to the initial training program, but it is not required. We will also provide our
SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program for your Business Coach and Managing Owner. Before you
open your Facility: (a) your Managing Owner and Designated Manager must successfully complete the initial
training program to our satisfaction; and (b) your Business Coach must successfully complete the SUCCESS
Space Coaching Certification Program to our satisfaction. However, there is no specific period of time after
signing or before opening that training must be completed.

Our initial tralmng program 1ncludes 3to5 days of tralnlng that takes place at our demgnated tralnlng fac111ty—

Our initial training program also includes approximately 36 hours of virtual training conducted through our
Learning Management Platform. All virtual training must be successfully completed by your Managing Owner
and Designated Manager prior to attending training at our designated training facility-(er-ensite-at-yourFaetity

itwe-do-nethavea-designated-tratningtacilinat that time):

The format for training may include lectures, interactive role playing, conference calls and/or webinars. We
reserve the right to conduct all (or any portion) of the training program remotely via webinar, conference call or
similar means. The training materials consist of the Manual and various other written materials. We do not
charge you for training materials. We can modify the training program at our discretion based on our subjective
assessment of the skills, abilities and prior experience of your Managing Owner, Designated Manager and
Business Coach. We intend to offer the-initial training pregram-on an “as needed” basis to accommodate the
number of franchisees needing training.

Trcining Toic:

The initial training program currently consists of the following:

TRAINING PROGRAM
HOURS OF CLASSROOM HOURS ON THE JOB
SUBJECT LOCATION
TRAINING TRAINING
Introduction / Orientation 2 0 Virtual
History / Philosophy of Success 2 0 Virtual

FrainingFaethityFlower

Industry Breakdown 2 0 Mound, TX & Virtual
‘ Fraining FHaeilityFlower

Strategy / Goal Setting 2 0 Mound, TX & Virtual
o FrainingFaethityFlower

Policies & Procedures 2 1 Mound, TX & Virtual
] FrainingFaethtylFlower

Operations 6 4 Mound., TX & Virtual
. _ TFraining FaetityFlower

Financial Management 2 2 Mound, TX & Virtual
Flower

Technology 2 4 Mound, TX & Virtual
) TFraining FaetityFlower

Marketing 2 4 Mound, TX & Virtual
. FrainingFaethityFlower

Vendors / Suppliers 2 ! Mound. TX & Virtual
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HOURS OF CLASSROOM HOURS ON THE JOB
SUBJECT LOCATION
TRAINING TRAINING

. FrainingFaethityFlower

Customer Service 2 3 Mound, TX & Virtual
. TFraining FaetityFlower

Grand Opening 2 3 Mound. TX & Virtual
Fraining FHaeilityFlower

Support 2 1 Mound, TX & Virtual
TFraining FaetityFlower

Emergency Procedures 2 1 Mound, TX & Virtual

Total 32% 24

* Includes 32 hours of virtual training. The specific training topics may differ for your Managing Owner and
Designated Manager.

Ongoing Training

From time to time, we may require that your Managing Owner, Designated Manager and/or Business Coach
attend system-wide refresher or additieralsupplemental training courses. Each Business Coach must
successfully complete our SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program and all periodic recertification
training programs we require. Any new Managing Owner or Designated Manager you appoint must attend and
successfully complete our then-current initial training program. If we conduct an inspection of your Facility and
determine you are not operating in compliance with the Franchise Agreement and/or the Manual, we may
require that your Managing Owner, Designated Manager and/or Business Coach attend remedial training
relevant to the operational deficiencies. You may also request that we provide additional training (either at our
designated training center or at your Facility). We are not required to provide additional training you request.

Instructors

Dolores Cadena is in charge of our training program. Dolores joined us in 2021 and currently serves as our
Franchise Training and Business Consultant. She provides instruction on all topics and was a Multi-Unit
Subway Franchisee for 25 vyears. We may use additional or substitute instructors as needed, at our
discretion. Any such additional or substitute instructors would have at least 3 years of experience relevant to the

subject taught.

Training Fees and Costs

You must pay us a $12,500 initial training fee prior to commencement of initial training. H-yeu-send-mere-than
1 Business—CoachOf this fee, $7,500 covers SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program for your

Managing Owner and 1 Business Coach. If you send additional persons to our SUCCESS Space Coaching
Certification Program, we will charge an additional training fee of $2,500 per person (for training conducted

within 12 months after signing the Franchise Agreement) or $5,000 per person (for training conducted more
than 12 months after signing the Franchise Agreement). We-may-alse-charge-you-an-additional-training fee-ofup
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to-S500-per-day-for-cach-person:
+—We do not charge training fees for pre-recorded online virtual training programs. We may also charge you
a training fee of up to $500 per person per day for each person who attends—esr: (a) initial training
program-after you open (such as a new Managing Owner or Designated Manager)

o—wheretakes-training-); (b) retraining (after failing a prior attempt

o—whe-attends-any); (c) remedial training-we-require-based-on-your-operational-deficieneies
»—to-whem-weprovide. (d) additional training you request

o—whe-attends-any-system—wide. or (¢) refresher; or supplemental er-additional-training-pregram-we-conduet

. If we agree to provide onsite training or assistance-at-yourFaeility, you must also reimburse us for all eests

inetrred-by—our—representativeformeals;—travelandJodgingTravel Expenses we incur (this reimbursement

obligation does not apply to any preepeningonsite initial training we conduct ensite-at-yourFaethity)-before you
open). You are responsible for all expenseswages and Travel Expenses that you and eests-your trainees incur for

training—iahodimnre beeeeland leipe seosons o
Manual (§6.1, 11.2 & 23.8)

We will provide access to our Manual in text or electronic form. The Manual may include, among other things:

e prototypical plans and specifications, site criteria and sample site plans for a SUCCESS Space Facility
(which comprise our construction manual)

e a description of the authorized goods, services and amenities that you may offer, sell or otherwise make
available at your Facility

e specifications, operating procedures, and quality standards

e reporting and insurance requirements

e—policies and procedures pertaining to-Sy

o—policicsand-procedurespertainingto marketmg and advertlsmg
o policies—and procedures—relatingto; (b) reporting: (c) insurance; (d) data ownership, protection, sharing

and use; (e) gift card, loyalty and membership programs; and (f) catering and/or delivery services (to the
extent we permit these services for your café)

o alist of (a) the goods and services (or specifications for goods and services) you must purchase to develop
and operate your Facility and (b) any-designated erand approved suppliers for these goods and services

The Manual is designed to establish and protect our brand standards and the uniformity and quality of the goods
and services offered by our franchisees. All mandatory provisions-eentained in the Manual are binding on you.
We can modify the Manual at any time, but the modifications will not alter your status or fundamental rights
under the Franchise Agreement. Any-modification—to-the Manual-isModifications are effective at the time we
notify you of the change. However, we may provide you with a reasonable period of time to implement certain
changes (for example, implementing new software or technology). The Manual is confidential and remains our
property. The Manual eentains-atotal-efincludes 147 pages. A—eepy-oftheThe Table of Contents-to-the Manual
is attached to this Disclosure Document as EXHIBIT "E".

Site DevelopmentSelection (§7.1; & 7.2 73, F+5-&HA4H

)

A typical SUCCESS Space Facility ranges in size from 4,500 to 5,500 square feet. Most Facilities are located in
high traffic premium retail centers located in suburban retail areas. We do not select the site for your Facility
and we do not purchase the premises and lease it to you. You must identify and obtain our approval of the site
for your Facility within 120 days after signing the Franchise Agreement. If you fail to do so, we may terminate

Franchise Disclosure Document (20234)

Page 27



your Franchise Agreement. If you diligently attempt to identify and obtain our approval of the site for your
Facility within 120 days after signing the Franchise Agreement but circumstances outside your control prevent
you from doing so, you may request that we grant you an extension of this deadline. Your request must be in
writing, describe the reasons for the delay and indicate when you expect to provide us with a proposed site for
our consideration. We will not unreasonably withhold our approval of your extension request.

Your Facility must be located within the Site Selection Area identified in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A" to the
Franchise Agreement (the—Site-Seleetion-Area”)-and conform to our minimum site selection criteria. Unless you
propose a different Site Selection Area that we approve, your Site Selection Area will consist of the county in
which the Managing Owner resides. You must send us a complete site report fer—your—propesed—site
(eontainingthat includes all demographie;—commereial-and-other-information;—phetegraphs—and-video—tapes we
reasenably-require): about your proposed site.

We will use our best efforts to approve or disapprove sites you propose within 30 days after we receive all of the
requisite materials. Your site is deemed disapproved if we fail to issue our written approval within the 30-day

period. aWe consider the following factors when reviewing a-proposed site;—we—may—consider—factors—such

assites:

o lot size and configuration
e parking accommodations and ratios established by local zoning ordinances
o traffic counts

e existence and location of competitive businesses

general location and character of the neighborhood

local demographic information

e various economic indicators

If we approve your site before signing the Franchise Agreement, we will list the address ef-yourapproved-site-in
Part C of ATTACHMENT "A" to the Franchise Agreement. H—we—do—net—approve—your—site—before
stegningOtherwise, we will send-yer-list the address of your approved site in a Site Approval Notice Gn-theform

attached-that we send to %h%Ffaﬂehts%greemeﬂt—as—AqiﬁA:GH%%N%B—)L Wlthm 15 days after approving

your site;-w 5 . If you sign an ADA, we
must approve thc site for caeh Faulltv you dcvcl lvmg our thm currcnt site selection criteria.

’.3 (D]

opa

If you lease the premises for your Facility, we may review the terms of your lease but do not provide you with
any lease negotiations support. You must use your best efforts to ensure your landlord signs the Lease
Addendum attached to the Franchlse Agreement as ATTACHMENT O e . e e

sﬁ%fer—ye&r—Faeﬁ&y#H&Heﬂﬂs—eﬁth%e&s%édeﬂdtm—afeThe Le”tse Addendum is des1gned to protect our

interests. For example, the landlord must notify us of your defaults, offer us the opportunity to cure your
defaults, allow us to take an assignment of your lease in certain situations, permit us to enter the premises to
remove items bearing our Marks if you refuse to do so and give us a right of first refusal to lease the premises
upon the expiration or termination of your lease. If your landlord refuses to sign the Lease Addendum in
substantially the form attached to the Franchise Agreement, we may (a) waive the Lease Addendum requirement
(or the provisions disapproved by the landlord) or (b) require you to find a new site for your Facility.

Site Development (§7.3, 7.5 & 11.11)

We will provide you with our standard construction manual and build-out package for a SUCCESS Space
Facility, including prototypical plans and specifications, site criteria and sample site plans. You must hire an
architect to prepare the initial design plans for your Facility (consistent with our construction manual and build-
out package materials). We must approve the design plans to ensure they are consistent with our system
standards. Once approved, your architect must prepare detailed construction plans—Fhe-architeet-must-ensure-the
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constraetionplans that: (a) are consistent with our construction manual and build-out package materials and the
approved design plans; (b) satisfy all required standards and specifications in the Manual; and (c) comply with
all federal, state and local ordinances, building codes, permits and lease requirements and restrictions applicable
to the premises-.. You must submit the final construction plans to us for approval. Our review is limited to
ensuring that-the construction plans are consistent with our system standards. Once approved, you must, at your
sole expense, construct and equip the premises according to the approved construction plans as-weH-asand the
specifications eentaired-in the Manual. You must also purchase (or lease) and install the equipment, fixtures,
signs and other items we require. We will assist you in formulating your initial orders for these items. We must

approve the architect and general contractor you use.

You must remodel and make all improvements and alterations to your Facility that we reasonably require from
time to time to reflect our then-current standards and specifications. We will not require you to significantly
remodel your Facility more than once during any 5-year period, except as a condition to transfera Transfer or
renewal of your franchise rights. There are no other limitations on the cost or frequency of these remodeling

obligations. You may not remodel or significantly alter your premises without our prior approval.

to time.

One cornponen of our Technology Systems is your “computer system,” which consists of the following items:
o 1 desktop or laptop computer (Windows or Apple) with high-speed business class Internet service
e 1 or more tablets

e Microsoft Office

o QuickBooks Online

e SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform

o SUCCESS Spaceware Academy (Learning Management System)

e Point-of-sale system software

e Payment processing software

o Cowork / membership platform

e SUCCESS Coaching App

We may change the components of the Technology Systems from time to time, including your computer system.
Email Addresses

We will provide you with one or more email addresses for use with your Business. You must exclusively use the
email addresses we provide for all communications with us, customers, suppliers and other persons relating to
your Business. You may not use any-email-address-we-previdethem for any purpose unrelated to your Business.
We own the email addresses and accounts but allow you to use them during the term of your Franchise
Agreement.
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How Computer System Is Used

The computer system will be used for a variety of purposes, including:
e accounting
e preparing business and financial reports
e processing and recording payments by customers
e inventory management
¢ administering any customer loyalty and/or gift card program we implement
e engaging in email communications
e accessing the membership portal

o tracking members and their rental of workspace and use of other amenities

The SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform helps you manage your Business by: (a) allowing you
to access, measure and track key performance indicators, business transactions and other operational data
through a dashboard; and (b) integrating with our other required software and systems (including point-of-sale
software, QuickBooks Online, payment processing software and SUCCESS Coaching App).

Fees and Costs

We estimate the initial cost of your computer system (including any associated upfront license fees, setup fees,
software training fees, data migration fees, etc.) will range from $11,000 to $15,000.

As further detailed in Item 6, you must pay us a technology fee for certain software, technology and related
services that we provide. As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, we charge a technology fee of
$1,650 per month ($19,800 per year), which includes:

e access to our proprietary SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform (includes integration with
point-of-sale software, QuickBooks Online, payment processing software and SUCCESS Coaching App)

e access to our Learning Management System called “SUCCESS Spaceware Academy”

e access to our cowork / membership platform

e email accounts for you and your staff

e participation in our call center program with digital phone line (if and when established by us)
¢ hosting of any website we choose to establish for your Business

The table below identifies the ongoing fees and costs you must pay for the software, technology, Apps,
subscriptions and related services: (these prices are subject to change):

COMPUTER SYSTEM — ONGOING FEES AND COSTS

Fee Fee .
Item To Whom Paid?
(Monthly) (Annual)
$400
SUCCESS Spaceware ) $4,800 Us
(Included with Technology Fee)
. $100
Learning Management System ) $1,200 Us
(Included with Technology Fee)
. $750
Cowork / Membership Platform ) $9,000 Us
(Included with Technology Fee)
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COMPUTER SYSTEM — ONGOING FEES AND COSTS

Fee Fee .
Item To Whom Paid?
(Monthly) (Annual)
. $100
Email Accounts . $1,200 Us
(Included with Technology Fee)
_ . $50
Call Center Digital Phone Line ) $600 Us
(Included with Technology Fee)
. . $250
Website Hosting . $3,000 Us
(Included with Technology Fee)
Cafe POS System $600 $7,200 Third-Party Supplier
QuickBooks Online* $70 $840 Third-Party Supplier
Payment Processing Software Transaction Based Fee** Transaction Based Fee * | Third-Party Supplier
Total $1;7202.320 plus applicable : iicabzlz—&:loll:llel:ft Us and Third-
payment process fee PP pay Party Suppliers

processing fee

*  Technology fee includes cost for integration of QuickBooks Online with SUCCESS Spaceward but does
not include the monthly licensing fee for QuickBooks Online, which you separately pay to the licensor.

** You do not pay fixed licensing fees for the payment processing software and related services. Instead, you
pay a processing fee calculated as a percentage of the total payment processed for each transaction.

Maintenance, Support, Updates and Upgrades

The $1,650 monthly technology fee includes all required maintenance, support and updates for: (a) SUCCESS
Spaceware; (b) the Learning Management System; and (c) the call center digital phone line.

The licensor of the cowork / membership platform charges additional fees for any required maintenance and
support (the current rate is $175 per hour).

The company that hosts the website for your Business charges additional fees for maintenance and support (the
current rate is $80 per hour).

Except as otherwise disclosed above: (a) neither we nor any other party has any obligation to provide ongoing
maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates to your computer system; and (b) we are not aware of any optional or
required maintenance, updating, upgrading or support contracts relating to your computer system.

Collection and Sharing of Data

Your computer system will collect a variety of data regarding your members, including names, contact
information, credit card information, rental history, purchase history and membership details. It will also collect
operational and employee data pertaining to sales, inventory, labor, scheduling, accounting and financial reports.
We will have independent unlimited access to the data collected on your computer system and there are no
contractual limits imposed on our access.

We will own all data collected relating to your operations and customers. We will grant you a license to use this
data solely for purposes of operating your Facility. You must protect all customer data with a level of control
proportionate to the sensitivity of data. You must comply with all applicable data protection laws as well as our
data processing and data privacy policies set forth in the Manual from time to time. You must also comply with
the standards established by PCI-DSS (the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard) to protect the
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security of credit card information.
Computer System Maintenance and Changes

You must maintain the computer system in good condition at your cost. We may require that you upgrade-er,
update or otherwise change your computer system and other Technology Systems to conform to our then-current
specifications. There areis no contractual limitations on the frequency or cost of these updates-er, upgrades or

changes.
Advertising and Marketing (§10)

We provide the advertising and marketing support discussed below. There is currently no franchisee advertising
council that advises us on marketing and advertising matters. Any company-owned Facility we operate will pay
brand fund fees and cooperative advertising fees on the same basis as other franchisees. We have no other
obligation to spend our funds on advertising in your territory.

You must participate at your own expense in all advertising, promotional and marketing programs we require.
You must direct all of your marketing and advertising efforts within your Designated Marketing Area. Your
“Designated Marketing Area” or “DMA” will consist of the same geographic area that comprises your Site

Selectlon Area (dlscussed above under the Section entltled “Slte Development”) —W&wﬂ—a{se—pfm&d%yeu—wﬁh

Grand Opening Marketing

You must pay us a $15,000 pre-opening marketing fee. We spend these funds to implement your grand opening
marketing campaign on your behalf.

Ongoing Local Marketing By You

After opening, you must spend the minimum monthly amount we specify each-menth-on local advertising (i.e.,
your Local Marketing Commitment). As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, the Local Marketing
Commitment is equal to the lesser of: (a) 7% of monthly Gross Sales; or (b) $10,000 per month. We may adjust
the Local Marketing Commitment from time to time on at least 30 days’ prior notice. However, in no event will
your Local Marketing Commitment exceed the greater of: (a) 10% of your Gross Sales; or (b) $10,000 per
month. We will measure your compliance with the Local Marketing Commitment on a rolling 6-month basis,
meaning as long as your average monthly expenditure on local advertising over the 6-month period equals or
exceeds your Local Marketing Commitment, you will be deemed in compliance even if your expenditure in any
given month is less than the minimum Local Marketing Commitment.

Certain expenditures specified in the Manual will not count towards your Local Marketing Commitment, such as
salaries or other compensation paid to your employees, charitable or political contributions, the value of
discounts given to consumers and other credits not approved by us in advance. The pre-opening marketing fee
and brand fund contributions are not credited towards your Local Marketing Commitment. All cooperative
advertising fees you pay will be credited towards your Local Marketing Commitment.

You may develop your own advertising and marketing materials and programs, provided we approve them in
advance. We must also approve the media you intend to use. You may not use any advertising materials,
programs or media that we have not approved. We have 15 days to review and approve or disapprove
advertising and marketing materials and programs you submit for approval. Our failure to approve them within
the 15-day period constitutes our disapproval.

Local Marketing Assistance From Us
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We will provide reasonable marketing consulting, guidance and support throughout the franchise term on an as

needed basis. We will spend the grand opening marketing fee to implement your grand opening marketing
campaign. We may create advertising and marketing materials for your use. We-are-notrequired-to-spend-any-of

our-funds-on-advertisingin-yourterritory=We may use the Brand Fund to pay for the creation and distribution of

these materials, in which case there will be no additional charge. We may provide online access to these
materials, in which case you must print the materials at your expense. We may also contract with third-party
suppliers to create advertising or marketing materials that you may purchase.

Websites, Social Media and Digital Advertising

We may,-but-need-not;will maintain a corporate website to promote the SUCCESS Space brand. We will also
create and host a local webpage that-ineludesto promote your Facility, which will be linked to our corporate
website. Your webpage will list certain information about your Facility— that we deem appropriate. We can
modify or discontinue our website and/or your local webpage at any time.

Except for anyteealthe webpage we provide, you may not: (a) develop, host, or otherwise maintain a website or
other digital presence relating to your Facility (including any website bearing any of our Marks); e+(b) utilize
the Internet to conduct digital or online advertising; or etherwise(c) engage in ecommerce. However, we do
permit you to market your Facility through approved social media channels, subject to the following
requirements:

e you may only conduct social media utilizing the social media platforms that we approve

e you must strictly comply with our social media policy, as revised from time to time}

e you must immediately remove any post we disapprove—{even—iitcomplies—with-eurseetal-media
pokiey)

e we may require that you contract with and utilize a suppliersocial media company we designate for

oL imed; ot .

e you must provide us with full administrative rights to your social media accounts

o we willewn-must retain ownership of all efyeursocial media accounts relating to your Facility

Gift Card and demainnamesLovalty Programs

We may require that you participate in a gift card or other customer loyalty program in accordance with our
policies and procedures. In order to participate, you may be required to purchase additional equipment, software
and/or Apps and pay fees relating to the use of that equipment, software and/or Apps. We have the right to
determine how proceeds from gift card sales are divided or otherwise accounted for and we may retain proceeds
from unredeemed gift cards. You must follow all policies we establish for gift card and/or loyalty programs.

Advertising Cooperatives

We may, but need not, form advertising cooperatives for the benefit of all Facilities located in a particular
region. We will determine the boundaries of the cooperative. In most instances, the boundaries of an advertising
cooperative will coincide with zip codes, designated marketing areas or municipal boundaries. We will specify
the manner in which the cooperative is organized and governed. We may choose between (a) administering the
cooperative ourselves or (b) establishing an advertising council, comprised by the cooperative’s members, to
administer the cooperative. We may require that the cooperative be administered in accordance with written
bylaws, organizational documents or other governing documents that we approve.

If your Facility is located within a region subject to an advertising cooperative you must: (a) participate in the
cooperative according to its rules and procedures and abide by its decisions; and (b) pay a cooperative
advertising fee. We may set the minimum cooperative advertising fee or we may allow the cooperative to set the

Franchise Disclosure Document (20234)
Page 33



fee based on majority vote of its members. In either case, the cooperative advertising fee will not exceed 1% of
Gross Sales. All cooperative advertising fees you pay are credited against your Local Marketing Commitment.
Any company-owned Facilities located in the cooperative will contribute on the same basis as franchisees.

Advertising cooperatives are not required to prepare annual or periodic financial statements. Any financial
statements that are prepared will be made available to you upon request. We reserve the right to form, change,
merge or terminate advertising cooperatives at any time.

Brand and System Development Fund

We may, but need not, establish and maintaina-brand-and system-development-fundadminister the Brand Fund

to promote public awareness of our brand and te—improve our System. We do not intend to establish the
fandBrand Fund until there are at least 25 Facilities open and operating. Once established, we may use the
fundBrand Fund to pay for any of the following in our discretion:

e developing maintaining, administering, directing, preparing, or reviewing advertising and marketing
materials, promotions and programs

e conducting and administering promotions, contests or giveaways
e improving public awareness of the Marks

e public and consumer relations and publicity

e brand development

e sponsorships

o charitable and non-profit donations and events

e research and development of technology, products and services
e website development and search engine optimization

o development of an ecommerce platform

e development and implementation of quality control programs, including the use of mystery shoppers or
customer satisfaction surveys

e conducting market research
e changes and improvements to the System

o the fees and expenses of any advertising agency we engage to assist in producing or conducting
advertising or marketing efforts

e collecting and accounting for contributions to the furdBrand Fund
e preparing and distributing financial accountings of the fardBrand Fund
e any other programs or activities we deem necessary or appropriate to promote or improve the System

e direct and indirect labor, administrative, overhead and other expenses incurred by us and/or our affiliates
in relation to any of these activities (including salary, benefits and other compensation of any of our, and
any of our affiliate’s, officers, directors, employees or independent contractors based upon time spent
working on any brand fund matters described above)

We will direct and have complete control and discretion over all advertising programs paid for by the furdBrand
Fund, including the creative concepts, content, materials, endorsements, frequency, placement and media used
for the programs. Advertising may be local, regional or national in coverage, although we anticipate a higher
percentage of local and regional advertising during our initial years of growth. Advertising paid for by the
fandBrand Fund may include digital, print, television, radio, billboard and any other form advertising. The
fandBrand Fund will not be used to pay for advertisements principally directed at selling additional franchises,
although consumer advertising may include notations such as “franchises available” and one or more pages on
our website may promote the franchise opportunity.
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You must pay a brand fund fee in the amount we specify from time to time (not to exceed 1% of Gross Sales).
We w111 depos1t all brand fund fees pa&d—by—yea—and e%her—&anehsees—nomomnhcmce fees into the brand-fund
; anyBrand Fund. Company-
owned Facﬂltyles will contrlbute to the ﬁmdBland Fund on the same ba51s as our franchisees. However, if we
modify the amount or timing of the-brand-fundfeerequired contributions, any company-owned Facility that-is
established or acqulred after the modlﬁcatlon may contrlbute to the &mdBrand Fund utilizing the modlﬁed

All brand-fund-feesmonies deposited into the fundBrand Fund that are not used in the fiscal year in which they

accrue will be utilized in the following fiscal year. Any surplus of monies inthefand-may be invested and we
may lend money te-the—fund-if there is a deficit. An unaudited financial accounting of the-eperations—ofthe
fandBrand Fund contributions and expenditures will be prepared annually and made available to you upon

request. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 20223, we did not collect or spend any brand—fund
feesmonies from the Brand Fund.

admm&s%m&eﬂ—ef—th%fbmd—The ﬁiﬁdBland Fund is not a trust—aﬁd—we . We have no ﬁdu01ary obhgatlons or
liability to vou with respect to our administration of the fundBrand Fund. Once established, we may discontinue

the fund-upen-atleastBrand Fund on 30 days’ priernotice.
National Accounts (§6.9)

We may, but need not, negotiate contracts with National Account clients. A “National Account” refers to an
institutional client, group of clients, organization, association or entity that contracts with us to enable its
employees, members or other constituents to access SUCCESS Space Facilities and receive the various
benefits and privileges associated with a SUCCESS Space membership, in some instances at discounted prices
or on terms and conditions that are otherwise different than the standard terms and conditions applicable to
SUCCESS Space members. National Account clients may include businesses, government agencies, nonprofit
organizations and other associations. The contract we negotiate with the National Account client may include
membership privileges for its employees, members or other constituents, enabling them to visit and enjoy
membership privileges and benefits from any SUCCESS Space Facility.

We reserve the right to provide discounted pricing and other nonstandard terms and conditions to National
Account clients. You must honor these terms and conditions if any National Account constituents visit your
Facility. The terms of the National Account program, including the compensation paid to Facilities visited by
National Account constituents, will be described in the Manual and may change from time to time. Once
established, we may eliminate the National Account program at any time. We do not guarantee that we will be
successful in negotiating contracts with National Account clients. If we do negotiate contracts with a National
Account client, we do not guarantee that any of its constituents will visit your Facility or that you will generate
any revenue as a result of the contract.

Opening Requirements (§7.4)

We expect most franchisees will open theirFEaetitywithin 99-te1+80between 120 and 270 days after signing the
Franchise Agreement. Factors that may affect this time include:

o the amount of time needed to find an approved site

e protracted lease negotiations with your landlord

¢ the amount of time needed to secure financing, insurance, licenses and permits

¢ the condition of your building and extent of required upgrades, remodeling and renovations
e construction delays due to labor or materials shortages, inclement weather or other reasons
o delayed delivery or installation of equipment and fixtures
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e the amount of time needed to comply with zoning requirements and other laws and regulations
¢ the amount of time needed to complete training
o the amount of time needed to hire and train your staff

You may not open your Facrhtx pI'lOI‘ to recelpt of our written authorlzat1on to open. We—will-net-issue—our

If we approve the site for your Facility before signing the Franchise Agreement, then you must open no later

than 180 days after signing the Franchise Agreement. H-we-do—not-approve—thesitefor—your Haetlity before
stgning-the Franchise-AgreementthenOtherwise, you must open within 120 days after the later to occur of: (a)

the date we approve your site (i.e., the date listed on the Site Approval Notice we send you after approving your
site); or (b) the date you are first granted possession of the premises under the terms of your lease. Your failure
to open within the required time period constitutes an event of default under your Franchise Agreement. If you
diligently attempt to open your Facility by the required deadline but circumstances outside your control prevent
you from doing so, you may request that we grant you an extension of your opening deadline. Your request must
be in writing, describe the reasons for the delay and identify your new anticipated opening date. We will not
unreasonably withhold our approval of your extension request.

ITEM 12 TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive territory or development territory. You may face competition from other

franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we
control.

Location of Your BusinessFacility

The Franchise Agreement grants you the rith to operate one SUCCESS Sr)ace F acilitV from a site We approve.

You must 1dent1fy a }eeatrensrte for your Fa01hty W1th1n the Site Selectlon Area descrlbed in Part—B—ef
ATTACHMENT"A"to-your Franchise Agreement.

You may relocate your Facility with our prior written approval, which we will not unreasonably withhold.

allow you to relocate you must: (a) obtain our approval of the new site for your-new Fac111ty within the Site

Selection Area (but outside any territory granted or reserved to us, our affiliate or any other franchisee); (b)
comply with our then-current site selection and development requirements; ane-(c) remove trade dress and alter
the premises of the closed (i.e., former) Facility to eliminate any resemblance to a SUCCESS Space Facility; (d)
pay us a relocation fee of $2,500 at the time we approve your request to relocate; and (e) open your Facility at
the new Eaetlitysite and resume operations within 30 days* after closing your prierFEaeilityFacility at the former
site. We may also require that you conduct another grand opening marketing campaign to promote the opening
of your Facility at the new site.

Your* If vour Facility is destroyed, condemned or otherwise rendered unusable due to the physical
condition of the premises, you will instead have 180 days to relocate and resume operations at the new site.

Description of Territory (Franchise Agreement)
We will identify—theboundaries—ofyour—grant vou a territory: with a minimum population of 50,000. If we
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approve the site for your sieFacility before you sign the Franchise Agreement, then—we will identify your
territory-wil-be-identified in Part D of ATTACHMENT "A" to your Franchise Agreement. HOtherwise, we de
not-approve—your—site-beforesigningthenwill identify your territory will-be—identified-in the Site Approval
Notice we send to you after site—appreval—Yeurapproving vour site. We have no obligation to modify your
territory wil—inelude—a—minimumbased on population changes during the term of 56;000the Franchise

Agreement. Upon renewal, we reserve the right to modify the boundaries of your territory in accordance with
our then-current territory guidelines and criteria.

Description of Development Territory (ADA)

If you signan-ADAwe—will-grant-youapreteetedacquire arca development territory—AH-SHECESS-Space

Faeilities-you-develop-must-beJoecated-withinyeurrights, we will identify the boundaries of your development
territory_in Part D of ATTACHMENT "A" to your ADA. A development territory typically consists of a

geographic area that coincides with the boundaries of a municipality, such as a city, county or state. There is no
specific minimum or maximum size for a development territory. In determining the size of your development
territory, we primarily consider the number of Facilities you commit to develop.

You will-netreceive-an-exelustvemust sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Facility vou develop. All
Facilities you develop must be located within your development territory. Yeuwmayface-competitionfrom-other
franchisees—from-outlets-We must approve the site for each Facility you develop according to our then-current
site selectlon criteria. We send you a coleete execution copy of the ADA that w&ewn—er—ﬁtem—e%her—eh&nnels

Seﬁﬁeﬂesfw%ée—gfaﬂky%keﬁma—%ﬁﬁe&ﬂ—p%eﬁeﬁ%%e&ﬁe&b#mcludes your development territory,

development fee and development schedule at least 7 days before you sign it.

Territorial Protections and Limitations

During the term of your Franchise Agreement we will not develop or operate, or autherizelicense a third party to
develop or operate, a SUCCESS Space Facility that is located within vour territory except as otherwise
permitted below with respect to Limited Services Facilities, Limited Access Locations and Acquisitions (each

defined below).

During the term of the ADA (if applicable) we will not develop or operate, or license a third party to develop or

operate, a SUCCESS Space Facility that is physieally-located within your development territory during-the-term
ofthe-ADA—exeeptother than: (a) fer-any SUCCESS Space FEaeilitiesFacility that is located within your
development territory as of the date you sign the ADA (either open, under construction or for which a Franchise
Agreement has been signed); and (b) as otherwise permitted below with respect to Limited Services Facilities,
Limited Access Locations and Acquisitions.

Our affiliate reserves the right to develop and operate, and authorize third parties to develop and operate,
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Limited Services Facilities from any site within your territory or development territory that is located a
minimum of 3 miles from your Facility. Our affiliate will pay you the revenue share discussed below under the
Section entitled “Competitive Businesses™” for any Limited Services Facility located in your territory.

We also reserve the right to develop and operate, and authorize third parties to develop and operate, SUCCESS
Space Facilities that are located within Limited Access Locations, including Limited Access Locations within
your territory and development territory, if applicable. A “Limited Access Location” means a SUCCESS Space
Facility (whether mobile or fixed, permanent or temporary) that is located within, or is a part of, a private
business, governmental institution or other limited access facility. Examples of Limited Access Locations
include SUCCESS Space Facilities that are located within:

e hotels, motels, resorts, casinos or similar facilities

o hospitals and other healthcare facilities

e universities, schools and education facilities

e military bases

e office buildings and business complexes

e condominiums, apartment buildings and dormitories

e private clubs

o other similar facilities not accessible to the general public

Access to Facilities in Limited Access Locations is typically limited to owners, employees, members, transient
guests, students or residents of such businesses, institutions or facilities.

We reserve the right to acquire, or be acquired by, another business or chain that may sell competitive or
identical goods or services, and those businesses may be converted into SUCCESS Space Facilities operating
under the Marks regardless of their location (an “Acquisition”). Any such acquired or converted businesses may
be located within your territory and development territory, if applicable, even if converted to become SUCCESS
Space Facilities. If we are acquired by another company, you may be required to convert to their system and
their trademarks at your expense.

Alternative Channels of Distribution

We reserve the right to sell, erand license others to sell, competitive or identical goods or services (wheither
under the Marks or wnderdifferent trademarks) through Alternative Channels of Distribution, including within
vour territory and development territory, if applicable. An “Alternative Channel of Distribution” means any
channel of distribution for the sale of goods or services other than retail sales made to customers while present at
a SUCCESS Space Facility. Examples include the following:

e sales over the Internet (including virtual business coaching conducted remotely over the Internet)

sales made through catalogs or telemarketing efforts

e sales made via mail delivery service (including distribution of SUCCESS® magazine to subscribers)
o sales through retail stores that do not operate under the Marks

¢ sales made at wholesale

o onsite sales to customers (including business coaching provided to individuals at their place of work)

o sales through catering or other delivery services

e sales through kiosks or mobile trailers

development-territory,—if-appheable—You are not entitled to any compensation for sales that take place through
Alternative Channels of Distribution.
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Restrictions on Your Sales and Marketing Activities

You must focus all of your marketing and advertising activities within your Designated Marketing Area. You
may not market or advertise outside of your DMA except to the extent permitted by, and solely in compliance
with, all policies and procedures set forth in the Manual governing advertising and marketing by a franchisee
outside of their DMA. Your DMA is not exclusive and does not include any protected rights. Other Facilities
located within your DMA may also market and advertise within your DMA. Facilities located outside of your
DMA may market and advertise within your DMA to the extent permitted by the Manual.

There are no geographic limitations on our right to market and advertise the SUCCESS Space brand generally to
the public (including our right to promote the SUCCESS Space franchise opportunity), and we have the
unrestricted right to engage in such marketing and advertising within your DMA (and within your territory and
development territory, if applicable).

You may not market or sell using Alternative Channels of Distribution (such as the Internet, catalog sales,
telemarketing or other direct marketing) either within or outside of your DMA, territory or development
territory, if applicable. You may not engage in any digital, online or similar types of marketing, either within or
outside your DMA, territory or development territory, if applicable. However, you may conduct social media
marketing subject to the restrictions described in Item 11.

Y ou must comply with any minimum advertised pricing policy we establish from time to time.

There are no other restrictions on your right to solicit customers, whether from inside or outside of your DMA,
territory and development territory, if applicable.

Minimum Performance Requirements

Your territorial protections under the Franchise Agreement do not depend on achieving a certain sales volume,
market penetration, or other contingency.

If you sign an ADA and fail to satisfy your development schedule by opening and operating the
minimuamprescribed number of Facilities within the required periods of time, we may terminate your ADA and
you will lose the territorial protections associated with your development territory.

Additional Franchises and Territories

Unless-youarc-an-arca-developer—you  arc not granted any options, rlghts of first refusal or smnlar rlghts to

acquire additional territories or franchises—H-you-= : g FOU-W Ay
other than your right and obligation to develop eaehthe mcscrlbed numbu of %heLFacﬂltles +dent+ﬁed—m—yea¥

developmentschedule-All-of these Faeilities-must-be-loeated-within your development territory— if vou sign an
ADA.

Competitive Businesses

As discussed in Item 1, our affiliate, Success Space Limited, LLC, operates Limited Services Facilities that
allow members to rent temporary workspace. Success Space Limited, LLC’s principal business address is same
as ours. We do not maintain separate office space within our corporate headquarters for the operations or
training facilities for SUCCESS Space franchisees and the operations conducted by Success Space Limited,
LLC. Neither we nor any of our affiliates current offer franchises or licenses for Limited Services Facilities, but
we and our affiliates reserve the right to do so in the future.

Limited Services Facilities do not: (a) include a café; (b) offer onsite business coaching; or (c) issue
memberships to members (memberships may only be issued by traditional SUCCESS Space Facilities). Limited
Services Facilities operate under the same Marks licensed to our franchisees (excluding any marks relating to a
cafe or business coaching). Unless otherwise agreed between us and the franchisee, Limited Services Facilities
may be located at any location within a franchisee’s territory that is at least 3 miles from the franchisee’s
SUCCESS Space Facility. If a Limited Services Facility is located in your territory, our affiliate will pay you a

Franchise Disclosure Document (20234)
Page 39



revenue share equal to 10% of the Usage Revenues that our affiliate collects from members based on their use of
that Limited Services Facility.

Due to the Revenue Share, and the fact that Limited Services Facilities may not issue memberships, include a
café, or offer onsite business coaching, we do not anticipate any conflicts between Limited Services Facilities
and franchisees. Any conflict that does arise would be resolved on a case-by-case basis.

Except as disclosed above, neither we nor any affiliate of ours intends to operate or franchise another business
under a different trademark that sells products or services similar to the products or services offered by a
SUCCESS Space Facility. However, we reserve the right to do so in the future.

ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS

We grant you the right to operate your Facility under the name “SUCCESS” and “SUCCESS Space” and the
associated logo shown on the cover page of this Disclosure Document. By trademark, we mean trade names,
trademarks, service marks, and logos used to identify your Facility or the products or services offered at your
Facility. We may change the trademarks you may use from time to time (including by discontinuing use of the
Marks listed in this Item 13). If this happens, you must change to the new trademark at your expense.

Our affiliate, Success Enterprises, LLC (“Success Enterprises”) registered the following trademark on the
United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO) Principal Register:

REGISTERED MARKS
. . Registration Date
Mark Registration Number
(Renewal Date)
July 22,2008
SUCCESS 3472209
(August 2, 2018)

All required affidavits and renewals have been filed for the registered Mark listed above.

Success Enterprises also applied to register the following trademarks on the Principal Register at the USPTO
based on an intent to use:

UNREGISTERED MARKS
Mark Serial Number Application Date
SUCCESS Achievers Community 90610517 March 29, 2021
SUCCESS Achievers 90610520 March 29, 2021
SUCCESS Coaching 9072191+ May-19.2021
SUCCESS Space* 90610525 March 29, 2021
SUCCESS Coaching** 90721911 May 19, 2021

* This Mark was originally submitted for registration by us. In August 2021, we assigned ownership of the
trademark rights for this Mark to Success Enterprises.

** On August 4, 2023, the USPTO issued a Nonfinal Office Action regarding this application. The letter raises a
potential likelihood of confusion with 2 registered trademarks, including SUCCESS COACH (Word Mark:
Reg. #6020121) and SUCCESS COACH (Design Mark: Reg. #6059814). We submitted a response to the
office action and successfully argued there is no likelihood of confusion. The examiner issued a final office
actions requesting that we update the domicile address, which we have now submitted. We expect the
application will soon be approved for publication.
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We do not have a federal registration for the Marks in the table labeled “Unregistered Marks.” Therefore, these
Marks do not have many legal benefits and rights as a federally registered trademark. If our right to use any of
these Marks is challenged, you may have to change to an alternative trademark, which may increase your
expenses.

With respect to the unregistered Marks, Success Enterprises claims common law rights and intends to file
declarations of use, declarations of incontestability and renewals when due.

On April 16, 2021, we entered into a License Agreement (the “License Agreement”) with Success Enterprises.
Under the terms of the License Agreement, Success Enterprises granted us the right to use the Marks in the
SUCCESS Space franchise system and sublicense the Marks to our franchisees. The term of the License
Agreement is for 99 years. Success Enterprises is permitted to terminate the License Agreement only if: (a) we
breach the License Agreement and fail to cure; (b) we become involvement or subject to bankruptcy or
insolvency proceedings; (c) we challenge the validity of, or Success Enterprises’ ownership of, the Marks; or (d)
we undergo a change in control. If the License Agreement is terminated, the agreement states that each franchise
agreement granted by us to a franchisee will continue in full force and effect until the expiration its term,
provided that the franchisee complies with its terms. Except as discussed above, no agreements limit our right to
use or sublicense the use of the Marks.

Y ou must follow our rules when using the Marks. You cannot use our name or mark as part of a corporate name
or with modifying words, designs, or symbols unless you receive our prior written consent. You may not use the
Marks relating to the sale of any product or service that is not previously authorized by us in writing.

You must notify us immediately when you learn about an infringing or challenging use of the Marks. We will
take the action we think appropriate, but we are not required to take any action if we do not feel it is warranted.
We may require your assistance but you may not control any proceeding or litigation relating to our Marks. You
must not directly or indirectly contest our or Success Enterprises’ right to the Marks.

We will indemnify you against, and reimburse you for: (a) all damages for which you are held liable in any
judicial or administrative proceeding arising out of your use of the Marks in strict compliance with the Franchise
Agreement and Manual; and (b) all costs you reasonably incur in defending against any such claim brought
against you in any proceeding in which you are named as a party (but excluding any salaries of your employees
involved with the defense of the lawsuit). Our indemnification obligation will only apply if you notify us of the
claim or proceeding in a timely manner and you are in full compliance with the Franchise Agreement and
Manual.

Except as disclosed above, the Franchise Agreement does not require that we: (a) protect your right to use the
Marks or protect you against claims of infringement or unfair competition arising out of your use of the Marks;
or (b) participate in your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages you incur if you are a party to an
administrative or judicial proceeding involving our marks or if the proceeding is resolved in a manner that is
unfavorable to you.

There are currently no: (a) effective material determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office, the Trademark
Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of this state or any court; (b) pending infringements,
oppositions or cancellations; andtfer—(c) pending material litigation matters involving any of the Marks—We-de
notknew-ofany. or (d) infringing uses we are aware of that could materially affect your use of the Marks.

ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION
No patents or pending patent applications are material to the franchise.

Although we have not filed an application for copyright registration for the Manual, SUCCESS Spaceware, our
website or our marketing materials, we and our affiliates do claim a copyright to these items.

During the term of your Franchise Agreement, we will allow you to use certain confidential and proprietary
information (some of which constitute “trade secrets”) relating to the development, marketing and operation of a
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SUCCESS Space Facility. Examples include:
e architectural plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype Facility
e site selection criteria
e recipes for menu items offered at your café
»—methods-and, techniques
e _ policies, procedures, standards and specifications
liei | l
o supplier lists and information

»—marketing strategies

¢ and merchandising strategies

e financial information
e information comprising the System

We will own all ideas, improvements, inventions, marketing materials and other concepts you develop relating
to a SUCCESS Space Facility. We will also own all operational and customer data relating to your Facility-and
yot. You must treat this data as confidential and proprletary We hcense you the rlght to um-lzeusc thlS data
during the term of your Franchise Agreement.-¥ 4 4 s

We provide you with access to our confidential information through our Manual, training programs, Intranet (if
established by us) and other periodic support and guidance. You may use this information solely for purposes of
developing, marketing and operating your Facility in compliance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement and
Manual. You may not disclose our confidential information to any person (other than your employees on a need
to know basis) without our prior permission. We consider all information in the Manual to be confidential. All
of your employees, agents and representatives (other than a Business Coach or Designated Manager) must sign
the Confidentiality Agreement attached to the Franchise Agreement as 0 before vou give them access to our
confidential information.

You must promptly notify us if you discover any unauthorized use of our proprietary information. We are not
obligated to act, but will respond to this information as we deem appropriate. You may not control any
proceeding or litigation alleging the unauthorized use of our proprietary information. We have no obligation to
indemnify you for any expenses or damages arising from any proceeding or litigation involving our proprietary
information. There are no infringements known to us at this time.

ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Owner Participation

You must designate an owner (the “Managing Owner”’) who will have overall responsibility for the management
and operation of your Facility. The Managing Owner must:

e be approved by us

¢ have authority to bind you on all business decisions

o successfully complete all training programs we require
e live within a one-hour drive from your Facility

e dedicate full-time efforts to the onsite management of the Facility (unless you hire a Designated
Manager)
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e at all times hold at least a 20% ownership interest in the franchise (or the entity that is the franchisee
under the Franchise Agreement)

Any new Managing Owner you appoint must be approved by us and successfully complete our then-current
initial training program.

Except for the Managing Owner, we do not require that your owners personally participate in the Business. If
you are an entity, each owner (i.e., each person holding an ownership interest in you) and the spouse of each
owner must sign the Franchise Owner Agreement attached to the Franchise Agreement as ATTACHMENT "D".
By signing the Franchise Owner Agreement, the owner (or spouse of the owner) agrees to: (a) comply with all
brand protection covenants, covenants that protect our intellectual property and transfer restrictions set forth in
the Franchise Agreement; and (b) guarantee the franchisee’s financial obligations.

Designated Manager & Business Coach

You may hire a designated manager (a “Designated Manager™) to assist the Managing Owner with the onsite
management and supervision of your Facility. Your Designated Manager must:

e be approved by us

e have at least 3 years of experience as a manager of a retail business
o successfully complete all training programs we require

o dedicate full-time efforts to the onsite management of the Facility

At all times during normal business hours, either the Managing Owner or your Designated Manager must be
present at your Facility to provide onsite management and supervision. The Managing Owner must monitor and
supervise the-aetivities—ofyour Designated Manager to ensure your Facility is operated in accordance with the
Franchise Agreement and the Manual. You may also hire assistant managers who would report to the Managing
Owner or your Designated Manager. The Managing Owner must assume responsibility for the onsite
management and supervision of your Facility if the Designated Manager is unable to perform his or her duties

due-to-death,-disability—termination-of employment—erfor any etherreason; until such time that you obtain a
suitable and fully trained Designated Manager.

You must also hire a full-time business coach (a “Business Coach”) to provide onsite business coaching services
at your Facility. Your Business Coach must successfully complete all required training programs for Business
Coaches, including the SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program and any required recertification
training. You must have a fully trained Business Coach available to provide coaching services as of the opening
date of your Facility.

We do not require that your Designated Manager or Business Coach own any equity interest in the franchise.

_Your Business Coach and Designated Manager must sign the Brand Protection Agreement attached to the
Franchise Agreement as ATTACHMENT "E". : ; h

ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

We must approve all goods and services you sell. You must offer all goods and services we require. You may
not sell any goods or services we have disapproved. At any time, we may change the goods and services you sell
and you must comply with the change.

All goods and services must be provided onsite at your Facility other than coaching services, which may be
conducted virtually to the extent permitted by the Manual. Your café may not provide catering or delivery
services without our prior written approval, which we may withhold or condition in our sole discretion.
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We may require you to participate in a gift card or other customer loyalty program (including utilization of a
“membership” model) in accordance with our policies and procedures. You must honor all membership terms
we prescribe in accordance with the Manual. We must approve the membership agreement you propose for use
and you must offer the specific memberships that we require (including membership pricing, benefits and
privileges). Under the terms of our current membership program, your Facility may not provide any goods or
services to any person that is not a member (other than your café which is open to the general public).

If we negotiate a contract with a National Account client, you must honor the terms we negotiate for any of the
client’s constituents that visit your Facility.

ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise agreement (FA), Area Development
Agreement (ADA), Software License Agreement (SLA) and related agreements. You should read these
provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

SECTIONS IN

PROVISION SUMMARY
AGREEMENT

FA: §4.1 Term is equal to 10 years.

Term expires on the opening eflastfranchise-to-be-developed-underdate
a Length of the ADA: §2 listed in the development schedule for the last Facility you are required to
franchise term

develop.

SLA: §11(a) Term runs concurrently with term of Franchise Agreement.
If you meet our conditions for renewal, you can enter into 1 successor

FA: §4.1 & 42 franchise agreement for a 10-year renewal term. The parties may mutually

agree to further renewals but neither party is obligated to do so (subject to

b. Renewal or
state law).

extension of the

term ADA: §4.4 No renewal rights.

Term runs concurrently with term of Franchise Agreement (including

SLA: §11(2) renewals of Franchise Agreement).

You must: not be in default; give us timely notice; sign then-current form

of franchise agreement—andrelated—documents—(e.gFranchise—Ovwner
Agreement;BrandProtection—Agreement—ete):; sign general release

(subject to state law); pay renewal fee; remodel Facility and upgrade
furniture, fixtures and equipment to current standards; and maintain
pessession—of —yourFaeility under—yourextend lease- for duration of
renewal term. We may refuse to renew if you received 3 or more default
notices from us (subject to state law).

If you renew, you may be required to sign a contract with materially
different terms and conditions than the original contract.

FA: §4.1 & 4.2

c. Requirements
for you to renew
or extend

ADA: §4.4 You may not renew or extend the term of the ADA.

Renewal of Software License Agreement would be automatic with

SLA: §11(a) renewal of Franchise Agreement.

You can terminate enby—if we default and fail to timely cure—a—material

FA: §19.1 o .
B e

ADA:§8ADA: Not

d. Termination by Applicable

You can terminate under any grounds permitted by law.

you
You can terminate if we default and fail to ewre-a—material-defaultwithin

SLA: §11(b) theeurepertedtimely cure or if we are insolvent or subject to bankruptcy
proceedings.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

SECTIONS IN

h. “Cause” defined

- non-curable
defaults

PROVISION SUMMARY
AGREEMENT
FA: §19 3 We can terminate without cause if you and we mutually agree to
e. Termination by +§19. terminate.
Ll;l:;/éthout ADA: Not Applicable | Not Applicable
SLA: Not Applicable | Not Applicable
FA-SH92 & 1931 . .
199 FA: We can terminate if you default.
. Termination by §
us with cause ADASSADA: §8.2 B
SLA: §11(b) Soleempoteepinsie s en s el
FA: You have 10 days to cure any monetary default.
o e .
. §19.2 You have 30 days to cure any other default{, other than defaults described
. “Cause” defined below under “non-curable defaults™).”.
- curable
. . You have 30 days to cure any default—, other than defaults described
default ADA:SS : =
elauits §$8ADA: §8.2 below under “non-curable defaults™).”.
SLA: §11(b) You have 30 days to cure defaults that are capable of cure.
The following defaults cannot be cured: insolvency, bankruptcy or seizure
of assets; failure to successfully complete training; failure to find
approved site or open in timely manner; inselveneybankruptey-orseizure
of-assets;—abandonment; less—effailure to maintain required license or
permit; conviction of certain—types—ef crimes or subject of certain
administrative actions; failure to comply with material law; commission of
act that may adversely affect reputation of System or Marks; health or
safety hazards; failure—to—pay—approved/designated——supphers:—material
nd
EA-$19.2FA: §19.2 misrepresentations; 2™ underreporting of ameunts—dueGross Sales by at

least-2%:% or more; unauthorized tTransfers; unauthorized use of our
intellectual property; violation of brand protection covenant; breach of
Franchise Owner Agreement—by—ewner—or—spouse; breach of legal
compliance representations; termination of lease due to your default; 3 or
more default notices in anya 12-month period; or termination of any other
agreement between you (or your affiliate) and us (or our affiliate) due to
your default. However, termination of an ADA due to yeurdefaultbreach
of the development schedule is not grounds for termination of any
Franchise Agreement that is otherwise in good standing.

ADA: §8ADA: §8.2

You-cannot-curc-any-defauttrelatingto-thetermination-of-| | v o (crminuie
a franchise agreement based-endue to your default—Any-termination-ofa
franchise—agreement—is—adefaultunder, we may terminate the ADA
allewingus-to-terminate-without opportunity to cure-period.

SLA: §11(b)

You cannot cure: any default that is not capable of cure; insolvency; or
being subject to bankruptcy proceedings.

i. Your

obligations on
termination/non
-renewal

FA: §20.1

Obligations include: remove trade dress and alter premises to eliminate
any resemblance to a SUCCESS Space Facility; cease use of intellectual
property; return Manual and branded materials; assign telephone numbers,
listings and domain names; assign customer contracts; cancel fictitious
names; and pay amounts due, including, if applicable, liquidated damages
(also see “1”, below).

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any speeifiepost-term obligations on you-after
o . | o,
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION SECTIONS IN SUMMARY

AGREEMENT

SLA: §11(c) Cease use of SUCCESS Spaceware and delete, destroy or return all copies
’ of SUCCESS Spaceware software.

FA: §18.1 No restriction on our right to assign.

j. Assignment of i . . .
contract by us ADA: §7.1 5 ef
SLA: §12(j) B e

k. “Transfer” by
you — definition

FA: §1 (definition of
“Transfer”) & 18.2

Includes transfer of contract or assets, or ownership change.

ADA: §1 (definition of
“Transfer”) & 7.2

Includes transfer of contract or assets, or ownership change.

SLA: §12()

Includes transfer of contract or obligations under contract.

l. Our approval of
transfer by you

FA: §1 (definition of
“Permitted Transfer”),
18.2 & 18.3

Lecstinesndisions ses pres son may et n el faesed
cntity-owned-by-vou.or  In cerlain-instances, to-an-existing owner,
Permitted Transfer (defined in Note 2 in Item 6) without ews-approval. We
must approve al—other tTransfers but will not unreasonably withhold
approval.

ADA: §1 (definition of
“Permitted Transfer”),
72&73

H‘—eeﬁam—eeﬂm&eﬂs—&r%met—yanou may teessbeeenpen b tapmad
cntity-owned-by-yous-or  In certain-instances, to-an-cxisting - owner,

Permitted Transfer without ewsr—approval. We must approve al—other
tTransfers but will not unreasonably withhold approval.

SLA: §12())

We must approve any transfer by you.

m. Conditions for
our approval of
transfer

FA: §18.2

Transferee must: meet our qualifications; successfully complete training
(or eommitarrange to do so); obtain al-required licenses and permits;
andagree in writing to assume your obligations under agreements relating
to the Business; sign then-current form of franchise agreement for
remainder of term for, at our option, take-assignment-of-existingfranchise
agreement—You—must—be—in—complianee—withassume your Franchise
Agreement; assigntease-(if-applieable);and remodel Facility and upgrade

furniture, fixtures and equipment to current standards ¢within 12 months

after Transfer or get-a-commitment-fromtransferee-to-de-se);-such shorter

period of time we specify.

You must: be in compliance with Franchise Agreement; assign lease (if
applicable); pay transfer fee; subordinate transferee’s ongoing payments
owed to you (if any) to transferee’s financial obligations owed to us; and
sign a-general release (subject to state law).

We must notify you that we dewill not intend-te-exercise our right of first
refusal.

ADA: §7.2

Transferee must: meet our qualifications; successfully complete training
(or eemmitarrange to do so); and sign then-current form of area
development agreement for remainder of term for, at our option, take

asstgnment-ofexistingassume your ADA)-.

You must: be in compliance with all Franchise Agreements and ADA;
assign all Franchise Agreements to same purchaser unless we agree to
contrary (or at our option, purehasertransferee must sign then-current form
of franchise agreement); comply with transfer provisions under Franchise
Agreements; pay transfer fee; and sign a-general release (subject to state
law).

We must notify you that we dewill not intend-te-exercise our right of first
refusal.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

SECTIONS IN

SLA: Not Applicable

PROVISION SUMMARY
AGREEMENT
SLA: §12()) We will only approve a transfer made in conjunction with a transfer of
' your Facility and Franchise Agreement.
. Our right of first FA: §18.5 We can match any bena-fidearms-tength-offer for your business.
Beomede o Lopedly
refusgl to ADA: §7.5 We can match any offer for your area development
acquire your rights.
business

Not Applicable

. Our option to
purchase your
business

FA-§203-FA: §20.3

We have the option to purchase your business at the expiration or
termination of the Franchise Agreement.

ADA: Not Applicable | you-attempt—to—transter—yourrightsto—a—third-partypurehaser-The ADA
does not include a purchase option.
SLA: Not Applicable | Not Applicable

Within 180 days, franehiseinterest must be assigned by estate to an

during the term
of the franchise

FA:§18.4 assignee in compliance with conditions for other tTransfers.
’ Y'our.d.eath or Within 180 days, franchiseinterest must be assigned by estate to an
disability ADA: §7.4 . . ; . .
assignee in compliance with conditions for other tTransfers.
SLA: Not Applicable Software License Agreement does not address your death or disability.
N FA-§132 & 13 3FA: |No involvement in competing business—and—ecomply—with-nondiselosure
Sonm §13.3 covenants.
competition
covenants ADA: Not Applicable | The ADA does not ineladeimpose any noncompetition covenants.

SLA: Not Applicable

Software License Agreement does not include noncompetition covenant.

. Non-
competition
covenants after
the franchise is
terminated or
expires

FA: §43213.3 & 20.1

No involvement for 2 years in competing business located: (a) at your
Facility; (b) within 5 miles of your Facility; (c) within 5 miles of any other
Facility; or (d) within your development territory (if you area an area
developers—zemsb it ndinelenppe conspnpi eenee e o D allonpn]
property:).

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any noncompetition covenants.

SLA: Not Applicable

Software License Agreement does not impose any noncompetition
covenants.

. Modification of
the agreement

FA: §23.3 & 23.8

Requires writing signed by both parties (except fer—uniateral-changes
toewe may unilaterally change Manual or unHateral-reduetion—efreduce
scope of restrictive covenants—by—us). Other modifications primariy—to
comply with varieusstatesstate laws.

ADA: §11.7

Requires writing signed by both parties. Other modifications primarity-to
comply with varieusstatesstate laws.

SLA:§12(f)

Requires writing signed by both parties.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

t. Integration/
merger clause

FA: §23.8

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement, ADA (if applicable) and
#tsSoftware License Agreement and their attachments are binding (subject
to state law). Any representations or promises made outside the Disclosure
Document—and, Franchise Agreement, ADA and Software License
Agreement may not be enforceable. Nothing in the Franchise Agreement,
ADA or Software License Agreement or any related agreements is
intended to disclaim any of the representations we made in this Disclosure
Document. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or
agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or
(b) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

ADA: §11.7

SLA: §12(f)

u. Dispute
resolution by
arbitration or
mediation

FA: §21

Subject to state law, all disputes must be mediated and then arbitrated
before litigation, except for certain disputes involving our intellectual
property or compliance with restrictive covenants.

ADA§83ADA: §9

Subject to state law, all disputes must be mediated and then arbitrated
before litigation.

SLA: §12(g)

Subject to state law, all disputes must be litigated-i+DalasFexas.

v. Choice of forum

FA: §21

Subject to state law, all mediation, arbitration and litigation must take
place in Dallas, Texas.

ADA: §9

Subject to state law, all mediation, arbitration and litigation must take
place in Dallas, Texas.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP
PROVISION SECTIONS IN SUMMARY
AGREEMENT
SLA: §12(g) Subject to state law, all disputeslitication must betitigatedtake place in
Dallas, Texas.

FA: §23.1 Subject to state law, Texas law governs.

w. Choice of law ADA: §11.1 Dobeeiiemi e e Do Lo cnseene
SLA: §12(g) Cobesieaia e e e e e e

ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES
We do not use any public figures to promote our franchise.
ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information,
and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance information that differs
from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing
outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for
example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular
circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing
outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial
performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the Federal Trade
Commission, the appropriate state regulatory agencies, and our management by contacting our President, Ted
Laatz, at 750-N—St—Paul-St;5473 Blair Rd. Suite 250100, PMB 30053, Dallas, Texas 752631 or by phone at
(800) 570-6414.

ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

TABLE 1 - SYSTEM-WIDE OUTLET SUMMARY FOR YEARS 20201 TO 20223

Outlet Type Year Outleti l?et 3:; lS:tart of Outlettshzt ‘t{lézfnd of Net Change
20201 0 0 0
Franchised 20242 0 0 0
20223 0 02 0+2
20261 0 0 0
Company-Owned 20242 0 0 0
20223 0 0 0
20261 0 0 0
Total Outlets 20242 0 0 0
20223 0 02 0+2
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TABLE 2 - TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS (OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
FOR YEARS 202601 TO 20223

State Year Number of Transfers
20201 0
Total 20242 0
20223 0
TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 20201 TO 20223
QOutlets at . Reacquired Cease.:d Outlets at
Outlets Termin- Non- Operations
State Year Start of . by End of
Opened ations Renewals . - Other
Year Franchisor Year
Reasons
20201 0 0 0 0 0
Tetexals 20242 0 0 0 0 0
20223 0 02 0 0 0 0 02
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totals 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
TABLE 4 - STATUS OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 20201 TO 20223
Outlets
State Year Outlets at Outlets Reacquired Outlets Outlets Sold Outlets at
Start of Year Opened From Closed to Franchisee | End of Year
Franchisee
20201 0
Totals 20242 0
20223 0
TABLE 5 — PROJECTED OPENINGS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20223
State Franchise Agreements Signed Projected New Franchised Projected New Company-Owned
But Outlet Not Opened Outlets in the Next Fiscal Year Outlets in the Next Fiscal Year
Alabama 31 01 0
Sl + 0
Florida 2 2 0
Indiana + 0
Louisiana 1 01 0
Nevada 1 0 0
New York 1 01 0
Texas 31 31 0
Virginia 1 01 0
Total 47 67 0
Our fiscal year ends on December 31%. A list of all current franchisees is attached to this Disclosure Document
as EXHIBIT "F" (Part A), including their names and the addresses and telephone numbers of their outlets as of
December 31, 20223. In addition, EXHIBIT "F" (Part B) lists the name, city and state, and the current business
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telephone number (or, if unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every franchisee who had an
outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under
the franchise agreement during our most recently completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with us
within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact
information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

In the last 3 fiscal years, some franchisees have signed confidentiality agreements with us. In some instances,
current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience
with us. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees
will be able to communicate with you.

There are no: (a) trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered
that we have created, sponsored or endorsed; or (b) independent franchisee organizations that have asked to be
included in this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached as EXHIBIT "H" to this Disclosure Document are the—audited financial statements of
SueeessSUCCESS Franchising, LLC as-efDeecember 31,2022 and December312021-and-for (a) the yearfiscal
years ended December 31, 2022;3 and fechuembu 31 2022 and (b) the perlod from January 12, 2021
(1ncept10n) through December 31 2021 e AT-URAY ale et-a HEY and-a

Dﬁelesew%Deemﬂem—as—EX—HI-Bﬂ"—H—WeBecause we have not been in bus—messexntence for 3 years-er-meore
and, we cannot ineladeprovide all of the financial statements required by the FTC rule—for-ourltast3—fiseal

yearsfranchise disclosure guidelines. Our fiscal year end is December 3 1st.

ITEM 22 CONTRACTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document (or the Franchise Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document) are
copies of the following franchise and other contracts or agreements proposed for use or in use in this state:

Exhibits to Disclosure Document

EXHIBIT "C" Franchise Agreement
EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement
EXHIBIT "I"-1  State Addenda

EXHIBIT "I"-2  General Release

EXHIBIT "I"-3  Software License Agreement

Attachments to Franchise Agreement

ATTACHMENT "B" Form of Site Approval Notice
ATTACHMENT "C" Lease Addendum
ATTACHMENT "D" Franchise Owner Agreement
ATTACHMENT "E" Brand Protection Agreement
ATFACHMENT"E")  Confidentiality Agreement

ITEM 23 RECEIPT

EXHIBIT "K" to this Disclosure Document are detachable receipts. You are to sign both, keep one copy and
return the other copy to us.

Franchise Disclosure Document (20234)
Page 51



EXHIBIT "A"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE AGENCIES AND ADMINISTRATORS

CALIFORNIA
Commissioner of Financial
Protection & Innovation
Department of Financial
Protection & Innovation

320 West 4™ Street, #750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 576-7500
1-866-275-2677

Agent for Service of Process:
Commissioner of Financial
Protection & Innovation
Department of Financial
Protection & Innovation

320 West 4™ Street, #750

Los Angeles, CA 90013
HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities of
the State of Hawaii

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

Agents for Service of Process:
Commissioner of Securities of
the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and
Consumer Affairs

Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

[llinois Attorney General
Chief, Franchise Division

500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

Secretary of State

Securities Division

Room E-018

302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204

(317) 232-6681

MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202
(410) 576-6360

Agent for Service of Process:
Maryland Securities Commissionel
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
MICHIGAN

Franchise Section

Consumer Protection Division
525 W. Ottawa Street, G. Mennen
Williams Building, 1% Floor
Lansing, MI 48913

(517) 335-7567

MINNESOTA

Commissioner of Commerce
Director of Registration

85 Seventh Place East, #280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-3165
(651) 539-1500

NEW YORK

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau

28 Liberty Street, 21* Floor
New York, NY 10005

Phone: (212) 416-8222

Agents for Service of Process:
New York Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor
Albany, NY 12231

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities
Department

State Capitol, 5™ Floor, Dept 414
600 East Boulevard Avenue
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
(701) 328-4712

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Franchise
Regulation

1511 Pontiac Avenue, John O.
Pastore Complex, Bldg 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9527

SOUTH DAKOTA
Department of Labor and
Regulation

Division of Insurance Securities
Regulation

124 S Euclid, 2™ Floor

Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA

State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail
Franchising

1300 East Main Street, 9™ Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-9051

Agents for Service of Process:
Clerk of the State Corporation
Commission

1300 East Main Street, 1* Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
WASHINGTON

Department of Financial
Institutions

Securities Division

150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, WA 98501

(360) 902-8760

Mailing Address:

Department of Financial
Institutions

Securities Division

P.O. Box 9033

Olympia, WA 98507
WISCONSIN

Department of Financial
Institutions

Division of Securities

201 W Washington Avenue,
Suite 500, Madison, WI 53703
(608) 261-9555
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EXHIBIT "B"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISOR’S AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Delaware Registered Agents
8 The Green, Suite A
Dover, Delaware 19901

In states listed in EXHIBIT "A", the additional agent
for Service of Process is listed in EXHIBIT "A"
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EXHIBIT "C"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

[See Attached]
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SUCCESS SPACE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This SUCCESS Space Franchise Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of ,202  (the
“Effective Date”) between Success Franchising, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“we” or “us”) and
> a(n) (“you”).

1. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement have the meanings given to them below:

“Access Revenues” means the total amount of revenue collected by us or our affiliate from SUCCESS
Space members based on their access to workspace within any Limited Services Facility that is located
within your Territory, but excluding: (a) any fees or other amounts collected from members for any goods
or services other than the temporary rental of workspace at the Limited Services Facility (for example,
fees for coaching services, subscription fees, membership fees, etc.); (b) sales tax, use tax and any other
tax collected from members and remitted to a Governmental Authority; and (c) amounts collected but
subsequently refunded to members.

“Account” means the checking account you designate from which we deduct fees and other amounts
owed to us and our affiliates in accordance with §12.5.

“Acquisition” means either: (a) a transaction, or series of transactions, pursuant to which a competitive or
non-competitive company, franchise system, network or chain directly or indirectly acquires us or the
SUCCESS Space franchise system, whether in whole or in part, including by asset or stock purchase,
change of control, merger, affiliation or otherwise; or (b) a transaction, or series of transactions, pursuant
to which we directly or indirectly acquire another competitive or non-competitive company, franchise
system, network or chain, whether in whole or in part, including by asset or stock purchase, change of
control, merger, affiliation or otherwise.

“Acquired Assets” means any assets associated with your Facility that we elect to purchase upon
termination or expiration of this Agreement, as further described in §26-3-20.3(a).

(13

Agreement” is defined in the Introductory Paragraph.

“Alternative Channels of Distribution” means all channels of distribution for the sale of goods and
services other than retail sales made to customers while present at a SUCCESS Space Facility, including,
but not limited to:

(i)  sales over the Internet (including virtual business coaching conducted remotely over the
Internet);

(ii))  sales made through catalogs or telemarketing efforts;

(iii)) sales made via mail delivery service (including distribution of SUCCESS® magazine to
subscribers);

(iv)  sales through retail stores that do not operate under the Marks;
(v)  sales made at wholesale;

(vi) onsite sales to customers (including business coaching provided to individuals at their place of
work);

(vii) sales through catering or other delivery services; and
(viii) sales through kiosks or mobile trailers.

“Anti-Terrorism Law” means Executive Order 13224 issued by the President of the United States of
America (or any successor Order), the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate
Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act) of 2001 (or any successor
legislation) and all other present and future federal, state and local Laws, ordinances, regulations, policies,
lists, orders and any other requirements of any Governmental Authority addressing or in any way relating
to terrorist acts and acts of war.

113 . 99
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9

“Appraised Value” means the fair market value of the Acquired Assets as determined by independent
appraisers in accordance with §20.3(b).

“Brand Protection Agreement” means the Brand Protection Agreement that must be signed by certain of
your personnel, the current form of which is attached hereto-as ATTACHMENT "E".

“Business” means the franchised business you operate pursuant to this Agreement.

“Business Coach” means a Person you hire in accordance with §8.3 to provide business coaching services
from your Facility.

“Business Data” means, collectively or individually, Customer Data and Operational Data.

“Café” means the limited-service café located within your Facility that is open to the public and offers
and sells fresh brewed and specialty coffees, pastries, sandwiches, salads, snacks, beer and wine (where
allowed by law) and various retail items that we approve or designate.

“Claim” er—Claims™means any and—al—claims,—actions,—demands;—assessmentsaction, allegation,
assessment, claim, demand, htlgatlon ]10ceed1ng or e%her—fefm—eﬁregulatoryer—adj—udieaffeiﬂy—pfeeeéufe&

esprocedure, investigation or

inquiry.
“Competitiveng Business” means any business that meets at least one of the following criteria: (a) any

business that is competitive with a SUCCESS Space Facility and derives, or is reasonably expected to
derive, more than 25% of its revenues from the sale or rental of co-working-space or flex-space services
or the sale or rental of other similar services; (b) any business that solicits, offers or sells franchises or
licenses for a business that meets the criteria in clause (a) of this definition; and/or (c) any business that
services, trains, supports, consults with, advises or otherwise assists any Person with respect to the
development, management and/or operation of a business that meets the criteria in clause (a) of this
definition. A Competitiveng Business does not include any SUCCESS Space Facility operated pursuant
to a valid franchise agreement or license agreement with us or our affiliate.

“Confidential Information” means and includes: (a) the Know-How; (b) the Business Data; (c) the terms
of the Definitive Agreements and all attachments thereto and amendments thereof; (d) the components of
the System; (e) all information within or comprising the Manual; and (f) all other concepts, ideas, trade
secrets, financial information, marketing strategies, expansion strategies, studies, supplier information,
customer information, franchisee information, investor information, flow charts, inventions, mask works,
improvements, discoveries, standards, specifications, formulae, recipes, designs, sketches, drawings,
policies, processes, procedures, methodologies and techniques, together with analyses, compilations,
studies or other documents that are: (i) are—designated as confidential; (ii) are-known by you to be
considered confidential by us; and/or (iii) are-bytheirnatare—inherenthyorreasonably to be considered
confidential- due to their nature. Confidential Information does not include-any information that: (a) is
now, or subsequently becomes, generally available to the public (except as a result of a breach of
confidentiality obligations by you or your Owners, employees or other constituents); (b) you can
demonstrate was rightfully #n—yreur—pessesstenpossessed by you or an Owner, without obligation of
nondisclosure, before we disclosed the information to you or the Owner; (¢) is independently developed
by you or an Owner without any use of, or reference to, any Confidential Information; or (d) is rightfully
obtained from a third party who has the right to transfer or disclose such information to you or to an
Owner without breaching any obligation of confidentiality imposed on such third party.

“Confidentiality Agreement” means the Confidentiality Agreement that must be signed by certain of your
employees pursuant to §13.5, the current form of which is attached hereto-as ATFACHMENT"E"as 0.

“Copyrighted Materials” means all copyrightable materials for which we or our affiliate have
seetredsecure common law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell or
display in connection with the marketing and/or operation of a SUCCESS Space Facility;—whethernowin
“Customer Data” means and includes any and all data that pertains to a SUCCESS Space member or
customer; including;—witheuttmitation; name, address, contact information, date of birth, purchase
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history and any information collected in connection with any loyalty program or for any other purpose.

“Definitive Agreements” means, collectively;: (a) this Agreement;; (b) the Area Development Agreement
pursuant to which this Agreement is executed (if applicable);); (c) any other Franchise Agreement
between you (or your affiliate) and us (or our affiliate) for a Facility or any other franchised concept;: and
(d) all ancillary agreements executed in connection with any—ef-the foregoing, including;—witheut
limitationeachrelated Franchise Owner Agreements.

“Designated Manager” means a Person you hire in accordance with §8.2 to assist the Managing Owner
with the onsite management and supervision of your Facility.

“Designated Marketing Area” or “DMA” means the geographic area within which you must direct all of
your advertising and marketing efforts in accordance with §10.3(d). Unless we specify otherwise, your
DMA will consist of the same geographic area comprising your Site Selection Area.

“Dispute” means any Claim, dispute or disagreement between the parties, including any matter pertaining
to: (a) the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement; (b) the offer or sale of the franchise; or (c) the
relationship between the parties.

“Effective Date” is defined in the Introductory Paragraph.
“Entity” means a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other form of association.

“Equity Interest” means a direct or indirect ownership or beneficial interest in the capital stock of,
partnership or membership interest in, or other equity, ownership or beneficial interest in an Entity
(including voting rights).

113 . 99 %

“Excluded Claim” means any Claim that, according to §21, is not subject to mandatory mediation or
arbitration.

“Facility” or “SUCCESS Space Facility” means a membership-based shared workspace facility that
operates under the Marks and offers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service café and various other amenities.
The term may refer to a Facility operated by us, our affiliate, you or another franchisee, as the context
may require.

“Force Majeure” means acts or circumstances that are beyond a party’s control, including fire, storm,
flood, earthquake, explosion or accident, acts of war or terrorism, rebellion, insurrection, sabotage,
epidemic, failures or delays of transportation and strikes, provided that: (a) the non-performing party

promptly provides written notice to the other party of the Force Majeure-event-withinthree(3)-days—of
becomingaware-of the-oceurrence—of sueh event; (b) the non-performing party is without fault and the

delay or failure could not have been prevented by reasonable precautions by the non-performing party; (c)
nothing herein shall excuse or permit any delay or failure to pay fees or other amounts owed on the
applicable due date; (d) insolvency, lack of required funds or financing, currency fluctuations, currency
devaluations, foreign exchange controls or inflation shall never be deemed Force Majeure; and (e) an
epidemic or pandemic of a contagious illness or disease, or economic or financial changes caused by an
epidemic or pandemic of a contagious illness or disease, shall never be deemed Force Majeure except to
the extent a Governmental Authority mandates closure (or prevents the opening) of the Facility as a result
of such epidemic or pandemic.

“Franchise Owner Agreement” means the Franchise Owner Agreement that must be signed by the
Owners and their spouses pursuant to §9, the current form of which is attached as ATTACHMENT "D".

“Franchisee Entity” means the Entity, if applicable, that: (a) signs this Agreement as the franchisee (e

“youw)-if this Agreement is signed by an Entity:): or (b) assumes this Agreement subsequent to its
execution by the original Owners.




“General Release” means our then-current form of Waiver and Release of Claims that you and your
Owners must sign pursuant to §4.2 (in connection with a renewal of your franchise rights) or §18.2 (in
connection with a Transfer).

“Government Official” means any: (a) officer or employee of a Governmental Authority; (b) commercial
or similar entity owned or controlled by a Governmental Authority, including state-owned and state-
operated companies or enterprises; (c) public international organization (e.g., United Nations, World
Bank); (d) political party or official thereof; or (e) candidate for political office.

“Governmental Authority” means any national, provincial, state, county, local, municipal or other
government, or any ministry, department, agency or subdivision thereof, whether administrative or
regulatory, or any other body that exercises similar functions, and including any court or taxing authority.

“Gross Sales” means the total amount of gross revenues charged, invoiced or collected from all goods and
services sold or otherwise provided at, within, from or through your Facility, including rent, membership
fees, coaching fees, charges for the use of amenities and technology, proceeds from the sale of food,
beverages and merchandise and all other revenues you generate in any way related to your Business
(including-any business interruption insurance proceeds), whether in the form of cash, check, credit card,
debit card, barter, exchange or otherwise, and regardless of collection. Any amounts we collect and pay
you for servicing a National Account client will be included in Gross Sales. Gross Sales does not include
sales or use taxes or amounts refunded to customers in bona fide refund transactions. The Manual may
include policies governing the manner in which the proceeds from the sale of gift cards are treated for
purposes of calculating Gross Sales. The Manual may also provide details on the calculation of Gross
Sales relating to qualifying purchases and redemptions by members under any customer loyalty program
we establish.

“Improvement” means any idea, addition, modification or improvement to the (a)-the goods or services
offered or sold at a Facility, (b) the-method of operation of a Facility, (c) the—processes, systems or
procedures utilized by a Facility, (d)-the marketing, advertising or promotional materials, programs or
strategies utilized by a Facility or (e) the-trademarks, service marks, logos or other intellectual property
utilized by a Facility, whether developed by you, yeurOwners;yourempleyeesan Owner, an employee or
any other Person-asseciated-with-you-er-yourFEaetity-.

“Indemnified Party” or “Indemnified Parties” means us and each of our past, present and future owners,
members, officers, directors, employees and agents, as well as our parent-companiesparents, subsidiaries
and affiliates, and each of their past, present and future owners, members, officers, directors, employees
and agents.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, the Business Data, Copyrighted Materials,
Improvements, Know-how, Marks and System.

“Interim_Term” means a month-to-month extension of the Term under the circumstances described in
§4.3.

“IP Dispute” means any: (a) apparent infringement of the Intellectual Property; (b) challenge to your use
of the Intellectual Property; or (c) claim by any Person, other than us or our affiliate, of any rights in or to
the Intellectual Property.

“Know-how” means all-ef-eurand includes our (and our affiliates’) trade secrets and other proprietary
information relating to the design, construction, development, marketing or operation of a SUCCESS
Space Facility, including, but not limited to: architectural plans, drawings and specifications for a
prototype Facility; site selection criteria; recipes for menu items; methods and techniques; standards and
specifications; policies and procedures; supplier lists and information; marketing strategies;
merchandising strategies; financial information; and information comprising the System or included in
Manual.

“Law” means and includes all laws, judgments, decrees, orders, rules, regulations, ordinances, advisory
opinions or official legal interpretations of any Governmental Authority.

“Limited Access Location” means a SUCCESS Space Facility (whether mobile or fixed, permanent or
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temporary) that is located within, or is a part of, a private business, governmental institution or other
limited access facility. Examples of Limited Access Locations include SUCCESS Space Facilities located
within:

(1) hotels, motels, resorts, casinos or similar facilities;

(i)  hospitals and other healthcare facilities;

(ii1)  universities, schools and education facilities;

(iv) military bases;

(v)  office buildings and business complexes;

(vi) condominiums, apartment buildings and dormitories;

(vii) private clubs; and

(viii) other similar facilities not accessible to the general public.

Access to Facilities in Limited Access Locations is typically limited to owners, employees, members,
transient guests, students or residents of such businesses, institutions or facilities.

“Limited Services Facility” means a limited-scope membership-based shared workspace facility that: (a)
operates under the SUCCESS Space trademarks; (b) operates in conjunction with a SUCCESS Space
Facility; (c) provides members with access to temporary workspace; (d) does not include a café or provide
members with access to certain amenities that are only available at a full-service SUCCESS Space
Facility; and (e) may not require onsite management or supervision by an employee, manager or
representative.

“Local Marketing Commitment” means the minimum amount of money you must spend each month on
local advertising and marketing to promote your Facility in accordance with §10.3(b).

“Losses and Expenses” means and includes any-er-all of the following: compensatory, exemplary and
punitive damages; fines and penalties; attorneys’ fees; experts’ fees; court costs; costs associated with
investigating and defending against Claims; settlement amounts; judgments; compensation for damages to
reputation or goodwill; and all other costs, damages, liabilities and expenses associated with any of the
foregoing losses and expenses or otherwise incurred by an Indemnified Party-as-aresult-ofa-Claim:.

“Managing Owner” means the Owner you designate and we approve who is primarily responsible for the
management and supervision of your Facility in accordance with §8.1.

“Manual” means our confidential Brand Standards Manual for the operation of Facility, as further
described in §11.2. The Manual may consist of multiple volumes of printed text, video and/or audio tapes
and files, computer disks and other electronically stored data.

“Marks” means and includes all service marks, trademarks, trade names and logos that we designate from
time to time and authorize SUCCESS Space Facilities to use, including “SUCCESS,” “SUCCESS
Space,” “SUCCESS Coaching” and the associated logos. The Marks also include any distinctive trade
dress used to identify a SUCCESS Space Facility.

“National Account” means an institutional client, group of clients, organization, association or entity that
contracts with us to enable its employees, members or other constituents to access SUCCESS Space
Facilities and receive the various benefits and privileges associated with a SUCCESS Space membership
as further described in §6.9.

“Operational Data” means and includes all data and information pertaining to the operation of your
EaeilitsBusiness including—witheutHmitation; employee data, expense data, financial accounting data
and Gross Sales data.

“Owner” means a Person who either: (a) directly signs this Agreement as the franchisee, either alone or
in conjunction with one or more other Persons):; or (b) directly or indirectly ¢(through one or more
intermediaries) owns any Equity Interest in the Franchisee Entity (if the franchisee under this Agreement
is an Entity).
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“PCI-DSS” means the payment card industry data security standard, which is a set of security
requirements established by the following major credit card brands from time to time: American Express,
Discover Financial Services, JCB International, MasterCard Worldwide, and Visa Inc., which standards
are set forth at https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org as of the Effective Date.

“Permitted Transfer” means: (a) a Transfer from one Owner to another Owner who was an approved
Owner prior to such Transfer, other than a Transfer that results in the Managing Owner holdwning less
than a-20% of the ownership interests in the Business or 20% of the Equity Interests in the Franchisee
Entity, as applicable; and/or (b) a Transfer by the Owners to a newly established Franchisee Entity for
which such Owners collectively own and control 100% of the Equity Interests.

“Person” means an individual, Entity, unincorporated organization, joint venture, Governmental
Authority, estate (or executor thereof) or trust (or trustee thereof).

“Post-Term Restricted Period” means, with respect to you;: a period of two (2) years after the
termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; provided, however, that if a court of competent
jurisdiction determines the two-year Post-Term Restricted Period is too long to be enforceable; then Post-
Term Restricted Period means: a period of one (1) year after the termination, expiration or Transfer of this
Agreement.

“Post-Term Restricted Period” means, with respect to an Owner;: a period of two (2) years after the
earlier to occur of: (a) the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; or (b) the Owner’s
Transfer of his or her entire ownership interest in the BusinessFacility or—the Franchisee Entity, as
applicable; provided, however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction determines the two-year Post-
Term Restricted Period is too long to be enforceable; then Post-Term Restricted Period means: a period of
one (1) year after the earlier to occur of: (a) the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; or
(b) the Owner’s Transfer of his or her entire ownership interest in the BusinessFacility or-the Franchisee
Entity, as applicable.

“Program Participation Rules” means the policies, procedures, fees and other requirements pertaining to
any gift card, loyalty, membership or other program we implement pursuant to §+H--42¢a)11.12.

“Prohibited Activities” means and includes any of the following: (a) owning, operating or having any
other interest (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, sharehelder;
creditor, representative, agent or in any similar capacity) in any Competitiveng Business, other than
owning an interest of 5% or less in a publicly traded company that is a Competitiveng Business; (b)
disparaging or otherwise making negative comments about us, any-efour affiliates, the System and/or any
SUCCESS Space Facility; (c) diverting or attempting to divert any business from us—(er—ene—of, our

affiliates—or{ranchisees);—affiliate or another franchisee; and/or (d) inducing any SHECESS—Space
rmemberPerson to transfer their business from a SUCCESS Space Facility to a competitor.

“Restricted Territory” means: the geographic area within: (a) a five (5) mile radius from your Facility
(and including the premises of your Facility); (b) a five (5) mile radius from all other SHECESS-Space
Facilities that are operating or under construction as of the Effective Date and remain in operation or
under construction during al-er-any part of the Post-Term Restricted Period; and (c) the development
territory awarded to you or any affiliate of yours pursuant to a SUCCESS Space Area Development
Agreement (if applicable); provided, however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction determines that-the
foregoing Restricted Territory is too broad to be enforceable; then Restricted Territory means: the
geographic area within a five (5) mile radius from your Facility (and including the premises of your
Facility).

“Revenue Share” means the revenue share paid to you based on Access Revenues collected by us or our
affiliate in connection with the operation of a Limited Services Facility that is located in your Territory, as
further described in §6.10.

“Site Approval Notice” means the Site Approval Notice attached herete-as ATTACHMENT "B" that we
issue to you iraeceordanee-withpursuant to §3 and §7.1 to identify the approved site for your Facility and
designate the-beundaries-ofyour Territory.

“Site Selection Area” means the geographic area described in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A": and within
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which you must find a site we approve for your Facility.

“SUCCESS Space Facility” or “Facility” means a membership-based shared workspace facility that
operates under the Marks and offers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service café and various other amenities.
The term may refer to a Facility operated by us, our affiliate, you or another franchisee, as the context
may require.

“SUCCESS Spaceware” means our proprietary business management software that: (a) tracks the amount
of time private workspace is rented by members; (b) integrates with other required software, Apps and
programs, including our designated point-of-sale system for invoicing and payment processing; and (c)
measures and tracks key performance indicators, business transactions and other operational data through
a dashboard. The term also includes and modified version of SUCCESS Spaceware or successor program.

“Successor Agreement” means our then-current form of SUCCESS Space Franchise Agreement you must
sign pursuant to §4.2 in order to renew your franchise rights.

“System” means the proprietary business format and system we developed for the operation of a
SUCCESS Space Facility, the distinctive characteristics of which include, among other things: SUCCESS
Space designs, furniture, fixtures and equipment; site selection and layout criteria; distinctive interior and
exterior design, décor, signage, color scheme and other trade dress elements; proprietary and
nonproprietary products; quality, distinctiveness and uniformity of products and services; standards,
specifications, policies and procedures for Facility construction, management and operations; membership
model; proprietary SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform; training programs; and
advertising and promotional programs.

“Technology Systems” means and includes all information and communication technology systems we
specify from time to time, including, without limitation, computer systems, point-of-sale systems,
webcam systems, telecommunications systems, security systems, music systems, audio visual systems
and similar systems, together with the associated hardware, software (including cloud-based software)
and related equipment, software applications, mobile apps, and third-party services relating to the
establishment, use, maintenance, monitoring, security or improvement of these systems.

“Term” means the period of time beginning on the Effective Date and expiring on the earlier to occur of:
(a) the 10™ anniversary of the Effective Date; or (b) the date this Agreement is effectively terminated-for

RS eEee,
“Territory” is-definedmeans the protected territory for your Facility, as further described in §3.

“Transfer” means any direct or indirect, voluntary or involuntary-(inchading-byjudicial-award,—order-or

deereey;, assignment, sale, conveyance, subdivision, sublicense or other transfer or disposition of:

(a)  this Agreement (or any interest therein);

(b)  the franchise rights-or intellectual property rights granted by this Agreement (or any interest
therein);

(c)  the Business eondueted-by-you conduct pursuant to this Agreement (or any interest therein);
(d)  the right to manage the Facility or occupy theFaetlitysits premises;

(e) the Facility’s assets—, other than the sale of fixtures or equipment in the ordinary course of
business);; or

(f)  an Equity Interest in the Franchisee Entity;

including by: merger or consolidation;-by; judicial award, order or decree; issuance of additional Equity
Interests in the Franchisee Entity;—erby: foreclosure of a security interest by a lender; or operation of
Law, will or a trust upon the death of an Owner-(. including the Laws of intestate successiony..

b}

“Travel Expenses” means and includes all travel, meals, lodging, local transportation and other living
expenses incurred: (a) by us and our trainers, field support personnel, auditors or other representatives to
visit your Facility; or (b) by you and your personnel to attend training programs or conferences.
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“We” or “us” is defined in the Introductory Paragraph.
“You” is defined in the Introductory Paragraph.

GRANT OF FRANCHISE. We hereby grant you the right. license and heenseobligation to own and
operate one (1) SUCCESS Space Facility using our Intellectual Property from athe site that-we approve.
As a franchisee, you will establish and operate a shared workspace facility that offers flexible rental
options combined with access to onsite professional business coaching, virtual communication
technology, a limited-service Café and various other amenities. We reserve all rights not expressly
granted to you.

TERRITORIAL RIGHTS AND LIMITATIONS. We will grant you a territory (your “Territory”) that
includes a minimum population of 50,000- (as of the date that the Territory is determined). If we approve

the site for your Facility prior to executlon of this Agreement thenwe w111 describe your Territory in Part
D of ATTACHMENT "A"-sh s

appfevaﬂl Othe1w1se we w111 send—yeu—a—de%crlbe your Terntory in the Slte Approval Notlce that

iéenﬁﬁes.—éa)—t-h%appfeved—sﬁ%fefwe send to you after applovmg your =oethieand g the s hie

t : aningsite. During the Term we
w111 not develop or operate or gPaﬂt—a—fPaﬂehﬁ%er—hcense %e—a thlrd party to develop or operate, a
SUCCESS Space Facility that is physieally-located within-yeurin the Territory-during-the-Ferm; except as
otherwise provided in this Section with respect to Limited Access Locations, Acquisitions and Limited
Services Facilities. WeAt any time during the Term we reserve the right to: (a) develop and operate, and
erant—franchises—erlicenses—tolicense third parties to develop and operate, SUCCESS Space Facilities
within Limited Access Locations withinthat are located in your Territory; (b) engage in Acquisitions,
even if as a result of an Acquisition one or more competitive businesses of the acquired or acquiring
company that are located in your Territory convert to and begin operating as SUCCESS Space Facilities
using our Intellectual Property (including our Marks); and (c) develop and operate, and grant-franchises-or
heenses—toelicense third parties to develop and operate, Limited Services Facilities from any site within
your Territory that is located a minimum of three (3) miles from your Facility, subject to your right to
receive a Revenue Share pursuant to §6.10 in connection with any Limited Services Facility located in

your Territory. We reserve the right to sell, ergrantfranchises—orHeenses—toand license third parties to

sell, competitive or identical goods or services (including under the Marks) within the Territory through

Alternative Channels of Distribution;-irrespeetive-ef-whether-thesales-take place-in-your Territory.
TERM AND RENEWAL.

4.1. Generally. This Agreement grants you the right to operate your Facility only during the Term.
Provided that you satisfy all conditions for renewal specified below, you may enter into a
maximum of one (1) Successor Agreement following the expiration of the Term. The Successor
Agreement shall be the current form of franchise agreement we use in granting franchises as of the
expiration of the Term, the terms of which may vary materially and substantially from the terms of
this Agreement. Upon renewal, we-alse reserve the right to modify the boundaries of your Territory
in accordance with our then-current territory guidelines and criteria. The renewal term will be 10

years;—for-a-maximum-total-term-of 20-years—You-haveno-right. The parties may agree to eperate
yvourHaetityfollowingthefurther renewals after expiration of the renewal term-, but neither party
is obligated to do so (unless we—grant-yor—oene{-ormoereadditionalrequired by applicable state

Law, in which case the same renewal terms in-our-sele-diseretion-and conditions set forth in this
Agreement shall apply to subsequent renewals). If this Agreement is a Successor Agreement, the
renewal provisions in your original franchise agreement will dictate the length of the Term of this
Agreement as-weH-asand your remaining renewal rights, if any.

4.2. Renewal Requirements. In order to enter into a Successor Agreement; you and the Owners (as
applicable) must:

(1)  notify us in writing of your desire to enter into a Successor Agreement not less than 360 days
nor more than 540 days before the expiration of the Term;
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(i1))  not be in default under any Definitive Agreement at the time you send the renewal notice or
the-time-you-sign the Successor Agreement (we may also prohibit you from renewing if you
received three (3) or more default notices from us during the Term);

(ii1) sign the Successor Agreement and all ancillary agreements—required—by—the—Sueeesser
Agreementdocuments we require franchisees to sign;

(iv) sign a General Release;

(v) pay us a renewal fee equal to 35% of our then-current standardnon-discounted initial
franchise fee;

(vi) remodel yeurthe Facility and upgrade i#sall furniture, fixtures and equipment to eemply
withconform to our then-current standards and specifications; and

(vii) extend the term of your lease for the duration of the renewal term.

If we elect not to renew or offer you the right to renew, we will send you a written notice of non-
renewal at least 180 days prior to the expiration date, which shall set forth the basis for our decision
not to renew or offer you the right to renew. Our failure to send you a notice of non-renewal at least
180 days prior to the expiration date shall constitute our offer to renew your franchise in
accordance with, and subject to, the renewal terms and conditions set forth above. If you have any
objections to our notice of non-renewal, including any dispute as to the basis for our decision not to
renew, you must send us a written notice of objection that sets forth the basis for your objections.
Your notice of objection must be sent to us no later than 30 days after you receive our notice of
non-renewal. Your failure to send us a written notice of objection during such 30-day period shall
constitute your agreement to the non-renewal of your franchise.

4.3. Interim Term. If you do not sign a Successor Agreement but continue to operate your Facility

after the expiration of the Term-and-yeu-econtinue-to-aceeptthe-benefits-of, we may either treat this

Agreement;-then-at-our-option;-this Agreement-may-be-treated-either as: (a) expired as of the date
oftheTerm expiration date with you ther-operating-without-afranchise-to-do-se-and in violation of

our rights; or (b) continued on a month-to-month basis (the “Interim Term”) until either party
provides the other party with 30 days’ prior written notice of the party’s intention to terminate the
Interim Term. In the latter case, all of your obligations will remain in full force and effect during
the Interim Term as if this Agreement had not expired, and all obligations and restrictions imposed
on you upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement will be deemed to take effect upon the
termination of the Interim Term.

5. TRAINING AND CONFERENCES

5.1. Pre-OpeningInitial Training Programs. Your Managing Owner and Designated Manager must
successfully complete our initial training program before you open. Your Business Coach and
Managing Owner must successfully complete our SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification
Program pursuant to §8.3 before you open. If you appoint or hire a new Managing Owner,
Designated Manager or Business Coach after we conduct our preopening initial training program
the new Managing Owner, Designated Manager or Business Coach, as applicable, must attend and
successfully complete our then-current initial training program before assuming responsibility for
the management of your Facility or providing business coaching services at your Facility, as
applicable.

5.2. ImtmlOnQomg Tralnlng After Open

5.3.—Periodie Training.. We may offer periodic system—wide-refresher; or supplemental-er-additional
training courses for your Managing Owner, Designated Manager and Business Coach. We may
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designate attendanee-atthesetrainingprogramseach course as eptienal-er-mandatory-

5.5.—Remedial Training. or optional. If we determine that-you—arenet-operating-your Facility is not

being operated in full compliance with this Agreement and/er the Manual, we may;-at-euroption;
require that your Managing Owner, Designated Manager and/or Business Coach attend remedial
training thatis-relevant to your operational deficiencies. We may. but need not, provide additional

assistance or training requested by you at a mutually convenient time.

5.3. Training Locations. Our training programs may take place at any location we designate. We
reserve the right to conduct training programs virtually.

5.7.5.4. Training Fees and Expenses. In—exchangeforthe—You must pay us a $12,500 initial
training fee we-prevideprior to initial training. The initial training fee covers: (a) pre-opening initial
training for your Managing Owner and Designated Manager; and (b)—ewr SUCCESS Space
Coaching Certification Program for your Managing Owner and one (1) Business Coach. If you
send more than one (1) Business Coach to our SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program,
we will charge an additional training fee of $2,500 per Person (if the training occurs within 12
months after the Effective Date) or $5 000 per Person (1f the tralmng occurs more than 12 months
after the Effective Date). ¥ou ; 5
per-day—for:We may also char;ze a trammq fee of up to $500 per Person per day for any Person
who: (a) attends our initial training program (excluding the SUCCESS Space Coaching
Certification Program) after vou open your Facility; (b) retakes training after failing a prior
attempt; (c) attends remedial training program; (d) attends additional training requested by you; or
(e) attends refresher or supplemental training. If we provide onsite training or assistance, you must
also reimburse us for all Travel Expenses we incur (this reimbursement obligation does not apply
to_any onsite training we choose to provide as part of our initial training program prior to_your
opening date). You are responsible for all wages and Travel Expenses you and your personnel

incur to attend training programs.

5.5. Conferences. ea ;
periodic conferences to dlscuss bus1ness and ODeratlonal matters relevant to Facilities.
Attendance is mandatory for your Faetity(such-as-anew-Managing Owner er-(and, if we so
require, your Designated Manager):

v—eachPersonto-whem and/or Business Coach) unless: (a) we provide-additional-training-that

yourequest-and
)——eachPerson—who—attends—anysystem-widedesignate attendance as optional; or additienal
bR pEe SR We senduek

obllgatlon deesto attend based on showmg of QOOd cause. We w1ll not appl—y—te—aﬂ-yhpfeeﬁemng
inttial-training-we-conduet-onsitercquire attendance at yeurFaetity)more than one (1) conference

during any calendar year. We may charge you a conference registration fee of $1,000 per required
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attendee per conference. If a required attendee fails to attend a conference without a waiver from
us, you must pay us the conference registration fee for that Person despite their non-attendance (we
will provide you with a copy of any written materials distributed at the conference). You are
respon31ble for all &epenseswagc and eestsTravcl Exocnscs you and your %Fameespcrsonncl incur

wh+eh—rs—é&%pﬂer—t&eemmeneemeﬂt—ef—tmiﬂmgto attend com‘erences

OTHER FRANCHISOR ASSISTANCE.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

Manual. Fhroughout—theTFerm—we—willWe provide you with access to our Manual in—text;

electronicformat-orin-anyother format-we-deemappropriate-during the Term. The Manual will
help you establishdevelop and operate your BusinessFacility. The information in the Manual is

confidential and proprietary and may not be disclosed to third parties without our prior approval.

Business Management Platform. We will license you the right to utilize SUCCESS Spaceware.
We reserve the right to modify this platform and/or discontinue licensing SUCCESS Spaceware at
any time upon at least 30 days’ prior notice. SUCCESS Spaceware (and each of its components) is
confidential and remains our property. At the time you sign this Agreement, you must also sign a
Software License Agreement in the form we designate, which will govern the terms under which
you may utilize SUCCESS Spaceware.

Field Visits. We have the right, but not the obligation, to conduct periodic field visits for purposes
of providing onsite consultation, assistance and guidance pertaining to the operation and
management of your Facility. We may prepare and provide you with a report detailing any
problems or concerns observed during the field visit together with required-or-suggested-changes-or
improvementsour instructions to address or resolve such problems or concerns. You must
implement all required ehanges—orimprovementscorrective measures in the time and manner we

specify.

General Guidance. Based-en-periodie-inspeetions-efWe will periodically review and evaluate your
Facility;—field—visits—or and reports you submit to us;—we—will and provide our guidance and
recommendations on ways to improve the marketing-and/or-operation of your BusinessFacility. We

may also provide periodic individual or group advice, consultation and assistance through site
visits, conference calls, mail or email.

Marketing Assistance. As further described in §10.1 and §10.2, we may, but need not, administer
the brand and system development fund and provide you with other marketing assistance during
the Term.

Website. We willcurrently maintain a corporate website for the SUCCESS Space brand-that. We
will also develop and host a local webpage for your Facility that will be linked to our corporate
website. Your webpage will include such information about your Facility that we deem
appropriate. We will own the website (including your webpage) and domain name at all times. We

may medify-the-content-ofand/change or discontinue the website and/or your local webpage at any
time-Hr-oursele-diseretion—.

Email Addresses. We will provide you with one or more SUCCESS Space email addresses for use
with your Business. You must exclusively use the email address or addresses we provide for all
communications with us, customers, suppliers and other Persons relating to your Business. You

may not use any-email-address—weprovidethem for any purpose unrelated to your Business. We

own the email addresses and accounts but allow you to use them during the Term.

Purchase Agreements. We may, but need not, negotiate purchase agreements with suppliers to

obtain discounted prices for uws—and—eour—franchisees. H-wesueceed—in—negotiating—a—purchase
agreement; We will arrange for you mayto be able to purchase the goods or services directly from

the supplier at the discounted prices we negotiate (subject to any rebates the supplier pays to us).
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6.9.

6.10.

We may also purchase eertain-itemsgoods from suppliers in bulk and resell them to you at our cost
plus shipping fees and a reasonable markup.

National Accounts. We may, but need not, negotiate contracts with National Account clients. The
contract we negotiate with a National Account client may include membership privileges for its
employees, members or other constituents, enabling them to visit and enjoy membership
privileges and benefits from any SUCCESS Space Facility. These contracts may include
discounted pricing and other nonstandard terms and conditions that we make available to National
Account clients and their constituents. You are required to honor these terms and conditions if any
National Account constituents visit your Facility. Your failure to do so is a material breach of this
Agreement. The terms of the National Accounts program, including the compensation paid to
Facilities visited by National Account constituents, will be described in the Manual and may
change from time to time. Once established, we may eliminate the National Accounts program at
any time. We do not guarantee that we will be successful in negotiating contracts with National
Account clients or that you will generate any revenue as a result of any contract we do negotiate.

Limited Services Facilities. The Limited Services Facility concept was developed to compliment
traditional SUCCESS Space Facilities and maximize market penetration and use by members.
Every SUCCESS Space member is permitted to rent workspace at any Limited Services Facility.
Limited Services Facilities do not issue memberships to members. All memberships are issued by
traditional SUCCESS Space Facilities. In connection with any Limited Services Facility that is
located within your Territory, we or our affiliate will pay you a revenue share calculated as 10% of
the monthly Access Revenues collected by us or our affiliate, as applicable, from the operation of
such Limited Services Facility (the “Revenue Share”). We or our affiliate will pay you any
Revenue Share to which you are entitled on or before the 15" day of each month based on Access
Revenues collected by us or our affiliate during the immediately preceding month. You must
provide members using any Limited Services Facility located in your Territory with reasonable
“virtual” access to your Business Coach in accordance with our policies in the Manual.

7. ESTABLISHING YOUR BUSINESS

7.1.

Site Selection. You agree—temust locate and obtain our approval of the premisessite for your
Facility within 120 days after the Effective Date. The premises must be located within the Site
Selection Area and conform to our minimum site selection criteria. You must send us a complete
site report that includes all demeographie;—commereial—and—etherdocuments, information,
photographs and videos we require. We may accept or reject siteseach site you propose in our
commercially reasonable judgment. We will use—eur best efforts to issue our approval or
disapproval within 30 days after we receive all of the requisite materials. Your site is deemed
disapproved if we fail to issue our written-approval within the 30-day period. If we approve the site
for your Facility prior to execution of this Agreement, theawe will list the address of theyour

approved site wil-be-listed-in Part C of ATTACHMENT "A". H-we-do-netapprove-thesitefor
ot pebes e centon o R eresmen e ithin Lo e nlee W appeee
your—site—we—willsend—you—aSiteApproval Notice—thatidentifies:(a)list the address of your
approved site—and-{b)-thegeographic-areathat comprises—yourTFerritory in a Site Approval Notice
we will send to you within 15 days after approving your site. Within five (5) business days after we
send you the Site Approval Notice, you must sign and date the franchisee acknowledgment section

of-theSite-Approval Netiee—and send us a copy for our records. Our approval of the site (and

designation of your Territory-in-the-Site-Approval Notieeis) shall be deemed immediately effective
and binding on you at the time we issue suehneticethe Site Approval Notice, regardless of whether

you sign-andfer-send us the signed acknowledgment. Our approval of a site does not constitute a
representation or warranty of any kind, express or implied, of the suitability of the site for a
SHECESS-Spaee-Facility. It indicates only that we believe the site meets our minimum criteria. If
you diligently attempt to identify and obtain our approval of the site for your Facility by the
required deadline set forth above but circumstances outside your control prevent you from doing
s0, you may request that we grant you an extension of this deadline. Your request must be in
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7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

writing, describe the reasons for the delay and indicate when you expect to provide us with a
proposed site for our consideration. We will not unreasonably withhold our approval of your
extension request.

Lease. If you lease the premises for your Facility, you must use your best efforts to ensure your
landlord signs the Lease Addendum attached as ATTACHMENT "C". If your landlord refuses to
sign the Lease Addendum in substantially the form attached to this Agreement we may either: (a)
waive the Lease Addendum requirement (or the provisions disapproved by the landlord); or (b)
require that you find a new site for your Facility. You must promptly send us a copy of your fully
executed lease and Lease Addendum for our records.

Design & Construction. We provide you with our standard construction manual and build-out
package materials, including prototypical plans and specifications, site criteria and sample site
plans. You must hire an architect to prepare the initial design plans for your Facility (consistent
with our construction manual and build-out package materials). We must approve the design plans
to ensure they are consistent with our system standards. Once approved, your architect must
prepare detailed construction plans that: (a) are consistent with our construction manual and build-
out package materials and the approved design plans; (b) satisfy all required standards and
specifications in the Manual; and (c¢) comply with all Laws (including, without limitation, the
Americans with Disabilities Act), building codes, permit and lease requirements and restrictions
applicable to the premises. You must submit the final construction plans to us for approval. The
limited purpose of our review is to verify construction plans are consistent with our system
standards. Once approved, you must, at your sole expense, construct and equip the premises
according to the approved construction plans as well as the specifications contained in the Manual.
You must also purchase (or lease) and install the Technology Systems, equipment, fixtures, signs
and other items that we require. We will assist you in formulating your initial orders for these
items. We must approve the architect and general contractor you use.

Opening. If we approve the site for your Facility before executing this Agreement, then you must
open your Facility to the public no later than 180 days after the Effective Date. If we do not
approve the site for your Facility before executing this Agreement, then you must open your
Facility to the public no later than 120 days after the later to occur of: (a) the date of the Site
Approval Notice we send you pursuant to §7.1; or (b) the date you are first granted possession of
the premises under the terms of your lease. You may not open your Facility prior to receipt of a
written authorization to open issued by us. We will not issue an authorization to open before:

(i)  your Managing Owner and Designated Manager successfully complete the-initial training
program;

(ii))  your Business Coach successfully completes the SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification
Program;

(iii) you purchase all required insurance policies and faeraish—as—withprovide evidence of
coverage;

(iv) you obtain all required licenses, permits and ether—gevernmental—approvals from
Governmental Authorities; and

(v)  we review and approve the construction, build-out and layout of your Facility-: and

69(vi)you fulfill all of your other preopening obligations under this Agreement and the Manual.

You must send us a written notice identifying your proposed opening date at least 30 days before
opening. We may conduct a pre-opening inspection of your Facility. You must make all changes
we require before opening. If you diligently attempt to open your Facility by the required deadline
set forth above but circumstances outside your control prevent you from doing so, you may request
that we grant you an extension of your opening deadline. Your request must be in writing, describe
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7.5.

the reasons for the delay and identify your new anticipated opening date. We will not unreasonably
withhold our approval of your extension request.

Relocation. You may relocate your Facility with our prior—wsitten approval, which we will not
unreasonably withhold. If we allow you to relocate, you must: (a) locate your new Facility within
the Site Selection Area (but outside any territory granted to us, our affiliate or any other

franchisee); (b) comply with §7+threugh-§747.1 through §7.4 with respect to your new Facility
(other than the required time to open specified in §7.4); and{(e)-open—yourFaecHityat-thenew
Seronadrs e s seniom o ihis 20 dees ol oo faee e Dol w o snlan Tosniion
comply with the de-identification obligations set forth §20.1(x)_with respect to your former
Facility; (d) pay us a $2.500 relocation fee at the time we approve your request to relocate; and (e)
open your Facility at the new site and resume operations within 30 days after closing vour Facility
at the former site; provided, however, that if you relocate because your Facility is destroyed
condemned or otherwise rendered unusable due to the physical condition of the premises, then you
have 180 days after closing to reopen at the new site. We reserve the right to require you to conduct
another grand opening marketing campaign in accordance with §10.3(a)_to promote the opening of
your Facility at the new site.

8. MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING.

8.1.

Owner Participation. You must designate an Owner who will have overall responsibility for the
management and operation of your Facility (the “Managing Owner”). The Managing Owner must:

H—— (a) be approved by us;

B hogi bind L busi lecisions:
@i— (b) successfully complete all training programs we require;

v— (c) live within a one-hour drive from your Facility;

(d) have authority to bind you on all business decisions: (e) dedicate full-time efforts to the onsite management

8.2.

of the Facility (unless you hire a Designated Manager pursuant to §8.2); and_(f) at all times own at
least 20% of the ownership interests in the Business or 20% of the Equity Interests in the
Franchisee Entity, as applicable, unless we waive this requirement. Any new Managing Owner you

appoint must successfully complete our then-current initial training program before assuming
responsibility for the supervision, management or operation of the Facility.

Designated Managers. You may hire a designated manager (your “Designated Manager”) to assist

the Managing Owner with the onsite management and supervision of your Facility. Any Person
you hire as a Designated Manager must:

H——(a) be approved by us;

&H—(b) have at least three (3) years of experience as a manager of a retail business;

i—(c) successfully complete all training programs we require;

v)— (d) dedicate full-time efforts to the onsite management and supervision of your Facility; and
——(1f) sign a Brand Protection Agreement.

At all times during normal business hours, either the Managing Owner or the Designated Manager
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10.

must be present at your Facility to provide onsite management and supervision. You may also hire
assistant managers who would report to the Managing Owner or your Designated Manager. The
Managing Owner must monitor and supervise the aetivities-efthea Designated Manager to ensure
the Facility is operated in accordance with this Agreement and the Manual.

8.3. Business Coach. You must hire a full-time business coach (your “Business Coach™) to provide
business coaching services at your Facility. Your Business Coach must: (a) successfully complete
all required training programs for Business Coaches, including the SUCCESS Space Coaching
Certification Program and all required recertification training programs as set forth in the
SUCCESS Enterprises Certified Coaching Agreement; and (b) sign a Brand Protection Agreement.
You must have a fully trained Business Coach prior to opening your Facility.

8.4. Employees. You must determine appropriate staffing levels for your Business to ensure full
compliance with this Agreement and our system standards. You may hire, train and supervise
employees to assist you with the proper operation of the Business. You must pay all wages,
commissions, fringe benefits, worker’s compensation premiums and payroll taxes (and other
withholdings required by Law) due for your employees. These employees will be employees of
yours and not of ours. We do not control the day--to—-day activities of your employees or the
manner in which they perform their assigned tasks. You must inform your employees that you
exclusively supervise their activities and dictate the manner in which they perform their assigned
tasks. In this regard, you must use your legal business Entity name (not our Marks or a fictitious
name) on all employee applications, paystubs, pay checks, employment agreements, time cards,
and similar items. We also do not control the hiring or firing of your employees. You have sole
responsibility and authority for all employment—-related decisions, including employee selection
and promotion, hours worked, rates of pay-and-ether, benefits, work assignments, training and
working conditions. We willdo not provide yeu-any-adviee-orguidance or advice on these matters.
You must require that your employees-review-and sign the acknowledgment form we prescribe that
explains the nature of the franchise relationship and notifies the employee that you are his or her
sole employer. You must also post a conspicuous notice for employees in the back-of-the-house
area explaining your franchise relationship with us and that you (and not we) are the employee’s
sole employer. We may prescribe the form and content of this notice.

FRANCHISEE AS-ENTITY. You represent that Part A of ATTACHMENT "A" includes a complete
and accurate list of your Owners. Upon eurrequest, you must previdesend us—with a resolution of the
Franchisee Entity authorizing the execution of this Agreement, a copy of the Franchisee Entity’s

organizational documents and a current Certificate of Good Standing—(er—thefunetional-equivalent
thereoD—AH-Owners—. Each Owner of the Franchisee Entity—(whether—direet—or—indireet), and their

speusesthe spouse of each Owner who is a natural Person, must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement.

ADVERTISING & MARKETING.

10.1. Brand and System Development Fund. We may, but need not, establish and maintain a brand
and system development fund to promote public awareness of our brand and improve our System.
Once the fund is established, you must pay us a brand fund fee equal to 1% of your Gross Sales
generated during the prior month. Brand fund fees are due on each royalty payment due date. We
may use the fund to pay for any of the following in our sole discretion:

(i)  developing, maintaining, administering, directing, preparing, or reviewing advertising and
marketing materials, promotions and programs;

(il))  conducting and administering promotions, contests or giveaways;
(i) improving public awareness of the Marks;
(iv)  public and consumer relations and publicity;

(v)  brand development;
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10.2.

(vi) sponsorships;

(vii) charitable and non-profit donations and events;

(viii) research and development of technology, products and services;
(ix) website development and search engine optimization;

(x)  development of an ecommerce platform;

(xi) development and implementation of quality control programs, including the use of mystery
shoppers or customer satisfaction surveys;

(xii) conducting market research;
(xiii) changes and improvements to the System;

(xiv) the fees and expenses of any advertising agency we engage to assist in producing or
conducting advertising or marketing efforts;

(xv) collecting and accounting for contributions to the fund;
(xvi) preparing and distributing financial accountings of the fund;

(xvii) any other programs or activities we deem necessary or appropriate to promote or improve
the System; and

(xviii)direct or indirect labor, administrative, overhead and other expenses incurred by us and/or
our affiliates in relation to any of these activities, including salary, benefits and other
compensation of any of our (and any of our affiliate’s) officers, directors, employees or
independent contractors based upon time spent working on any brand fund matters described
above.

We have sole discretion in determining the content, concepts, materials, media, endorsements,
frequency, placement, location and all other matters pertaining to any-ofthe-foregeingmarketing or
advertising activities. Any surplus-ef#esies in the fund may be invested and we may lend money
to the fund if there is a deficit. The fund is not a trust and we have no fiduciary obligations to you
with respect to our administration of the fund. A—finaneial-aceountingWe will prepare, and make
available to you upon request, an dnnual statcmcnt of thefund operatlons—ef—th%f&nd 1nclud1ng
deposits inte-and disbursements : 3 ; ,
you-upenrequest.. In terms of marketmg act1V1tles pald for by the fund we do not ensure thesethat
(a) expenditures in (or affecting-any) a given geographic area are proportionate or equivalent to the
brand fund eentributiensfees paid by franchisees eperating—in that geographic area: or that-any
franehisee-benefits(b) franchisees benefit directly or in proportion to their fund-contributions—Onee
established,—wereserve-theright tebrand fund fees. We may suspend or discontinue the fund at any

time in our sole discretion upon-atteast 30 days’ prior notice.

Marketing Assistance From Us. We may create and make available to you advertising and other
marketing materials. We may: (a) use the brand-and-system—development fund to pay for the
creation and distribution of these materials, in which case there will be no additional charge—We
may-make. (b) provide online access to these materials-avatlable-over-theInternet, in which case

you must arrange—for-printingprint the materials at your expense; and-payingal-printing—eosts:
Alternatively,—we-may-enterintorelationships/or (c) contract with third-party suppliers swhe-wilto
create the-advertisingormarketingand sell these materials for-yourpurehaseto vou. We will assist

you in developing a grand opening marketing plan to promote the grand opening of your Facility
and generate brand awareness in your market. We will provide reasonable marketing consulting,
guidance and support throughout the Term on an as-needed basis.
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10.3. Your Marketing Activities.

(a)

Grand Opening AdvertisingGereralsy. You must pay us a $15,000 pre-opening marketing

(b)

fee 60 days prior to your anticipated opening date. We will spend these funds to implement
your grand opening marketing campaign during the period beginning 60 days before opening
and ending 60 days after opening. The $15,000 pre-opening marketing fee is in addition to
(and does not count towards) your Local Marketing Commitment. If you and we mutually
agree it would be beneficial for us to spend more than $15,000 on your grand openin
marketing campaign, you must reimburse for all amounts we spend in excess of the $15,000
minimum.

Ongoing Advertising. Commencing with the opening date of your Facility, each month you

must spend the minimum amount we specify on local advertising to promote your Facility
(the “Local Marketing Commitment”). As of the Effective Date, the Local Marketing
Commitment is the lesser of: (a) 7% of monthly Gross Sales; or (b) $10,000 per month. We
may adjust the Local Marketing Commitment from time to time on at least 30 days’ prior
notice; provided, however, that in no event will the Local Marketing Commitment exceed
the greater of: (a) 10% of Gross Sales; or (b) $10,000 per month. We will measure your
compliance with this requirement on a rolling six (6)-month basis, meaning that as long as
your average monthly expenditure on local advertising over the six (6)-month period equals
or exceeds the Local Marketing Commitment, you are deemed in compliance even if your
expenditure in any given month is less than the Local Marketing Commitment. The Manual
may list certain expenditures that will not be credited towards the Local Marketing
Commitment, including salaries or other compensation paid to your employees, charitable or
political contributions, the value of discounts given to consumers and other credits not
approved by us in advance. The Local Marketing Commitment is in addition to your pre-
opening fee and brand fund contributions. You must participate at your own expense in all
advertising, promotional and marketing programs we require, including any advertising
cooperative established pursuant to §10.4.

(©)

(d)

Standards for Advertising. All advertisements and promotions you create or use must be
completely factual-and, conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising and comply
with all Laws, including the CAN-SPAM Act of 2003 and other consumer protection Laws
relating to unsolicited marketing by businesses. You must ensure your advertisements and
promotional materials do not infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others. You
must comply with any minimum advertised pricing policy we establish from time to time.

Designated Marketing Area. You must direct all marketing and advertising efforts within
your Designated Marketing Area. You may not market or advertise outside of your DMA
except to the extent permitted by, and solely in compliance with, all policies and procedures
set forth in the Manual governing advertising and marketing by a franchisee outside of their
DMA. You understand that your DMA is not exclusive and does not include any protected
rights. Other Facilities located within your DMA may also market and advertise within your
DMA. Facilities located outside of your DMA may market and advertise within your DMA
to the extent permitted by the Manual. There are no geographic limitations on our right to
market and advertise the SUCCESS Space brand generally to the public (including our right
to promote the SUCCESS Space franchise opportunity), and we have the unrestricted right
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(e)

&

(2

to engage in such marketing and advertising within your DMA and within your Territory.

Approval of Advertising. Prior to use, we must approve all advertising and marketing
materials and programs you intend to use, including: (i) all advertising and marketing
materials we did not prepare or previously approve—; and ineluding(ii) any materials we
prepare or approve and you modify).. We must also approve the media you intend to use.
You may not use any advertising materials, programs or media that we have not been
approved by-us(inclading materials;programs-or mediathat we previeusly-apprevedapprove

and later disapprove).. We have 15 days to review and approve or disapprove advertising
and marketing materials and programs you submit—ferappreval.. Our failure to issue our
approval within the 15-day period constitutes our disapproval. Any advertising you propose
and we approve will be deemed an “Improvement” for purposes of §16.5.

Social Media. You may adwvertise—and—marketpromote your Facility using social media;
subjeet-to-the-folowing requirements: provided that:

(i)  you may-only utilize social media platforms we approve;

(il)  you—saust strictly comply with our social media policy—¢, as revised from time to
time):;

(iii)  you-must immediately remove any post we disapprove-fevenifitecomphies;
H—you contract with ewrand exclusively utilize any social media peliey)—and

GiH(v) we-mayrequire-that-youutilize-a-supphiercompany we designate-for-seetal
medta-marketing serviees::

) (v)you-must provide us with full administrative rights to your social media accounts; and

En(vi)we retain ownership of all social media accounts relating to vour Facility.

Internet and Websites. Without our prior approval, which we may withhold in our sole
discretion, you may not: (i) develop, host, create or otherwise maintain a website or other
online or digital presence in connection with your Facility, including any website bearing
our Marks; (i) conduct digital or online marketing or advertising; or (iii) engage in
ecommerce. If we grant our approval to maintain a website, you may do so provided that:

(i) you obtain our approval of: (a) the website’s domain name (which we will own); (b) the
website’s design, layout and webpages; (c) all designs, artwork, graphics and images
displayed on the website; (d) all content on the website (and all changes to the content);
and (e) all uses and manner of display of our Marks;

(i) your website conforms to all of our standards, specifications, policies, procedures and
other requirements for websites, whether set forth in the Manual or otherwise;

(ii1) your website does not include any material in which a third party has any direct or
indirect ownership interest—, including, without limitation, video clips, photographs,
sound bites, copyrighted text, trademarks or service marks, or any other text or image in
which a third party may claim intellectual property rightsj::

(iv) you establish and implement a privacy policy that complies with applicable Law;

(v) you include on your website, in the manner we require, all hyperlinks or other links that
we require; and

(vi) you provide us with administrative rights and the administrator password.

You will be solely responsible for all costs associated with the development, hosting and
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maintenance of the website. However, we will be the exclusive owner of: (a) the website and
all of its content—We-will-alse-be-the-exelusive-ewnerof, and (b) the website’s domain name
and associated URL.

10.4. Advertising Cooperative. We may, but need not, establish regional advertising cooperatives for
purposes of creating and/or purchasing advertising programs for the benefit of all Facilities located
in a particular region. We may: (a) determine the boundaries of the cooperative; (b) specify the
manner in which the cooperative is organized and governed; (c) require the cooperative to be
administered in accordance with written bylaws, organizational documents or other governing
documents that we approve; and (d) require you to participate in the cooperative according to its
rules and procedures and abide by its decisions. You must pay the cooperative advertising fee,
which will be due on each royalty payment due date or on such other date established by the
cooperative. We may set the minimum cooperative advertising fee or we may allow the cooperative
to set the cooperative advertising fee based on majority vote of its members. In either case, the
cooperative advertising fee will not exceed 1% of Gross Sales. We may either: (a) collect
cooperative advertising fees and remit them to the applicable cooperative; or (b) require you to pay
these fees directly to the cooperative. All cooperative advertising fees you pay are credited towards
your Local Marketing Commitment. We reserve the right to form, change, merge or dissolve
advertising cooperatives in our discretion.

11. OPERATING STANDARDS.

11.1. Generally. You agree to operate your SUCCESS Space Facility: (a) in a manner that will promote
the goodwill of the Marks; and (b) in full compliance with our standards and all other terms of this
Agreement and the Manual.

11.2. Brand Standards Manual. You agree to establish and operate your Facility in accordance with the
Manual. The Manual may contain, among other things:

(i)  prototypical plans and specifications, site criteria and sample site plans for a SUCCESS
Space Facility (which comprise our construction manual);

(ii)) a description of the authorized goods, services and amenities that you may offer, sell or
otherwise make available at your Facility;

(iii)) specifications, operating procedures, and quality standards;

9(iv) a list of (a)-the goods and services (or specifications for goods and services) you must
purchase to develop and operate your Facility and (b) awy—designated erand approved

suppliers—fer-thesegoods-andserviees:.

(v)  policies and procedures pertaining to: (a) reporting; (b) insurance; (c¢) marketing and
advertising; (d) gift card, loyalty and membership programs; (e) catering and/or delivery
services (to the extent we permit such services); (f) data ownership, protection, sharing and
use; and (g) any other matters we deem appropriate.

The Manual is designed to establish and protect our brand standards and the uniformity and quality
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11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

11.7.

11.8.

of the goods and services offered by eurfranehisees-Facilities. We can modify the Manual at any
time. Ih%medéea&ens—wﬂ—beeemeModmedtlons are binding at the time we notify you of the
medifieation—{change, subject to any “grace period” we provide to implement the change).. All
mandatory provisions eentained-in the Manual (whether-theyare included now or in the future) are
binding on you.

Authorized Goods and Services. You agree-temust offer all goods and services we require from
time to time in our commercially reasonable discretion. You may not offer any other goods or
services without our prior written—permissien-approval. Your Facility must include and make
available to members all amenities we require from time to time. You may not use your Facility, or
permit your Facility to be used, for any purpose other than offering the goods and services we
authorize. All goods and services must be provided onsite at your Facility other than coaching
services, which may be conducted virtually to the extent permitted by the Manual. We may;

witheut-obligation—to-de—se—add,—medify—oer-delete change authorized goods and services; at any
tlme and you must de—thecomply with our instructions 1eg,1rd1ng, same—upea—etie o Do
$ - . Any such change shall not

constltute a termlnatlon of %h%ﬁ&nehiseer—thls Agreement

Preparation of Menu Items. All menu items and food products offered from or in connection with
your Café must be prepared only by properly trained personnel and strictly in accordance with our
recipes, techniques and processes (including the handling and storage of both ingredients and fully
prepared menu items). These requirements are integral to the System and necessary in order to: (a)
ensure all menu items prepared at your Café meet our high standards for health and wellness, taste,
texture, appearance and freshness; and (b) protect the goodwill associated with our Marks. Your
failure to adhere to these requirements will be detrimental to the System and the Marks.

Café Sales Restrictions. You may only sell food and beverage products to retail customers while
they are present at your Café. Unless you receive our prior written approval, you may not: (a) offer
or sell food, beverage, merchandise or other goods or services from any location other than the
premises of your Caf¢; (b) produce, sell or provide food, beverage, merchandise or other goods or
services through any other channel of distribution, including via catering or delivery service (unless
otherwise approved by us), utilizing the services of a ghost kitchen or through an ecommerce site;
(c) sell food, beverage, merchandise or other goods or services to any pPerson for purposes of
resale; or (d) use, or allow any other Person to use, the kitchen for your Café as a ghost kitchen (or
in any similar capacity) for purposes of preparing menu items for other brands or culinary
concepts. If we authorize you to provide catering and/or delivery services, you must strictly comply
with all associated policies and procedures in the Manual, including, without limitation, use of
designated third-party delivery service providers, pricing policies and restrictions on delivery
service areas.

Pricing. We will provide you with our suggested retail pricing. You may deviate from our
suggested retail pricing in your discretion. However, to the extent permitted by applicable Law, we
reserve the right to: (a) set maximum or minimum prices on the goods and services you offer; and
(b) specify the membership fee you must charge members.

Customer Payments. You must, at your expense, lease or purchase the necessary equipment
and/or software and have arrangements in place with Visa, MasterCard, American Express and all
other credit card issuers we designate, in order for you to be able to accept such methods of
payment from customers. You must accept debit cards, credit cards, stored value cards, and other
non-cash systems (including, for example, APPLE PAY and/or GOOGLE WALLET) that we
specify. You must acquire and install all necessary hardware and/or software used in connection
with these non-cash systems.

Suppliers and Purchasing. You must purchase or lease all products, supplies, equipment, services

and other items specified in the Manual-from-time-to-time—Hrequired-by—the. The Manual; may

require that you-must purchase certain goods and services only from suppliers we designate or
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11.9.

approve-(whieh. These suppliers may includes- (or be limited exclusively to;) us or our affiliate)..
Our right to specify the suppliers you-say use is necessary so we can control the uniformity and
quality of goods and services used, sold or distributed in connection with the development and
engeing-operation of SUCCESS Space Facilities, protect our trade secrets, negotiate bulk purchase
discounts, and protect the reputation and goodwill associated with the System and the Marks. We
have no liability to you for the acts, errors or omissions of, or any defective goods or services
supplied by, any third-party supplier we designate or approve, provided that we exercise our
discretion in good faith in designating or approving such supplier. If we receive rebates or other
finanetal—consideration from these—suppliers based on franchiseeyour purchases, we have no
obligation to pass them through to you or use them for any particular purpose. If you swantwish for
us to approve a supplier—yeu—prepese, you must send us a written—netiee-request for approval
specifying the supplier’s name and qualifications and provide anyall additional information we
request. We will issue-eur-appreval-approve or disapprevalreject your request within 30 days after
reeeipt-ofwe receive your netieerequest and all additienal-information fand samples) we require.
We shall-bearc deemed to have disapprevedrejected your request if we fail to issue our approval
within the 30-day period. You must reimburse us for all costs and expenses we incur inreviewinga

propesed-supplier-within 10-daysafterinvetetngto review suppliers or products you propose.

Equipment Maintenance and Changes. You must maintain your equipment in good condition
and promptly replace or repair any equipment that is damaged, worn-out or obsolete. We may
require that you change your equipment, which may require you to make additional investments.

Our abilityright to require franchisees—to—make-significant ehanges—to—their-equipment changes is
critical to our ability to administer and change the System and you agree-temust comply with any

suechrequired-ehangethese changes within the time period we reasonably specify.

11.10. Technology Systems.

(a)  Generally. You must acquire and utilize all Technology Systems we speeifyrequire from
time to time.—Fhe Technology Systems may relate to matters such as purchasing, pricing,
accounting, order entry, inventory control, security, information storage, retrieval and
transmission, customer information, member management, customer loyalty, marketing,
communications, copying, printing—and, scanning; or any other business purpose that-we
deem appropriate. We may require that you;—at—yeur—expense; acquire new or substitute
Technology Systems; and/or replace, upgrade or update existing Technology Systems; at
your expense upon reasonable prior notice. You are solely responsible for: (i) the
acquisition, operation, maintenance, updating and upgrading of your Technology Systems;
(i1) the manner in which vour Technology Systems integrate and interface with our computer
system and those of third parties; and (iii) any consequences resulting from improper use or
operation, or failure to properly maintain, update or upgrade, Technology Systems.

(b)  Use and Access. You must utilize your Technology Systems in accordance with the Manual
and comply with all associated data entry policies. You may not load or permit any
unauthorized programs or games on your Technology Systems. You must ensure your
employees are adequately trained in the use of the Technology Systems. You agree to take
all steps necessary to enable us to have independent and unlimited access to the-operational
data collected through your Technology Systems, including infermation—regarding—your
Gross Sales data for purposes of calculating fees owed. Upon ewsrequest, including upon
termination or expiration of this Agreement, you agree-temust provide us with the user IDs

and passwords for your Technology Systems;ineladingupon—termination—or-expiration—-of
thisAgreement.

(c)  Disruptions. You are solely responsible for protecting against computer viruses, bugs, power
disruptions, communication line disruptions, internet access failures, internet content
failures, date-related problems, and attacks by hackers and other unauthorized intruders.
Upon our request, you must obtain and maintain cyber insurance and business interruption
insurance for technology disruptions.
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(d) Fees and Costs. You are responsible for all fees, costs and expenses associated with
acquiring, licensing, utilizing, updating and upgrading the Technology Systems. Certain
components of the Technology Systems must be purchased or licensed from third-party
suppliers. We and/or our affiliate may develop proprietary software, technology or other
components of the Technology Systems that will become part of our System. If this occurs,
you agree to: (i) pay us (or our affiliate) commercially reasonable licensing, support and
maintenance fees; and (ii) upon request, enter into a license agreement with us (or our
affiliate) in a form we prescribe governing your use of the proprietary software, technology
or other component of the Technology Systems. We alse-reserve-therighttemay enter into
master agreements with third-party suppliers relating to any components of the Technology
Systems and charge you for all amounts we pay to these suppliers based on your use of their

software, technology, equ1pment or sew1ces—p¥e¥tdeé—by—thesuppl}emﬂ&:lthe&gh—wede—net

heens%a#aagement& The “technology fee 1ncludes all amounts—that you pay us and/or our
affiliates relating to the Technology Systems, including amounts paid for proprietary items
and amounts we collect from you and remit to third-party suppliers based on your use of
their systems, software, technology or services. The amount of the technology fee may
change based on changes to the Technology Systems or prices charged by third-party
suppliers with whom we enter into master agreements. We may include within the
technology fee a commercially reasonable administrative fee to compensate us for the time,
money and resources we invest in administering the technology platform and associated
components, negotiating and managing contracts with third-party licensors, and collecting
and remitting technology fees owed to third-party licensors on behalf of franchisees under
master license arrangements. The technology fee does not include any amounts you pay

directly to third-party suppliers—fer—any—component—of—theTechnology—Systems.. The

technology fee is due 10 days after invoicing or as we otherwise speeified-byusfromtime-to
timespecify. We will list the current technology fee in the Manual.

11.11. Remodeling and Maintenance. You must remodel, renovate and make all improvements to your
Facility that we reasonably require from time to time to refleetconform to our then-current
standards and specifications. We will not require that you significantly remodel your Facility more
than once during any five (5) year period, except as a condition to a Transfer or renewal e
Fransferof your franchise rights. There is no limitation on the cost of any remodeling we may
require. You may not remodel or significantly alter your prem1ses W1thout our prior WHtten
approval;—whieh. We will not -
approve any proposed remodeling or alterat1on #mes&meweald—net—eei#eem—tothat is inconsistent
with our then-current standards and specifications. You agree—temust maintain your Facility in
good order and condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and make all necessary repairs,
including replacements, renewals and alterations, at your sole expense, to eemply—withconform to
our standards and specifications. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, you agree to take
the following actions at your sele-expense: (a) thorough cleaning, repainting, redecorating of the
interior and exterior of the Facility’s premises at the intervals we may-prescribe (or at such earlier
times that such actions are required or advisable); and (b) interior and exterior repair of the
Facility’s premises as needed. You agreetomust comply with any maintenance, cleaning or facility
upkeep schedule we prescribe-from-time-to-time.

11.12.SUCCESS Space Programs.

(a)  Generally. We may periodically develop and implement membership programs, loyalty
programs, gift card programs erand other system-wide programs for SUCCESS Space
Facilities. You must fully participate in all programs we designate as mandatory. In order to
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(b)

(©)

(d)

participate; you must: (ai) comply with all policies and procedures we establish for
participation in the program; (bii) purchase (or license) and utilize all equipment, software,
mobile applications (Apps), technology and others items we designate as being necessary for
participation in the program, and pay all associated fees and costs; and (eiii) pay us, our
affiliate, or a third party designated-byuswe designate, all program fees and other amounts
we designatespecify as being necessary for participation in the program (collectively,
“Program Participation Rules”). Fhe-Program Participation Rules may be set forth in the
Manual. We may amend-thechange Program Participation Rules at any time and you must
immediately—comply with al—sueh—amendmentsthese changes. We may develop and
implement new or successor programs and/or modify or terminate existing programs at any
time in our discretion.

Membership Program. We currently require that all SUCCESS Space Facilities operate
under a membership model. Each Facility must honor memberships and the associated
benefits and privileges regardless-of whethercven if the member purchased their membership

from a different Facility. We have the right to: (i) determine how membership fees will-beare
divided or otherwise accounted for-and-we-may; (ii) require that all membership fees be paid
to us or depos1ted into a trust account we control for subsequent dlsbursement to the

pefeeﬂ%ag%baﬁsé—\l\l%may—alse(s) v1s1tcd bv the mcmbcr ( 111) adopt pohcles regardmg

cooperation between franchisees relating to members who utilize the services of, or enjoy
membership privileges at, multiple Facilities:; and (iv) designate the use of new Technology
Systems to monitor sales and allocate payments to the Facility(s) visited by the member,
either in whole or on a percentage basis. We may require that you utilize the form of
membership agreement we specify. You must hire an attorney, licensed in your state, to
review the membership agreement and advise you of any changes necessary to comply with
any local Laws affecting the form of membership agreement you use. {¢Y ou must netify—us;
and-obtain our approval of; any such changes)- prior to implementation.

Loyalty Programs. You must fully participate and implement all required customer loyalty,
rewards and other affinity programs designed to increase customer loyalty, generate new
customers and/or improve overall demand for and utilization of SUCCESS Space Facilities.

Gift Card Programs. You must participate in any gift card program we establish and honor
all gift cards, even if purchased from us or frem—a-differentanother Facility. You may not
offer-or-sell anygift cards we have not approved. We mayhave the right to: (i) determine

how gift card proceeds are divided or otherwise accounted for-and-we-mayretainproceeds
from—unredeemedgift-eards—We—may; (i1) require that gift card proceeds be paid to us or

deposited into a trust account we control for subsequent disbursement to the
FEaeilitiesFacility(s) where the gift card is redeemed; and (iii) retain proceeds from
unredeemed gift cards-areredeemed.

11.13.Hours of Operation. Your Facility must be open and operating during the minimum days and

hours of operation specified in the Manual-, subject to any conflicting requirements imposed by
Law. You must establish specific days and hours of operation and submit them to us for approval.

11.14.-Customer—Complaints-Standards of Service and professionalism. You and vour staff must

provide prompt, courteous, friendly and efficient service to all customers and ensure all interactions

with customers are conducted in a professional and ethical manner. If you receive a customer

complaint, you must follow the complaint resolution process we specify to protect the goodwill
associated with the Marks. You must also treat vour employees and our staff with honesty and
respect. You understand that your breach of this Section may significantly damage the goodwill

associated with our Marks and our System.
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12.

11.15.Quality Assurance Programs. For quality control purposes; we may (a) periodically inspect your
Facility in accordance with §6.3 or §15.1; and/or (b) engage the services of a “mystery shopper” or
quality assurance firm to inspect your Facility. Inspections may address a variety of issues,
including customer service, food safety, sanitation, inventory rotation, etc. You must fully
cooperate with all inspections. We may implement a scoring system pursuant to which each
Facility receives a “grade” or “score” based on the results of the inspection. Your failure to achieve
a passing grade or score constitutes a default under this Agreement. You must takeimplement all
aetitonscorrective measures we speeifyrequire within the time period ef-time—we preseribe—in

erderspecify to rectify any nen-eemphianeenoncompliance issues revealed duringby an inspection.

11.16.Failure to Comply with Standards. You acknowledge the importance of every one of our
standards and operating procedures to the reputation and integrity of the System and the goodwill
associated with the Marks. If we notify you of a failureto-comply-withbreach of our standards or
operating procedures (including;-witheutlimitation; failure to previdesubmit required reports in a
timely manner) and you fail to correct the nen-eemplianeenoncompliance within the period of time
we reguireprescribe, then, in addition to any other remedies available to us under this Agreement,
we may impose a finenoncompliance fee of wp—te—$500 per occurrence. We may impose an
additional fine—fer$500 fee every 24 hours that-the same nen-eemphaneenoncompliance issue
remains uncured feHewing—eour—impesitien—ef—after we impose the initial fine-fee. Any
noncompliance fees we collect are paid in consideration of us refraining from exercising our
contractual right to terminate this Agreement. If we takes steps to cure anya default committed by
you after the expiration of any applicable cure period, including, without limitation, obtaining
required insurance coverage on your behalf or paying amounts you owe to approved or designated
suppliers, then within10-days-efinveieing-you must reimburse us for all costs and expenses we
ineur-either-directly or indirectly; incur in connection with our efforts to cure yeurthe default. Our
acceptance of these-ameuntsnoncompliance fees and default expense reimbursements shall not be
construed as a waiver of any of our rights or remedies under this Agreement—inelading—without
limitation;—our and we retain the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with §49:19.2 if
the default continues after we collect these amounts.

FEES

12.1. Initial Franchise Fee. Yeu-agreetoUpon execution of this Agreement you shall pay us a $45,000
initial franchise fee in-enetump-sumat-thetime-yousienthis-Agreementby cashier’s check, wire

transfer or other immediately available funds. The initial franchise fee is fully earned and
nonrefundable once this Agreement has been signed.

12.2. Royalty Fee. On the 10™ day of each month, you agree to pay us a royalty fee equal to the greater
of: (a) 6% of your monthly Gross Sales; or $1,000 per month.

12.3. Other Fees and Payments. You agree to pay all other fees, expense reimbursements and other
amounts specified in this Agreement in a timely manner as if fully set forth in this §12. You also
agree to promptly pay us an amount equal to all taxes levied or assessed against us based on goods
or services you sell or goods or services we furnish to you-(etherthan, excluding income taxes we
pay-imposed on us based on ameuntsfees you pay us under this Agreement)-.

12.4. Due Date & Late Fee.. Payments are due 10 days after invoicing unless otherwise specified. If any
sum due under this Agreement has not been received by us when due for there are insufficient
funds in your Account to cover the sum when due);, then in addition to this sum you must pay us a
$50-latefee plus default interest on the amount past due at a rate equal to the lesser of 24% per
annum (pro-rated on a daily basis) or the highest rate permitted by applicable Law. H-no-due-date-is
speeified—interest-begins—torun10-days—after-we-bil-you—We will not impose a late fee for any

amount paid pursuant to §12.5 if, but only to the extent, sufficient funds were available in your

Account to be applied towards the payment when due—Hewever,—we-may-impeose-alatefee forany
ameunt—; provided, however thdt if we are unable to feasenably—determlne thc amount due

tebecause of your failure to




12.5.

12.6.

time-orrecord sales or submit Gross Sales reports in a timely manner, in-which-ease-we may assess
a late fee on the entire amount that was due. This §12.4 shall not constitute our agreement to accept
late payments or extend credit to you.

Method of Payment. No later than 15 days after the Effective Date, you must enter all banking
information we require through our secure portal and authorize us to electronically debit your
designated Account for all amounts owed to us and our affiliates on the applicable due date (other
than fees due within 15 days after the Effective Date). You must sign all documents required by us
or your bank to enable us to debit your Account for amounts owed. You must deposit all Gross
Sales into the Account and ensure sufficient funds are available for withdrawal before each
payment due date. If there are insufficient funds in your Account, any excess amounts you owe will
be payable upon demand, together with any late ehargefee imposed pursuant to §42-412.4. We may
also impose a $50 NSF fee for each instance where either: (a) there are insufficient funds in your
Account to cover amounts owed when due; or (b) a check you issue to us is returned due to
insufficient funds.

Application of Payments. We have sole discretion to apply any payments from you to any past
due indebtedness of yours.

13.  BRAND PROTECTION COVENANTS.

13.1.

13.2.

Reason for Covenants. The Intellectual Property, training and assistance we provide would not be
acquired except through implementation of this Agreement. You agree that competition by you, the
Owners or Persons associated with you or the Owners (including family members) could seriously
jeopardize the—entireour franchise system because you and the Owners received an advantage
through knowledge of our day-to-day operations and Know-how—related—to—the—System-
Aceordingly—yot. You and the Owners agree to comply with the covenants deseribed—in—this
Seetionin §13 to protect the Intellectual Property and our franchise system.

Knew-hoewlntellectual Property and Confidential Information. You and the Owners agree to:

H——/(a) refrain from using the-knew-hew-any Intellectual Property or Confidential Information
in any business or eapaeityfor any purpose other than the operation of your BusinessFacility
pursuant to this Agreement;

¢i——(b) maintain the confidentiality of the Knew-hew-and-other-all Confidential Information at
all times;

—(c) refrain from making unauthorized copies of documents containing anyKnew-hew—er
other-Confidential Information; and

(d) take all steps we reasonably require to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information;

13.3.

and (e) stop using the Knew-hewlntellectual Property and Confidential Information immediately
upon the expiration, termination or Transfer of this Agreement (and any Owner who ceases to be
an Owner before the expiration, termination or Transfer of this Agreement must stop using the
Knew-hewlntellectual Property and Confidential Information immediately at the time he or she
ceases to be an Owner).

Unfair Competition. You and the Owners may not engage in any Prohibited Activities during the
Term or Post-Term Restricted Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you and the Owners may
have an interest in a Competitiveng Business during the Post-Term Restricted Period as long as the
Competitiveng Business is not located within the Restricted Territory. If you or an Owner engages
in a Prohibited Activity during the Post-Term Restricted Period (other than having an interest in a
Competitiveng Business permitted by this Section), then the Post-Term Restricted Period
applicable to you or the non-compliant Owner, as applicable, shall be extended by the period of
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time during which you or the non-compliant Owner, as applicable, engaged in the Prohibited
Activity.

13.4. Family Members. Because (a) an Owner could circumvent the intent of §13 by disclosing Knew-
hewConfidential Information to an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, parent, sibling, child, or
grandchild) and (b) it would be difficult for us to prove awy—sueh—-breachwhether the Owner
disclosed Confidential Information to the family member, each Owner agrees that he/ or she will be
presumed to have violated the terms of §13 if aany member of his/ or her immediate family
engages in any Prohibited Activities during the Term or Post-Term Restricted Period or uses or
discloses knew-hew-Confidential Information. However, the Owner may rebut this presumption
with evidence conclusively showing he or she did not disclose knew-hewConfidential Information
to the family member.

13.5. Employees. You must ensure all-ef—eur employees, officers, directors, partners, members,

1ndependent contractors and other Persons assocrated Wlth you or your Facrhty srhe—mes e

| : . sign and

send us a Conﬁdentlahty Agreement before hayrng—aeeess—te—our—lénow—howthey are given access

to any Confidential Information. Any Person who signs a Brand Protection Agreement need not

sign a Confidentiality Agreement. You must: (a) use best efforts to ensure these individuals comply

with the Brand Protection Agreements and Confidentiality Agreements, as applicable; (b)

immediately notify us of any breach that comes to your attention; and (c) reimburse us for all

expenses we incur to enforce a Brand Protection Agreement or Confidentiality Agreement,
including attorneys’ fees and court costs.

13.6. Covenants Reasonable. You and the Owners agree that: (a) the terms-ofthis-covenants in §13 are
reasonable both in #imeduration and in-seepe-of-geographic areascope; (b) our use and enforcement
of eevenants-similar te-these-deseribed-abevecovenants with respect to other franchisees benefits
you and the Owners in—thatit-preventsby preventing others from unfairly competing with your
Facility; and (c) you and the Owners have sufficient resources, business experience and
opportunities to earn an adequate living while complying with the terms-efthiscovenants in §4313.

13.7. Breach of Covenants. You and the Owners agree that: (a) any failure to comply with §13 is likely

to cause substantial and irreparable damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no
adequate remedy at Law; and (b) we are entitled to injunctive relief if you or an Owner breaches
§13, together with any other relief available at equity or Law. We will notify you if we intend to
seek injunctive relief; but we need not post a bond. If a court requires that we post a bond despite

our mutual agreement to the contrary, the reqw—redbond amount of—therbond—may—not—exeeeé

infanretion-may not exceed $1,000. None of the remedies available to us under this Agreement are
exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at Law or in
equlty, 1nclud1ng injunctive relief, spec1ﬁc performance and recovery of monetary damages =l

14.  YOUR OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES
14.1. Insurance. For your protection and ours, you agree to maintain the following insurance policies:

(1)  “all risk” property insurance coverage on all assets, including inventory, furniture, fixtures,
equipment, supplies and other property used in the operation of your Business, which must
include coverage for fire, flood and earthquake (in geographically prone areas), vandalism
and malicious mischief and have coverage limits of at least full replacement cost (exclusive
of foundation and excavation costs);

(i) comprehensive general liability insurance containing minimum liability protection of
$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate, including
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premises, operations, products and completed operations, broad form property damage,
broad form contractual liability, personal injury, advertising liability, with no exclusion for
third-party delivery service (this coverage must also include sexual misconduct liability
coverage for not less than $100,000 per occurrence and $300,000 in the aggregate);

(iii) cyber liability insurance containing minimum liability protection of $1,000,000 per
occurrence for all first and third-party data breaches, including identify theft, phishing
attacks, social engineering, ransomware and date response/crisis management expenses;

(iv) commercial umbrella insurance containing minimum liability protection which brings the
total of all primary underlying coverages to at least $1,000,000 total limit of liability;

(v)  Dbusiness interruption insurance in an amount not less than adequate to pay for the monthly
rent reserved under any real property lease or sublease, equipment lease or sublease, sign
lease or sublease, royalties, and other continuing expenses for a limit of 50% of annual sales
or 12 months actual loss sustained basis and an extended period of indemnity for not less
than 180 days;

(vi) Dbusiness automobile liability insurance, including a combined single bodily injury and
property damage coverage for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles, with limits of
liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for both bodily injury and property damage;

(vii) professional liability insurance containing minimum liability protection of $1,000,000;
(viii) liquor liability insurance containing minimum liability protection of $1,000,000;

(ix) employment practices liability insurance for employment-related wrongful acts of employees
and harassment and discrimination from non-employees for a minimum limit of at least
$1,000,000 (this shall also include third party coverage and wage & hour defense costs of at
least $100,000 naming us as co-defendant);

(x) statutory workers’ compensation insurance and employer’s liability insurance for a
minimum limit of at least $1,000,000, and such other disability benefits type insurance
required by Law (you must acquire and maintain such insurance for all of your employees
prior to any employee commencing any training with us);

(xi) any insurance required under your lease or by Law; and
(xii) any other insurance we specify in the Manual from time to time.

You must provide us with proof of coverage: (a) prior to opening;: (b) within 10 days after any
pehieythe renewal of a policy; and (c) at any other time on demand. You agree-tomust obtain these
policies from licensed insurance carriers rated “A”-VII or better by Alfred M. Best & Company,
Inc. All policies must be primary and non-contributory to any insurance we carry. Each policy
(other than worker’s compensation) must be endorsed to: (a) name us (and our members, officers,
directors, and employees) as additional insureds; (b) contain a waiver by the insurance carrier of all
subrogation rights against us; and (c) provide that we receive at least 10 days’ prior written notice
of the termination, expiration, cancellation or modification of the policy. If any policy fails to meet
these criteria, we may disapprove the policy and you must immediately secure a new policy
meeting our criteria. Upon 10 days’ notice, we may increase the minimum liability coverage
amount of any policy and/or require different or additional types of insurance due to inflation,
identifieation-of-special risks, changes in Law or standards of liability, higher damage awards or
other relevant changes in circumstances. If you fail to maintain a required policy, we may, at our
option, obtain the policy on your behalf. If we do so, you must promptly sign any application or
other form required to obtain the policy and reimburse us for all premiums and other costs we
incur. You must ensure your general contractor and all subcontractors maintain the insurance
policies and bonds (with the endorsements) set forth in the Manual during all construction and
remodeling of your Facility.
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14.2.

14.3.

Books and Records. You must prepare and maintain at your Facility for at least five (5) years after
their preparation, complete and accurate books, records, accounts and tax returns pertaining to your
Business. You must send us copies of your books and records within seven (7) days of our request.
You must provide us with independent access to your QuickBooks Online account with permission
to read all reports.

Reports.
(a) GenerallvNe—La%ef—ﬂ%aﬁ—the—LO*h—day—ef—eaeh—men%h—yeu—must— You must prepare aﬁd—seﬁd—us

%epe&é%u%es}#e%ha%se—agfeﬁe—pfepz%all efeher—reports we require mcludmg w1thout

limitation, the reports described below. Reports must be prepared in the form and manner we
specify-and. You must send us a copy of any report required-by-this-Seetionwe require upon
request. We also have the right to independently access your Technology Systems to retrieve
and compile Business Data and generate any reports we deem appropriate, including Gross

Sales reports.

(b)  Report of Initial Investment Costs. To assist us in updating our Franchise Disclosure
Document, you must complete and send us a report, in the form we designate, listing all
expenses you incur in connection with the development and opening of your Facility. You
must send us the completed report within 60 days after the opening date of your Facility.

(c)  Gross Sales Reports. No later than each royalty payment due date, you must prepare and
send us a monthly statement of your Gross Sales for the prior month. If you miscalculate
Gross Sales, you must notify us of the error no later than the end of the next Gross Sales
reporting period. Otherwise, you will not be entitled to any refund or credit of any fees paid
to us based on previously reported Gross Sales. We may waive your obligation to provide
Gross Sales reports at any time that we are able to independently aeeess—yeour—generate

reoorts of your Gross Sales through our Technology Systems—te—femev%aﬂd—eempﬁ%&ay

(d)  Advertising Expenditure Reports. No later than 60 days after the expiration of your grand
opening period, you must prepare and send us a report detailing your expenditures on your
grand opening marketing campaign in accordance with §10.3(a) (this obligation does not
apply to any expenditures we make to implement your grand opening marketing campaign).
No later than the 10" day of each month, you must prepare and send us a monthly report
detailing your expenditures incurred during the prior month on local advertising required by
§10.3(b)._All advertising expenditure reports must include copies of receipts for the reported

expenditures.

14.4. Financial Statements. No later than the 15" day of each month, you must prepare and send us a

monthly balance sheet and profit and loss statement for your Business in the format we prescribe.
Within 90 days after the end of each calendar year, you must prepare a balance sheet for your
Business (as of the end of the calendar year) and an annual statement of profit and loss and source
and application of funds. All financial statements must be: (a) verified and signed by you certifying
to us that the information is true, complete, and accurate; (b) prepared on an accrual basis in
compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles; and (c) submitted in any format we
reasonably require. We may require that your financial statements be reviewed or audited by a
certified public accountant, although we will not require audited financial statements unless you
submit materially inaccurate financial statements on a prior occasion. You must send us a copy of
any financial statement required by this Section upon request. You hereby authorize us to disclose
Operational Data to prospective franchisees, Governmental Authorities and ethersother Persons for
any reasonable business purpose, provided the disclosure is not prohibited by applicable Law.

14.5. Legal Compliance. You must: (a) secure and maintain #feree-all required licenses, permits and
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14.6.

regulatory approvals-and: (b) operate your Facility in fal-compliance with all applicable Laws-
Yeumust; (c) notify us in writing within two (2) business days efthe-beginningafter you become
aware of any aetionsuit—investigationClaim, or preceeding-or-ofthe-issuance-of-any order, writ;
infanetion,—demand or disciplinary action;—award—er—deeree—ofany issued by a Governmental
Authority, that may adversely affect the operation of your Facility-eryeurfinanecial-condition—Y-ou
must; and (d) immediately send us a copy of any inspection report;—warning,—eertifieate or

ratingother communication from a Governmental Authority alleging a-violation of anya health or
safety Law.

Ownership and Protection of Data. We are the exclusive owner of all Business Data;regardiess
ofwhethersuch-Business Datais collected by you, us or anetherany other Person. We hereby grant
you a license to utilize the Business Data solely for purposes of operating your Facility in
compliance with this Agreement. You must protect all Customer Data with a level of control
proportionate to the sensitivity of data. You must adhere to applicable privacy Laws with respect to
data which, if compromised, could have a negative impact on our image or consumer confidence.
You agree:—(a)temust comply with all applicable data protection Laws as—wellasand our data
processing and data privacy policies in the Manual (if any);-and-(b)upesr). Upon our request, toyou
must sign any data processing and/or data privacy agreement required by us or by Law. You further
agree to:

9——(a) obtain, maintain and adhere to all applicable compliance standards established by PCI-
DSS;

i—(b) establish appropriate administrative, technical and physical controls consistent with Law
and PCI-DSS to preserve the security and confidentiality of any credit card information, in
any form whatsoever, that you store, process, transmit; or come in contact with;

@Gi—(c) promptly notify us if you suspect-that there is, or has been, a security breach or potential
compromise of any such credit card information;

v)—(d) provide us with updates regarding the status of PCI-DSS, which update may be through a
completed PCI AOC (Attestation of Compliance), PCI-DSS SAQ (Self-Assessment
Questionnaire) or other method mutually agreed; and

(e) promptly notify us of any noncompliance_with PCI-DSS requirements to discuss your remediation efforts

and timeline.

15. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

15.1.

Inspections. For quality control purposes and to ensure compliance with this Agreement, we (or
our representative) may enter your Facility, evaluate your operations and inspect er-examine-your
books, records, accounts and tax returns. We will determine the scope of the inspection, which may
include, among other things:

(i)  examining and copying your books, records, accounts and tax returns;

G(ii) inspecting and testing your equipment;
(i) monitoring and speaking with your staff;

69)(iv)sampling and testing the menu items offered at your Café;
&#)(v)removing samples of your inventory items for testing purposes;

Erb(vi) evaluating the physical condition of your Facility for cleanliness, sanitation and state
of repair; and

Ewiib)(vil)  contacting your landlord and customers.
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15.2.

We may conduct the—inspeetioninspections at any time and—without prior notice. During the
inspection, we (or our representative) will use reasonable efforts to minimize any interference with
the operation of your Facility. You and your employees must cooperate and not interfere with the
inspection. You consent to us accessing your Technology Systems and retrieving any Business
Data we deem appropriate-in-connection-with-the-inspeetion.. You must reimburse us for all Travel
Expenses and other costs we incur to conduct an inspection to determine if you remedied:— a)-: (a)
health or safety issue identified by a Governmental Authority; or (b) a—breach of eur—system
standards we breughtbring to your attention. We-will bear the cost of all other inspections.

Audit. We may audit your books and records at any time. You must fully cooperate with us and
any third-partyPerson we hire to conduct the audit. If an audit reveals an understatement of Gross
Sales, you must immediately pay us all additional fees you owe together with any late fee imposed
pursuant to §12.4. Eachaudit-will be-performed-at-ourecost-unlessthe-auditY ou must reimburse us
for the cost of any audit (including reasonable accounting and attorneys’ fees and Travel Expenses
incurred by us or the auditor) that: (a) is required due to your failure to provide information we
request, preserve records or file reports as required by this Agreement; or (b) reveals an
understatement of Gross Sales by at least Z%M%Gh—eas%yea—must—refmbafseus—fef" 0. We der
the cost of %h%&adﬁ—me&rdmg—all HSORE :

mmemgothc1 audlts We shall not be deemed to have Wa1ved our rlght to terminate this
Agreement by accepting reimbursements of our audit costs.

16. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

Ownership and Use. You acknowledge that: (a) we are (or our affiliate is) the exclusive owner of
the Intellectual Property and the associated goodwill; (b) your right to use the Intellectual Property
is derived solely from this Agreement; and (c) your right to use the Intellectual Property is limited
to a license to operate your Facility during the Term pursuant to, and only in compliance with, this
Agreement and the Manual. You may not use the Intellectual Property in connection with the sale
of any unauthorized product or service or in any other manner not expressly authorized by us. Any
unauthorized use of the Intellectual Property constitutes an infringement of our rights. You must
comply with all provisions in the Manual governing use of the Intellectual Property. You will not
acquire any goodwill, title or interest in or to the Intellectual Property.

Changes to Intellectual Property. We may change the Intellectual Property at any time in our
sole discretion, including by changing the Copyrighted Materials, Know-How, Marks and/or
System. You must, at your expense, implement all Intellectual Property changes we require in
accordance with our instructions. We are not liable for any expenses, losses or damages you incur
(including the loss of any goodwill associated with a Mark) because of any addition, modification,
substitution or discontinuation of the Intellectual Property. If we are acquired by another company,
you may be required to convert to their system and their trademarks at your expense.

Use of Marks. You agree to: (a) use the Marks as the sole identification of your Facility; provided,
however, that you must identify yourself as the independent owner of your Facility in the manner
we prescribe—Y-eu-agree-to:{a; (b) prominently display the Marks in the manner we prescribe on or
in connection with any advertising, promotional materials, displays, receipts, stationery and forms
we designate to give notice of trademark and service mark registrations and copyrights; and (bc)
obtain any fictitious or assumed name registrations required by applicable Law. You may not: (a)
use the Marks in any modified form or as part of a corporate or trade name or with any prefix,
suffix, or other modifying words, designs or symbols (other than logos lieensedwe license to you
by-thisAgreement); (b) use the Marks when signing a contract, lease, check or other agreement or
in any other manner that may cause confusion or imply we are liable for your obligations; (c)
register; or attempt to register; any Marks—(, or any other trademarks confusingly similar to the
Marks), with any Governmental Authority; or (d) challenge or contest the validity or ownership of
our Marks.
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17.

16.4.

16.5.

Use of Know-how. We will-disclose the-our proprietary Know-how to you inthe—initial-during
training pregram;programs, in the Manual; and #through other guidance furnished te—yew-during
the Term. You willdo not acquire any interest in the Know-how other than the right to utilize it-i
strict-aceordanee, during the Term, solely for purposes of developing and operating your Facility in

compliance with the-terms-ef-this Agreement—Y-ou-acknowledge-that-the Know-hew-is-proprietary

and-is-discloscd-to-yousolely-forusc-in-the-development and operation-of-your-Business-during-the
Fermthe Manual.

Improvements. If you, an Owner or any-ef-your Owners-eremployeesecmployee conceives of or
develops an Improvement, you must send us a written notice describing the Improvement. You

must obtain our approval prior to using any such Improvement. Any Improvement we approve may
be used by us and any third parties we authorize to operate a Facility, without any obligation to pay
royalties or other fees to you or any other Person. You or your Owner or employee, as applicable,
must assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to the Improvement, including the right
to grant sublicenses. In return, we will authorize you to use Improvements developed by other
Persons that we approve for use in connection with the operation of a Facility.

16. 6—l-nf1¢ﬂigements—aﬂd—Gl-a+mslP Dlsnutes You must 1mmed1ately notlfy us of any—éa}—appafen{

{e)—el&rm—by—&&y—Persm%ef—aﬂy—thm—m—th%Lﬁfeﬂee&mJ—Pmpeﬁy IP Dlﬁpute You may not
communicate with any Person other than us and our counsel in connection with any sueh
infringement,—challenge-or—elaim:[P Dispute. We have sole discretion in deciding what action, if
any, to take in response to the infringement—challenge-er—elaim-IP Dispute. We may exclusively
control any litigation or other proceeding relating to the infringement—challenge—or—elaimlP

Dispute. You must execute all documents, render all assistance, and perform all acts that are, in our
counsel’s opinion, necessary or advisable to protect or maintain our interest in the litigation or
proceeding and/or protect the Intellectual Property.

INDEMNITY. You agree to indemnify the Indemnified Parties and hold them harmless for, from and
against any and all Losses and Expenses inetrred-by-any-of-themthey incur as a result of or in connection

with:

(1)
(1)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the marketing, use or operation of your Facility;
the breach of anya Definitive Agreement committed by you or your Owners or affiliates;

-the breach of any agreement with a third party committed by you or your Owners or affiliates;

any Claim relating to taxes or penalties assessed-by-anya Governmental Authority assesses against

us that-are-direetly-related-teas a direct result of your failure to pay or perform functions required of
you under this Agreement;

libel, slander or disparaging comments made by you or-awy-ef your Owners, officers, employees or
independent contractors regarding the System, a SUCCESS Space Facility or an Indemnified Party;

any labor, employment or similar type of Claim pertaining to your employees (including Claims
alleging we are a joint employer of your employees) or our relationship with you or your Owners
(including Claims alleging we are an employer of you and/or any of your Owners); or

any actions, investigations, rulings or proceedings conducted by any Governmental Authority
(including the United States Department of Labor, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or
National Labor Relations Board) relating to your employees.

You and your Owners must immediately notify us of any Claim or proceeding described above. The
Indemnified Parties shall have the right, in their sole discretion, to: (a) retain counsel of their choosing to
represent them with respect to any Claim; and (b) control the response thereto and the defense thereof,
including the right to enter into an agreement to settle the Claim. You may participate in such defense at
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18.

your expense. You must fully cooperate and assist the Indemnified Parties with the defense of the Claim.
You must relmburse the Indemmﬁed Parties for all of thelr costs and expenses in defendmg s&eh—@kamk

saeh—ees%s—emd—%epensesthc Clalm mcludmg Wlthout llmltatlon Travcl Exocnscs mcurrcd bV attorneys or

expert witnesses to attend mediation, arbitration or legal or administrative proceedings or hearings
relating to the matter.

Provided that you are in full compliance with all Definitive Agreements, we will indemnify you and your
Owners and hold them harmless for, from and against any and all Losses and Expenses neurred-by-any-of
themthey incur as a result of or in connection with any Claim asserted against you and/or your Owners
alleging that your use of our Marks in strict compliance with the terms of this Agreement and the Manual
violates a third-party’s intellectual property rights. You must promptly notify us of any such Claim and
fully cooperate with our defense of the Claim.

TRANSFERS

18.1. By Us. This Agreement is fully assignable by us (without prior notice to you) and shall inure to the
benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this Agreement, provided
that we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for any obligations incurred by us
prior to the effective date of the assignment. We may also delegate some or all of our obligations
under this Agreement to one or more Persons without assigning the Agreement.

18.2. By You. The rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to you and the Owners. We
havegranted—the—are granting vou franchise rights in reliance upon the individual-or-ecoleetive
character, skill, aptitades-attitude, business ability and financial eapaeityresources of you and your
Owners. Because this Agreement is a personal services contract, neither you nor any Owner may
engage in a Transfer (other than a Permitted Transfer) without our prior written—approval. Any
Transfer (other than a Permitted Transfer) without our approval shall-beis void and constitutes a
breach of this Agreement. We will not unreasonably withhold euwr-approval-efaTFransfer if all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(i)  we believe the proposed transferee has sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial
resources to own and operate a Facility and meets our minimum criteria for franchisees;

(i)  you and your affiliates and Owners are in full compliance with all Definitive Agreements;

(iii) all of the transferee’s owners successfully complete, or make arrangements to attend, the
initial training program (and the transferee pays us any applicable training fee)::

(iv) your landlord consents to your assignment of the lease to the transferee, or the transferee is
diligently pursuing an approved substitute location within the Site Selection Area;

(v)  the transferee and its owners obtain all licenses and permits required by applicable Law to
own and operate the Facility;

(vi) the transferee: (a) agrees to discharge and guarantee your obligations under this Agreement
and any other agreement relating to the Business (including supplier contracts); and (b) signs
any agreement we require to confirm the foregoing;

Eeh(vii) the transferee and its owners sign our then-current form of franchise agreement
(unless we;—in-oursele-diseretion; instruct you to assign this Agreement to the transferee);)
except that: (a) the Term and renewal term(s) shall be the Term and renewal term(s)
remaining under this Agreement; and (b) the transferee need not pay a separate initial
franchise fee;

Ee(viil)  yew—the transferee agrees to remodel yewrthe Facility and upgrade all furniture,
fixtures and equipment to eemply—withconform to our then-current standards and

specifications (er—you-obtaina-commitmentfrom-thetransferee-to-dosethese changes must
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be completed within 12 months after the Transfer or such shorter period of time that-we
apprevespecify);

@vii)(ix)  you or the transferee pay us a $25,000 transfer fee to defray expenses we incur in
conneetion—withrelated to the Transfer (if the transferee is found by a broker we engage, you
must also reimburse us for all commissions we pay the broker, which amount shall be in
addition to the transfer fee);

@ (x)you and your Owners sign a General Release—ef—al—elaims—arising—before—or
contcmporancoushy-with-the-Transfer;
&9 (xi)you agree to subordinate the transferee’s financial obligations to you to the transferee’s

financial obligations owed to us pursuant to the franchise agreement (we may require you to
enter into a written subordination agreement); and

EH(xii) we choose not to exercise our right of first refusal described in §18.5.

Our consent to a Transfer shall not constitute a waiver of any claims we may have against the
transferor, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of our right to demand exact compliance with any of the
terms or conditions of the franchise agreement by the transferee.

18.3. Permitted Transfers. You may engage in a Permitted Transfer without our prior approval, but you
must: (a) give us at least 10 days’ prior written notice; and (b) upon our request, cause any Entity
that was the Franchisee Entity immediately prior to the Permitted Transfer to sign a corporate
guarantee in the format we require to secure performance of the new Franchisee Entity’s financial
obligations under all Definitive Agreements. You and the Owners (and the transferee) must sign all
documents we reasonably request to effectuate and document the Permitted Transfer.

18.4. Owner Death or Disability-efan-Owner. Within 180 days after the death or permanent disability
of an Owner, the Owner’s ownership interest must be assigned to another Owner or to a third party
we approve. Any assignment to a third party will be subject to all terms and conditions of
§4+8-218.2 unless the assignment quahﬁes as a Permitted Transfer. Fer-purposes—of-thisSection;
anAn Owner is deemed to have a “permanent disability” only if thePersenhe/she has a medical or
mental problem preventing the—Persenhim/her from substantially complying with his—er—/her
obligations under this Agreement or-etherwise operating the Business in the manner required by
this Agreement and the Manual for a continuous period of at least three (3) months.

18.5. Our Right of First Refusal. If you or an Owner desires to engage in a Transfer, you or the Owner,
as applicable, must obtain (and send us) a bona-fide offer executed by the purchaser after
completion of due diligence. We have 30 days after receipt of the offer to decide whether to
purchase the interest for the same price and upon the same terms contained in the offer, except we
may substitute cash for any non-cash form of payment proposed in the offer. If we notify you
within the 30-day period that we intend to purchase the interest, you or the Owner, as applicable,
must sell the interest to us. We will have an additional 30 days to prepare for closing. We will be
entitled to receive from you or the Owner, as applicable, all customary representations and
warranties given by you (as the seller of the assets) or the Owner (as the seller of the ownership
interest) or, at our election, the representations and warranties contained in the offer. If we do not
exercise our right of first refusal, you or the Owner, as applicable, may complete the Transfer to the
purchaser pursuant to the terms of the offer, subject to the requirements of §18.2 (including our
approval of the transferee). However, if the sale is not completed within 120 days after delivery of
the offer to us, or there is a material change to the terms of sale, we will again have the right of first
refusal specified in this Section. Our right of first refusal shall not apply to a Permitted Transfer.

19. TERMINATION

19.1. By You. You may terminate this Agreement if we commit a material breach and fail to cure within
90 days after receipt of a default notice specifying the nature of the breach. If you terminate
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19.2.

pursuant to §19.1, you must still comply with your post-terminatienterm obligations described in
§20 (other than payment of liquidated damages) and all other obligations that survive the expiration
er-termination of this Agreement.

Fermination—By Us—Without Cure Period. We may;,—in—our——sele—diseretion; terminate this
Agreement, cffective upon five—(5)—daysdelivery of a written notice;—without—eppertunity of
termination to ewreyou, for any of the following reasons, all of which constitute material events of
default and “good cause” for termination, and without opportunity to cure except for any cure
period expressly set forth below:

(i)  if you become insolvent by reason of your inability to pay your debts as they become due;

(ii)) if you file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any pleading seeking any reorganization,
liquidation, dissolution or composition or other settlement with creditors under any Law, or
are the subject of an involuntary bankruptcy (which may or may not be enforceable under
the Bankruptcy Act of 1978);

(iii)  if your Business, or a substantial portion of the assets associated with your Business, are
seized, taken over or foreclosed by a Government Official in the exercise of his or her duties,
or seized, taken over or foreclosed by a creditor, lienholder or lessor;

(iv)  if a final judgment against you remains unsatisfied for 30 days (unless a supersedes or other
appeal bond has been filed);

(v) if a levy of execution has been made upon the license granted by this Agreement or any
property used in your Business and is not discharged within five (5) days of the levy;

(vi) if your Managing Owner or Designated Manager fail to satisfactorily complete the initial
training program in the manner required by §515.1 or your Business Coach fails to
satisfactorily complete the SUCCESS Space Coaching Certification Program in the manner
required by §8.3;

(vii) if you fail to obtain our approval of your site within the time period required by §7.1;
(viii) if you fail to open your Facility to the public within the time period required by §7.4;

(ix) if you abandon or fail to operate your Facility for three (3) consecutive business days, unless
the failure is due to an Force Majeure (in which case §23.6 _governs) or another reason we
approve;

(x) if a Governmental Authority suspends or revokes a license or permit held by you or an
Owner that is required to operate the Facility; even if you or the Owner stib-maintainhave
appeal rights;

(xi) if you or an Owner (a) is convicted of or pleads no contest to a felony;a—erime—invelving
rreralturpitude or—any other material crime, (b) is subject to any material administrative
disciplinary action or (c) fails to comply with any material Law applicable to your Business;

(xii) if you or an Owner commits an act that can reasonably be expected to adversely affect the
reputation of the System or the goodwill associated with the Marks;

(xiii) if you manage or operate your Facility in a manner that presents a health or safety hazard to
your customers, employees or the public;

(xiv) if you or an Owner makes any material misrepresentation to us, whether occurring before or
after being granted the franchise;

(xv) if you fail to pay any amount owed to us or our affiliate within 10 days after demand for
payment;
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(xvi) if you fail to pay any amount owed to an approved or designated supplier when due and fail
to cure such default before the expiration of any applicable cure period;

(xvii) if you underreport Gross Sales by at least 2%;—afterhavingalreadycommitted—a—similar
breach-thathad-been-curedin-accordance-with-§19-3:% on two (2) or more occasions;

(xviii)if you make an unauthorized Transfer;

(xix) if you make-anunautherized-use ofthe Intellectual Property: in an unauthorized manner;

(xx) if you breach any-efthe brand protection covenants described in §13;

(xxi) if you or an Owner breaches any efthe-representations-setforth in §22.4;

(xxii) if any Owner; or the spouse of any Owner; breaches a Franchise Owner Agreement;
(xxiii)if the lease for your premises is terminated due to your default;

(xxiv) if we send you three (3) or more valid default notices within any 12-month period, regardless
of whether such defaults were cured; or

(xxv) if we or any affiliate of ours terminates any Definitive Agreement (other than an area
development agreement) due to a default by you or your affiliate-; or

19.3.

; ; SRS ice-if you or an
Owner £&ﬂ—te—eempl—y—wrtrhbreaches any other provision of thrs Agreement (1nclud1ng any

eﬂr—sel%dirseret}en—dnd rdlls to cure thL blLdLh W1th1n s&eh—30—d—ay ddvs after recemt 01L a

default notice peried—from us.

If we send you a default notice pursuant to §+9-3;19.2 we may cease to perform our obligations
under this Agreement until you cure the breach.

19.4.19.3. Mutual Agreement to Terminate. If you and we mutually agree in writing to terminate this
Agreement, you and we will be deemed to have waived any required notice period.

20. POST-TERM OBLIGATIONS.

20.1. Obligations of You and the Owners. After the termination, expiration or Transfer of this
Agreement, you and the Owners agree to:

(1)  immediately cease use of the Intellectual Property;
(il))  pay us all amounts you owe, including, if applicable, liquidated damages pursuant to §20.2;

(i) comply with all covenants described in §13 that apply after the expiration, termination or
Transfer of this Agreement or the disposal of an ownership interest by an Owner;

(iv) comply with our instructions to return or destroy all copies of the Manual, all Copyrighted
Materials and all signs, brochures, menus, recipes, advertising and promotional materials,
forms and other materials bearing the Marks or containing Confidential Information;

(v)  comply with our data retention policies pertaining to the Business Data;

(vi) return all copies of SUCCESS Spaceware and each of its components (and delete all such
software from your computer memory and storage);

(vii) cancel all fictitious or assumed name registrations relating to your use of the Marks;

(viii) provide us with a list of all of your current, former and prospective customers;
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20.2.

(ix) upon our request, assign all customer contracts and membership agreements to us;

(x)  alter the interior and exterior of the premises to the extent necessary (or to the extent we
require) to prevent any further resemblance to or connection with a SUCCESS Space
Facility or our System, including, without limitation, repainting the exterior and interior with
new colors; and removing trade dress, fixtures and décor items associated with a SHECESS

Spaee-Facility;remeving-al as well as exterior and interior signage and-discontinuinguse-of
approved-wall-décoeritems-and-(including window decals;);

(xi) notify all telephone, listing and domain name registration companies of the termination or
expiration of your right to use: (a) any telephone numbers and/or domain names associated
with your Facility; and (b) any regular, classified or other telephone directory listings
associated with the Marks (you hereby authorize the foregoing companies to transfer such
telephone numbers, domain names and listings to us and you authorize us, and appoint us
and any officer we designate as your attorney-in-fact to direct these companies to transfer
the telephone numbers, domain names and listings to us if you fail or refuse to do so); and

(xii) provide us with satisfactory evidence of your compliance with the above obligations within
30 days after the effective date of the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement.

Subsections (iv), (vi), (x) and (xi) above shall not apply if you Transfer your Facility to an
approved transferee or we exercise our right to purchase your Facility.

Liquidated Damages. You must pay us liquidated damages—in—the—amount-ecaletlated-below if
either: (a) we terminate this Agreement due to your default; or (b) you terminate this Agreement
without cause or in any manner other than as permitted by §19.1 or §19-4—TFhe—-amount—of
liquidated—damages—shall-be—ecaleulated—by—multiplying——@)19.3._Liquidated damages shall be
calculated as the product of Average Monthly Fees multiplied by the lesser of (a) 36 or (b) the total
number of full months remaining under the Term as of the termination effective date; provided,
however, that the minimum amount of liquidated damages shall be $30,000 and the maximum
amount of liquidated damages shall be $100,000. Average Monthly Fees is determined as the
combined average monthly royalty fee and brand fund fee (without regard to any fee waivers or
other reductions. and regardless of collection) imposed en—yeu—pursuant—+toby this Agreement

during the period of time commencing with theyour Facility’s opening date ef-yeurHaetity-and
endlng Hpon the effective date of termlnatlon of this Agreement—aﬂd—éb)—ﬂqalesser—ef—@%—er—%

an : t : L1qu1dated damages
m&st—bepaié—in—?&l—l—w&ﬂﬁ}marc duc 15 days after %eeel-pt—efwc scnd you an invoice frem-us-detailing
our calculation of the-ameunt-of-liquidated damages-ewed—Theliquidated. Liquidated damages set
forth—in—this—Seetion—are in addition to; and not in lieu of: (a) any fees and-paymentsor other
amounts incurred by you prior to the termination of this Agreement, all of which must be paid by
you in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; or (b) any damages we or our affiliate incurs
as a result of your breach of this Agreement; provided, however, that we may not pursue a claim
against you for recovery of lost future profits if you pay us the—fullameunt—ofall liquidated
damages: owed when due. The parties acknewledge—and-agree—that the amount of liquidated
damages set forth in this Section is in proportion to, and is necessary to protect, our legitimate
interests, including: (a) encouraging our franchisees to commit to the 10-year franchise
relationship; in which both parties have already invested time and expense in—developingto
develop; (b) the time and expense we will incur inreeruitingto recruit a new franchisee to acquire
franchise rights to the Territory; (c) the time and expense we will incur to ensure your timely and
orderly departure from the-SHECESS-Spaeeour franchise network; (d) protecting the reputation
and goodwill associated with our Marks; and (e) partially compensating us for theour financial loss
caused by your breach and the early termination of this Agreement. If this liquidated damages
clause is determined to be unenforceable under applicable Law, then we will be limited to pursuing

actual damages we incur as a result of your breach—and theresultingtermination—of this
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Agreementdefault or yeurualawfalimproper termination-ef this-Agreement..
20.3. Rightte Purchase Faeility and AssetsOption.

(a)  Generally. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement; we shal-have the right;but
notthe-obligation: Qtlon to purchase your Facility and/or its assets—at—ﬁ&ﬂ"—maﬂeet—va}ue— If

Durchase option, we w111 notlfy you of the speel-ﬁ&}temsassets we w1sh to purchase (the

“Acquired Assets™)—We-may—alse”) within 20 days after the termination or expiration date.

If we exercise our purchase option, we may require that you assign your lease to us at no

additional charge.

: 3 h h : The purchase price for
the Acqulred Assets will be: ( i) the Durchase price establlshed by the parties (if mutually
agreed upon); or (ii) the Appraised Value established in accordance with experienee
appraising—businesses—in—the United—States—eomparable§20.3(b)_below. We may. at our
ontlon assu.n our Durchase ODthH toa SUGGESS—Sﬁaee—Faeﬂ&y%a—Quah-ﬁedApafaseQ—

(b)




. If the parties cannot agree on the purchase price, the purchase price shall be the Appraised Value established in

accordance with this Section. “Appraised Value” means the fair market value of the
Acquired Assets as of the date this Agreement is terminated or expires, as applicable;
provided, however, that fair market value shall not include any value for goodwill and/or the
franchise rights granted by this Agreement. The parties shall attempt to mutually agree upon
a_single independent appraiser. If they fail to do so, either party may demand the
appointment of three (3) appraisers in accordance with the following: (i) no later than 15
days after the party demands the appointment of three (3) appraisers, each party shall appoint
one (1) appraiser and notify the other party of appointed appraiser’s name and contact
information; and (ii) no later than 30 days after the party demands the appointment of three
(3) appraisers, the two (2) appraisers appointed by the parties will jointly appoint a third (3™)
appraiser. If either party fails to appoint an appraiser within the 15-day period, then the
appraiser appointed by the other party shall be deemed the single appraiser approved by the
parties. You must promptly provide any documents or information requested by the
appraisers. If a single appraiser is appointed, the purchase price shall be the Appraised Value
established by the appraiser. If three (3) appraisers are appointed, the purchase price shall be:
(1) the Appraised Value agreed upon by at least two (2) of the appraisers; or (i1) the average
of the two (2) Appraised Values that are closest to each other if none of the appraisers agreed
upon the Appraised Value. Each party shall promptly pay 50% of the cost of the appraisal.

(e)(c) Closing. OneeThe parties shall memorialize the Appraised—Value-has-been-determined;—we
will-have—atleast 60—additionaldays—teacquisition by executing an Asset Purchase
Agreement, in a form reasonably prescribed by us. You agree to prepare-for-elosing—We-will

be-entitled-to-reeeivefromyouprovide us with all customary representatlons and warranties
given by you, as the seller of the Acquired Assets-and. At closing: (i) you must transfer good

and clean title to the Acquired Assets, subject to any exceptions swe-agreete-set forth in the
Asset Purchase Agreement; and (ii) we must pay you the purchase price. We may deduct
from the Appraised—Valae—all-purchase price: (a) any amounts you owe to us or to our
affiliates under this-Aereement-orany-otheragreementany Definitive Agreements including,

if applicable, liquidated damages: imposed under this Agreement; and (b) the amount of any
liabilities we assume on your behalf, including future rent.

21. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

21.1.

21.2.

Negotiation and Mediation. Except as otherwise provided below with respect to Excluded
Claims, the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any Dispute through informal discussions
and negotiations. If these efforts are unsuccessful, the parties agree to submit the Dispute to
mediation before a mutually-agreeable mediator prior to arbitration. All negotiations and mediation
proceedings (including witheuwttimitatiensall discovery conducted therein—as—weH—as—all and
statements and settlement offers made by either party or the mediator in connection with the
mediation) shall be strictly confidential, shall be considered as compromise and settlement
negotiations for purposes of the Federal Rules of Evidence and state rules of evidence, and shall
not be admissible or otherwise used in connection with any court or arbitration proceeding for any
purpose. The mediator may not be called as a witness in any court or arbitration proceeding for any
purpose. Any Dispute involving claims alleging a breach of §13 and/or §16 (referred to as
“Excluded Claims”) will not be subject to mandatory negotiation or mediation.

Arbitration. If the Dispute is not resolved by mediation within 60 days after either party makes a
demand for mediation, the parties will submit the Dispute to mandatory and binding arbitration
conducted pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association
(the~“AAARules™.. The party filing the arbitration must initially bear the cost of any arbitration
fees or costs. The arbitrators will not have authority to award exemplary or punitive damages. Any
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21.3.

214.

21.5.

21.6.

Dispute involving an Excluded Claim will not be subject to mandatory arbitration_unless both
P'cll"[iCS agrec.

Litigation. If a Dispute involves an Excluded Claim, then either party may file a lawsuit in any
state or federal court of general jurisdiction in accordance the choice of venue provision set forth
below. The parties hereby express their clear and unequivocal intent that a court, rather than a
mediator or arbitrator, shall have exclusive jurisdiction to decide the threshold issue of whether a
Dispute involves an alleged Excluded Claim (i.e., whether there are any claims alleging a breach of
§13 and/or §16).

Venue. All mediation, arbitration and litigation shall take place in Dallas, Texas. The parties
irrevocably waive any objection to such venue and, with respect to litigation proceedings, submit to
the jurisdiction of such courts.

Attorney’s Fees and Costs. If we-or-youcither party must enforce this Agreement in a judicial or
arbitration proceeding, the substantially prevailing party will-beis entitled to reimbursement of its
costs and expenses, including reasonable accounting and legal fees and arbitration costs. In
addition, if you or an Owner breaches any term of a Definitive Agreement, you must reimburse us
for all reasonable legal fees and other expenses we incur relating to such breach, regardless of
whether the breach is cured prior to commencement of formal dispute resolution proceedings.

Waivers. UNLESS PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY DISPUTE (OTHER THAN
FOR PAYMENT OF MONIES OWED OR A VIOLATION OF §13 OR §16) MUST BE
BROUGHT BY FILING A WRITTEN DEMAND FOR MEDIATION WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR
FOLLOWING THE CONDUCT, ACT OR OTHER EVENT OR OCCURRENCE GIVING RISE
TO THE CLAIM, OR THE RIGHT TO ANY REMEDY WILL BE DEEMED FOREVER
WAIVED AND BARRED. WE AND YOU IRREVOCABLY WAIVE: (a) TRIAL BY JURY;
AND (b) THE RIGHT TO ARBITRATION OR LITIGATE ON A CLASS ACTION BASIS, IN
ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY,
BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THE PARTIES.

22. REPRESENTATIONS.

22.1.

22.2.

22.3.

Corporate Representations. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us
that the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the performance of your obligations
hereunder, does not: (a) conflict with, breach or constitute a default under any other agreement to
which you are (or any affiliate of yours is) a party or by which your (or your affiliate’s) assets may
be bound; (b) violate any order, writ, injunction, decree, judgment or ruling of any Governmental
Authority; or (c) violate any applicable Law. If the franchisee is an Entity, you and the Owners also
jointly and severally represent and warrant to us that: (a) the Franchisee Entity is duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the state of its formation and has the
requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and perform each of its obligations
hereunder; and (b) the execution and delivery of this Agreement have been duly authorized by all
requisite corporate action and this Agreement shall constitute the legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Franchisee Entity and shall be enforceable against the Franchisee Entity in
accordance with its terms.

Franchise Compliance Representations. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and
warrant to us that you received: (a) an exact copy of this Agreement and its attachments, with all
material terms filled in, at least seven (7) calendar days before you signed this Agreement; and (b)
our Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of (i) 14 calendar days before you signed a
binding agreement or paid any money to us or our affiliates or (ii) such earlier time in the sales
process that you requested a copy.

General Representations. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us

that you and the Owners are aware that: (a) other franchisees may operate under different forms of

agreement and our obligations and rights with respect to franchisees differs materially in certain
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22.4.

circumstances; and (b) we may negotiate terms or offer concessions to other franchisees and we
have no obligation to offer you the same or similar negotiated terms or concessions.

Anti-Terrorism Compliance. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to
us that, to the best of your and their knowledge: (a) no property or interest owned by you or any
Owner is subject to being “blocked” under any Anti-Terrorism Law; (b) neither you nor any
Owner, nor any of their respective funding sources (including any legal or beneficial owner of any
Equity Interest in you) or related parties is, or has ever been: (i) a terrorist or suspected terrorist
within the meaning of the Anti-Terrorism Law; or (ii) identified by name (or alias, pseudonym or
nickname) or address on any Terrorist List, including on the list of “Specially Designated
Nationals” or “Blocked Persons” maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign
Assets Control (texts currently available at www.home.treasury.gov); and(c) you and the Owners
are in compliance with, and shall continue to comply with, the Anti-Terrorism Law and all other
Laws (either currently in effect or enacted in the future) prohibiting corrupt business practices,
money laundering or the aid or support of Persons who conspire to commit acts of terror against
any Person or government that are in effect within the United States of America. The foregoing
representations and warranties are ‘continuing’ representations and warranties for the duration of
the franchise relationship. Accordingly, you agree to notify us immediately in writing of the
occurrence of any event or the development of any circumstance that might render any of the
foregoing representations and warranties false, inaccurate or misleading.

23. GENERAL PROVISIONS

23.1.

23.2.

23.3.

23.4.

Governing Law. Except as governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act,
15 U.S.C. §§ 1051, et seq.), this Agreement and the franchise relationship shall be governed by the
Laws of the State of Texas (without reference to its principles of conflicts of law), but any Law of
the State of Texas that regulates the offer and sale of franchises or business opportunities or
governs the relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this Section.

Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement creates a fiduciary relationship between
the parties or is intended to make either party a general or special agent, legal representative,
subsidiary;-joint venture, partner, employee or servant of the other for any purpose. Throughout the
Term you must, in all dealings with third parties, conspicuously identify yourself as a franchisee
and the independent owner of your Facility. We may require that you display a written notice of
independent ownership, in the form we prescribe, at any location within your Facility that we
specify. You must also include a written indication of independent ownership on all agreements,
forms, letterhead, advertising materials, business cards and other materials that we specify. Neither
party is-permittedtomay: (a) make any express or implied agreement, warranty or representation,
or incur any debt, in the name of or on behalf of the others; or (b) represent that our relationship is
other than franchisor and franchisee. In addition, neither party will be obligated by any agreements
or representations made by the other that are not expressly authorized by this Agreement.

Severability and Substitution. Each section and-subseetion—of this Agreement;— (and anmyeach
portion thereof;) shall be eensidered-severable. If applicable Law imposes mandatory non-waivable
terms er—econditions—that conflict with a provision of this Agreement, the terms—er—econditions
required by such Law shall govern to the extent of the inconsistency. If a court or arbitrator
concludes that any promise or covenant in this Agreement is unreasonable or unenforceable: (a) the
court or arbitrator may modify such promise or covenant to the minimum extent necessary to make
it enforceable; or (b) we may unilaterally modify such promise or covenant to the minimum extent
necessary to make it enforceable.

Waivers. Each party may waive any obligation imposed on the other party in writing. Neither party
shall be deemed to have waived or impaired any of its contractual rights under this Agreement—,
including the right to require strict compliance with all terms of this Agreement or terminate this
Agreement due to the other party’s failure to comply with such terms), by virtue of: (a) any custom
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23.5.

23.6.

23.7.

23.8.

23.9.

or practice of the parties at variance with the terms of this Agreement; (b) any failure, refusal or
neglect by either party to exercise any right under this Agreement or require the other party to
strictly comply with its obligations under this Agreement; (c) our waiver, failure or refusal to
exercise any of our rights with respect to other franchisees; or (d) our acceptance of payments from
you after your breach.

Approvals. Whenever this Agreement requires our approval, you must make a timely written
request for approval—and-the. Our approval must be in writing in order to bind us. Except as
otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, if we fail to approve any request for approval
within the required period of time, we shall be deemed to have disapproved your request.H—we

Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed to be in breach of this
Agreement if such party’s failure to perform its obligations results from an event of Force Majeure;
provided, however, that an event of Force Majeure shall not excuse or permit any failure to perform
for more than 180 days. If the period of non-performance exceeds 180 days from receipt of notice
of the Force Majeure event, the party whose ability to perform has not been affected may
immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of termination to the other party.

Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on the parties hereto and their respective executors,
administrators, heirs, assigns and successors in interest. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor
shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any Person not a party to this Agreement;
provided, however, that the additional insureds listed in §14.1 and the Indemnified Parties are
intended third-party beneficiaries under this Agreement with respect to §14.1 and §17, respectively.

Integration. THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT, EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY §11.2 AND §23.3, BE
CHANGED EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN DOCUMENT SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. In
addition, our issuance of the Site Approval Notice attached hereto as ATTACHMENT "B" shall be
deemed to amend this Agreement to identify the approved site and Territory for your Facility,
regardless of whether you countersign and/or return the Site Approval Notice. Any email or other
informal electronic communication shall not be deemed to modify this Agreement unless it is
signed by both parties and specifically states it is intended to modify this Agreement. The
attachment(s) are part of this Agreement, which, together with any Amendments or Addenda
executed on or after the Effective Date, constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the
parties, and there are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between us and you
about the subject matter of this Agreement. As referenced above, all mandatory provisions of the
Manual are part of this Agreement. Any representations not specifically contained in this
Agreement made before entering into this Agreement do not survive after the signing of this
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to disclaim any of the representations we made
in the Franchise Disclosure Document. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or
agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall
have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud
in the inducement or (b) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise
seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term
of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Covenant of Good Faith. If applicable Law implies into this Agreement a covenant of good faith
and fair dealing, the covenant shall not imply any rights or obligations that-are-inconsistent with the
express terms ef-this—Aegreementhercof. This Agreement—. and the relationship of the parties
inherent in this Agreement), grants us discretion to make decisions, take actions and/or refrain from
taking actions not inconsistent with our explicit rights and obligations under this Agreement that
may favorably or adversely affect your interests. We will use our judgment in exercising the
discretion based on our assessment of our own interests and balancing those interests against the
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interests of our franchisees—(ineluding—oursebres—andour—affiliatesifapplieable);. but without

considering the individual interests of you or any other particular-franchisee.

23.10.Rights of Parties are Cumulative. The rights of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative
and no exercise or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy under this Agreement will
preclude any other right or remedy available under this Agreement or by Law.

23.11.Survival. All provisions that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration or
Transfer of this Agreement-{, or the Transfer of an ownership interest in the Business or Franchisee
Entity), shall continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its termination,
expiration or Transfer and until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire, including,
without limitation, §12, §13, §15, §17, §20, §21 and § 23.

23.12. Construction. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define, limit or
construe the contents of the sections or subsections. All references to Sections refer to the Sections
contained in this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All references to days in this Agreement
refer to calendar days unless otherwise specified. The term “you” as used in this Agreement is
applicable to one or more Persons-eranEntity, and the singular usage includes the plural and the
masculine and neuter usages include the other and the feminine and the possessive.

23.13.Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and every term thereof.

23.14.Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same document.

23.15.Notice. All notices given under this Agreement must be in writing, delivered by hand, email (to the
last email address provided by the recipient) or first class mail, to the following addresses (which
may be changed upon 10 business days’ prior written notice):

YOU: As set forth in Part A of ATTACHMENT "A"

US: Success Franchising, LLC
T50-N-StPauk-St;5473 Blair Rd. Suite 256100, PMB 30053
Dallas, Texas 752031
Attention: Legal Operations
Email: ted.laatz@success.com & legal@success.com

Notice shall be considered given: (a) at the time delivered by hand (with written confirmation of
receipt); (b) one (1) business day after sending by email or comparable electronic system: (including
any notice that is also sent by mail); or (c) three (3) business days after placed in the mail, postage
prepaid, by certified mail with a return receipt requested. We may also provide notice of any change to
the Manual through bulletins, postings or other notices provided on the Intranet or through any other
method that we commonly utilize to communicate with our franchisee community as a whole.
Notwithstanding the above, all notices to us must in all events be e-mailed to legal@success.com (and
to any other email address that we specify from time to time) or such notice will not be deemed as
having been delivered to us.
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The parties to this Agreement have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date first above
written.

FRANCHISOR:

Success Franchising, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company

By:
Name:
Its:
YOU (If you are an Entity): YOU (If you are not an Entity):
a(n) Name:
By:
Name: Name:
Its:
Name:
Name:
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ATTACHMENT "A"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

DEAL TERMS
A. Franchisee Details.
Name of Franchisee: [ ]
Is the franchisee one or more natural pPersons signing in their individual capacity? Yes: No:
Type of Entity and State of Formation* (if applicable): [ ]

* If the franchisee is a business eEntity, each natural-personPerson holding a direct or indirect ownership
interestloquity Interest in the business-entitylranchisee Entity, and spouse of each such personPerson who
is_a natural Person, must sign the Franchise Owner Agreement concurrently with the execution of this
Agreement.

Notice Address:

Attention:
Email:

The following table includes the full name of each natural-persenPerson holding a direct or indirect

ownership interest in the franehiseBusiness (or the franchisee-business-entityfranchisee Entity if applicable)
along with a description of their ownership interest.

Direct or Indirect

Owner’s Name % Ownership Interest . X .
(if indirect, describe nature of interest)

B. Site Selection Area.

Unless you propose another area that we approve, the Site Selection Area referenced in the Franchise

Agreement shall consist of the county in which the Managing Owner resides as of the Effective Date of this
Agreement.

* The Site Selection Area is not your territory and there are no protections associated with this area.



C. Approved Site.

We hereby approve the site listed below for the-eperation-ofyour Facility.
Approved Address: [ ]

* If the site for your Facility has not been approved by us at the time the Franchise Agreement is signed, then
we will send you a Site Approval Notice in accordance with §7.1 listing the address of your approved site.

D. Territory.

The Territory referenced in the Franchise Agreement consists of, and shall eensist-efbe limited to. the
following geographic area (as may be further depicted on thea map attached enbelow or the following page):

[ ]

If %hev%a%%&ny—ehaﬂges—t&the zl-;}eeées—ef—ether—boundarles that define yewcthc Terrltory hangc durmg the

WHHHgTerm the boundarles of your Terrltory shanﬂl remain unaﬁected and w1ll contmue to be deﬁned by

the zip-codes-orother-boundaries that were in effect as of the Effective Date and(as may be depicted on thea
map attached below or on the following page:).

* If the site for your Facility has not been approved by us at the time this Agreement is signed, then-we will

send you a Site Approval Notice in accordance with §3 that-witlidentifyidentifving the geographic area
that comprises your Territory (which will include a minimum population of 50,000 as of the date that the
Territory is determined).

[Insert Map Below (if applicable)]



ATTACHMENT "B"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FORM OF SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

[See Attached]



SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

Success Franchising, LLC (“we” or “us”) is issuing this Site Approval Notice (this “Notice”) to

(“you”), effective , 202, in connection with the
SUCCESS Space Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) that we executed with you on
, 202 . The purpose of this Notice is to confirm our approval of the site you have proposed

for the premises of your Facility and our designation of the boundaries of your “Territory”.

Approved Address:

Pursuant to §7.1 of the Franchise Agreement, we hereby approve the site listed below for the operation of your
Facility:

Territory:

Pursuant to §3 of the Franchise Agreement, we hereby designate the following geographic area as your
“Territory” under the Franchise Agreement (as may be further depicted on the map attached on the following

page):
[ ]

If there are any changes to the zip codes or other boundaries that define your Territory during the term of the
Franchise Agreement or any renewal term, then, unless otherwise agreed to by you and us in writing, the
boundaries of your Territory shall remain defined by the zip codes or other boundaries in effect as of the
Effective Date and depicted on the map on the following page.

% sk sk

By signing below, you and we agree that: (a) the address identified in this Notice shall be deemed the approved
site for your Facility established and operated pursuant to the Franchise Agreement; and (b) the geographic area
described in this Notice under “Territory” shall be deemed your Territory under the Franchise Agreement. You
acknowledge and agree that our acceptance of the site you have proposed is in no way a representation by us
that your site will be successful. Rather, our acceptance of the site you propose merely indicates the site meets
our minimum standards and requirements.

We request that you sign below and send us an executed copy of this Notice to acknowledge your receipt.
However, your failure or refusal to sign below will not invalidate or otherwise affect our designation of your
approved site or Territory. Our designation of your approved site and Territory, as set forth in this Notice, shall
be binding on you effective as of the effective date listed in the first paragraph in this Notice.

Franchisor Franchisee

Success Franchising, LLC [ ]
By: By:

Name: Name:

Its: Its:

Date: Date:




ATTACHMENT "C"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

LEASE ADDENDUM

[See Attached]



Lease Addendum

This Agreement dated this  day of , 202 among Success Franchising, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, with principal offices at 750-N—St—Paul-St55473 Blair Rd. Suite 256100, PMB 30053,
Dallas, Texas 752031 (“Franchisor”), ,
a(n) , with principal offices located at
(“Landlord”), and

, a(n) , with principal offices located at

(“Tenant/Franchisee™).

Background

A. On , 202, Tenant/Franchisee and Franchisor entered a SUCCESS Space,
Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”). Under the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor granted
Tenant/Franchisee the right, and Tenant/Franchisee undertook the duty, to operate a SUCCESS Space
facility (the “Franchised Business™) at the Premises (defined below).

B. Simultaneously with entering this Agreement, Landlord and Tenant/Franchisee are entering a lease
agreement (the “Lease”). Under the Lease, Tenant/Franchisee leases the premises described as follows:
(the “Premises™).

C.  To protect Franchisor’s rights and interests under the Franchise Agreement, Landlord grants certain rights
to Franchisor under the Lease as set forth below.

Agreement

1. Notices. At the same time such notices are sent to Tenant/Franchisee, Landlord must provide Franchisor
with copies of all written notices of default that it sends to Tenant/Franchisee. Landlord agrees to send
such copies: (a) by e-mail to legal@success.com (and to any other email address that Franchisor provides
to Landlord from time to time); and (b) by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to Franchisor at its address set
forth above or such other address as Franchisor may notify Landlord in writing.

2. Right to Cure. If Tenant/Franchisee defaults under the Lease, Franchisor has the right (but not the duty) to
cure such default within 15 days following the expiration of any applicable cure period. Furthermore, in
such event, Franchisor may immediately commence occupancy of the Premises as the tenant under the
Lease without obtaining Landlord’s or Franchisee’s consent. Franchisor may thereafter assign the Lease
to another SUCCESS Space franchisee or to an entity owned and/or controlled by Franchisor. If it does,
Franchisor must first obtain Landlord’s written approval of the assignee. Landlord, however, must neither
unreasonably withhold nor delay its approval thereof. Landlord will acknowledge any such assignment in
writing. No assignment permitted under this Section is subject to any assignment or similar fee or will
cause any rental acceleration.

3. Right to Assign. At any time (including, without limitation, upon the expiration or sooner termination of
the Franchise Agreement) without Landlord’s prior consent, Tenant/Franchisee may assign the Lease to
Franchisor. In such event, Franchisor may thereafter assign the Lease to another SUCCESS Space
franchisee or to an entity owned and/or controlled by Franchisor. If it does, Franchisor must first obtain
Landlord’s written approval of the assignee. Landlord, however, must neither unreasonably withhold nor
delay its approval thereof. Landlord will acknowledge any such assignment in writing. No assignment
permitted under this Section is subject to any assignment or similar fee or will cause any rental
acceleration.

4. Right of First Refusal. Landlord agrees that upon the expiration or termination of the Lease, Franchisor
shall have the first right of refusal to lease the Premises as the new tenant.

5. Expiration or Termination of Franchise Agreement. Landlord agrees that the expiration or termination of
the Franchise Agreement shall constitute a default under the Lease, giving Franchisor the right, but not




the obligation, to cure such default by succeeding to Tenant/Franchisee’s interests under the Lease in
accordance with §2 above.

6. Acknowledgement of Rights. Landlord acknowledges Franchisor’s rights under the Franchise Agreement
to enter the Premises to: (a) make any modifications or alterations necessary in Franchisor’s sole
discretion to protect its franchise system and its trademarks without being guilty of trespass or any other
tort or crime; and (b) remove any trade fixtures, interior or exterior signs and other items bearing
Franchisor’s trademarks or service marks upon the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement.

7. Modification of Lease. Without Franchisor’s prior written consent, Landlord and Tenant/Franchisee may
not amend, modify, supplement, terminate, renew or extend the Lease.

8. Miscellaneous.

(a) In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the Lease,
the terms of this Agreement control.

(b)  All of the terms of this Agreement, whether so expressed or not, are binding upon, inure to the
benefit of, and are enforceable by the parties and their respective personal and legal representatives,
heirs, successors and permitted assigns.

(c)  The provisions of this Agreement may be amended, supplemented, waived or changed only by a
written document signed by all the parties to this Agreement and making specific reference to this
Agreement.

(d) This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which is an original, but all
of which together constitute one and the same instrument.

In witness whereof, this Agreement has been executed the date and year first above written.
FRANCHISOR:

Success Franchising, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

By:

Name:
Its:

LANDLORD:

By:
Name:
Its:

TENANT/FRANCHISEE:

By:
Name:
Its:




ATTACHMENT "D"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FRANCHISE OWNER AGREEMENT

[See Attached]



FRANCHISE OWNER AGREEMENT

This Franchise Owner Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by: (a) each of the undersigned owners of
Franchisee (defined below); and (b) the spouse of each such owner, in favor of Success Franchising, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, and its successors and assigns (“us”) upon the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement. Each signatory to this Agreement is referred to as “you”.

i;Deﬁnltlons Fer—pufpeses—ef—Camtallzed terms used in this Agreement;=

hall have the meanings glven to them below; or 1f not deﬁned below; the meamngs glven to them in the

Franchise Agreement H

“Development Agreement” means, if applicable, the Area Development Agreement pursuant to which the

Franchise Agreement was executed.

“Facility” or “SUCCESS Space Facility” means a membership-based shared workspace facility that
operates under the Marks and offers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service café and various other amenities.
The term may refer to a Facility operated by us, our affiliate, Franchisee or another franchisee, as the
context may require.

“Franchise Agreement” means the SUCCESS Space Franchise Agreement executed by Franchisee with an

effective date of ,202
“Franchisee” means . For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Franchisee”
shall be deemed to refer to both: (a) [ 1, as Franchisee under the Franchise

Agreement; and (b) the Person who signed the Development Agreement (if applicable), as Developer, if
such Person is different than Franchisee.




“Restricted Period” means: the two (2) year period after the earliest to occur of the following: (a) the
termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement; (b) the date on which Franchisee assigns the
Franchise Agreement to another person with respect to whom neither you nor your spouse holds any direct
or indirect ownership interest; or (c) the date on which neither you eease-te-be-an-ewnereofnor your spouse
holds any direct or indirect ownership interest in the Franchisee er—yourspouse-ceases—to-be-an-owner-of
FEranchisee,—as—appheablecntity or the Facility that it operates; provided however, that if a court of
competent jurisdiction determines that-this period of time is too long to be enforceable; then Restricted
Period means: the one (1) year period after the earliest to occur of the following: (a) the termination or
expiration of the Franchise Agreement; (b) the date on which Franchisee assigns the Franchise Agreement
to another person with respect to whom nelther you nor your spouse holds any dlrect or 1nd1rect ownershlp
interest; or (c) the date on which 5 g :

ew&er—e%m&ehsee—&s—aﬂaheablenelther you nor your spouse holds any dlrect or mdlrect ownershm

interest in the Franchisee entity or the Facility that it operates.




Background. In your capacity as an owner efEranchisee;—(or the spouse of an owner) of Franchisee, you
may gain knowledge of our System and Know-how. You understand that protecting the Intellectual
Property is vital to our success and that of our franchisees and that-you could seriously jeopardize our-entire
franchise system if you were to unfairly compete with us or misuse our Intellectual Property. In addition,
you understand that certain terms of the Franchise Agreement apply to “owners” and not just Franchisee.
You agree to comply with theterms—ef-this Agreement-in—erder to: (a) avoid damaging our System by
engaging in unfair competition; and (b) bind yourself to the terms of the Franchise Agreement applicable to
owners.

Brand Protection Covenants.

(a)

Intellectual Property and Confidential Information. You agree to:

—(i) refrain from using the Intellectual Property or Confidential Information in any capacity or
for any purpose other than the operation of Franchisee’s Facility in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement and Manual;

¢H—(i1) maintain the confidentiality of the Knew-hew—-and-ether-Confidential Information at all
times;

@i—(iii) refrain from making unauthorized copies of documents containing Confidential
Information; (iv) take all reasenable-steps we reasonably require to prevent unauthorized use
or disclosure of Knew-how-er-other Confidential-nformation:

Confidential Informtion; and

69— (v) immediately stop using the Intellectual Property and Confidential Information at such time

that you are (or your spouse is) no longer an owner of Franchisee-er—your-spouse-is-no-longer
st el e e ps lan Bl

. You agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any Improvement developed by

(b)

you, including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable law precludes you from assigning ownership
of any Improvement to us, then such Improvement shall be perpetually licensed by you to us free of
charge, with full rights to use, commercialize and sublicense the same.

Unfair Competition. You may not engage in any Prohibited Activities at any time: (i) that you are (or
your spouse is) an owner of Franchisee-er-while-yourspeuse-is-an-owner-of Eranchisee;as-applieable;
or (ii) during the Restricted Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may have an interest in a
Competitiveng Business during the Restricted Period as long as the Competitiveng Business is not
located within the Restricted Territory. If you engage in any Prohibited Activities during the
Restricted Period (other than having an interest in a Competitiveng Business permitted by this
Section), your Restricted Period will be extended by the period of time during which you were
engagingengaged in the Prohibited Activity. faAny such extension of time will not be—censtrued




(©)

(d)

(e)

asconstitute a waiver of your breach or etherwise-impair any of our rights or remedies relating to your
breachy--.

Family Members. Because you could circumvent the purpose of this—Agreement§3 by disclosing
Knew-hoewConfidential Information to an immediate family member (i.e., parent, sibling, child, or
grandchild) and it would be difficult for us to prove any such breach, you will be presumed to have
breached this Agreement if a member of your immediate family (i) engages in any Prohibited
Activities at any time that you are prohibited from engaging in the Prohibited Activities- or (ii) uses or
discloses Confidential Information. However, you may rebut this presumption with evidence
conclusively showing you did not disclose Knew-hewConfidential Information to the family member.

Covenants Reasonable. You agree that: (i) the terms-ofthisAgreement-covenants in §3 are reasonable
both in timeduration and i-seepe—ef-geographic areascope; and (ii) you have sufficient resources,
business experience and opportunities to earn an adequate living while complying with the—terms—of

this-Agreementthese covenants. Although you and we both believe the covenants in this-Agreement§3
are reasonable; we may-at-any-time-, upon written notice to vou, unilaterally modify the terms-ef-the

brand protection covenants in §3 of this Agreement;-upen—written-netice-to-yor;,- by limiting the scope
of the Prohibited Activities, narrowing the definition of a Competitiveng Business, shortening the
duration of the Restricted Period, reducing the geographic scope of the Restricted Territory and/or
reducing the scope of any other covenant imposed upon you under §3 of this Agreement to ensure that
the-terms-and covenants are enforceable under applicable law.

Breach. You agree that: (i) any failure to comply with §3 is likely to cause substantial and irreparable
damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy at law; and (ii) we are
entitled to injunctive relief if you breach §3 together with any other relief available at equity or law.
We will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive relief; but we need not post a bond. If a court
requires that we post a bond desplte our mutual agreement to the contrary, the requ+red—ameunt—ef—the

fssued—rnjunetron—bond amount may not exceed $1, OOO None of the remedles avallable to us under thls

Agreement are exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at
law or 1n equlty, including 1nJunctlve relief, spe01ﬁc performance and recovery of monetary damages

Transfer Restrictions. H-youare-an-owner-of Franchisee—~yvou-acknowledgethat-weWe must approve all

persons who hold a direct or indirect ownership interest in the Franchisee—Aeeerdingly entity. If you are an
owner of Franchisee, you agree that you will not; directly or indirectly-er-by-operation-ofdaws sell, assign,

mortgage, pledge or in any manner transfer any direct or indirect ownership interest in the Franchisee entity
except in accordance with the-terms-and-conditions—setforth-in-§18.2 of the Franchise Agreement.

Financial Securlty In order to secure Franchisee’s ﬁnanmal obhgatlons under the Franchlse Agreement

Fran

chlsc Aszrccmcnt) (collectlvely, the “Secured Agreements ) you, jointly and severally, personally and

unconditionally: (a) guarantee to us and our successor and assigns, that Franchisee shall punctually fulfil all
of its payment and other financial obligations under the Secured Agreements; and (b) agree to be personally
bound by, and personally liable for, each and every monetary provision in the Secured Agreements. You

waive:
(i)  acceptance and notice of acceptance by us of the foregoing undertakings;
(ii))  notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness guaranteed;

(iii)  protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness guaranteed;



(iv) any right you may have to require that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other person
as a condition of liability; and

(v) the defense of the statute of limitations in any action hereunder or for the collection of any
indebtedness hereby guaranteed.

You agree that: (a) your direct and immediate liability under this guaranty shall be joint and several with
Franchisee and all other signatories to this Agreement; (b) you will render any payment required under
the Secured Agreements upon demand if Franchisee fails to promptly do so; (c¢) your liability shall not be
contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by us of any remedies against Franchisee or any other person; and
(d) liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or
other indulgence that we may grant to Franchisee or to any other person, including the acceptance of any
partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall in any
way modify or amend this guarantee, which shall be continuing and irrevocable during the term of each of
the Secured Agreements and following the termination, expiration or transfer of each of the Secured
Agreements to the extent any financial obligations under any such Secured Agreements survive such
termination, expiration or transfer. This guaranty will continue unchanged by the occurrence of any
bankruptcy of Franchisee or any assignee or successor of Franchisee or by any abandonment of one or
more of the Secured Agreements by a trustee of Franchisee. Neither your obligation to make payment in
accordance with the terms of this undertaking nor any remedy for enforcement shall be impaired,
modified, changed, released or limited in any manner whatsoever by any impairment, modification,
change, release or limitation of the liability of Franchisee or its estate in bankruptcy or of any remedy for
enforcement, resulting from the operation of any present or future provision of the U.S. Bankruptcy Act
or other statute, or from the decision of any court or agency.

Dispute Resolution. Any dispute between the parties relating to this Agreement shall be brought in
accordance with the dispute resolution procedures in the Franchise Agreement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any dispute resolution procedures in the Franchise Agreement conflict with any terms of this
Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. You acknowledge that a breach of this Agreement
by you shall constitute a material event of default under the Franchise Agreement, permitting us to
terminate the Franchise Agreement in accordance with the terms thereof.

Miscellaneous.

(a) If either party hires an attorney or files suit against the other party for breach of this Agreement, the
losing party must reimburse the prevailing party for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

(b) This Agreement will be governed by, construed and enforced under the laws of Texas and the courts in
that state shall have jurisdiction over any legal proceedings arising out of this Agreement.

(c) Any claim, defense or cause of action you may have against us or against Franchisee, regardless of
cause or origin, cannot be used as a defense against our enforcement of this Agreement.

(d) Each section of this Agreement, including each subsection and portion thereof, is severable. If any
section, subsection or portion of this Agreement is unenforceable, it shall not affect the enforceability
of any other section, subsection or portion. The parties agree that the court may impose such
limitations on the terms of this Agreement as it deems in its discretion necessary to make such terms
reasonable in scope, duration and geographic area.

(e) You agree that we may deliver to you any notice or other communication contemplated by this
Agreement in the same manner and to the same address listed in the notice provisions of the Franchise
Agreement and any such delivery shall be deemed effective for purposes of this Agreement. You may
change the address to which notices must be sent by sending us a written notice requesting such
change, which notice shall be delivered in the manner and to the address listed in the Franchise
Agreement.



In witness whereof, each of the undersigned has executed this Agreement as of the date or dates set forth below.

OWNER / SPOUSE
By:

Name:

Date:

OWNER / SPOUSE
By:

Name:

Date:




OWNER / SPOUSE
By:

Name:

Date:

OWNER / SPOUSE
By:

Name:

Date:




ATTACHMENT "E"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

BRAND PROTECTION AGREEMENT

[See Attached]



BRAND PROTECTION AGREEMENT

This Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by the undersigned (“you ) in favor of Success Franchising,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and its successors and assigns ( us”), upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement.

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement the following terms have the meanings given to them below:

“Business Data” means all data pertaining to Franchisee’s members, customers and business operations
whether collected by you, Franchisee, us or any other person.

“Competitive' Competing Business” means any business competitive with a SUCCESS Space Facility that
derives, or is reasonably expected to derive, more than 25% of its revenues from the sale or rental of co-
working-space or flex-space services or the sale or rental of other similar services.

“Confidential Information” means and includes: (a) the Know-How; (b) the Business Data; (c¢) the terms of
the Franchise Agreement and all related agreements signed by Franchisee in connection with the Facility,
and all attachments thereto and amendments thereof; (d) the components of the System; (e) all information
within or comprising the Manual; and (f) all other concepts, ideas, trade secrets, financial information,
marketing strategies, expansion strategies, studies, supplier information, customer information, franchisee
information, investor information, flow charts, inventions, mask works, improvements, discoveries,
standards, specifications, formulae, recipes, designs, sketches, drawings, policies, processes, procedures,
methodologies and techniques, together with analyses, compilations, studies or other documents that are: (i)
are-designated as confidential; (ii) are-known by you to be considered confidential by us; and/or (iii) are-by
their—nature—inherently—er—reasonably to be considered confidential: due to their nature. Confidential
Information does not include any-information that: (a) is now, or subsequently becomes, generally available
to the public (except as a result of a breach of confidentiality obligations by you, Franchisee or
Franchisee’s owners, employees or other constituents); (b) you can demonstrate was rightfully in your
possession, without obligation of nondisclosure, before the-information—was-diselosedto-youbyuswe (or

any person associated with us) or Franchisee (or any person associated with #s-er-Franchisee):) disclosed

the information to you; (c) is independently developed by you without any use of, or reference to, any
Confidential Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third party who has the right to transfer or
disclose such information to you without breaching any obligation of confidentiality imposed on such third

party.
“Copyrighted Materials” means all copyrightable materials for which we or our affiliate have
seetredsecure common law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell or

display in connection with the marketing and/or operation of a SUCCESS Space Facility;—whethernew-in
“Facility” or “SUCCESS Space Facility” means a membership-based shared workspace facility that
operates under the Marks and offers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service café and various other amenities.
The term may refer to a Facility operated by us, our affiliate, Franchisee or another franchisee, as the
context may require.

“Franchisee” means the SUCCESS Space franchisee for whom you are an officer, director, employee or
independent contractor.

“Improvements” means any idea, addition, modification or improvement to the (a)-the goods or services
offered or sold at a Facility, (b) the-method of operation of a Facility, (c) the—processes, systems or
procedures utilized by a Facility, (d) the-marketing, advertising or promotional materials, programs or
strategies utilized by a Facility or (e) the-trademarks, service marks, logos or other intellectual property
utilized by a Facility, whether developed by you, Franchisee, us or any other person.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, the Business Data, Copyrighted Materials,




Improvements, Know-how, Marks and System.

“Know-how” means all—efand includes our (and our affiliates’) trade secrets and other proprietary
information relating to the design, construction, development, marketing or operation of a SUCCESS Space
Facility, including, but not limited to: architectural plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype
Facility; site selection criteria; recipes for menu items; methods and techniques; standards and
specifications; policies and procedures; supplier lists and information; marketing strategies; merchandising
strategies; financial information; and information comprising the System or included in Manual.

“Manual” means our confidential brand standards manual for the operation of a SUCCESS Space Facility.

“Marks” means and includes all service marks, trademarks, trade names and logos that we designate from
time to time and authorize SUCCESS Space Facilities to use, including “SUCCESS,” “SUCCESS Space,”
“SUCCESS Coaching” and the associated logos. The Marks also include any distinctive trade dress used to
identify a SUCCESS Space Facility.

“Prohibited Activities” means and includes any-ene-or-mere of the following: (a) owning, operating or
having any other interest (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant,
sharehelder,—creditor, representative, agent or in any similar capacity) in a—Cempetitiveany Competing
Business—(. other than owning an interest of five-pereent-{5%)% or less in a publicly traded company that is
a Competitiveng Business):; (b) disparaging or otherwise making negative comments about us, any-ef-our
affiliates, the System and/or any SUCCESS Space Facility; (c) diverting or attempting to divert any
business from us—(er—ene—of. our affiliates or franehisees):another franchisee: and/or (d) inducing any
SHECESS-Spaee-memberperson to transfer their business from a SUCCESS Space Facility to a competitor.

“Restricted Period” means: the two (2) year period after you cease to be an officer, director, employee or
independent contractor of Franchisee; provided, however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that-this period of time is too long to be enforceable; then Restricted Period means: the one (1)
year period after you cease to be an officer, director, employee or independent contractor of Franchisee.

“Restricted Territory” means: the geographic area within: (a) a five (5) mile radius from Franchisee’s
Facility (and including the Facility’s premises); and (b) a five (5) mile radius from all other SUCCESS
Space Facilities that are operating or under construction as of the date of this Agreement and remain in
operation or under construction during al-er-any part of the Restricted Period; provided, however, that if a
court of competent jurisdiction determines that-the foregoing Restricted Territory is too broad to be
enforceable; then Restricted Territory means: the geographic area within a five (5) mile radius from
Franchisee’s Facility (and including the Facility’s premises itself).

“System” means the proprietary business format and system we developed for the operation of a SUCCESS
Space Facility, the distinctive characteristics of which include, among other things: SUCCESS Space
designs, furniture, fixtures and equipment; site selection and layout criteria; distinctive interior and exterior
design, décor, signage, color scheme and other trade dress elements; proprietary and nonproprietary
products; quality, distinctiveness and uniformity of products and services; standards, specifications,
policies and procedures for Facility construction, management and operations; membership model;
proprietary SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform; training programs; and advertising and
promotional programs.

Background. You are an officer, director, employee or independent contractor of Franchisee. As a result of
this association, you may gain knowledge of our System and Know-how. You understand that protecting
the Intellectual Property is vital to our success and that of our franchisees and that you could seriously
jeopardize our entire-franchise system if you were to unfairly compete with us—n-erderte or misuse our
Intellectual Property. To avoid such damage, you agree to comply with the terms of this Agreement.




3.

Brand Protection Covenants.

a)—Intellectual Property- and Confidential Information. You agree to:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

—() refrain from using the Intellectual Property or Confidential I[nformation in any
eapaeitybusiness_or for any purpose other than the operation of Franchisee’s SHECESS

Spaee-Facility;

i——(i1) maintain the confidentiality of the- Knew-hew-and-other-all Confidential Information at
all times;

¢i— (1i1) refrain from making unauthorized copies of documents containing anyKnew-hew—or
ether-Confidential Information;

— (iv) take all reasenable—steps we reasonably require to prevent unauthorized use or
disclosure of Knew-hew-or-etherConfidential Information; and

59— (v) immediately stop using the Intellectual Property and Confidential Information_at such
time that you are no longer an officer, director, employee or independent contractor of
Franchisee.

You agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any Improvement developed by
you, including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable law precludes you from assigning ownership
of any Improvement to us, then such Improvement shall be perpetually licensed by you to us free of
charge, with full rights to use, commercialize and sublicense the same.

Unfair Competition. You may not engage in any Prohibited Activities at any time: (i) that you are an
officer, director, employee or independent contractor of Franchisee; or (ii) during the Restricted
Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may have an interest in a Competitiveng Business during
the Restricted Period as long as the Competitiveng Business is not located within the Restricted
Territory. If you engage in any Prohibited Activities during the Restricted Period (other than having an
interest in a Competitiveng Business permitted by this Section), your Restricted Period will be
extended by the period of time during which you were-engagingengaged in the Prohibited Activity.
taAny such extension of time will not be construed as a waiver of your breach or otherwise impair any
of our rights or remedies relating to your breach)-—.

Family Members. Because you could circumvent the purpose of this Agreement by disclosing Ksaew-
hewConfidential Information to an immediate family member (i.e., parent, sibling, child, or
grandchild) and it would be difficult for us to prove any such breach, you will be presumed to have
breached this Agreement if a member of your immediate family engages in any Prohibited Activities
at any time that you are prohibited from engaging in the Prohibited Activities: or uses or discloses
Confidential Information. However, you may rebut this presumption with evidence conclusively
showing you did not disclose knew-hewConfidential Information to the family member.

Covenants Reasonable. You acknewledgeagree that: (i) the terms-efcovenants in this Agreement are
reasonable both in timeduration and inseepe-of-geographic areascope; and (ii) you have sufficient
resources, business experience and opportunities to earn an adequate living while complying with this
Agreement. Although you and we both believe the covenants in this Agreement are reasonable, we
may at any time unilaterally modify the terms of the brand protection covenants in §3 of this
Agreement, upon written notice to you, by limiting the scope of the Prohibited Activities, narrowing
the definition of a Competitiveng Business, shortening the duration of the Restricted Period, reducing
the geographic scope of the Restricted Territory and/or reducing the scope of any other covenant
imposed upon you under §3 of this Agreement to ensure that the terms-and-covenants are enforceable
under applicable law.

Breach. You agree that: (i) any failure to comply with §3 is likely to cause substantial and irreparable
damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy at law; and (ii) we are



entitled to injunctive relief if you breach §3 together with any other relief available at equity or law.
We will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive relief; but we need not post a bond. If a court
requires that we post a bond despite our mutual agreement to the contrary, the reguiredbond amount ef

th%bond—may not exceed $1,000. #aﬂ—mj&ne&en—s—w%ngﬁm%%ﬁed—yokmmﬁeeledﬁsehmeneﬁhe

rssued—mjunetre& None of the remedles avarlable to us under thrs Agreement are exclusrve of any
other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at law or in equity, including
1n]unctlve relief, spe01ﬁe performance and recovery of monetary damages Ne—eme—held—wa

0 O O

4. Miscellaneous.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

If we hire an attorney or file suit against you for breach of this Agreement and we prevail, you must
reimburse us for our reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

This Agreement will be governed by, construed and enforced under the laws of Texas and the courts in
that state shall have exclusive jurisdiction over any legal proceedings arising out of this Agreement.

Each section of this Agreement, including each subsection and portion thereof, is severable. If any
section, subsection or portion of this Agreement is unenforceable, it shall not affect the enforceability
of any other section, subsection or portion. The parties agree that the court may impose such
limitations on the terms of this Agreement as it deems in its discretion necessary to make such terms
reasonable in scope, duration and geographic area.

If you are a resident of Washington, D.C. as of the date you sign this Agreement, then the
noncompetition covenant set forth in this Agreement shall not be applicable to you and the definition
of “Prohibited Activities” shall be deemed amended by deleting clause (a) from such definition.



This Brand Protection Agreement is executed as of the date or dates set forth below.

By:
Name:
Date:




O FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

[See Attached]



CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

This Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by the undersigned (“you ) in favor of Success Franchising,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and its successors and assigns ( s”), upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement.

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement the following terms have the meanings given to them below:

“Business Data” means all data pertaining to Franchisee’s members, customers and business operations
whether collected by yvou, Franchisee, us or any other person.

“Confidential Information” means and includes: (a) the Know-How; (b) the Business Data; (c) the terms of

the Franchise Agreement and all related agreements signed by Franchisee in connection with the Facility,
and all attachments thereto and amendments thereof; (d) the components of the System; (e) all information
within or comprising the Manual; and (f) all other concepts, ideas, trade secrets, financial information,
marketing strategies, expansion strategies, studies, supplier information, customer information, franchisee
information, investor information, flow charts, inventions, mask works, improvements, discoveries,
standards, specifications, formulae, recipes, designs, sketches, drawings, policies, processes, procedures,
methodologies and techniques, together with analyses, compilations, studies or other documents that are: (i)
are-designated as confidential; (ii) are-known by you to be considered confidential by us; and/or (iii) are-by
their nature—inherently—or-reasonably to be considered confidential- due to their nature. Confidential
Information does not include any-information that: (a) is now, or subsequently becomes, generally available
to the public (except as a result of a breach of confidentiality obligations by you, Franchisee or
Franchisee’s owners, employees or other constituents); (b) you can demonstrate was rightfully in your
possession, without obligation of nondisclosure, before the-infermation—was-diselosed-to—youbyuswe (or

any person associated with us) or Franchisee (or any person associated with #s-er-Franchisee);) disclosed

the information to you; (c) is independently developed by you without any use of, or reference to, any
Confidential Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third party who has the right to transfer or
disclose such information to you without breaching any obligation of confidentiality imposed on such third
party.

“Copyrighted Materials” means all copyrightable materials for which we or our affiliate have
seeuredsecure common law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell or
display in connection with the marketing and/or operation of a SUCCESS Space Facility;—whethernew-in
“Facility” or “SUCCESS Space Facility” means a membership-based shared workspace facility that
operates under the Marks and offers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service café and various other amenities.
The term may refer to a Facility operated by us, our affiliate, Franchisee or another franchisee, as the
context may require.

“Franchisee” means the SUCCESS Space franchisee for whom you are an officer, director, employee or
independent contractor.

“Improvements” means any idea, addition, modification or improvement to the (a)-the goods or services
offered or sold at a Facility, (b) the-method of operation of a Facility, (c) the—processes, systems or
procedures utilized by a Facility, (d) the-marketing, advertising or promotional materials, programs or
strategies utilized by a Facility or (e) the-trademarks, service marks, logos or other intellectual property
utilized by a Facility, whether developed by you, Franchisee, us or any other person.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, the Business Data, Copyrighted Materials,
Improvements, Know-how, Marks and System.

“Know-how” means all—efand includes our (and our affiliates’) trade secrets and other proprietary
information relating to the design, construction, development, marketing or operation of a SUCCESS Space




Facility, including, but not limited to: architectural plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype
Facility; site selection criteria; recipes for menu items; methods and techniques; standards and
specifications; policies and procedures; supplier lists and information; marketing strategies; merchandising
strategies; financial information; and information comprising the System or included in Manual.

“Manual” means our confidential brand standards manual for the operation of a SUCCESS Space Facility.

“Marks” means and includes all service marks, trademarks, trade names and logos that we designate from
time to time and authorize SUCCESS Space Facilities to use, including “SUCCESS,” “SUCCESS Space,”
“SUCCESS Coaching” and the associated logos. The Marks also include any distinctive trade dress used to
identify a SUCCESS Space Facility.
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“System” means the proprietary business format and system we developed for the operation of a SUCCESS
Space Facility, the distinctive characteristics of which include, among other things: SUCCESS Space
designs, furniture, fixtures and equipment; site selection and layout criteria; distinctive interior and exterior
design, décor, signage, color scheme and other trade dress elements; proprietary and nonproprietary
products; quality, distinctiveness and uniformity of products and services; standards, specifications,
policies and procedures for Facility construction, management and operations; membership model;
proprietary SUCCESS Spaceware business management platform; training programs; and advertising and
promotional programs.

2. Background. You are an-efficer,direetor; employee or independent contractor of Franchisee. As a result of
this association, you may gain knowledge of our System and Know-how. You understand that protecting
the Intellectual Property is vital to our success and that of our franchisees and that you could seriously
jeopardize our entire-franchise system if you were to unfairly compete with us—r-erderte or misuse our
Intellectual Property. To avoid such damage, you agree to comply with the terms of this Agreement.

3.— Knew-How-and-Intellectual Property- and Confidential Information. You agree to:

H—1(a) refrain from using the Intellectual Property or Confidential Information in any eapaeitybusiness
or for any purpose other than the operation of Franchisee’s SHECESS-Spaece-Facility;

H—(b) maintain the confidentiality of the Know-how-and-etherall Confidential Information at all times;

@iH—(c) refrain from making unauthorized copies of documents containing any Knew-hew—er—ether
Confidential Information;

r—(d) take all reasenable—steps we reasonably require to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of
Knew-hew-or-other-Confidential Information; and

69— (e) immediately stop using the Intellectual Property #mmediateby—ifand Confidential Information at
such time that you are no longer an effieer—direetor,—employee or independent contractor of
Franchisee.

4.3. You agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any Improvement developed by you,
including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable law precludes you from assigning ownership of any
Improvement to us, then such Improvement shall be perpetually licensed by you to us free of charge, with
full rights to use, commercialize and sublicense the same.

5——Family Members. Because you could circumvent the purpose of this Agreement by disclosing Knew-
hewConfidential Information to an immediate family member (i.e., parent, sibling, child, or grandchild)
and it would be difficult for us to prove any such breach, you will be presumed to have breached this

Agreement if a member of your immediate family uses or diselosed—the Know-how—Hewever;
youdiscloses Confidential Information. You may rebut this presumption with evidence conclusively




showing you did not disclose Knew-hewConfidential Information to the family member.

F3.

86.

Breach. You agree that: (a) any failure to comply with this Agreement is likely to cause substantial and
irreparable damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy at law; and (b) we
are entitled to injunctive relief if you breach this Agreement together with any other relief available at
equity or law. We will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive relief; but we need not post a bond. If a
court requlres that we post a bond desplte our rnutual agreement to the contrary, the requﬂcedbond amount

issaed-injunetion-may not exceed $1.000. None of the remedies available to us under this Agreement are
exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at law or in equity,
mcludrng m]unctrve rehef spec1ﬁc performance and recovery of monetary damages—NeeLaer—helel—by—yea

Miscellaneous.

(a) If we hire an attorney or file suit against you for breach of this Agreement and we prevail, you must
reimburse us for our reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

(b) This Agreement will be governed by, construed and enforced under the laws of Texas and the courts in
that state shall have jurisdiction over any legal proceedings arising out of this Agreement.

(c) Each section of this Agreement, including each subsection and portion thereof, is severable. If any
section, subsection or portion of this Agreement is unenforceable, it shall not affect the enforceability
of any other section, subsection or portion. The parties agree that the court may impose such
limitations on the terms of this Agreement as it deems in its discretion necessary to make such terms
enforceable.

This Confidentiality Agreement is executed as of the date set forth below.

By:

Name:
Date:
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AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Area Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of , 202 (the
“Effective Date™) between Success Franchising, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“we” or “us”) and
> a(n) (“you”).

1. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings given to them below-
Any—eapitalizedtermused—in—thisAgreement-thatis, or if not defined below-shall-have, the meanings

given to suehtermthem in the Initial Franchise Agreement-(as-defined-below)-.

“Developer Entity” means the Entity that: (a) signs this Agreement as the area developer (fHeﬂﬂ—lf
this Agreement is signed by an Entity:): or (b) assumes this Agreement subsequent to its execution by the
original Owners.

“Development _Business” means the franchised business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement
consisting of developing and opening Facilities within the Development Territory.

“Development Schedule” means the schedule described in §4.1 and Part BC of ATTACHMENT "A" for
the development of SUCCESS Space Facilities within the Development Territory.

“Development Territory” means the geographic area described in Part €D of ATTACHMENT "A".

“Dispute” means any Claim, dispute or disagreement between the parties, including any matter pertaining
to: (a) the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement; (b) the offer andor sale of the area
development rights; or (c¢) the relationship between the parties.

“Franchise Agreement” means a SUCCESS Space Franchise Agreement executed by us and you (or an
affiliate of yours) for the development and operation of a Facility to be developed by you pursuant to this
Agreement.

“General Release” means our then-current form of Waiver and Release of Claims that you and your
Owners must sign pursuant to §7.2 in connection with a Transfer.

“Initial Franchise Agreement” means the Franchise Agreement aeeeu&ed—by—yeu—eene&ﬁenﬂ-yuwwh—the

exeention-of this-Agreementyou execute for yeurthe first Facility to be establisheddeveloped pursuant to
this Agreement.

“Initial Franchise Fee” means the initial franchise fee you must pay for each Facility to be developed
under this Agreement, which initial franchise fee is set forth in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A".

“Owner”or—Owners Owner” means a Person who meets any of the following criteria: (a) the Person
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directly signs this Agreement as the area developer—, either alone or in conjunction with one or more
other Persons);: (b) the Person directly or indirectly ¢through one or more intermediaries} owns any
Equity Interest in the Developer Entity (if the area developer under this Agreement is an Entity); (c) the
Person directly signs a Franchise Agreement as the franchisee-{. either alone or in conjunction with one or
more other Personsy;; and/or (d) the Person directly or indirectly ¢through one or more intermediaries)
owns any Equity Interest in any affiliate of yours that executes a Franchise Agreement as authorized by

§6.

“Permitted Transfer” means: (a) a Transfer from one Owner to another Owner who was an approved
Owner prior to such Transfer, other than a Transfer that results in the Managing Owner holdwning less
than a20% of the ownership interests in the area-developerfranchiseDevelopment Business or 20% of the
Equity Interests in the Developer Entity, as applicable; and/or (b) a Transfer by the Owners to a newly
established Developer Entity for which such Owners collectively own and control 100% of the Equity
Interests.

“SUCCESS Space Facilitv” or “Facility” means a membership-based shared workspace facility that

operates under the Marks and offers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service café and various other amenities.

“Term” means the period of time beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement and expiring on the

earlier to occur of: (a) the opening date by—which—you—are—required—to—open—thelast Faetlity to—be
developedunderlisted in the Development Schedule for the last Facility you are required to open; or (b)

the date this Agreement is effectively terminated-for-anyreasen.
“Transfer” means any direct or indirect, voluntary or involuntary-(ineludingbyjudicial-award,-orderor

deereey;, assignment, sale, conveyance, subdivision, sublicense or other transfer or disposition of:

(a)  this Agreement (or any interest therein);
(b)  the area development rights granted by this Agreement (or any interest therein);

(¢) the business—eendueted-byDevelopment Business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement (or
any interest therein);

(d)  the right to manage a Facility or occupy the Facility’s premises; or
()  an Equity Interest in the Developer Entity-(, including public and private offerings);;

including by: merger or consolidation;by; judicial award. order or decree; issuance of additional Equity
Interests in the Developer Entity;-erby; foreclosure of a security interest by a lender; or operation of Law,
will or a trust upon the death of an Owner of the Developer Entity—, including the Laws of intestate
successiony..

GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS. Subject to the terms-and-eonditions of this Agreement, we
hereby grant you the right and obligation to develop, open and operate each of the Facilities referred to in
the Development Schedule Each Facﬂlty must be located within the Developrnent Temtory—aﬁd—&t—a
.. This

Agreement does not grant you any rlghts or 11censes to use our Intellectual Property

TERRITORIAL PROTECTIONS AND LIMITATIONS. During the Term we will not develop or
operate, or license a third party to develop or operate, a SUCCESS Space Facility that is—physieally
located within the Development Territory other than: (a) any Facility that is operating, under
development, or for which a franchise agreement has been executed, in each case as of the Effective Date,
and that is (or will be) located within the Development Territory; and (b) any Facility otherwise permitted
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by this Section in connection with Limited Access Locations, Acquisitions and Limited Services
Facilities. At any time during the Term we reserve the right to: (a) develop and operate, and license third
parties to develop and operate, SUCCESS Space Facilities in Limited Access Locations that are located
within the Development Territory; (b) engage in Acquisitions, even if as a result of an Acquisition one or
more competitive businesses of the acquired or acquiring company that are located in your Development
Territory convert to and begin operating as SUCCESS Space Facilities using our Intellectual Property
(including our Marks); and (c) develop and operate, and license third parties to develop and operate,
Limited Services Facilities from any site within your Development Territory that is located a minimum of
three (3) miles from each Facility you develop, subject to your right to receive a Revenue Share in
accordance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement.

5:4. DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS

5.1.4.1.  Development Schedule. You must develop, open and operate all Facilities referred-tolisted
in the Development Schedule. You must develop and open each Facility in strict compliance with
the opening dates set forth in the Development Schedule. We may, in our sole discretion, extend
the time periods listed in the Development Schedule, but only if you demonstrate to our reasonable
satisfaction you used best efforts in attempting to comply with your development obligations and
the need for additional time is due to unforeseeable delays and not due to your neglect, misconduct
or lack of funding. The opening date listed in the Development Schedule for a given Facility may
be earlier than the opening date required under the terms of the associated Franchise Agreement. In
order to comply with the Development Schedule, you must open each Facility by the opening date
listed in the Development Schedule even if such date is earlier than the opening date required by
the associated Franchise Agreement.

5.2.4.2.  Site Selection. You must select a specific site within the Development Territory for each
Facility in compliance with our then-current site selection criteria. Each site you select is subject to
our prior approval in accordance with the applicable Franchise Agreement.

5.3.4.3. Franchise Agreements. You must sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Facility.
You must sign the Initial Franchise Agreement for your first (1*) Facility at the time you sign this
Agreement. We will not review or approve a proposed site until you sign the applicable Franchise
Agreement for the proposed site. Each Franchise Agreement shall be our then-current form of
SUCCESS Space Franchise Agreement (modified to reflect the Initial Franchise Fee listed in this
Agreement), the terms of which may vary materially and substantially from the terms of the Initial
Franchise Agreement. At the time you sign the Franchise Agreement for each new Facility, you
must pay us the balance of the Initial Franchise Fee for that Facility (i.e., $40,500). You have no
right to construct or operate a Facility until the parties have signed the Franchise Agreement and all
ancillary agreements for that Facility. You must develop, open and operate each Facility in
compliance with the Franchise Agreement and the Manual.

5.4.44. Additional Locations. You may not develop any Facility other than the Facilities listed in
the Development Schedule unless we, in our sole discretion, permit you to enter into a new area
development agreement, which will be upon such terms that we specify, after you develop all
Facilities listed in the Development Schedule.

F

DEVELOPMENT FEE. At the time you sign this Agreement; you must pay us: (a) the full Initial
Franchise Fee for your first Facility; and (b) athe development fee for-yourremaining-developmentrights
in-the—ameount-set forth in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A", which-ameunt is calculated as 10% of the
aggregate Initial Franchise Fees for all Facilities to be developed under this Agreement (other than your
first Facility). The development fee is fully earned and nonrefundable upon execution of this Agreement.

Py
H?

AREA-DEVELOPER-AS ENTITY. You represent that Part A of ATTACHMENT "A" includes a
complete and accurate list of your Owners. Upon esr-request, you must previdesend us-with a resolution
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of the Developer Entity authorizing the execution of this Agreement, a copy of the Developer Entitysits
organizational documents and a current Certificate of Good Standing—(er—thefunetional-equivalent
theree).. You may form a separate Entity to enter into each Franchise Agreement provided that: (a) the
Person or Persons owning the Equity Interests (and the percentage of the Equity Interests owned) in each
such Entity must be the same Person or Persons owning the Equity Interests (with the same percentage of
the Equity Interests owned) in the Developer Entity; and (b) each such Entity guarantees the performance
of all other Entities formed under the authorlty of this §6 A—H—dﬂﬁeetEach Owner and indireet-Ownersthe
spouse of th ; ; ; : eseach Owner who is
a natural Person, must sign a Franchlse Owner Agreement

8:7.__TRANSFERS

8.1.7.1. By Us. This Agreement is fully assignable by us (without prior notice to you) and shall inure
to the benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this Agreement,
provided that we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for the performance of
our obligations under this Agreement up to the effective date of the assignment.

8.2.7.2. By You. The rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to you and the
Owners. We are granting you area development rights in reliance upon the character, skill, attitude,
business ability and financial eapaeityresources of you and your Owners. FhereforeBecause this
Agreement is a personal services contract, neither you nor any Owner may engage in a Transfer
(other than a Permitted Transfer) without our prior weitten-approval. Any Transfer (other than a
Permitted Transfer) without our approval shall be void and constitute a breach of this Agreement.
We will not unreasonably withhold ewrapproval-ef-anyprepesed-TFransfer if all of the following
conditions are satisfied:

(1)  we believe the proposed transferee has sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial
resources to develop, own and operate all of the remaining Facilities to be developed under
this Agreement and meets our minimum criteria for area developer franchisees;

(il))  you and your Owners and affiliates are in full compliance with all Definitive Agreements;

(iii)) the transferee’s owners successfully complete, or make arrangements to attend, the initial
training program and the transferee pays us any applicable training fee;

(iv)  the transferee and its owners sign our then-current form of area development agreement
(unless we, in our sole discretion, instruct you to assign this Agreement to the transferee),
except that: (a) the Term shall be the Term remaining under this Agreement; (b) the
transferee need not pay a separate development fee; and (c) the Development Schedule and
Development Territory shall be the same Development Schedule and Development Territory
specified in this Agreement (modified to reflect the development obligations satisfied prior
to the Transfer);

(v)  you or the transferee pay us a transfer fee equal to the greater of: (a) $5,000; or (b) the total
costs we actually incur in connection with the Transfer, including, without limitation, legal
fees and due diligence related expenses (if the transferee is found by a broker we engage,
you must also reimburse us for all commissions we pay to the broker, which amount shall be
in addition to the transfer fee);

(vi) you assign all Franchise Agreements to the transferee in accordance with the transfer
provisions under each such Franchise Agreement—, including payment of any transfer fee
imposed under each such Franchise Agreement);;

(vii) you and your Owners sign a General Release;
(viii) we choose not to elect to exercise our right of first refusal described in §7.5; and

(ix) you or the transferring Owner, as applicable, and the transferee satisfy amyall other
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conditions we reasonably require as a condition to our approval of the Transfer.

You may not: (a) transfer less than yeurentireremainingall area development rights remaining
under this Agreement (i.e., you may not retain the right to develop any Facility); or (b) transfer

your area development rlghts to multiple transferees. Our consent to a Transfer shall not constitute
a waiver of: (a) any Claims we may have against the transferor;-nershal-it-be-deemed-a—waiver-of.
or (b) our right to demand the transferee fully—comply with all terms of the area development
agreements-..

8.3.7.3. Permitted Transfers. You may engage in a Permitted Transfer without our prior approval,
but you must: (a) give us at least 10 days’ prior written notice; and (b) upon our request, cause any
Entity that was the Developer Entity immediately prior to the Permitted Transfer to sign a
corporate guarantee in the format we require to secure performance of the new Developer Entity’s
financial obligations under this-Agreement-and-all-related-agreements-all Definitive Agreements.
You and the Owners (and the transferee) agree to sign all documents we reasonably request to
effectuate and document the Permitted Transfer.

8.4.7.4. Owner Death or Disability-ef-an-Owner. Within 180 days after the death or permanent
disability of an Owner, the Owner’s ownership interest in yeu—er—the—franechisethe Development
Business or Developer Entity, as applicable, must be assigned to another Owner or to a third party
we approve. Any assignment to a third party will be subject to all terms and conditions of §7.2
unless the assignment qualifies as a Permitted Transfer. Ferpurpeses-of-this-Seetion;anAn Owner
is deemed to have a “permanent disability” only if thePersenhe/she has a medical or mental
problem that prevents thePersenhim/her from substantially complying with his-ex-/her obligations
under this Agreement for a continuous period of at least three (3) months.

8.5.7.5.  Our Right of First Refusal. If you or an Owner desires to engage in a Transfer, you or the
Owner, as applicable, must obtain (and send us) a bona-fide offer executed by the purchaser after
completion of due diligence. We have 30 days after receipt of the offer to decide whether to
purchase the interest for the same price and upon the same terms contained in the offer (however,
we may substitute cash for any non-cash form of payment proposed in the offer). If we notify you
within the 30-day period that we intend to purchase the interest, you or the Owner, as applicable,
must sell the interest to us. We will have an additional 30 days to prepare for closing. We will be
entitled to receive from you or the Owner, as applicable, all customary representations and
warranties given by you (as the seller of the assets) or the Owner (as the seller of the ownership
interest) or, at our election, the representations and warranties contained in the offer. If we do not
exercise our right of first refusal, you or the Owner, as applicable, may complete the Transfer to the
purchaser pursuant to the terms of the offer, subject to the requirements of §7.2 (including our
approval of the transferee). However, if the sale is not completed within 120 days after delivery of
the offer to us, or there is a material change to the terms of sale, we will again have the right of first
refusal specified in this Section. Our right of first refusal shall not apply to a Permitted Transfer.

9.8. TERMINATION OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

9.1.8.1. Reasonableness. You represent that you: (a) have conducted your own independent
investigation and analysis of the prospects for the establishmentdevelopment of the Facilities
within the Development Territory; (b) approve the Development Schedule as being reasonable and
viable; and (c) recognize that any failure—te—eemphy—withbreach of the Development Schedule
constitutesis a material breach of this Agreement.

9.2.8.2. Termination of Development Rights —H-youfail-to-comply—with-anyterm-of-this
Agreement—we. We may terminate this Agreement, effective 30—days—aftersiving—yeu—upon

delivery of a written notice of the-defanlt—unless—youfullyeurethe-default-withinsueh 30-day
period—Any—sueh-termination_to you, for any of the following reasons, all of which constitute

material events of default and “good cause” for termination, and without opportunity to cure except
for any cure period expressly set forth below:
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(1) if we terminate any Definitive Agreement due to a default committed by vou or one of your
Owners or affiliates; or

(i1) if you or one of your Owners of affiliates breaches any provision of this Agreement or any
other Definitive Agreement and fails to cure the breach within 30 days after receipt of a default
notice from us.

8.3. Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement will end all of your rights and
development obligations under this Agreement, including without limitation, your interests
in the Development Territory and right to sign new Franchise Agreements or open

additional Facilities. Ia—the-event-of-a—termination,—yeuWe will not reeeive-any—refund any
portion of the development fee, but you will not be obligated to pay the remaining balance

of the In1t1a1 Franchlse Fee for any Facﬂlty w%h—respeet—tefor which—asotfthe-cHectve-dateot

yeuhad not yet been signed.

10.9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any Dispute between the parties relating to this Agreement shall be resolved
pursuant to the dispute resolution provisions in the Initial Franchise Agreement. All such dispute
resolution provisions are incorporated herein by reference as if full set forth in this Agreement.

H-10. REPRESENTATIONS.

11.1.10.1.  Corporate Representations. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and
warrant to us that the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the performance of your
obligations hereunder, does not: (a) conflict with, breach or constitute a default under any other
agreement to which you are (or any affiliate of yours is) a party or by which your (or your
affiliate’s) assets may be bound; (b) violate any order, writ, injunction, decree, judgment or ruling
of any Governmental Authority; or (c) violate any applicable Law. If the developer is an Entity,
then you and your Owners also jointly and severally represent and warrant to us that: (a) the
Developer Entity is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the
state of its formation and has the requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to
perform each of its obligations hereunder; and (b) the execution and delivery of this Agreement
have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action and this Agreement shall constitute the
legal, valid and binding obligation of the Developer Entity and shall be enforceable against the
Developer Entity in accordance with its terms.

11.2.10.2. Franchise Compliance Representations. You and your Owners jointly and severally
represent and warrant to us that you received: (a) an exact copy of this Agreement and its
attachments, with all material terms filled in, at least seven (7) calendar days before you signed this
Agreement; and (b) our Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of (i) 14 calendar days before
you signed a binding agreement or paid any money to us or our affiliates or (ii) such earlier time in
the sales process that you requested a copy.

11.3.10.3. General Representations. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant
to us that: (a) other area developers may operate under different forms of agreement and our
obligations and rights with respect to area developers differs materially in certain circumstances;
and (b) we may negotiate terms or offer concessions to other area developers and we have no
obligation to offer you the same or similar negotiated terms or concessions.

11.4.10.4. Anti-Terrorism Compliance. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and
warrant to us that, to the best of your knowledge: (a) no property or interest owned by you or any
Owner is subject to being “blocked” under any Anti-Terrorism Law; (b) neither you nor any
Owner, nor any of their respective funding sources (including any legal or beneficial owner of any
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Equity Interest in you) or related parties is, or has ever been: (i) a terrorist or suspected terrorist
within the meaning of the Anti-Terrorism Law; or (ii) identified by name (or alias, pseudonym or
nickname) or address on any Terrorist List, including on the list of “Specially Designated
Nationals” or “Blocked Persons” maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign
Assets Control (texts currently available at www.home.treasury.gov); and(c) you and the Owners
are in compliance with, and shall continue to comply with, the Anti-Terrorism Law and all other
Laws (either currently in effect or enacted in the future) prohibiting corrupt business practices,
money laundering or the aid or support of Persons who conspire to commit acts of terror against
any Person or government that are in effect within the United States of America. The foregoing
representations and warranties are ‘continuing’ representations and warranties for the duration of
the franchise relationship. Accordingly, you agree to notify us immediately in writing of the
occurrence of any event or the development of any circumstance that might render any of the
foregoing representations and warranties false, inaccurate or misleading.

12:11. GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1.11.1. Governing Law. This Agreement and the franchise relationship shall be governed by the
Laws of the State of Texas (without reference to its principles of conflicts of law), but any Law of
the State of Texas that regulates the offer and sale of franchises or business opportunities or
governs the relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this Section.

12.2.11.2. _Severability . Each section and subsection of this Agreement, and any portion thereof, shall
be considered severable.

12.3.11.3.  Waivers. We-a * 3
eﬁer—resmeﬁeﬂ—u-peﬂ—th&e%her—Edch party may waive any obllgdtlon 1mooscd on the othcr DdrtV in
writing. Neither party shall be deemed to have waived or impaired any of its contractual rights
under this Agreement (including the right to require strict compliance with all terms of this
Agreement or terminate this Agreement due to the other party’s failure to comply with such terms)
by virtue of: (a) any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms of this Agreement;
(b) any failure, refusal or neglect by either party to exercise any right under this Agreement or
require the other party to strictly comply with its obligations under this Agreement; (c) our waiver
failure or refusal to exercise any of our rights with respect to other area developers; or (d) our
acceptance of payments from you after your breach.

11.4. Approvals. Whenever this Agreement requires our approval, you must make a timely written
request for approval. OQur approval must be in writing in order to bind us. Except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, if we fail to approve any request for approval within the
required period of time, we shall be deemed to have disapproved your request.

12.4.11.5. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed to be in breach
of this Agreement if such party’s failure to perform its obligations results from an event of Force
Majeure; provided, however, that an event of Force Majeure shall not excuse or permit any failure
to perform for more than 180 days. If the period of non-performance exceeds 180 days from receipt
of notice of the Force Majeure event, the party whose ability to perform has not been affected may
immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of termination to the other party.

12.5.11.6. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on the parties hereto and their respective
executors, administrators, heirs, assigns and successors in interest. Nothing in this Agreement is
intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any Person not a party to this
Agreement.

12.6.11.7.  Integration. THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CHANGED EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN
DOCUMENT SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. Any email or other informal electronic
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communication shall not be deemed to modify this Agreement unless it is signed by both parties
and specifically states it is intended to modify this Agreement. The attachment(s) are part of this
Agreement, which, together with any Amendments or Addenda executed on or after the Effective
Date, constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties, and there are no other oral
or written understandings or agreements between us and you about the subject matter of this
Agreement. Any representations not specifically contained in this Agreement made before entering
into this Agreement do not survive after the signing of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
is intended to disclaim any of the representations we made in the Franchise Disclosure Document.
No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement or (b)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person
acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

12.7.11.8. €Ceovenantef Good Faith Covenant. If applicable Law implies into this Agreement a
covenant of good faith and fair dealing, the covenant shall not imply any rights or obligations that
are inconsistent with the express terms of this Agreement. This Agreement-(, and the relationship
of the parties inherent in this Agreement), grants us discretion to make decisions, take actions
and/or refrain from taking actions not inconsistent with our explicit rights and obligations under
this Agreement that may favorably or adversely affect your interests. We will use our judgment in
exercising the discretion based on our assessment of our own interests and balancing those interests

against the interests of our franchisees—(ineludingourselves—and-ouraffiliates—ifapplieable);. but
without considering the individual interests of you or any other partieular-franchisee.

12.8.11.9. Rights of Parties are Cumulative. The rights of the parties under this Agreement are
cumulative and no exercise or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy under this
Agreement will preclude any other right or remedy available under this Agreement or by Law.

12.9.11.10. _Swurvival. All provisions that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration
or Transfer of this Agreement (or the Transfer of an ownership interest in the business or
Developer Entity) shall continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its
termination, expiration or Transfer and until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire.

12.10.11.11. Construction. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define,
limit or construe the contents of the sections or subsections. All references to Sections refer to the
Sections contained in this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All references to days in this
Agreement refer to calendar days unless otherwise specified. The term “you” as used in this
Agreement is applicable to one or more Persons, and the singular usage includes the plural and the
masculine and neuter usages include the other and the feminine and the possessive.

12.11.11.12. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and every term thereof.

12.12.11.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same document.

12.13.11.14. Notice. All notices given under this Agreement must be provided in accordance with the
Notice Provision of the Initial Franchise Agreement.
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The parties to-this-Agreementbelow have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date first above
written.

FRANCHISOR:

Success Franchising, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company

By:
Name:
Its:
YOU (If you are an entity): YOU (If you are not an entity):
a(n) Name:
By:
Name: Name:
Its:
Name:
Name:
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ATTACHMENT "A"
TO AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DEAL TERMS

A. Area Developer Details.

Name of area developer: [ ]

Is the franehiseearca developer one or more natural persons signing in their individual capacity? Yes:
No:

Type of Entity and State of Formation* (if applicable): [ ]

* If the franchiseearea developer is a business eLntity, each watured—personPerson holding a direct or
indirect ownership—interestlquity Interest in the business—entityDeveloper Entity, and spouse of each such
personlerson who is a natural Person, must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement concurrently with the
execution of this Agreement.

Notice Address:

Attention:
Email:

The following table includes the full name of each natural-persenPerson holding a direct or indirect
ownership interest in the area-developerfranchiseBusiness (or the franchisee-business-entityDeveloper Entity

if applicable) along with a description of their ownership interest.

. Direct or Indirect
Owner’s Name % Ownership Interest

(if indirect, describe nature of interest)

B. Fees.
e The Initial Franchise Fee shall be $45,000.

e The development fee shall be $




C. Development Ferritory-

D-Development-Schedule.

You agree to comply with the following minimum development obligations as specified in §4 of the

Agreement:

DEVELOPMENT PERIOD ENDING

NUMBER OF FACILITIES OPENED
DURING DEVELOPMENT PERIOD

CUMULATIVE NUMBER OF FACILITIES
OPENED AND IN OPERATION

1 year after Effective Date

2 years after Effective Date

3 years after Effective Date

4 years after Effective Date

5 years after Effective Date

6 years after Effective Date

7 years after Effective Date

8 years after Effective Date

9 years after Effective Date

10 years after Effective Date

Total Number of Success Space Facilities to be Developed: [ ]

D. Development Territory.

The Development Territory consists of, and shall be limited to, the following geographic area, as may be

further depicted on a map attached below or on the following page:

If the boundaries that define the Development Territory change during the




Term, the boundaries of your Development Territory will remain unaffected and will continue to be defined
by the boundaries that were in effect as of the Effective Date (as may be depicted on a map attached below or
on the following page).

[Insert Map (if applicable)]



EXHIBIT "E"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF BRAND STANDARDS MANUAL

Success Space Franchising

I. Introduction to Success Space Franchising (6 pages)

a.

Introduction to Success Franchising

b. Meet the Leadership Team

C.

Mission, Vision & Values

d. The Success Space Franchise Value Proposition
II. Industry Analysis (5 pages)

a.

The History of Co-working

b. Some of the Players

C.

How Success Space “fits” into the Industry

III. Brand Standards (15 pages)

a.

Overview

b. Franchisee Compliance

C.

i. Protecting the Network
ii. Dealing with Issues

Reporting and Data Management
i. Monthly Royalty Reports
ii. Monthly P&L Reports

IV. Operations (35 pages)

a.

Building Your Local Team
i. Recruitment & Retention
ii. Training
How to Operate the Café
i. Setup & Space Design
ii. Foodservice Management
iii. Inventory Management
iv. Supply & Vendor Relations
How to Manage the Cowork Space
i. Selling Memberships
ii. Managing Your Space
iii. Cleaning & Sanitation
iv. Special Events
Managing the Coaching Business
i. Finding a Great Coach
ii. Marketing Coaching Services
Real Estate, Site Selection & Territory Allocation
Maintenance of the Success Space
Building Out Your Success Space
i. The Design Phase
ii. The Construction Phase
iii. Finishes & Fit-out

h. The Soft Opening
V. The Technology Circle (10 pages)

a.

Success Spaceware Franchise Management System (FMS): Orientation & Training
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The Success Space Franchise Training Campus: Access and Ongoing Usage
Cowork / Membership Software: Orientation & Training
The Cafe Point-of-Sale (POS): Orientation & Training
Using QuickBooks Online
Payment Processing: Orientation & Training
Success Space Brand Portal: Access and Ongoing Usage
Call Center Management (CRM): Orientation & Training
i. The Success Space Virtual Meeting Campus: Orientation & Training
VI. Sales & Marketing (12 pages)
a. Brand Guidelines
i. The Brand Style Guide
ii. Do’s & Don’ts with the Brand
b. Your Local Website
c. Managing Social Media
d. Local Marketing
i. Press Releases
ii. Getting Connected to Local Media
e. The Grand Opening “Event”
f.  Developing Your Sales Plan
VII. Vendors / Suppliers (5 pages)
a. Vendors & Suppliers that Support You
b. Warranties & Support Services
VIII. Ongoing Franchisee Support (6 pages)
a. Building Your Business Plan
b. Coaching & Gap Analysis
c. Onsite Visits from Your Franchise Business Counselor
d. Communication Strategy
i. The Annual Convention
ii. Periodic Meetings
iii. Monthly Franchisee Stand-up Sessions
IX. Handling the Unknown or Emergencies (3 pages)
a. Developing Your Emergency Preparedness Plan
b. How to Handle an Emergency

FR e Al o
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EXHIBIT "F"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF FRANCHISEES

Part A (Current Franchisees)

The following table lists our franchisees that were open as of December 31, 20223.

FRANCHISEES OPEN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20223

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
Texas Fl M 1 6050 Long Prairie Road, Suite 100D 817-783-9885 Brian & Tisha Whit
NoeneTexas ower Mound Flower Mound. Texas 75028 -783-988 rian isha White
6920 Brisbane Ct., Suite 200 Kunal Seth
Texas Sugarland Sugar Land, Texas 77479 281-900-3816 Sonit Seth

* These franchisees are also area developers that have committed to open multiple franchised businesses under
the terms of an area development agreement.

The following table lists our franchisees with signed franchise agreements that were not open as of December

31, 20223.
FRANCHISEES NOT OPEN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20223
State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
Alabama Birmingham TBh—Umitt )
205-523.5250 Jeremy-Galloway
ke Db el
Sos S Sty Jeremy Galloway
Keith A
Alabama Huntsville TBD 256-679-8300 cith Andrews &
April Purnell
Calitornia - I B3 805-827-1709
Florida North Palm TBD 516-714-4928 | Paul & Cindy Metzler
Beach
Florida Tampa TBD 352-467-5473 Emily Harrington
e el aani B S e
.. 504-495-3637 .
Louisiana New Orleans TBD 504.208-7678 Mike & Becky Robb
Nevada Las-Vegas TBb TO23TNT25T Ty-Sedenni-Perera
New York Riverhead TBD 631-905-6263 | Jason & Heather McCue
Mound el b e
S , B
. 2719 N. Loop 1604 W, 101-104 .
Texas San Antonio San Antonio, Texas 78258 210-689-0216 Lisa & Adolgo Guzman
6020 Brichana Ot Qi 1ta 200
T S Land 020-Brisba Suite 1910003816 | 3 ot & SomiLs
S Fallon Hutcherson &
Virginia Stafford TBD 571-288-1927 Felicia Minor-Calliste
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* Any franchisee with an * by their name is an area developers that has committed to open multiple franchised
businesses under the terms of an area development agreement. We did not have any area developers in 2022.

Part B (Former Franchisees Who Left System During Prior Fiscal Year)

. Current Business Phone or Last

State City Known Home Phone Owner Name(s)

Jeffrey Musser

205-605-9432
FleridaAlabama | JaeksenvilleBirminghs > Silepdes Dl
abama irmingham 905-523-5250 31933 Jeremy Galloway: 4

California Oxnard / Camarillo 805-827-1700 Jessica Camarillo

Indiana Carmel 317-617-2851 Amanda Heard
Nevada Las Vegas 702-378-7257 Ty & Jenni Pereza

* These franchisees left the system prior to opening.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the
franchise system.

Franchise Disclosure Document

Page2 (2024)




EXHIBIT "G"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

AREA REPRESENTATIVES

None

Brian and Tisha White — Dallas-Fort Worth, Texas

TO BE INSERTED FOR FDD USED IN TEXAS]
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EXHIBIT "H"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[See Attached]
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Success Franchising, LLC

Balance Sheet
As of August 31, 2023

Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
11165 Checking *5157 58,387.93
11165.1 Bill.com Money Out Clearing 0.00
Total Bank Accounts $ 58,387.93
Accounts Receivable
11303 Accounts Receivable (A/R) 30,000.00
Total Accounts Receivable $ 30,000.00
Other Current Assets
11200 OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES
11361 Accrued Revenue 3,300.00
Total 11200 OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES $ 3,300.00
11600 PREPAID EXPENSES
11614 Prepaid Expenses 14,223.61
11614.1 Prepaid Commissions 46,450.00
11614.2 Deferred Charges 5,400.00
Total 11600 PREPAID EXPENSES $ 66,073.61
— M HNTERCOMPANY=DUEFROM
11701.3 Due From Success Enterprises, LLC 271.81
Total 11701 INTERCOMPANY - DUE FROM $ 271.81
Total Other Current Assets $ 69,64542
Total Current Assets $ 158,033.35
TOTAL ASSETS $ 158,033.35
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
21111 Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00
Total Accounts Payable $ 0.00
Other Current Liabilities
21130.0 CREDIT CARDS
21130 Accrued Credit Cards 16,936.32
Total 21130.0 CREDIT CARDS $ 16,936.32
21151 INTERCOMPANY - DUE TO
21151.1 Due To Success Enterprises, LLC 678,304.11
21151.2 Due To WHI 137,715.74
21151.4 Due to SUCCESS World Holdings LLC 505,000.00
Total 21151 INTERCOMPANY - DUE TO $ 1,321,019.85
21300 ACCRUED LIABILITIES
21320 Deferred Revenue 246,500.00
21330 Accrued Expenses 32,806.61
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21340 Commissions Payable
Total 21300 ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
31210 Investment From SWH
31410 Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Friday, Sep 29, 2023 07:51:02 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis

6,000.00

285,306.61

1,623,262.78

1,623,262.78

»n|w|n|ew

1,623,262.78

2,079,087.00
-2,292,306.71
-1,252,009.72

1,465,229.43

158,033.35
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Success Franchising, LLC

Profit and Loss
August 31, 2023

Income

41500 Franchising Revenue

Total

41507 Initial Franchise Fee 2,375.00
41507.1 Technology Fee 1,650.00
Total 41500 Franchising Revenue 4,025.00
Total Income 4,025.00
Cost of Goods Sold
51000 Cost of Goods Sold
51118 COGS - Other 1.04
51132 COGS - Software 104.00
51135 COGS - Commissions & Revenue Share 500.00
Total 51000 Cost of Goods Sold 605.04
Total Cost of Goods Sold 605.04
Gross Profit 3,419.96
Expenses
61000 COMPENSATION
61111 Salary and Wages - Direct 57,955.59
61135 Bonus 12,533.34
6415t EmployeeBenefits 709795
61152 401 (k) Employer Match 2,250.60
61210 Payroll Tax Expenses 17,876.62
Total 61000 COMPENSATION 97,714.10
61500 OFFICE
61600 State Annual Report Fees 115.00
61610 Office Supplies & Software 40.58
61650 Credit Card Fees 7.50
61670 Dues and Subscriptions 208.33
91720 Miscellaneous Office Expense 125.87
Total 61500 OFFICE 497.28
62000 COMPUTER & SOFTWARE
62061 Software Subscriptions 2,166.24
62062 CRM Mgmt Subscription 1,000.00
62072 Accounting Software 257 .19
Total 62000 COMPUTER & SOFTWARE 3,423.43
62500 UTILITIES
62590 Internet Service 240.00
Total 62500 UTILITIES 240.00
63000 TRAVEL & ENTERTAINMENT
63560 Airfare 337.80
63580 Ground Transportation 3.20
63610 Meals 113.62
Total 63000 TRAVEL & ENTERTAINMENT 454.62
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64000 ADVERTISING & MARKETING
64065 Internet Advertising Other
64070 Promotional Materials
Total 64000 ADVERTISING & MARKETING
64100 PROFESSIONAL FEES
64111 Accounting
64112 Audit and Tax
64141 NON - ADV Intellectual Property
64146 NON - ADV Corporate Regulatory & Compliance
64220 Consulting Fees
Total 64100 PROFESSIONAL FEES
64500 STOCK
64510 Stock Option - Employee - 1ISO
64511 Stock Option - Employee - NQ
Total 64500 STOCK
Total Expenses
Net Operating Income

Net Income

Friday, Sep 29, 2023 07:51:10 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis

6,603.61
858.22

7,461.83

-55,477.80
58,744 .47
467.00
3,340.00
30,434.00

37,507.67

870.22
17,090.72

17,960.94

165,259.87

161,839.91

161,839.91
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND
PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 INCEPTION)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND FOR
THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 (INCEPTION)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

Table of Contents

Page
Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Financial Statements
Balance sheets 3
Statements of operations and member's deficit 4
Statements of cash flows 5
Notes to financial statements 6-13

Franchise Disclosure Document (2024)




Q Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

JCOOPERMAN®
225 Broadhollow Road, Suite 401

Melville, NY 11747
T 631.930.5000 F 516.349.2190

citrincooperman.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Member
Success Franchising, LI.C

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Success Franchising, LLI.C (a limited liability
company), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related
statements of operations and member's deficit, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2022

and for the period from January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021, and the related notes
to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Success Franchising, L.I.C as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2022 and for the period from January
12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Success Iranchising, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparaton and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
ELrof.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Success Franchising, 1.I.C's
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

“Citrin Cooperman” is the brand under which Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP, a licensed independent CPA firm, and Citrin Cooperman
Advisors LLC serve clients’ business needs. The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice structure. Citrin Cooperman
is an independent member of Moore North America, which is itself a regional member of Moore Global Network Limited (MGNL).
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Q Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP
JCOOPERMAN"

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
1 i g Ty = = = i
opinion on the effectiveness of Success Franchising, LLC's internal control. Accordingly, no

such opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

° Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Success Franchising, ILI.C's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable petiod of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Melville, New York
April 18, 2023
“Citrin Cooperman” is the brand under which Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP, a licensed independent CPA firm, and Citrin Cooperman

Advisors LLC serve clients’ business needs. The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice structure. Citrin Cooperman
is an independent member of Moore North America, which is itself a regional member of Moore Global Network Limited (MGNL).
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 5434 § 19,248
Accounts recetvable 60,000 -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 29,303 -
Deferred charges - current 7,200 1,200
Total current assets 101,937 20,448
Other asset:
Deterred charges, net of current 59,450 10,700
TOTAL ASSETS $ 161387 § 31148
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT
Current habilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 60918 § 30,427
Deferred revenue - current 34,500 6,000
Due to related party - 460,303
Total current liabihties 95418 496,730
Long-term lhability:
Deferred revenue, net of current 285.000 53.500
Total habilities 380,418 550,230
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4 and 6)
Member's deficit (219.031) (519.082)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT $ 101387 § 31,148

See accompanying notes to finaneial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBER'S DEFICI'T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND FOR THE
PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 (INCEPTION)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

2022 2021
Revenues:

Franchise fees $ 24500 § 500
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,538,536 784,582
Net loss (1,514,036) (784,082)
Member's deficit - beginning (519,082 -
Member contributions 1,814,087 315,000
Member distributions = (50.000)
MEMBER'S DEFICIT - ENDING 3 (210031) § (510,082

See accompanying notes to finaneial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND FOR THE
PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 (INCEPTION)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $  (1,514,036) § (784,082)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (60,000) -
Prepaid expenses (29,303) :
Deferred charges (54,750) (11,900)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 30,491 30,427
Deferred revenues 260,000 59,500
Due to related parties {(460.303) 460,303
Net cash used in operating activities (1.827.901) (245.752)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Member contributions 1,814,087 315,000

Member distributions {50.000)

Net cash provided by financing activities 1,814,087 265.000

Net increase (decrease) in cash (13,814 19,248
Cash - beginning 19.248 -

CASH - ENDING $ 5434 § 19.248

See accompanying notes to finaneial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1. ORGANTZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Success Franchising, LLC (the "Company"), 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of Success
World Holdings, LLC (the "Member"), was formed on January 12, 2021, as a Delaware
limited liability company to sell franchises pursuant to a non-exclusive license agreement
executed i Aprl 2021, between the Company and Success Enterprises, LLC (the
"Licensor"), an entity related to the Company by common ownership and control.
Pursuant to the Company's standard franchise agreement, franchisees will operate a
business under the "Success Space” name and system that offers entrepreneurs and
corporate workers flexible rental options combmed with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service cafe and other
various amenities.

The Member 1s not liable for the debts, obligations or other labilities of the Company,
whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, to the extent of the Company's assets
unless the Member has signed a specific guarantee.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("LLS. GAAP™).

G i £ ot +
T SCOT THSTHIATCS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 1n the
financial statements and accompanying disclosures. These estimates may be adjusted
due to changes 1 future economuc, industry or other financial conditions. Estimates are
used in accounting for, among other items, revenue recognition and uncertain income
tax positions. Actual results could ultimately differ from these estimates.

Accounts Recervable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect. The
Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of some of its franchisees to make required payments. Management
considers the following factors when determining the collectibility of specific franchisee
accounts: franchisee creditworthiness, past transaction history with the franchisee, and
current economic industry trends. If the financial conditions of the Company’s
franchisees were to deteriorate, adversely affecting their ability to make payments,
additional allowances would be required. Based on management’s assessment, the
Company provides for estimated uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings
and a credit to a valuation allowance. Balances that remain outstanding after the
Company has made reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts recervable. The Company had no
allowances for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2022 and 2021. The accounts
receivable balance at December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted to $60,000 and §-,

respectively.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Cuash

The Company places its cash, which may at times be in excess of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation insurance limits, with a major financial mstitution. Management
believes that this policy will limit the Company's exposure to credit risk.

Accounts receivable

Concentration of credit risk with respect to recervables 1s linited due to the number of
franchisees in the Company's customer base and their geographic dispersion. The
Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estunated collection
losses based on historical experience coupled with a review of the current status of
existing recervables.

Revenues and Cost Recognition

The Company derives substantially all of its revenue from franchise agreements related
to franchise revenue, advertising fund revenue, royalties and transfer fees.

Franchise Fees and Royalties

Contract consideration from franchisees consists primarily of initial or renewal franchise

FPPQ} multi-unat agrPPmF-ni‘ fees l’"MTTA:"\, sales-based rnya]ﬁpc’ sales-based mquzphng

fund fees and transfer fees payable by a franchisee for the transfer of its franchise unit
to another franchisee. The Company enters into MUAs which grant a franchisee the
right to develop two or more franchise territories. The Company collects an up-front
fee for the grant of such nights. The imtial franchise fees and up-front multi-unit fees
are nonrefundable and collectable when the underlying franchise agreement or MUA 1s
signed by the franchisee. Sales-based royalties and marketing fund fees are payable on a
weekly basis. Renewal and transfer fees are due from franchisees when an existing
franchisee renews the franchise agreement for an additional term or when a transfer to a
third party occurs, respectively.

The Company's primary performance obligation under the franchise agreement mainly
includes granting certain rights to access the Company's intellectual property and a
variety of activities relating to opening a franchise unit, mncluding initial training and
other such activities commonly referred to collectively as "pre-opening activities.” Pre-
opening activities consistent with those under Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
No. 2021-02, Franchisors—Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Subtopic 952-606) ("ASU
2021-02"), are recognized as a single performance obligation. For all other pre-opening
activities, 1f any, the Company will determine if a certain portion of those pre-opening
activities provided to the franchisee 1s not brand specific and provides the franchisee
with relevant general business information that is separate and distinct from the
operation of a company-branded franchise unit. The portion of pre-opening activities if
any, that 1s not brand specific will be deemed to be distinct as it provides a benefit to
the franchisee and is not highly interrelated or interdependent to the access of the
Company’s intellectual property, and therefore 1s accounted for as a separate distinct
petformance obligation. All other pre-opening activities that are highly mterrelated and
interdependent to the access of the Company’s intellectual property and therefore
accounted for as a single performance obligation, which 1s satistied by granting certain

-
{
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues and Cost Recognition (Continued)
Franchise Fees and Royalties (Continned)

rights to access the Company's intellectual property over the term of each franchise
agreement.

The Company estimates the stand-alone selling price of pre-opening activities using an
adjusted market assessment approach. The Company first allocates the initial franchise
fees and the fixed consideration under the franchise agreement to the stand-alone selling
price of the pre-opening activities and the residual, 1f any, to the nght to access the
Company’s intellectual property. Consideration allocated to pre-opening activities 1s
recogmized ratably as those services are rendered.

Initial and renewal franchise fees allocated to the right to access the Company’s
intellectual property 1s recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of
the respective franchise agreement. MUAs generally consist of an obligation to grant the
right to open two or more territories. These development rights are not distinct from
franchise agreements; therefore, up-front fees paid by franchisees for development
rights is deferred and apportioned to each franchise agreement signed by the franchisee.
The pro-rata amount apportioned to each franchise agreement 1s recognized as revenue
in the same manner as the mmitial and renewal franchise fees. Initial and renewal
franchise fees related to the MUASs are recorded as contract liabilities at their contract

transaction price.

Royalties are earned based on a percentage of a franchisee's gross revenues. Franchise
royalties represent sales-based royalties that are related entirely to the use of the
Company’s intellectual property and are recognized as franchisee sales occur and the
royalty 1s deemed collectible.

Brand Fund

The Company maintains a brand fund established to collect and administer funds
contributed for use n advertising and promotional programs for franchise units. Brand
fund fees are collected from franchisees based on a percentage of franchisee gross sales.
The Company has determined that it acts as a principal m the collection and
administration of the brand fund and therefore recognizes the revenues and expenses
related to the brand fund on a gross basts. The Company has determined that the right
to access its intellectual property and administration of the brand fund are highly
interrelated and therefore are accounted for as a single performance obligation. As a
result, revenues from the brand fund represent sales-based royalties related to the right
to access the Company’s intellectual property, which are recognized as franchisee sales
occur. When brand fund fees exceed the related brand fund expenses in a reporting
period, advertising costs are accrued up to the amount of brand fund revenues
recognized.

Other Revenues

The Company recognizes revenues from other fees and other services provided to the
franchisees as a single performance obligation when the services are rendered.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenues and Cost Recognition (Continued

Tncremental Costs of Obtaining a Contract

The Company capitalizes direct and incremental costs, principally consisting of
commissions, associated with the sale of franchises and amortizes them over the term of
the franchise agreement. In the case of costs paid related to MUAs for which no signed
franchise agreement has been received, these costs are deferred until the signed
franchise agreement is recetved.

Income Taxes

The Company 1s a single-member limited liability company and is therefore considered a
disregarded entity for ncome tax purposes. Accordingly, no provision has been made
for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements, since all items of income or
loss are required to be reported on the income tax returns of the member, who is
responsible for any taxes thereon.

The Company recognizes and measures its unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with
Financil Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification
("ASC™ 740, Income Taxes. Under that guidance, management assesses the likelihood
that tax positions will be sustained upon examination based on the facts, circumstances
and information, including the technical merits of those positions, available at the end
of each period. The measurement of unrecognized tax benefits is adjusted when new

information 1s available or when an event occurs that requires a change. There were no
uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $156,006 and $58,722 for
the year ended December 31, 2022, and the period from January 12, 2021 (inception)
through December 31, 2021, respectively.

Recently Issued but not yet Effective Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financal Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments ("ASU 2016-13"), and subsequent
amendment to the tnitial guidance: ASU No. 2018-19, Codification Improvements to Topic
326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (collectively, "Topie 326"). Topie 326 mtroduces a
new forward-looking approach, based on expected losses, to estimate credit losses on
certain types of financial instruments, including trade recervables. The estimate of
expected credit losses will require entities to incorporate considerations of historical
information, current information, and reasonable and supportable forecasts and will
generally result in earher recognition of allowances for losses. For non-public
companies, Topic 326 will be effective for annual and interim reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2022. The guidance 1s to be applied using the modified
retrospective approach. The Company 1s 1n the process of assessing the impact of Topic
3206 on its financial statements.
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NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Subsequent Fvents

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 18, 2023, the date on
which these tinancial statements were available to be 1ssued. Except as disclosed in Note
8, there were no material subsequent events that required recognition or additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

FRANCHISED OUTLETS

The following data reflects the status of the Company's franchised outlets as of and for
the year ended December 31:

2022 2021
Franchises sold 10 4

Franchises purchased > -

Franchised outlets in operation - -
Franchisor-owned outlets in operation = -

LIQUIDITY AND BUSINESS RISKS

The Company has sustained negative cash flows from operations and, as a result, has a
member's deficit of $219,031 as of December 31, 2022, Since mception, the Company's
operations have been funded through a combmauon of contributions from the Member
and proceeds from a related party, affiliated by common control and ownership. The

NOTE 5.

Company is growing and, as such, 1s incurring expenditures in the near term to benefit
the future as it looks to grow the franchisce base and expand into new markets. Such
expenses could be reduced or elimmated in order to improve operating cash tlows as
needed.

As of the date these financial statements were available to be issued, the Company
continues to focus on selling franchises and revenues are expected to increase. The
Member has the intent and ability to continue funding the Company's operations, 1f
necessary, should its cash flows from operations combined with its cash balances not be
sufficient to meet its working capital needs. The Company believes that this will enable
it to meet 1ts funding requirements for one year from the date these financial statements
were available to be issued.

REVENUES AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES

Disaggregated Revenues

The Company derives its revenues from franchisees located throughout the United
States. The economuic risks of the Company’s revenues are dependent on the strength of
the economy in the Umnited States, and its ability to collect on its contracts. The
Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by tuning of revenue
recognition by type of revenues, as it believes this best depicts how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.
Initial franchise fees are recognized over time, while royalties, brand fund fees, other
franchise related fees are recognized at a point in time.

10
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NOTE 5.

SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

REVENUES AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Contract Balances

Contract labilities are comprised of unamortized initial franchise fees received from
franchisees, which are presented as "Deferred revenue” in the accompanying balance
sheets. A summary of significant changes in deferred revenues is as follows:

2022 021
Deferred revenues - beginning of period $ 59,500 % -
Revenue recognized during the period (24,500) (500)
Additions for mitial franchise fees received 284,500 60,000
Deferred revenues - end of period $ 319500 § 59,500

At December 31, 2022, revenues expected to be recognized over the remaming term of
the associated franchise agreements are as follows:

Year ending Decernber 31: Amount
2023 $ 34,500
2024 34,500
2025 34,500
2026 34,500
2027 34,500
Thereafter 147.000

Total $ 319.500

Deferred revenues consisted of the following:

2022 2021
Franchise units not yet opened $ 319,500 § 59,500
Opened franchise units - -
Total $ 319,500 $ 59,500

The direct and incremental costs, principally consisting of commussions, are included in
"Deferred charges” in the accompanying balance sheets, and expected to be recognized
over the remaining term of the associated franchise agreements at Decernber 31, 2022,
1s as follows:

Year ending December 31: Amount
2023 § 7,200
2024 7,200
2025 7,200
2026 7,200
2027 7,200
Thereafter 30,650

11
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 6. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

License Agreement

In April 2021, the Company entered mto a non-exclusive license agreement with the
Licensor for the use of the registered name "Success Space” (the "license agreement”).
Pursuant to the license agreement, the Company acquired the right to operate Success
Space franchises, and the night to earn franchise fees, royalties and other fees from
franchisees. The Licensor will not license the trademarks and/or confidential
information to any third parties for the purpose of operating a competing franchise
system. In accordance with the license agreement, the Company will not be required to
pay the Licensor a license fee.

Due to Related Party

In the ordinary course of business, the Company periodically advances funds to and
recetves funds from Success Enterprises, LLC (the "related party”), an entity related to
the Company by commen ownership and control. No interest 1s charged on these
advances and such advances to and from the related party are unsecured and have no
specific repayment terms. As of December 31, 2022, there were no outstanding
advances due to the related party. At December 31, 2021, outstanding advances due to
the related party amounted to $460,303. During 2022, the Company engaged the related
party to provide coaching certifications to its franchisees and had prepaid $25,000 in
connection with this service, the balance of which 1s included in "Prepaid expenses and

NOTE 7. BRAND DEVELOPMENT FUND

Brand Fund

Pursuant to the structured form of the franchising arrangement, the Company reserves
the right to collect brand fund fees of up to 1% of franchisees’ reported sales. These
funds are to be spent solely on advertising and related expenses for the benefit of the
franchisees with a portion designated to offset the Company's administrative costs to
administer the funds, all at the discretion of the Company. As of December 31, 2022,
the brand fund was not established.

Cooperative Advertising Fund

The Company reserves the nght to establish a cooperatve advertising fee
("Cooperative") for a region in which twe or more facilities are located and will collect
up to 1% of its franchisees’ gross revenues. Any contributions to a Cooperative will be
credited towards a franchisee’s local marketing commitment. As of December 31, 2022,
the Cooperative was not established.

12
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 8. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Recent Events Relating to the Disruption in the U.S. Banking System

In March 2023, the shut-down of certain financial institutions raised economic concerns
over disruption in the U.S. banking system. The U.S. government took certain actions
to strengthen public confidence in the U.S. banking system. However, there can be no
certainty that the actions taken by the U.S. government will be effective in mitigating the
cttects of financial mnstitution fatlures on the economy, which may lunit the Company
and it's member access to short-term liquidity in the near term or other adverse
effects. The Company does not maintain cash balances that exceed federally insured
limits as of December 31, 2022, and the date these financial statements are available to
be 1ssued. The Company has a certain concentration in accounts recewvable however the
r1sk of loss, if the counterparty s unable to perform as a result of future disruptions 1n
the U.S. banking system or economy, would not have a material mmpact on the
Company's financial statements or operations. Given the uncertainty of the situation,
the related tinancial impact cannot be reasonably estumated at this tune.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Q Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

JCOOPERMAN®
225 Broadhollow Road, Suite 401

Melville, NY 11747
T 631.930.5000 F 516.349.2190

citrincooperman.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Member
Success Franchising, LL.C

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Success Franchising, LLI.C (a limited liability
company), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of

operations and member's deficit and cash flows for the period from January 12, 2021 (inception)
through December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Success Franchising, LLC as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the petiod from January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31,

2021, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Success Franchising, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
ot events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Success Franchising, LLC's
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

“Citrin Cooperman” is the brand under which Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP, a licensed independent CPA firm, and Citrin Cooperman
Advisors LIC serve clients’ business needs. The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice structure. Citrin Cooperman
is an independent member of Moore North America, which is itself a regional member of Moore Global Network Limited (MGNL).
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Q Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP
JCOOPERMAN"

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements,

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

A S 55 - = 5
opinion on the effectiveness of Success Pranchising, LLC's internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

° Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Success Franchising, ILI.C's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable petiod of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Melville, New York
April 15, 2022
“Citrin Cooperman” is the brand under which Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP, a licensed independent CPA firm, and Citrin Cooperman

Advisors LLC serve clients’ business needs. The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice structure. Citrin Cooperman
is an independent member of Moore North America, which is itself a regional member of Moore Global Network Limited (MGNL).
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2021

ASSE'TS

Current assets:
Cash
Deferred charges - current

Total current assets

Other asset:
Deferred charges, net of current

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT

Current liabilities:

$ 19,248
1,200

—_——ae

20,448

10,700

—

$ 31,148

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 30,427
Deferred revenue - current 6,000
Due to related party 460,303
Total current labilities 496,730
Long-term liability:
Deferred revenue - net of current 53,500
Totat tabitites 550,250
Commuitments and contingencies (Note 3)
Member's deficit 519.082)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT $ 31,148

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 (INCEPTION)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

Revenues:

Franchise fees $ 500
Selling, general and administrative expenses 784,582
Net loss (784,082)
Member's equity - beginning -
Member contributions 315,000
Member distributions (50,000
MEMBER'S DEFICIT - ENDING $ (510082

See accompanying notes to finaneial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 (INCEPTION)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating actvities:
Net loss $ {784,082)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used 1n operating actrvities:
Changes in operating assets and habilities:

Deferred charges (11,900)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 30,427

Deferred revenues 59,500

Due to related parties 460,303

Net cash used in operating activities (245,752

Cash flows from financing activities:

Member contributions 315,000

Member distributions (50,000)

Net cash provided by financing activities 265,000

Net increase in cash 19,248
Cash - beginning .

CASH - ENDING $ 19,248

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Success Franchising, LLC (the "Company"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Success
World Holdings, LLC (the "Member"), was formed on January 12, 2021, as a Delaware
limited liability company to sell franchises pursuant to a non-exclusive license agreement
executed mn April 2021, between the Company and Success Enterprises, LLC (the
"Licensor"), an entity related to the Company by common ownership and control.
Pursuant to the Company's standard franchise agreement, franchisees will operate a
business under the "Success Space” name and system that offers entrepreneurs and
corporate workers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service cafe and other
various amenities.

The Member is not hable for the debts, obligations or other habilities of the Company,
whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, to the extent of the Company's assets
unless the Member has signed a specific guarantee.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting mn accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("U.S. GAAP").

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1.8, GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the
finaneial statements and accompanying disclosures. These estimates may be adjusted
due to changes in future economic, industry or other financial conditions. Estimates are
used in accounting for, among other items, revenue recognition and uncertain income
tax positions. Actual results could ultimately differ from these estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company places its cash, which may at tines be in excess of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation insurance limits, with a major financial mstitution. Management
believes that this policy will limit the Company's exposure to credit risk.

Revenues and Cost Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue under Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC")
Topic 606, Revenne from Contracts with Customrers. The Company dertves substantially all of
its revenue from franchise agreements related to franchise revenue, advertising fund
revenue, royalties and transter fees.

Franchise Fees and Royalties

Contract consideration from franchisees consists primarily of initial or renewal franchise
fees, multi-unit agreement fees ("MUAs"), sales-based royalties, sales-based marketing
fund fees and transfer fees payable by a franchisee for the transfer of their franchise unit
to another franchisee. The Company enters into MUAs which grant a franchisee the
right to develop two or more franchise territories. The Company collects an up-front
fee for the grant of such rights. The mtial franchise fees and up-front multi-umt fees
are nonrefundable and collectable when the underlying franchise agreement or MUA 1s

6
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues and Cost Recognition (Continued
Franchise Fees and Royalties (Continued)

signed by the franchisee. Sales-based royalties and marketing fund fees are payable ona
weekly basis. Renewal and transfer fees are due from franchiseces when an existing
franchisee renews the franchise agreement for an additional term or when a transfer to a
third party occurs, respectively.

The Company's primary performance obligation under the franchise agreement mainly
includes granting certain rights to access the Company's intellectual property and a
variety of activities relating to opening a franchise unit, including initial training and
other such activities commonly referred to collectively as "pre-opening activities.” Pre-
opening activities consistent with those under Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
No. 2021-02, Franchisors—Revermue from Contracts with Customers (Subtopic 952-606) ("ASU
2021-02"), are recognized as a single performance obligation. For all other pre-opening
activities, 1f any, the Company will determine if a certain portion of those pre-opening
activities provided to the franchisee 1s not brand specific and provides the franchisee
with relevant general business information that is separate and distinct from the
operation of a company-branded franchise unit. The portion of pre-opening activities 1f
any, that 1s not brand specific will be deemed to be distinct as it provides a benefit to
the franchisee and is not highly interrelated or interdependent to the access of the
Company’s intellectual property, and therefore is accounted for as a separate distinct

performance obligation. All other pre-opemng activities that are highly mterrelated and
interdependent to the access of the Company’s intellectual property and therefore
accounted for as a single performance obligation, which is satsfied by granting certain
rights to access the Company's intellectual property over the term of each franchise
agreement.

The Company estimates the stand-alone selling price of pre-opening activities using an
adjusted market assessment approach. The Company first allocates the initial franchise
fees and the fixed consideration under the franchise agreement to the stand-alone selling
price of the pre-opening activities and the residual, if any, to the right to access the
Company’s intellectual property. Consideration allocated to pre-opening activities, other
than those included under ASU No. 2021-02, which are not brand specific 1s recognized
ratably as those services are rendered. Consideration allocated to pre-opening actvities
included under ASU No. 2021-02 1s recognized when those performance obligations are
satisfied.

Initial and renewal franchise fees allocated to the right to access the Company’s
intellectual property 1s recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of
the respective franchise agreement. MUAs generally consist of an obligation to grant the
right to open two or more territories. These development rights are not distinct from
franchise agreements; therefore, up-front fees paid by franchisees for development
rights 1s deferred and apportioned to each franchise agreement signed by the franchisee.
The pro-rata amount apportioned to each franchise agreement is recogmized as revenue
in the same manner as the mitial and renewal franchise fees. Initial and renewal
franchise fees related to the MUAs is recorded as contract liabilities at thewr contract
transaction price.

=1
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues and Cost Recognition (Continued)

Franchise Fees and Royalties (Continned)

Royalties are earned based on a percentage of a franchisee's gross revenues. Franchise
royalties represent sales-based royalties that are related entirely to the use of the
Company’s intellectual property and are recognized as franchisee sales occur and the

rovalty 1s deemed collectible.
Brand Frnd

The Company maintains a brand fund established to collect and administer funds
contributed for use in advertising and promotional programs for franchise units. Brand
fund fees are collected from franchisees based on a percentage of franchisee gross sales.
The Company has determined that it acts as a principal in the collection and
administration of the brand fund and therefore recognizes the revenues and expenses
related to the brand fund on a gross basis. The Company has determined that the right
to access its intellectual property and admumistration of the brand fund are highly
interrelated and therefore are accounted for as a single performance obligation. As a
result, revenues from the brand fund represent sales-based royalties related to the right
to access the Company’s intellectual property, which are recogmzed as franchisee sales
occur. When brand fund fees exceed the related brand fund expenses in a reporting
period, advertising costs are accrued up to the amount of brand fund revenues

P |
thusuu.bu.
Other Revenues

The Company recognizes revenues from other fees and other services provided to the
franchisees as a single performance obligation when the services are rendered.

Incremental Costs of Obtaining a Contract

The Company capitalizes direct and incremental costs, principally consisting of
commissions, associated with the sale of franchises and amortizes them over the term of
the franchise agreement.

Income Taxes

The Company 1s a single-member limited liability company and 1s therefore considered a
disregarded entity for mcome tax purposes. Accordingly, no provision has been made
for mcome taxes in the accompanying financial statements, since all items of income or
loss are required to be reported on the income tax returns of the member, who 1s
responsible for any taxes thereon.

The Company recognizes and measures 1ts unrecogrnized tax benefits m accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB™) ASC 740, Income Taxes. Under that
guidance, management assesses the likelihood that tax positions will be sustained upon
examination based on the facts, circumstances and information, including the technical
merts of those positions, available at the end of each period. The measurement of
unrecognized tax benefits 1s adjusted when new information 1s available or when an
event occurs that requires a change. There were no uncertain tax positions at December
31, 2021.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Advertising
The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. There was $58,722 of advertising

costs incurred for the period from January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31,
2021.

Franchised Qutlets

The following data represents the Company's franchised outlets as of December 31,
2021:

Franchises sold 4
Franchises purchased -
Franchised outlets in operation -
Franchisor-owned outlets in operation =

Recently Issued but not yet Effective Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, FASB 1ssued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-02,
Leases ("ASU 2016-02"), which among other items, requires an entity to recognize lease
assets and lease liabilities mn the Company's balance sheet and to disclose key
information about leasing transactions. In June 2020, FASB issued ASU No. 2020-05,
which defers the effective date for annual reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2021. The Company is evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-02 will have on its

. S | | 1 % [ |3 1
trmancm-staterments andretateddrsclosures:

Subsequent Fvents

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 15, 2022, the date on
which these financial statements were available to be issued. There were no material
subsequent events that required recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

NOTE 3. LIQUIDITY AND BUSINESS RISKS

The Company has sustained negative cash flows from operations and, as a result, has an
accumulated deficit of approximately $519,000 as of December 31, 2021. Since
inception, the Company's operations have been funded through a combination of
contributions from the Member and proceeds from a related party, affiliated by
common control and cwnership. The Company is growing and, as such, is incurring
expenditures in the near term to benefit the future as it looks to grow the franchisee
base and expand mto new markets. Such expenses could be reduced or elummated 1n
order to improve operating cash flows as needed.

As of the date these financial statements were available to be issued, the Company
continues to focus on selling franchises and revenues are expected to increase. The
Member has the mntent and ability to continue fundmng the Company's operations, 1f
necessary, should its cash flows from operations combined with its cash balances not be
sufficient to meet its working capital needs. The Company believes that this will enable
it to meet its funding requirements for one year from the date these financial statements
were available to be issued.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4. REVENUES AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES

Disagoregated Revenues

The Company derives its revenues from franchisees located throughout the United
States. The economic risks of the Company’s revenues are dependent on the strength of
the economy in the United States, and its ability to collect on its contracts. The
Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by timing of revenue
recognition by type of revenues, as it believes this best depicts how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertamnty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.
Initial franchise fees are recognized over time, while royalties, brand fund fees, other
franchise related fees are recognized at a point in time.

Contract Balances

Contract labilities are comprised of unamortized initial and renewal franchise fees
received from franchisees, which are presented as "Deferred revenue - current” and
"Deferred revenue - net of current” in the accompanying balance sheet.

A summary of significant changes n deferred revenues during the period from January
12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021, 1s as follows:

021
Deferred revenues - beginning of period $
Revenue recognized during the period (500)
Additions for initial franchise fees recerved 60,000
Deferred revenues - end of pertod 3 59 500

At December 31, 2021, deferred revenues are expected to be recognized as revenue
over the remaining term of the associated franchise agreements as follows:

Year ending December 31: Amount
2022 $ 6,000
2023 6,000
2024 6,000
2025 6,000
2026 6,000
Thereafter 29,500

Total 59500

Deferred franchise revenues consisted of the following at December 31, 2021:

2021
Franchise units not yet opened $ 59,500
Opened franchise units -
Total $ 59 500

10
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 4. REVENUES AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Contract Balances (Continued)

The direct and incremental costs, principally consisting of commussions, are included in
"Deferred charges” in the accompanying balance sheet, and expected to be recognized
over the remaining term of the associated franchise agreements at December 31, 2021,
15 as follows:

Year ending December 31: Amount
2022 $ 1,200
2023 1,200
2024 1,200
2025 1,200
2026 1,200
Thereafter 5.900

Total $ 11,900

NOTE 5. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

License Agreement

In April 2021, the Company entered mto a non-exclusive license agreement with the
Licensor for the use of the registered name "Success Space” (the "license agreement”).
Pursuant to the license agreement, the Company acquired the right to operate "Success

SPH,LE" ﬁ.ﬂ.'[](_‘”ibc'b, 45.1'1(_11 l.‘l'I[‘: Iig}]l. (O TATTT ﬁaﬂ(_}li.§t' ft',es, IUyd‘ll.it:b d.I](‘l ()L}I(‘:I f‘tft' ff()f]l
franchisees. The Licensor will not license the trademarks and/or confidential
information to any third parties for the purpose of operating a competing franchise
system. In accordance with the license agreement, the Company will not be required to
pay the Licensor a license fee.

Due to Related Party

In the ordinary course of busiess, the Company periodically advances funds to and
recetves funds from an entity related to the Company by common ownership and
control. No interest 1s charged on these advances and such advances to and from these
entities are unsecured and have no specific repayment terms. As of December 31, 2021,
the Company expects the balance owed to related party in the amount of $460,303 to be
settled within one year from the date the financial statements were available to be
1ssued.

NOTE 6. BRAND DEVELLOPMENT FUND
Brand Fund

Pursuant to the structured form of the franchising arrangement, the Company reserves
the right to collect brand fund fees of up to 1% of franchisees' reported sales. These
funds are to be spent solely on advertising and related expenses for the benefit of the
franchisees with a portion designated to offset the Company's administrative costs to
adminster the funds, all at the discretion of the Company. As of December 31, 2021,
the brand fund was not established.

|
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LL.C
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 6. BRAND DEVELOPMENT FUND (CONTINUED)

Cooperative Advertising Fund

The Company reserves the right to establish a cooperatve advertising fee
("Cooperative") for a region in which twe or more facilities are located and will collect
up to 1% of its franchisees' gross revenues. Any contributions to a Cooperative will be
credited towards a franchisee’s local marketing commitment. As of December 31, 2021,
the Cooperative was not established.
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Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP
Q Certified Public Accountants

COOPERMAN"
= 225 Broadhollow Road, Suite 401

Melville, NY 11747
T 631.930.5000 F 516.349.2190
citrincooperman.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Member

Success Franchising, LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Success ranchising, LLC (a limited liability
company), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related
statements of opetations and changes in member's deficit, and cash flows for the yeats ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the period from January 12, 2021 (inception) through December
31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Success Franchising, LL.C as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the period from
January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021, in accordance with accountng principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards genetally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the inancial Statements sccdon of our report. We are required to be
independent of Success Franchising, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Priot Period Adjustment

As discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements, the Company did not record an allocation of cerrain
expenses resulting in an understatement of amounts previously reported as operating expenses and a
compaonent of the changes in member's deficit. This was discovered by management of the Company
during the current year. Accordingly, amounts reported as operating expenses and a component of the
changes in member's deficit have been restated in the 2021 and 2022 financial statements now
presented. There was no net change to the member's deficit as a result of the restatement. Our opinion
is not modificd with respect to this matter.

"Citrin Cooperman"” is the brand under which Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP, a licensed independent CPA firm, and Citrin Cooperman Advisors LLC serve clients’
business needs. The two firms operate as separate legal enfities in an alternative practice structure. The entities of Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLI” and Citrin Cooperman
Advisors LLC are independent member firms of the Moore North America, Inc. (MNA) Assaciation, which is itself a regional member of Moore Global Network Limited
(MGNL). All the fitms associated with MNA ate independently owned and managed entities. "Their membership in, or association with, MNA should ot be consirued as
conslituling or implying any parinership belween them.
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o Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP
COOPERMAN"

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
eftor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Success Franchising, 1.1.C's
ability to continuc as a going concern within onc year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assutance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assutance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The tisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resultng from fraud is higher than for one resulting from crror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control
Misstatements are considered material if there 15 a substantial likelhood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable usct based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
. Lixercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Success Franchising, LLC's intetnal control. Accordingly, no

such opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the teasonableness of significant
accounting cstimates made by management, as well as cvaluate the overall presentation of the

financial scatements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggrepate,
that raise substandal doubt about Success Franchising, LLC's ability to continue as a going

concern for a reasonable period of time.

"Ciwrin Cooperman” is Lthe brand under which Ciein Cooperman & Company, LLP, a licensed independent. CPA [irm, end Ciurin Cooperman Advisors 1A.C scrve clients”
business needs, "I'he Lwo firms operaie as separale legal enlities in an allernative practice structure. The entities of Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP and Cilrin Cooperman
Advisors LLC are independent member frms of the Moore North America, Ine, (MNA) Association, which is itsell a reglonal member of Moote Global Network Limited
(MCINTY. Al the firms associated with MNA are independently owned and managed entitics. Their membership in, or association with, MNA should not be consted as
constituting of implying any partnership between them.
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o Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP
COOPERMAN"

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

i Ut g 10

Melville, New York
April 18, 2024

"Ciwrin Cooperman” is Lthe brand under which Ciein Cooperman & Company, LLP, a licensed independent. CPA [irm, end Ciurin Cooperman Advisors 1A.C scrve clients”
business needs, "I'he Lwo firms operaie as separale legal enlities in an allernative practice structure. The entities of Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP and Cilrin Cooperman
Advisors LLC are independent member frms of the Moore North America, Ine, (MNA) Association, which is itsell a reglonal member of Moote Global Network Limited
(MCINTY. Al the firms associated with MNA are independently owned and managed entitics. Their membership in, or association with, MNA should not be consted as
constituting of implying any partnership between them.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 64,763  $ 5,434
Accounts recetvable 42,459 60,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 17,403 29,303
Deferred charges - current 4,800 7.200
Total current assets 129,425 101,937
Other asset:
Deferred charges, net of current 35,250 59 450
TOTAL ASSETS $ 164675 § 161387

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT

Current habilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 94,238 § 60,918
Deferred revenue - current 24,000 34,500
Total current liabilities 118,238 95,418
Long-term liability:
Deferred revenue, net of current 176,250 285,000
Total lhabilities 294,488 380,418

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6 and 8)
Member's deficit (129 813) (219.031)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT $ 164675 § 161387

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC

(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022, AND FOR THE
PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 (INCEPTION)

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

Revenues:
Franchise fees
Technology fees
Royalties

Total revenues
Operating expenses
Net loss
Member's deficit - beginning
Member contributions
Member distributions
Equity compensation expense (Note 5)
MEMBER'S DEFICIT - ENDING

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2023 2022 2021

(As Restated) (As Restated)
69,250 § 24500 % 500

11,550 - -

909 -
81,709 24,500 500
2,037,808 1,750.956 829018
(1,956,099) (1,726,456) (828,518)

(219,031) (519,082 -
1,867,918 1,814,087 315,000
- - (50,000)
177.399 212,420 44436
(120813) § (210031 § (5190.082)
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022, AND FOR THE
PERIOD FROM JANUARY 12, 2021 (INCEPTION)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

2023 2022 2021
(As Restated) (As Restated)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (1,956,099 $ (1,726,456) $ (828,518)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
i operating actvities:

Equity compensation expense 177,399 212,420 44,436
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company
and recorded as member contributions 1,052,918 1,458,087 -
Changes 1n operating assets and labilities:
Accounts recetvable 17,541 (60,000) -
Prepaid expenses 11,900 (29,303) -
Deferred charges 26,600 (54,750) (11,900
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 33,320 30,491 30,427
Deferred revenues (119,250) 260,000 59,500
Due to related parties - (460,303) 460,303
Net cash used in operating activities (755671 (369.814) (245,752
Cash flows from financing activities:
Member contributions 815,000 356,000 315,000
Member distributions - - (50,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 815,000 356,000 265,000
Net increase (decrease) mn cash 59,329 (13,814) 19,248
Cash - begmning 5434 19,248 -
CASH - ENDING $ 64763 § 5434 § 10.248

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Success Franchising, LLC (the "Company"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Success
World Holdings, LLC (the "Member"), was formed on January 12, 2021, as a Delaware
limited liability company to sell franchises pursuant to a non-excluswe license
agreement executed m April 2021, between the Company and Success Enterprises, LLC
(the "Licensor"), an entity related to the Company by common ownership and control.
Pursuant to the Company's standard franchise agreement, franchisees will operate a
business under the "Success Space” name and system that offers entrepreneurs and
corporate workers flexible rental options combined with access to onsite professional
business coaching, virtual communication technology, a limited-service cafe and other
various amenities.

The Member is not liable for the debts, obligations or other liabilities of the Company,
whether arising 1 contract, tort or otherwise, to the extent of the Company's assets
unless the Member has signed a specific guarantee.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("U.S. GAAP").

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the
financial statements and accompanying disclosures. These estimates may be adjusted
due to changes in future economic, industry or other financial conditions. Estimates are
used 1n accounting for, among other items, revenue recognition and uncertain income
tax positions. Actual results could ultimately differ from these estimates.

Accounts Recervable

Accounts recewvable are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect. The
Company mamtains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the nability of some of its franchisees to make required payments. The Company
assesses collectibility by reviewing accounts recetvable on a collective basis where
similar risk characteristics exist. In determining the amount of the allowance for
doubttul accounts, management considers historical collectibility and makes judgments
about the creditworthiness of the pool of franchisees based on credit evaluations.
Current market conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic
conditions are considered in adjusting the historical losses to determine the appropriate
allowance for doubtful accounts. Uncollectible accounts are written off when all
collection efforts have been exhausted.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable (Continued)

Under the prior accounting rules, management considered the following factors when
determinmg  the collectibility of specific  franchisee accounts: franchisee
creditworthiness, past transaction history with the franchisee, and current economic
mdustry trends. The Company had no allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31,
2023 and 2022,

Concentration of Credit Risk

Cash

The Company places its cash, which may at times be in excess of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation insurance limits, with a major financial institution. Management
believes that this policy will limit the Company's exposure to credit risk.

Accounts receivable

Concentration of credit risk with respect to recetvables 1s limited due to the number of
franchisees 1n the Company's customer base and their geographic dispersion. The
Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated collection
losses based on historical experience coupled with a review of the current market
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions.

Revenues and Cost Recognition

The Company derives substantially all of its revenue from franchise agreements related
to franchise revenue, advertising fund revenue, royalties and transfer fees.

Franchise Fees and Royallzes

Contract consideration from franchisees consists primarily of mnitial or renewal franchise
fees, multi-unit agreement fees ("MUAs"), sales-based royalties, sales-based marketing
fund fees and transfer fees payable by a franchisee for the transter of its franchise unit
to another franchisee. The Company enters mto MUAs which grant a franchisee the
right to develop two or more franchise territories. The Company collects an up-front
fee for the grant of such rights. The initial franchise fees and up-front multi-urut fees are
nonrefundable and collectable when the underlying franchise agreement or MUA 1s
signed by the franchisee. Sales-based royalties and marketing fund fees are payable on a
monthly basis. Renewal and transfer fees are due from franchisees when an existing
franchisee renews the franchise agreement for an additional term or when a transfer to a
third party occurs, respectively.

The Company's primary performance obligation under the franchise agreement mainly
includes granting certain rights to access the Company's intellectual property and a
variety of activities relating to opening a franchise unit, including site selection, training
and other such activities commonly referred to collectively as "pre-opening activities."
The Company has determined that rights to access its intellectual property and the pre-
opening activities are highly mterrelated and interdependent and therefore are accounted
for as a single performance obligation, which 1s satisfied by granting certain rights to use
the Company's intellectual property over the term of each franchise agreement.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues and Cost Recognition (Continued)
Franchise Fees and Royalties (Continned)

Initial and renewal franchise fees are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over
the term of the respective franchise agreement. MUAs generally consist of an obligation
to grant the right to open two or more franchise units. These development rights are not
distinct from franchise agreements; therefore, up-front fees paid by franchisees for
development rights are deferred and apportioned to each franchise agreement signed by
the franchisee. The pro-rata amount apportioned to each franchise agreement is
recognized as revenue in the same manner as the initial and renewal franchise fee. Initial
and renewal franchise fees related to the MUASs are recorded as contract liabilities at
their contract transaction price.

Royalties are earned based on a percentage of a franchisee's gross revenues. Franchise
royalties represent sales-based royalties that are related entirely to the use of the
Company’s intellectual property and are recognized as franchisee sales occur and the
royalty 1s deemed collectible.

Brand Fund

The Company maintains a brand fund established to collect and administer funds
contributed for use 1n advertising and promotional programs for franchise units. Brand
fund fees are collected from franchisees based on a percentage of franchisee gross sales.
The Company has determined that it acts as a principal m the collection and
administration of the brand fund and therefore recognizes the revenues and expenses
related to the brand fund on a gross basts. The Company has determined that the right
to access its intellectual property and administration of the brand fund are highly
mterrelated and therefore are accounted for as a single performance obligation.

As a result, revenues from the brand fund represent sales-based royalties related to the
right to access the Company’s intellectual property, which are recognized as franchisee
sales occur. When brand fund fees exceed the related brand fund expenses in a
reporting period, advertising costs are accrued up to the amount of brand fund revenues
recognized.

Other Revenues

The Company recognizes revenues from other fees and other services provided to the
franchisees as a single performance obligation when the services are rendered.

Incremental Costs of Obtaining a Contract

The Company capitalizes direct and incremental costs, prncipally consisting of
commissions, associated with the sale of franchises and amortizes them over the term of
the franchise agreement. In the case of costs paid related to MUAs for which no signed
franchise agreement has been recetved, these costs are deferred until the signed
franchise agreement is recewed.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

The Company s 2 single-member limited liability company and 1s therefore considered
a disregarded entity for mcome tax purposes. Accordingly, no provision has been made
for mcome taxes in the accompanying financial statements, since all items of income or
loss are required to be reported on the income tax returns of the member, who 1s
responsible for any taxes thereon.

The Company recognizes and measures its unrecognized tax benefits in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 740, Income Taxes. Under that guidance, management assesses the
likelthood that tax positions will be sustained upon examination based on the facts,
circumstances and information, including the technical merits of those positions,
available at the end of each period. The measurement of unrecognized tax benefits 1s
adjusted when new information is available or when an event occurs that requires a
change. There were no uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $113,483, $156,006 and
$58,722 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the period from
January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021, respectively.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 18, 2024, the date on
which these financial statements were available to be issued. There were no material
subsequent events that required recognition or additional disclosure 1n these financial
statements.

NOTE 3. RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-13,
Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) (“ASC 3267), which along with
subsequently 1ssued related ASUs, requires financial assets (or groups of financial assets)
measured at amortized cost basts to be presented at the net amount expected to be
collected, among other provisions. ASC 326 eliminates the probable initial threshold for
recognition of credit losses for financial assets recorded at amortized cost, which could
result in earlier recognition of credit losses. It utilizes a lifetime expected credit loss
measurement model for the recognition of credit losses at the time the fiancial asset 1s
originated or acquired. The Company’s financial instruments include accounts
recetvable. The expected credit losses are adjusted each period for changes m expected
lifetime credit losses. The Company adopted ASC 326 using the modified retrospective
method at January 1, 2023, and it did not have a material impact on the financial
statements.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 4. FRANCHISED OUTLETS

The following data reflects the status of the Company's franchised outlets as of and for
the year ended December 31:

2023 2022 2021
Franchises sold - 10 4
Franchises purchased - - -
Franchised outlets m operation 2 - -

Franchisor-owned outlets mn operation - - -
Terminated outlets - - -

NOTE 5. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company utilizes personnel that are employed by an entity related through
common control. The payroll and related taxes and benefits of these individuals are
allocated to the Company based on the percentage of their time dedicated to the
operations of the Company. The Company's ultimate parent has a stock option plan
under which these mdmviduals have been granted stock options (see Note 8). During
2023, the equity compensation expense related to these individuals has been allocated to
the Company in the same manner as their payroll and related taxes and benefits. As a
result of an internal review, 1t was discovered that there were stock options granted to
certain of these indwiduals 1n prior years and, as such, equity compensation expense
should have been allocated to the Company in those respective years. Corrective actions
have been taken to reflect the allocation of the equity compensation expense in 2021
and 2022, Accordingly, the Company has restated its fiancial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2022 and for the period from January 12, 2021 (inception) through
December 31, 2021. There was no net change to member's deficit as a result of the
restatement.

The effect of the restatement on the results of operations and equity compensation
expense as a component of the changes m member's deficit for the year ended

December 31, 2022, are as follows:

As Previously Restatement
Reported Adpustment As Restated
Operating expenses $ 1,538,536 § 212,420 § 1,750,956
Netloss (1,514,036) (212,420) (1,726,456)
Equity compensation expense - 212,420 212,420

The effect of the restatement on the accompanying statements of cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows:

As Previously Restatement
Reported Adjustment As Restated
Net loss $ (1,514,036 $ (212,420) $ (1,726,456)
Equity compensation expense - 212,420 212,420
11
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 5. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The effect of the restatement on the results of operations and equity compensation
expense as a2 component of the changes in member's deficit for the period trom
January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021, are as follows:

As Previously Restatement
Reported Adjustment As Restated
Operating expenses $ 784,582 $ 44 436 § 829,018
Net loss (784,082) (44,436) (828,518)
Equity compensation expense - 44,436 44,436

The effect of the restatement on the accompanying statement of cash flows for the
period from January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021 are as follows:

As Previously Restatement
Reported Adjustment As Restated
Net loss $ (784,082) § (44,436) $ (828,518)
Equity compensation expense - 44,436 44,436

NOTE 6. LIQUIDITY AND BUSINESS RISKS

The Company has sustamned negative cash flows from operations and, as a result, has a
member's deficit of $129,813 as of December 31, 2023. Since inception, the Company's
operations have been funded through a combination of contributions from the
Member. The Company is growing and, as such, 1s incurring expenditures i the near
term to benefit the future as it looks to grow the franchisee base and expand into new
markets. Such expenses could be reduced or eliminated in order to improve operating
cash flows as needed.

As of the date these financial statements were available to be issued, the Company
continues to focus on selling franchises and revenues are expected to increase. The
Member has the mntent and ability to continue funding the Company's operations, if
necessary, should its cash flows from operations combined with its available cash
balances not be sufficient to meet its working capital needs. The Company believes that
this will enable it to meet its funding requirements for one year from the date these
financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 7. REVENUES AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES

Disagoregated Revenues

The Company derives its revenues from franchisees located throughout the United
States. The economic risks of the Company’s revenues are dependent on the strength of
the economy in the United States, and its ability to collect on its contracts. The
Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by timing of revenue
recognition by type of revenues, as it believes this best depicts how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.
Initial franchise fees are recognized over time, while royalties, brand fund fees, other
franchise related fees are recognized at a pont in time.
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NOTE 7.

SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

REVENUES AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Contract Balances

Contract liabilities are comprised of unamortized initial franchise fees recewed trom
franchisees, which are presented as "Deferred revenue" in the accompanying balance
sheets. A summary of significant changes in deferred revenues is as follows:

2023 2022
Deferred revenues - beginning of period $ 319,500 § 59,500
Revenue recognized during the period (69,250) (24,500)
Additions for initial franchise fees recetved - 284,500
Initial franchise fee refunds due to termmation (50.000) -
Deferred revenues - end of period $ 200250 § 319,500

At December 31, 2023, revenues expected to be recognized over the remaining term of
the associated franchise agreements are as follows:

Year ending December 31: Amount
2024 $ 24,000
2025 24,000
2026 24,000
2027 24,000
2028 24,000
Thereafter 80,250

Total $ 200.250

Deferred revenues consisted of the following:

2023 2022
Franchise units not yet opened $ 150,750 § 319,500
Opened franchise units 49,500 -
Total $ 200250 $ 319.500

The direct and incremental costs, principally consisting of commissions, are included in
"Deferred charges" in the accompanying balance sheets, and expected to be recognized
over the remaining term of the associated franchise agreements at December 31, 2023,
1s as follows:

Year ending December 31: Amount
2024 $ 4,800
2025 4,800
2026 4,800
2027 4,800
2028 4,800
Thereafter 16050

Total $ 40,050

13

Franchise Disclosure Document (2024)




SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 8. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

License Agreement

In April 2021, the Company entered into a non-exclusive license agreement with the
Licensor for the use of the registered name "Success Space” (the "license agreement”).
Pursuant to the license agreement, the Company acquired the right to operate Success
Space franchises, and the might to earn franchise fees, royalties and other fees trom
franchisees. The Licensor will not license the trademarks and/or confidential
mformation to any third parties for the purpose of operating a competing franchise
system. In accordance with the license agreement, the Company will not be required to
pay the Licensor 2 license fee.

Due to Related Party

In the ordinary course of business, the Company periodically advances tunds to and
recetves funds from Success Enterprises, LLC (the "related party"), an entity related to
the Company by common ownership and control. No interest 1s charged on these
advances and such advances to and from the related party are unsecured and have no
specific repayment terms. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no
outstanding advances due to the related party. During 2022, the Company engaged the
related party to provide coaching certifications to its franchisees and had prepaid
$25,000 in connection with this service, the balance of which was included in "Prepaid
expenses and other current assets” in the accompanying balance sheet at December 31,
2022. During 2023, the certifications were completed and the amounts were recognized
as expense.

Equity Based Compensation

From time to tune and on a discretionary basis, eXp World Holdings Inc., the
Company's ultimate parent (the "Ultimate Parent"), grants stock options to employees
of the Company. The Ultimate Parent calculates the equity based compensation expense
in connection with the granting of the stock options to the Company's employees and
allocates the related charge to the Company. As a result, the Company recorded
$177,399, $212,420 and $44,436 of equity based compensation expense related to the
granted stock options for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the
period from January 12, 2021 (inception) through December 31, 2021, which 1s
included in "Operating expenses” in the accompanying statements of operations and
changes in member's deficit.

NOTE 9. BRAND DEVELOPMENT FUND

Brand Fund

Pursuant to the structured form of the franchising arrangement, the Company reserves
the right to collect brand fund fees of up to 1% of franchisees' reported sales. These
funds are to be spent solely on advertising and related expenses for the benefit of the
franchisees with a portion designated to offset the Company's administrative costs to
administer the funds, all at the discretion of the Company. As of December 31, 2023,
the brand fund was not established.
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SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 9. BRAND DEVELOPMENT FUND (CONTINUED)

Cooperative Advertising Fund

The Company reserves the right to establish a cooperative advertising fee
("Cooperative") for a region m which two or more facilities are located and will collect
up to 1% of its franchisees’ gross revenues. Any contributions to a Cooperative will be
credited towards a franchisee’s local marketing commitment. As of December 31, 2023,
the Cooperative was not established.
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EXHIBIT “I”-1

STATE ADDENDA

[See Attached]

Franchise Disclosure Document (20234)



STATE ADDENDA AND AGREEMENT RIDERS
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS,
AND FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT FOR CERTAIN STATES FOR

SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The following modifications are made to the SUCCESS Space Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD” or
“Disclosure Document”) issued by Success Franchising, LLC (“we” or “us” or “franchisor”) to franchisee (“you”
or “franchisee”) and may supersede, to the extent required by applicable state law, certain portions of the Franchise
Agreement between you and us dated , 202 (the “Franchise Agreement”). When
the term “Supplemental Agreements” is used, it means any area development agreement, area representative
agreement, master franchise agreement, or similar agreement entered into between us and you, if applicable.

Certain states have laws governing the franchise relationship and franchise documents. Certain states require
modifications to the FDD, Franchise Agreement, Supplemental Agreements and other documents related to the sale
of a franchise. This State-Specific Addendum (“State Addendum”) will modify these agreements to comply with the
applicable state’s laws. The terms of this State Addendum will only apply if you meet the requirements of the
applicable state independently of your signing of this State Addendum. The terms of this State Addendum (but only
the State Addendum for the applicable State) will override any inconsistent provision of the FDD, Franchise
Agreement or any Supplemental Documents. This State Addendum only applies to the following states: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

If your state requires these modifications, you will sign this State Addendum along with the Franchise Agreement
and any Supplemental Agreements. If you sign this State Addendum, only the terms applicable to the state or states
whose franchise laws apply to your transaction will govern. If you sign this State Addendum, but none of the state
franchise laws listed above applies because their jurisdictional requirements have not been met, then this State
Addendum will be void and inapplicable to you.
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10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

CALIFORNIA

The California Franchise Investment Law requires a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the sale of
the Franchise be delivered together with the Disclosure Document.

Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires us to give you a disclosure document, in a form
containing the information that the Commissioner may by rule or order require, before a solicitation of a
proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

Neither the franchisor nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the FDD is subject to any currently
effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from
membership in such association or exchange.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements require binding arbitration. The arbitration will
occur in Dallas, Texas with the costs being borne initially by the party filing for arbitration.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability of
California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a Franchise Agreement or
Supplemental Agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements require application of the laws of Texas. This
provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements may provide for termination upon bankruptcy.
Any such provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements may contain a covenant not to compete which
extends beyond the termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California
law.

Under California Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable. Any such
provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreements may not be enforceable.

Item 6 is supplemented to state that the highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10% annually.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to you concerning
termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreements
contain a provision that is inconsistent with the California Franchise Investment Law, the California Franchise
Investment Law will control.

You must sign a general release of claims if you renew or transfer your Franchise. California Corporations
Code Section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California
Corporations Code Sections 31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code Section 20010 voids a
waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Sections 20000
through 20043).

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION & INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION & INNOVATION AT https://dfpi.ca.gov/.

The Department has determined that we, the franchisor, have not demonstrated we are adequately
capitalized and/or that we must rely on franchise fees to fund our operations. The Commissioner has
imposed a fee deferral condition, which requires that we defer the collection of all initial fees from
California franchisees until we have completed all of our pre-opening obligations and you are open for
business. For California franchisees who sign a development agreement, the payment of the development
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and initial fees attributable to a specific unit in your development schedule is deferred until that unit is
open.

No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as waiving any claim of fraud
in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance on or the right to rely upon
any statement made or information provided by any franchisor, broker or other person acting on behalf of
the franchisor that was a material inducement to a franchisee’s investment. This provision supersedes any
other or inconsistent term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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HAWAII
The following is added to the Cover Page:

THIS FRANCHISE WILL BE/HAS BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT
LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAIIL FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO YOU OR SUBFRANCHISOR
AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY YOU OR SUBFRANCHISOR OF
ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR
TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY YOU, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A
COPY OF THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF
ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN
MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR
AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS,
CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH US AND YOU.

Our registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

The states in which this filing is effective are listed on the Exhibit to the FDD titled “State Effective
Dates”.

The states in which this filing is or will be shortly on file include the following: California, Hawaii, Illinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, North Dakota, Rhode Island, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

The states, if any, which have refused, by order or otherwise, to register these franchises include the
following: None.

The states, if any, which have revoked or suspended the right to offer these franchises include the
following: None.

The states, if any, in which the filing of these franchises has been withdrawn include the following: None.
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ILLINOIS

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, 815 ILCS 705, the Disclosure
Document and the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1.
2.

[llinois law shall apply to and govern the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements.

In accordance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in the Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements that designated jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the
State of Illinoi is void. However, the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements may provide for
arbitration to take place outside of Illinois. Therefore, any arbitration proceeding may be brought in Dallas,
Texas in accordance with the dispute resolution provision set forth in the Franchise Agreement and
Supplemental Agreements.

Y our rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise
Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation, or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended to state the following:

To the extent that any provision in the Illinois State Addendum is inconsistent with any
provision in this Agreement, the provision in the Illinois State Addendum shall control.

All fees referenced in the Franchise Agreement are subject to deferral pursuant to order of the Illinois
Attorney General’s Office. Accordingly, you will pay no fees to us until we have completed all of our
material pre-opening responsibilities to you and you commence operating the franchised business. The
[llinois Attorney General's Office imposed this deferral requirement due to franchisor's financial condition.
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INDIANA

In recognition of the requirements of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law, IC 23-2-2-2.5, the Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1.

The laws of the State of Indiana supersede any provisions of the Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements if such provisions are in conflict with Indiana law.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended to provide that such agreements will
be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.

Any provision in the Franchise Agreement which designates jurisdiction or venue, or requires the
franchisee to agree to jurisdiction or venue, in a forum outside of Indiana, is deleted from any Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreement issued in the State of Indiana.

The prohibition by Indiana Code § 23-2-2.7-1(7) against unilateral termination of the franchise without
good cause or in bad faith, good cause being defined therein as material breach of the Franchise Agreement
or Supplemental Agreement (as applicable), shall supersede the provisions of the Franchise Agreement or
Supplemental Agreement (as applicable) in the State of Indiana to the extent they may be inconsistent with
such prohibition.

Liquidated damages and termination penalties are prohibited by law in the State of Indiana and, therefore,
the Disclosure Document, the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended by the
deletion of all references to liquidated damages and termination penalties and the addition of the following
language to the original language that appears therein:

Notwithstanding any such termination, and in addition to the obligations of the franchisee as
otherwise provided, or in the event of termination or cancellation of the Franchise Agreement
under any of the other provisions therein, the franchisee nevertheless shall be, continue and remain
liable to franchisor for any and all damages which franchisor has sustained or may sustain by
reason of such default or defaults and the breach of the Franchise Agreement on the part of the
franchisee for the unexpired Term of the Franchise Agreement.

At the time of such termination of the Franchise Agreement, the franchisee covenants to pay to
franchisor within 10 days after demand as compensation all damages, losses, costs and expenses
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) incurred by franchisor, and/or amounts which would
otherwise be payable thereunder but for such termination for and during the remainder of the
unexpired Term of the Franchise Agreement. This Agreement does not constitute a waiver of the
franchisee’s right to a trial on any of the above matters.

No release language set forth in the Disclosure Document or Franchise Agreement or Supplemental
Agreement shall relieve franchisor or any other person, directly or indirectly, from liability imposed by the
laws concerning franchising of the State of Indiana. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement or
Supplemental Agreement that would require you to prospectively assent to a release, assignment, novation,
waiver or estoppel which purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the Indiana Deceptive
Franchise Practices Law is void to the extent that such provision violates such law.
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law (the “Maryland
Franchise Law”), the Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

1.

Item 5 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

“Fee Deferral

Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has
required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees
shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise
agreement. In addition, all development fees and initial payments by area developers shall be
deferred until the first franchise under the development agreement opens.”

Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

a. The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply
any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

b. A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

c. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

d. In the event of a conflict of laws to the extent required by the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law, Maryland law shall prevail.

e. The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements provide for termination upon bankruptcy.
This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101, et seq.).

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the
grant of the franchise.

Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

Any acknowledgements or representations by you that disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the
non-occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Maryland Law are not intended to nor shall
they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Law.

Nothing in the Franchise Agreement, Supplemental Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to
disclaim the representations made in the Franchise Disclosure Document.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Law, the Franchise Agreement is amended to add the
following:

1

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of the
franchise.

. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or

assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

. You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

. Any acknowledgements or representations by you that disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the non-

occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Maryland Law are not intended to nor shall they act as a
release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Law.

. Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial

assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor
completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement.

Nothing in the Franchise Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations made in
the Franchise Disclosure Document.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable
state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other
term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Addendum shall have the meaning given them in the Franchise

Agreement.

Except as expressly modified by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified and in full force
and effect.

This Addendum is being entered into in connection with the Franchise Agreement. In the event of any conflict
between this Addendum and the Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Addendum shall apply.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum concurrently
with the execution of the Franchise Agreement.

SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC [FRANCHISEE]
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Law, the Area Development Agreement is amended to
add the following:

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of the
franchise.

2. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

3. You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

4. Any acknowledgements or representations by you that disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the non-
occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Maryland Law are not intended to nor shall they act as a
release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Law.

5. Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial
assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor
completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement. In addition, all development fees and initial
payments by area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise under the development agreement opens.

6. Nothing in the Franchise Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations made in
the Franchise Disclosure Document.

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable
state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other
term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

8. Any capitalized terms that are not defined in this Addendum shall have the meaning given them in the Area
Development Agreement.

9. Except as expressly modified by this Addendum, the Area Development Agreement remains unmodified and in full
force and effect.

This Addendum is being entered into in connection with the Area Development Agreement. In the event of any
conflict between this Addendum and the Area Development Agreement, the terms and conditions of this

Addendum shall apply.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum concurrently
with the execution of the Area Development Agreement.

SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC [FRANCHISEE]
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:
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MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any document relating to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for
good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of
the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no
value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required
in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i)
The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other
agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service
mark, trade name, logo, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of
franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal
provision.

A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude
the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location
outside this state.

A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for
good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to
purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(v) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable qualifications or
standards.

(vi) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.
(vii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful obligations.

(viii)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to
cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with
the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the
franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if
the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the
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breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing
the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than $100,000.00,
the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by
the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements, equipment,
inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor,
a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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MINNESOTA

In recognition of the Minnesota Franchise Law, Minn. Stat., Chapter 80C, Sections 80C.01 through 80C.22, and
the Rules and Regulations promulgated pursuant thereto by the Minnesota Commission of Securities, Minnesota
Rule 2860.4400, et. seq., the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are
amended as follows:

1.
2.

Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(D) prohibits us from requiring you to assent to a general release.

We will comply with Minnesota Statute Section 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain
specified cases, that you be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’
notice for non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreement; and that consent to the
transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

Minnesota Statute Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit us from requiring litigation to
be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring you to consent to liquidated
damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure
Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statues,
chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the
jurisdiction. In addition, we will comply with the provisions of Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J), which state
that you cannot waive any rights, you cannot consent to our obtaining injunctive relief, we may seek
injunctive relief, and a court will determine if a bond if required.

We will comply with Minnesota Statute Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g), which requires that we protect your
right to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or
indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use
of the name.

We will comply with Minnesota Statute Section 80C.17, Subd. 5 regarding limitation of claims.
Items 5 and 7 of this Disclosure Document are amended to include the following:

“All fees referenced are subject to deferral pursuant to order of the State of Minnesota.
Accordingly, you will pay no fees to us until we have completed all of our material pre-
opening responsibilities to you and you commence operating the franchised business.”

Item 6 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended to add the following language in the Remarks
column of the “Late Fees” row:

“Minnesota law requires that the NSF fee is capped at $30 per incident.”

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed with the franchise.
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NEW YORK

In recognition of the requirements of the General Business Laws of the State of New York, Article 33, §§680
through 695, the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as
follows:

L.

3.

The following information is added to the cover page of the Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SOURCES OF
INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES NOT
MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE
INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT
ANYTHING IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW,
BUREAU OF INVESTOR PROTECTION, 28 LIBERTY STREET, 21ST FLOOR, NEW YORK,
NEW YORK 10005. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU
ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER,
THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN
THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

The following is added at the end of Item 3 of the Disclosure Document:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item 2, or an
affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person alleging: a
felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent
conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or comparable civil or
misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which are
significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial condition of the
franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or, within
the 10 year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of or
pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging:
violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or
misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to the
franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or
trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public
agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national
securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling
such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective
injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by
a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate
broker or sales agent.

The following is added to the end of Item 4 of the Disclosure Document:

Neither the franchisor, its affiliate, its predecessor, officers, or general partner during the 10-year
period immediately before the date of the offering circular: (a) filed as debtor (or had filed against it) a
petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a discharge of its debts under
the bankruptcy code; or (¢) was a principal officer of a company or a general partner in a partnership
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10.

11.

12.

that either filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a discharge of its debts under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code during or
within 1 year after that officer or general partner of the franchisor held this position in the company or
partnership.

The following is added to the end of Item 5 of the Disclosure Document:

The initial franchise fee constitutes part of our general operating funds and will be used as such in our
discretion.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c) of the Disclosure Document,
titled “Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m) of the Disclosure Document,
entitled “Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d) of the Disclosure Document, titled
“Termination by franchisee”:

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(j) of the Disclosure Document,
titled “Assignment of contract by franchisor”:

However, no assignment will be made except to an assignee who in good faith and judgment of the
franchisor, is willing and financially able to assume the franchisor’s obligations under the Franchise
Agreement.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v) of the Disclosure Document,
titled “Choice of forum”, and Item 17(w) of the Disclosure Document, titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.

We will not require that you prospectively assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel
that purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the New York Franchise Law.

We will not place any condition, stipulation, or provision in the Franchise Agreement that requires you to
waive compliance with any provision of the New York Franchise Law.

Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that limits the time period in which you may assert a legal claim
against us under the New York Franchise Law is amended to provide for a three (3) year statute of
limitations for purposes of bringing a claim arising under the New York Franchise Law.

Notwithstanding the transfer provision in the Franchise Agreement, we will not assign the Franchise
Agreement except to an assignee who, in our good faith judgment, is willing and able to assume our
obligations under the Franchise Agreement.
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NORTH DAKOTA

In recognition of the requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (the “North Dakota Franchise
Law”), the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1.

10.

11.

Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to
Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Law. Item 17(r) of the Disclosure Document and certain
provisions in the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements include certain covenants restricting
competition to which you must agree. The Commissioner has held that covenants restricting competition
contrary to Section 9-08-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, without further disclosing that such
covenants may be subject to this statue, are unfair, unjust, or inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-
09 of the North Dakota Franchise Law. The Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental
Agreements are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

Provisions requiring arbitration or mediation to be held at a location that is remote from the site of the
franchisee’s business are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to
Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Accordingly, the parties must agree on
the site where arbitration or mediation will be held.

Provisions requiring jurisdiction in a state other than North Dakota are generally considered unenforceable
in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring that agreements be governed by the laws of a state other than North Dakota are
generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring your consent to liquidated or termination damages are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law.

Provisions requiring you to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement have been
determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota
Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring you to pay all costs and expenses incurred by us in enforcing the franchise agreement
have been determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Accordingly, any such provision is modified to read that the prevailing
party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney’s fees.

Provisions requiring you to consent to a waiver of trial by jury have been determined to be unfair, unjust
and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Provisions requiring you to consent to a limitation of claims within one year have been determined to be
unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law. Accordingly, any such provision is modified to read that the statute of limitations under
North Dakota Law will apply.

Provisions requiring you to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages have been determined
to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Invest Law.

All fees referenced in Item 5 of the Disclosure Document are subject to deferral pursuant to order of the
State of North Dakota. Accordingly, you will pay no fees to us until we have completed all of our material
pre-opening responsibilities to you and you commence operating the franchised business.
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RHODE ISLAND

In recognition of the requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act (the “Rhode Island Franchise
Law”), the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1.

We will not require that you prospectively assent to a waiver, condition, stipulation, or provision that
purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the Rhode Island Franchise Law. This provision
does not apply to the settlement of disputes, claims, or civil lawsuits brought under the Rhode Island
Franchise Law.

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Law provides that “A provision in a franchise agreement
restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of
another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.” If a claim is enforceable
under the Rhode Island Franchise Law, we will not restrict jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside the
State of Rhode Island or require the application of the laws of another state.

We will not prohibit you from joining a trade association or association of franchisees. We will not retaliate
against you for engaging in these activities.

Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that limits the time period in which you may assert a legal claim
against us under the Rhode Island Franchise Law is amended to provide for a four (4) year statute of
limitations for purposes of bringing a claim arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a rescission offer has been approved by the Rhode Island director of
business registration, then the statute of limitations is ninety (90) days after your receipt of the rescission
offer.
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VIRGINIA

In recognition of the requirements of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, the Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1. Item 5 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

The Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities and Retail Franchising requires
us to defer payment of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments owed by franchisees to us
until we have completed our pre-opening obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

2. Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the
Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term
may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not
be enforceable.

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
use undue influence to induce a franchisee/area developer to surrender any right given to him under
the applicable agreement.

3. If any provision of the Franchise Agreement or any Supplemental Agreement involves the use of undue
influence by the franchisor to induce a franchisee/area developer to surrender any rights given to him under
the applicable agreement, that provision may not be enforceable.

4. We will not require that you prospectively assent to a waiver, condition, stipulation, or provision that
purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the Virginia Retail Franchising Act. This provision
does not prohibit you and us from entering into binding arbitration consistent with the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act.

5. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreement that limits the time period in which
you may assert a legal claim against us under the Virginia Retail Franchising Act is amended to provide for
a four (4) year statute of limitations for purposes of bringing a claim arising under the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act.

6. Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it shall be unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the
Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may
be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be
enforceable.
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WASHINGTON

In recognition of the requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100
RCW, the Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended as follows:

1. In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW, will prevail.

2. RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements in your
relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There
may also be court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements
in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

3. In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation
site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the
arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or
mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an
action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

4. A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for
claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable.

5. Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

6. Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee,
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement,
when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a
franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for
inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with
these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

7. RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i)
soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

8. All fees payable to us under the terms of the Franchise Agreement are subject to deferral pursuant to order of
the State of Washington. Accordingly, you shall pay no fees to us until we have completed all of our material
pre-opening responsibilities to you and you commence operating the franchised business.
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WISCONSIN

The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Chapter 135 of the Wisconsin Statutes supersedes any provision of the
Franchise Agreement and Supplement Agreements (if applicable) if such provision is in conflict with that law.
The Franchise Disclosure Document, the Franchise Agreement and the Supplemental Agreements are amended
accordingly.

(Signatures on following page)
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APPLICABLE ADDENDA

If any one of the preceding Addenda for specific states (“Addenda”) is checked as an “Applicable Addenda”
below, then that Applicable Addenda shall be incorporated into the Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement, Supplemental Agreements (if applicable) and any other specified agreement(s) entered into by us
and the undersigned franchisee. To the extent any terms of an applicable Addenda conflict with the terms of the
Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement, Supplemental Agreement (if applicable) and other
specified agreement(s), the terms of the Applicable Addenda shall supersede the terms of the Franchise

Agreement.

[] California
Hawaii
linois

Indiana

OO OO

Maryland

Dated:

]

OO OO

, 202

Michigan
Minnesota
New York
North Dakota

Rhode Island

FRANCHISOR:

[] South Dakota
Virginia

Washington

o O

Wisconsin

Success Franchising, LLC

By:

Title:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Title:
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EXHIBIT “I1”-2
GENERAL RELEASE

[See Attached]
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WAIVER AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS

This Waiver and Release of Claims (this “Agreement”) is made as of , 202 (the “Effective
Date”) by , a(n) (“you”) and each individual holding a
direct or indirect ownership interest in you (collectively “Owner”) in favor of Success Franchising, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“us,” and together with you and Owner, the “Parties”).

Background

A. We signed a Franchise Agreement with you, dated , 202 (the “Franchise Agreement”) pursuant
to which we granted you the right to own and operate a SUCCESS Space facility;

B. You have notified us of your desire to transfer the Franchise Agreement and all rights related thereto, or an
ownership interest in the franchisee entity, to a transferee, [enter into a successor franchise agreement)]
and we have consented to such transfer [agreed to enter into a successor franchise agreement]; and

C. As a condition to our consent to the transfer [your ability to enter into a successor franchise agreement],
you and Owner have agreed to execute this Agreement upon the terms and conditions stated below.

D. In consideration of our consent to the transfer [our entering into a successor franchise agreement], and
for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged,
and intending to be legally bound, you and Owner hereby agree as set forth below.

Agreement

1. Release. Owner, you, and each of your officers, directors, shareholders, members, owners, employees,
agents, representatives, affiliates, parents, divisions, successors and assigns, and all persons or firms
claiming by, through, under, or on behalf of any or all of them (the “Franchisee Parties”), hereby release,
acquit and forever discharge us, any and all of our past and present affiliates, parents, subsidiaries and
related companies, divisions and partnerships, consultants, advisors and franchise sellers and its and their
respective past and present officers, directors, sharcholders, members, owners, employees, agents,
representatives, affiliates, parents, divisions, successors and assigns, and the spouses of such individuals
(collectively, the “Franchisor Parties”), from any and all claims, liabilities, damages, expenses, actions or
causes of action which any of the Franchisee Parties may now have or has ever had, whether known or
unknown, past or present, absolute or contingent, suspected or unsuspected, of any nature whatsoever,
directly or indirectly arising out of or relating to the execution and performance (or lack thereof) of the
Franchise Agreement or the offer, sale or acceptance of the franchise related thereto (including, but not
limited to any disclosures and representations made in connection therewith). The foregoing release shall
not be construed to apply with respect to any obligations contained within this Agreement.

2. California Law. You and Owner hereby express your intention to release all existing claims, whether known
or unknown, against the Franchisor Parties. Accordingly, you and Owner hereby waive Section 1542 of the
California Civil Code, which provides the following:

“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his
or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have materially
affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”

[Section 2 only applies for California franchisees; otherwise it is omitted]

3. Washington Franchise Law. The General Release does not apply with respect to claims arising under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, or the rules adopted thereunder.

[Section 3 only applies for Washington franchisees; otherwise it is omitted]

4. Nondisparagement. Each of the Franchisee Parties expressly covenant and agree not to make any false
representation of facts, or to defame, disparage, discredit or deprecate any of the Franchisor Parties or
otherwise communicate with any person or entity in a manner intending to damage any of the Franchisor
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Parties, the business conducted by any of the Franchisor Parties or the reputation of any of the Franchisor
Parties. For purposes of clarity, the obligations in this Section apply to all methods of communications,
including the making of statements or representations through direct verbal or written communication as
well as the making of statements or representations on the Internet, through social media sites or through
any other verbal, digital or electronic method of communication. The obligations in this Section also
prohibit the Franchisee Parties from indirectly violating this Section by influencing or encouraging third
parties to engage in activities that would constitute a violation of this Section if conducted directly by a
Franchisee Party.

Representations and Warranties. You and Owner each represent and warrant that: (i) [Insert franchisee
entity name] is duly authorized to execute this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder; (ii) neither
you nor Owner has assigned, transferred or conveyed, either voluntarily or by operation of law, any of their
rights or claims against any of the Franchisor Parties or any of the rights, claims or obligations being
terminated or released hereunder; (iii) you and Owner have not and shall not (a) institute or cause to be
instituted against any of the Franchisor Parties any legal proceeding of any kind, including the filing of any
claim or complaint with any state or federal court or regulatory agency, alleging any violation of common
law, statute, regulation or public policy premised upon any legal theory or claim whatsoever relating to the
matters released in this Agreement or (b) make any verbal, written or other communication that could
reasonably be expected to damage or adversely impact any Franchisor Party’s reputation or goodwill; and
(iv) the individuals identified as Owners on the signature pages hereto together hold 100% of the legal and
beneficial ownership interests in [Insert franchisee entity name].

Miscellaneous.

(a)

(b)
(©)

(d)

(e)

()

(2

(h)

The Parties agree that each has read and fully understands this Agreement and that the opportunity has
been afforded to each Party to discuss the terms and contents of said Agreement with legal counsel and/or
that such a discussion with legal counsel has occurred.

This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

In the event that it shall be necessary for any Party to institute legal action to enforce, or for the breach of,
any of the terms and conditions or provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such action shall
be entitled to recover all of its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees.

All of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and
their respective current and future directors, officers, partners, attorneys, agents, employees, shareholders
and the spouses of such individuals, successors, affiliates, and assigns.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and supersedes and is in lieu of all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, inducements and conditions, expressed or implied, oral or written, of any nature
whatsoever with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be modified except in a
writing signed by each of the Parties.

If one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect or impair any
other provision of this Agreement, but this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable provision had not been contained herein.

The Parties agree to do such further acts and things and to execute and deliver such additional agreements
and instruments as any Party may reasonably require to consummate, evidence, or confirm the transactions
contemplated hereby.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of
which together shall constitute but one document.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

FRANCHISEE:

By:
Name:
Its:

FRANCHISE OWNERS:

Name:

Name:

Name:
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EXHIBIT “I”-3

SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

[See Attached]
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SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Software License Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of , 202 (the
“Effective Date”) between Success Franchising, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“we” or “us”) and
, a(n) (“you” and together with us, the “Parties”).

Background

A. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the Parties are entering into a SUCCESS Space
Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”), pursuant to which we will grant you the right and
obligation to develop and operate a SUCCESS Space Facility (your “Facility”) from a site to be approved
by us.

B. In connection with the operation of your Facility, we require that you license and utilize the proprietary
business management software described in Attachment A and referred to as “SUCCESS Spaceware” (the
“Software”).

C. We have acquired the right and license to use, and to grant sublicenses to our franchisees to use, the
Software in connection with the operation of SUCCESS Space facilities.

D. You desire to license the Software from us for purposes of operating your Facility, and we desire to
sublicense the Software to you subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

E. In consideration of the mutual covenants, terms, and conditions set forth herein, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby
agree to the terms and conditions set forth below.

Agreement

1. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings given to them
below.

“Documentation” means the user manuals, handbooks, and installation guides relating to the Software
provided by us to you either electronically or in hard copy form and end user documentation relating to
the Software.

“Software” means the products described in Attachment A to this Agreement in object code format,
including any Updates provided to you pursuant to this Agreement.

“Software Maintenance” shall mean the work done by LETESOFT to correct Errors and to provide
Fixes, Upgrades and Enhancements to the Software.

“Support Services” shall mean the work done by us or our designee in support of the Software,
including but not limited to, installation services, training, consultant support, telephone support, and
such other services as may be defined in an accepted order.

“Third-Party Products” means any third-party products described in Attachment A provided with or
incorporated into the Software.

“Updates” means any updates, bug fixes, patches, or other error corrections to the Software that we
generally make available free of charge to all licensees of the Software.

2. LICENSE.

(a) License Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, we hereby grant you a
non-exclusive, non-sublicenseable, and non-transferable (except in compliance with Section
12(})) license during the Term to: (i) use the Software solely for your internal business purposes
in connection with the operation of your Facility; and (ii) use and make a reasonable number of
copies of the Documentation solely for your internal business purposes in connection with your
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(b)

(©)

(d)

use of the Software. You may make one copy of the Software solely for back-up, disaster
recovery, and testing purposes. Any such copy of the Software: (x) remains our, or, as
applicable, the third-party’s exclusive property; (y) is subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement; and (z) must include all copyright or other proprietary rights notices contained in
the original.

Use Restrictions. You may not use the Software or Documentation for any purposes beyond the
scope of the license granted in this Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing and except as
otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement, you may not at any time, directly or indirectly:
(i) copy, modify, or create derivative works of the Software or the Documentation, in whole or
in part; (ii) rent, lease, lend, sell, sub-license, assign, distribute, publish, transfer, or otherwise
make available the Software or the Documentation; (iii) reverse engineer, disassemble,
decompile, decode, adapt, or otherwise attempt to derive or gain access to the source code of the
Software, in whole or in part; (iv) remove any proprietary notices from the Software or the
Documentation; or (v) use the Software in any manner or for any purpose that infringes,
misappropriates, or otherwise violates any intellectual property right, or other right, of any
person, or that violates any applicable law.

Reservation of Rights. We reserve all rights not expressly granted to you in this Agreement.
Except for the limited rights and licenses expressly granted under this Agreement, nothing in
this Agreement grants, by implication, waiver, estoppel, or otherwise, to you or any third party
any intellectual property rights or other right, title, or interest in or to the Software.

Delivery. No less than 60 days prior to the projected opening date of your Facility to the public,
we shall deliver the Software to you either electronically or through any other means
determined by us in our sole discretion.

YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES.

(a)

(b)

General. You are responsible and liable for all uses of the Software and Documentation
resulting from access provided by you, directly or indirectly, whether such access or use is
permitted by or in violation of this Agreement.

Third-Party Products. We may distribute certain Third-Party Products with the Software. For
purposes of this Agreement, such Third-Party Products are subject to their own license terms
and the applicable flow through provisions referred to in Attachment A. If you do not agree to
abide by the applicable terms for such Third-Party Product, then you should not install or use
such Third-Party Products.

SUPPORT. We (or our designee) will provide you with Software Maintenance and Support Services
subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

FEES AND PAYMENT.

(a)

(b)

Fees. You shall pay us the fees (“Fees”) set forth in Attachment A and elsewhere in this
Agreement without offset or deduction. You shall make all payments hereunder in US dollars
on or before the due date set forth in Attachment A or elsewhere in this Agreement. If you fail
to make any payment when due, then in addition to all other remedies that may be available to
us: (i) we may charge interest on the past due amount at the rate of 24% per annum calculated
daily and compounded monthly or, if lower, the highest rate permitted under applicable law;
and (ii) you must reimburse us for all costs that we incur in collecting any late payments or
interest, including attorneys’ fees, court costs, and collection agency fees.

Taxes. All Fees and other amounts you must pay under this Agreement are exclusive of taxes
and similar assessments. You are responsible for all sales, use, and excise taxes, and any other
similar taxes, duties, and charges of any kind imposed by any federal, state, or local
governmental or regulatory authority on any amounts payable by you hereunder, other than any
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taxes imposed on our income.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. From time to time during the Term, either Party may disclose or
make available to the other Party information about its business affairs, products, confidential
intellectual property, trade secrets, third-party confidential information, and other sensitive or
proprietary information, whether orally or in written, electronic, or other form or media, and whether or
not marked, designated, or otherwise identified as “confidential” (collectively, “Confidential
Information”). Confidential Information does not include information that, at the time of disclosure is:
(a) in the public domain; (b) known to the receiving Party at the time of disclosure; (c) rightfully
obtained by the receiving Party on a non-confidential basis from a third party; or (d) independently
developed by the receiving Party. The receiving Party shall not disclose the disclosing Party’s
Confidential Information to any person or entity, except to the receiving Party’s employees who have a
need to know the Confidential Information for the receiving Party to exercise its rights or perform its
obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party may disclose Confidential Information
to the limited extent required (i) in order to comply with the order of a court or other governmental
body, or as otherwise necessary to comply with applicable law, provided that the Party making the
disclosure pursuant to the order shall first have given written notice to the other Party and made a
reasonable effort to obtain a protective order; or (ii) to establish a Party’s rights under this Agreement,
including to make required court filings. On the expiration or termination of the Agreement, the
receiving Party shall promptly return to the disclosing Party all copies, whether in written, electronic, or
other form or media, of the disclosing Party’s Confidential Information, or destroy all such copies and
certify in writing to the disclosing Party that such Confidential Information has been destroyed. Each
Party’s obligations of non-disclosure with regard to Confidential Information are effective as of the
Effective Date.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY OWNERSHIP; FEEDBACK.

(a) Intellectual Property Ownership. You acknowledge that, as between you and us, we own all
right, title, and interest, including all intellectual property rights, in and to the Software and
Documentation and, with respect to Third-Party Products, the applicable third-party licensors
own all right, title and interest, including all intellectual property rights, in and to the Third-
Party Products.

(b) Feedback. If you or any of your employees or contractors sends or transmits any
communications or materials to us by mail, email, telephone, or otherwise, suggesting or
recommending changes to the Software or Documentation, including without limitation, new
features or functionality relating thereto, or any comments, questions, suggestions, or the like
(“Feedback™), we are free to use such Feedback irrespective of any other obligation or
limitation between the Parties governing such Feedback. You hereby assign to us on your
behalf, and on behalf of your employees, contractors and/or agents, all right, title, and interest in
the Feedback, and we are free to use, without any attribution or compensation to any party, any
ideas, know-how, concepts, techniques, or other intellectual property rights contained in the
Feedback, for any purpose whatsoever, although we are not required to use any Feedback.

WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. THE SOFTWARE AND DOCUMENTATION ARE PROVIDED “AS
IS” AND WE HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED,
STATUTORY, OR OTHERWISE. WE SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES
OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE AND NON-
INFRINGEMENT, AND ALL WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE,
OR TRADE PRACTICE. WE MAKE NO WARRANTY OF ANY KIND THAT THE SOFTWARE
AND DOCUMENTATION, OR ANY PRODUCTS OR RESULTS OF THE USE THEREOF, WILL
MEET YOUR OR ANY OTHER PERSON’S REQUIREMENTS, OPERATE WITHOUT
INTERRUPTION, ACHIEVE ANY INTENDED RESULT, BE COMPATIBLE OR WORK WITH
ANY SOFTWARE, SYSTEM OR OTHER SERVICES, OR BE SECURE, ACCURATE, COMPLETE,
FREE OF HARMFUL CODE, OR ERROR FREE.
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9.

10.

INDEMNIFICATION.

(a) Our Indemnification. We shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless you from and against any
and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) (“Losses”)
incurred by you resulting from any third-party claim, suit, action, or proceeding (“Third-Party
Claim”) that the Software or Documentation, or any use of the Software or Documentation in
accordance with this Agreement, infringes or misappropriates such third party’s US intellectual
property rights, provided that you promptly notify us in writing of the claim, cooperate with us,
and allow us sole authority to control the defense and settlement of such claim. If such a claim
is made or appears possible, you agree to permit us, at our sole discretion, to (A) modify or
replace the Software or Documentation, or component or part thereof, to make it non-infringing,
or (B) obtain the right for you to continue use. If we determine that none of these alternatives is
reasonably available, we may terminate this Agreement, in its entirety or with respect to the
affected component or part, effective immediately on written notice to you. This Section 9(a)
will not apply to the extent that the alleged infringement arises from: (A) use of the Software in
combination with data, software, hardware, equipment, or technology not provided by us or
authorized by us in writing; (B) modifications to the Software not made by us; or (C) use of any
version other than the most current version of the Software or Documentation delivered to you;
or (D) Third-Party Products.

(b) Your Indemnification. You shall indemnify, hold harmless, and, at our option, defend us from
and against any Losses resulting from any Third-Party Claim based on your: (i) negligence or
willful misconduct; (ii) use of the Software or Documentation in a manner not authorized or
contemplated by this Agreement; (iii) use of the Software in combination with data, software,
hardware, equipment or technology not provided by us or authorized by us in writing; (iv)
modifications to the Software not made by us; or (v) use of any version other than the most
current version of the Software or Documentation delivered to you, provided that you may not
settle any Third-Party Claim against us unless such settlement completely and forever releases
us from all liability with respect to such Third-Party Claim or unless we consent to such
settlement, and further provided that we will have the right, at our option, to defend ourselves
against any such Third-Party Claim or to participate in the defense thereof by counsel of our
own choice.

() Sole Remedy. THIS SECTION 9 SETS FORTH YOUR SOLE REMEDIES AND OUR SOLE
LIABILITY AND OBLIGATION FOR ANY ACTUAL, THREATENED, OR ALLEGED
CLAIMS THAT THE SOFTWARE OR DOCUMENTATION INFRINGES,
MISAPPROPRIATES, OR OTHERWISE VIOLATES ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RIGHTS OF ANY THIRD PARTY. IN NO EVENT WILL OUR LIABILITY UNDER THIS
SECTION 9 EXCEED THE LIABILITY CAP DESCRIBED IN SECTION 10.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT WILL WE BE LIABLE UNDER OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT UNDER ANY LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY,
INCLUDING BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT
LIABILITY, AND OTHERWISE, FOR ANY: (a) CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT,
EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, ENHANCED, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES; (b) INCREASED COSTS,
DIMINUTION IN VALUE OR LOST BUSINESS, PRODUCTION, REVENUES, OR PROFITS; (c)
LOSS OF GOODWILL OR REPUTATION; (d) USE, INABILITY TO USE, LOSS, INTERRUPTION,
DELAY OR RECOVERY OF ANY DATA, OR BREACH OF DATA OR SYSTEM SECURITY; OR
(e) COST OF REPLACEMENT GOODS OR SERVICES, IN EACH CASE REGARDLESS OF
WHETHER YOU WERE ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES OR
SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES WERE OTHERWISE FORESEEABLE. IN NO EVENT WILL OUR
AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT UNDER
ANY LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, INCLUDING BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY, INDEMNIFICATION OR OTHERWISE,
EXCEED THE TOTAL AMOUNTS PAID AND AMOUNTS ACCRUED BUT NOT YET PAID TO
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12.

US UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN THE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD PRECEDING THE
EVENT GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM.

TERM AND TERMINATION.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Term. The term of this Agreement and the granted license to use the Software (the “Term”),
including Third-Party Products, shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement, and
shall run concurrently with the term of the Franchise Agreement for your Facility unless earlier
terminated in accordance with the terms hereof.

Termination. In addition to any other express termination right set forth in this Agreement:

(1) we may terminate this Agreement, effective on written notice to you, if either: (A) you
breach any of your obligations under Section 2(b) or Section 6; or (B) we decide, in our
sole discretion, to discontinue use of the Software as part of the Success Space business
model;

(i1) either Party may terminate this Agreement, effective on written notice to the other
Party, if the other Party materially breaches this Agreement, and such breach: (A) is
incapable of cure; or (B) being capable of cure, remains uncured 30 days after the non-
breaching Party provides the breaching Party with written notice of such breach; or

(iii) either Party may terminate this Agreement, effective immediately upon written notice to
the other Party, if the other Party: (A) becomes insolvent or is generally unable to pay,
or fails to pay, its debts as they become due; (B) files or has filed against it, a petition
for voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or otherwise becomes subject, voluntarily or
involuntarily, to any proceeding under any domestic or foreign bankruptcy or
insolvency law; (C) makes or seeks to make a general assignment for the benefit of its
creditors; or (D) applies for or has appointed a receiver, trustee, custodian, or similar
agent appointed by order of any court of competent jurisdiction to take charge of or sell
any material portion of its property or business.

Effect of Expiration or Termination. Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement,
the license granted hereunder will also terminate, and, without limiting your obligations under
Section 6, you shall cease using and delete, destroy, or return all copies of the Software,
including any Third-Party Products, and Documentation and certify in writing to us that the
Software, any Third-Party Products, and Documentation has been deleted or destroyed. No
expiration or termination will affect your obligation to pay all Fees that may have become due
before such expiration or termination, or entitle you to any refund.

Survival. This Section 11(d) and Sections 1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 12 survive any termination or
expiration of this Agreement. No other provisions of this Agreement survive the expiration or
earlier termination of this Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS.

(a)

(b)

Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with any other documents incorporated herein by
reference and all related Attachments, constitutes the sole and entire agreement of the Parties
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings, agreements, and representations and warranties, both written
and oral, with respect to such subject matter. In the event of any inconsistency between the
statements made in the body of this Agreement, the related Attachments and any other
documents incorporated herein by reference, the following order of precedence governs: (a)
first, this Agreement, excluding its Attachments; (b) second, the Attachments to this Agreement
as of the Effective Date; and (c) third, any other documents incorporated herein by reference.

Notices. All notices given under this Agreement must be in writing, delivered by hand, email (to
the last email address provided by the recipient) or first class mail, to the following addresses
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(d)

(e)

&

(which may be changed upon 10 business days prior written notice):

YOU:
Attn:
Email:
US: Success Franchising, LLC

T50 NSt Paul St-5473 Blair Rd. Suite 250100, PMB 30053
Dallas, Texas 752031

Attention: Legal Operations

Email: ted.laatz@success.com & legal@success.com

Notice shall be considered given: (i) at the time delivered by hand (with written confirmation of
receipt); (ii) one (1) business day after sending by email or comparable electronic system; or
(iii) three (3) business days after placed in the mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail with a
return receipt requested. We may also provide notice of any change to the Manual through
bulletins, postings or other notices provided on the Intranet or through any other method that we
commonly utilize to communicate with our franchisee community as a whole. Notwithstanding
the above, all notices to us must in all events be e-mailed to legal@success.com (and to any
other email address that we specify from time to time) or such notice will not be deemed as
having been delivered to us.

9% Ceg

Interpretation. For purposes of this Agreement, (a) the words “include,” “includes,” and
“including” will be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation”; (b) the word “or”
is not exclusive; and (c) the words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereby,” “hereto,” and “hereunder” refer
to this Agreement as a whole. Unless the context otherwise requires, references herein: (x) to
Sections, Schedules, and Attachments refer to the Sections of, and Schedules and Attachments
attached to, this Agreement; (y) to an agreement, instrument, or other document means such
agreement, instrument, or other document as amended, supplemented, and modified from time
to time to the extent permitted by the provisions thereof; and (z) to a statute means such statute
as amended from time to time and includes any successor legislation thereto and any regulations
promulgated thereunder. This Agreement will be construed without regard to any presumption
or rule requiring construction or interpretation against the party drafting an instrument or
causing any instrument to be drafted. Any Schedules and Attachments referred to herein will be
construed with, and as an integral part of, this Agreement to the same extent as if they were set
forth verbatim herein.

Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and do not affect the
interpretation of this Agreement.

Force Majeure. In no event shall either Party be liable to the other Party, or be deemed to have
breached this Agreement, for any failure or delay in performing its obligations under this
Agreement (except for any obligations to make payments), if and to the extent such failure or
delay is caused by any circumstances beyond such Party’s reasonable control, including but not
limited to acts of God, flood, fire, earthquake, explosion, war, terrorism, invasion, riot or other
civil unrest, strikes, labor stoppages or slowdowns or other industrial disturbances, or passage of
law or any action taken by a governmental or public authority, including imposing an embargo.

Amendment and Modification; Waiver. No amendment to or modification of this Agreement is
effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each Party. No
waiver by any Party of any of the provisions hereof will be effective unless explicitly set forth
in writing and signed by the Party so waiving. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement,
(1) no failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any rights, remedy, power or privilege arising
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(h)

(1)

\)

(k)

M

(m)

from this Agreement will operate or be construed as a waiver thereof and (ii) no single or partial
exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder will preclude any other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other term or
provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render unenforceable such term or provision in any
other jurisdiction. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal,
or unenforceable, the Parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as
to effect the original intent of the Parties as closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner
in order that the transactions contemplated hereby be consummated as originally contemplated
to the greatest extent possible.

Governing Law; Submission to Jurisdiction. This Agreement is governed by and construed in
accordance with the internal Laws of the State of Texas without giving effect to any choice or
conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Texas or any other jurisdiction) that
would cause the application of Laws of any other. Any legal suit, action, or proceeding arising
out of or related to this Agreement will be instituted exclusively in the federal courts of the
United States or the courts of the State of Texas in each case located in the city of Dallas and
County of Dallas, and each party irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts
in any such suit, action, or proceeding. Service of process, summons, notice, or other document
by mail to such party’s address set forth herein will be effective service of process for any suit,
action, or other proceeding brought in any such court.

Waiver of Jury Trial. Each party irrevocably and unconditionally waives any right it may have
to a trial by jury in respect of any claim, suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or relating to
this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

Assignment. This Agreement is fully assignable by us (without prior notice to you) and shall
inure to the benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this
Agreement, provided that we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for the
performance of our obligations under this Agreement up to the effective date of the assignment.
You may not assign or transfer any of your rights or delegate any of your obligations hereunder,
in each case whether voluntarily, involuntarily, by operation of law or otherwise, without our
prior written consent. Any purported assignment, transfer, or delegation in violation of this
Section is null and void. No assignment, transfer, or delegation will relieve the assigning or
delegating Party of any of its obligations hereunder. This Agreement is binding upon and inures
to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective permitted successors and assigns.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and
their respective successors and permitted assigns and nothing herein, express or implied, is
intended to or will confer upon any other person any legal or equitable right, benefit, or remedy
of any nature whatsoever, under or by reason of this Agreement.

Binding Agreement. This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective permitted successors and assigns.

Export Regulation. The Software may be subject to US export control laws, including the
Export Control Reform Act and its associated regulations. You shall not, directly or indirectly,
export, re-export, or release the Software to, or make the Software accessible from, any
jurisdiction or country to which export, re-export, or release is prohibited by law, rule, or
regulation. You shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and rules, and
complete all required undertakings (including obtaining any necessary export license or other
governmental approval), prior to exporting, re-exporting, releasing, or otherwise making the
Software available outside the US.
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Equitable Relief. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that a breach or threatened breach by
such Party of any of its obligations under Section 6 or, in the case of you, Section 2(b), would
cause the other Party irreparable harm for which monetary damages would not be an adequate
remedy and agrees that, in the event of such breach or threatened breach, the other Party will be
entitled to equitable relief, including a restraining order, an injunction, specific performance,
and any other relief that may be available from any court, without any requirement to post a
bond or other security, or to prove actual damages or that monetary damages are not an
adequate remedy. Such remedies are not exclusive and are in addition to all other remedies that
may be available at law, in equity, or otherwise.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an
original, but all of which together are deemed to be one and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

US You
SUCCESS FRANCHISING, LLC

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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ATTACHMENT A
TO SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Attachment A have the meaning given to those terms in the
Agreement or the Franchise Agreement as appropriate.

1. DESCRIPTION OF THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE:

[ LETESOFT — Software License Agreement between Letesoft, LLC and us;
O NEXUDUS - Proposal from Nexudus Limited to us subject to web based Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Policy and Service Limits;
O Schoox — Services Agreement between Schoox and us dated February 5, 2021.
2. FEES:

Total Fees due: $1,650 per month, subject to change by us on 30 days written notice.

Payment terms: Payable on the 10™ of each month in the same manner as the Royalty Fees with the first
payment due 30 days prior to the anticipated opening date of your Facility.
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EXHIBIT "J"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document
be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South
Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is
filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date

California Toe U pnepeed e eppbar 1
Ll

Hawaii

Illinois Sope s HO s foppreeled Soes oy L
2023y

Indiana b U sepeed e L
L

Maryland Attetst42023-tamended-November+5-
Lo

Michigan Cretpbos L 000 tapsepele LD b |
Ll

Minnesota S e pelan oo bap 0
L

New York

North Dakota B e T e
L

Rhode Island Dhoesssbep 20 100

South Dakota

Virginia AprH25 2023 (amendedNovember+4-
2023y

Washington

Wisconsin AprH25 2023 (amendedNovember+4-
2023y

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such
as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing
plans.
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EXHIBIT "K"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
RECEIPTS

[See Attached]
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in
plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Success Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 days
before you sign a binding agreement or make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale.

If Success Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains a false or
misleading statement or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should
be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency listed in
EXHIBIT "A" to this Disclosure Document.

The franchise seller(s) involved with the sale of this franchise is/are:

Ted Laatz; 750-North-St—Paul-St55473 Blair Rd. Suite 2568100, PMB 30053, Dallas, Texas 752631; (800) 570-

6414

Ben Litalien; 750-North-St—Paul-St55473 Blair Rd. Suite 256100, PMB 30053, Dallas, Texas 75203 1; (800) 570-

6414

Andrew Johnson; 9842 N. 48th PI. Paradise Valley, AZ 85253; (480) 205-2947

Shaun Hagopian; 999 Corporate Drive, Suite 215, Ladera Ranch, California 92629; (619) 403-6209

Issuance Date: April 19, 2023-(amended-Oetober4;202392024

Success Franchising, LLC’s agent to receive service of process is listed in EXHIBIT "B" to this Disclosure Document.
I received a Franchise Disclosure Document that included the following Exhibits:

EXHIBIT "A" State Agencies and Administrators

EXHIBIT "B" Agent for Service of Process

EXHIBIT "C" Franchise Agreement

EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement

EXHIBIT "E" Table of Contents of the confidential Brand Standards Manual
EXHIBIT "F" List of Franchisees

EXHIBIT "G" Area Representatives

EXHIBIT "H" Financial Statements of Success Franchising, LLC
EXHIBIT "I" Other Agreements

EXHIBIT "I"-1  State Addenda

EXHIBIT "I"-2  General Release

EXHIBIT "I"-3  Software License Agreement

EXHIBIT "J" State Effective Dates

EXHIBIT "K" Receipts

Print Name

Date (Signature) Prospective Franchise Owner
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(This Receipt should be executed in duplicate. One Receipt must be signed and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the
prospective franchise owner’s copy. The other Receipt must be signed and returned to Success Franchising, LLC)
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in
plain language.

Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. If Success Franchising, LLC offers you a
franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 days before you sign a binding agreement or
make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If Success Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains a false or
misleading statement or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should
be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency listed in
EXHIBIT "A" to this Disclosure Document.

The franchise seller(s) involved with the sale of this franchise is/are:

Ted Laatz; 750-North-St—Paul-St55473 Blair Rd. Suite 2568100, PMB 30053, Dallas, Texas 752631; (800) 570-

6414

Ben Litalien; 750-North-St—Paul-St55473 Blair Rd. Suite 256100, PMB 30053, Dallas, Texas 75203 1; (800) 570-

6414

Andrew Johnson; 9842 N. 48th PI. Paradise Valley, AZ 85253; (480) 205-2947

Shaun Hagopian; 999 Corporate Drive, Suite 215, Ladera Ranch, California 92629; (619) 403-6209

Issuance Date: April 19, 2023-(amended-Oetober4;202392024

Success Franchising, LLC’s agent to receive service of process is listed in EXHIBIT "B" to this Disclosure Document.
I received a Franchise Disclosure Document that included the following Exhibits:

EXHIBIT "A" State Agencies and Administrators

EXHIBIT "B" Agent for Service of Process

EXHIBIT "C" Franchise Agreement

EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement

EXHIBIT "E" Table of Contents of the confidential Brand Standards Manual
EXHIBIT "F" List of Franchisees

EXHIBIT "G" Area Representatives

EXHIBIT "H" Financial Statements of Success Franchising, LLC
EXHIBIT "I" Other Agreements

EXHIBIT "I"-1  State Addenda

EXHIBIT "I"-2  General Release

EXHIBIT "I"-3  Software License Agreement

EXHIBIT "J" State Effective Dates

EXHIBIT "K" Receipts

Print Name

Date (Signature) Prospective Franchise Owner
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(This Receipt should be executed in duplicate. One Receipt must be signed and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the
prospective franchise owner’s copy. The other Receipt must be signed and returned to Success Franchising, LLC.)
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